
Agenda 

ORDER PAPER FOR ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 
TO BE HELD IN

Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, Texas Street 
Martinborough

27 September 2023

MEMBERSHIP OF COUNCIL 
THE MAYOR

Mr Martin Connelly

Cr M Bosley
Cr R Gray
Cr A Plimmer
Cr C Olds
Cr A Woodcock

Cr M Sadler-Futter 
Cr K McAulay
Cr P Maynard

Cr A Ellims

RECOMMENDATIONS IN REPORTS ARE NOT COUNCIL POLICY 
UNTIL THEY ARE AGREED TO BY THE COUNCIL.





i 

 

 
 
 
Council Meeting 
Agenda – 27 September 2023 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
This meeting will be held in the Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, 62 Texas Street, Martinborough and via 
audio-visual conference, commencing at 10.00am. The meeting will be held in public where noted and 
will be live-streamed and will be available to view on our YouTube channel. 
 
Council Membership: Mayor Martin Connelly (Chair), Deputy Mayor Melissa Sadler-Futter, Councillors 
Aidan Ellims, Colin Olds, Alistair Plimmer, Rebecca Gray, Martin Bosley, Pip Maynard, Aaron Woodcock 
and Kaye McAulay. 
 
All SWDC meeting minutes and agendas are available on our website: https://swdc.govt.nz/meetings/  
 

 

A Open Section 

A1. Mihi / Karakia Timatanga - Opening  

A2. Apologies   
A3. Conflicts of interest  
A4. Acknowledgements and tributes  
A5. Public participation 

As per standing order 14.17 no debate or decisions will be 
made at the meeting on issues raised during the forum unless 
related to items already on the agenda. 

 

A6. Actions from Public participation  

A7. Extraordinary business  
A8. Community Board / Māori Standing Committee 

A8.1 Featherston Playground 
 

Pages 1-12 

A9. Confirmation of Minutes 
Proposed Resolution:  That the minutes of the Council 
meetings held on 2 August 2023 are a true and correct record.  

   Pages 13-23  

A10. Matters arising from the minutes.  
   

B. Recommendations from Committees 

B1. Recommendations from the Hearings Committee Pages 24-333  
 
C. Decision Reports from Interim Chief Executive and Staff 

C1. Audit Engagement Letters 2023. 2024, 2025 Pages 334-385   

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCMfhxnFK-riv9KItgv2BwYg/videos
https://swdc.govt.nz/meetings/


ii 

C2. Community Wellbeing Fund  Pages 386-455  

C3. Updated Three Waters Capital Delivery Plan for FY202324 Pages 456-480  
C4. Draft Carterton and South Wairarapa interim Speed 

Management Plan 
Pages 481-609   

C5. Greytown Greenspace - Options Pages 610-660   
C6. Adoption Long Term Plan Environmental Scan Pages 661-691   

C7. Adoption of the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone 
TAB Venues Statement of Proposal and Draft Policy 

Pages 692-775  

C8. Adoption of Proactive Release Policy Pages 776-787  
C9. Adoption of Submissions Guidelines Pages 788-797  
C10. Adoption of the Freedom Camping Bylaw Statement of Proposal 

for Community Consultation 
Pages 798-861  

 
D. Information Reports from Interim Chief Executive and Staff 

D1. Interim Chief Executive Update Pages 862-873  
D2. Representation Review Update Pages 874-877  

D3. Wairarapa Economic Development Strategy 2022-23 Annual 
Report 

Pages 878-903  

D4. Action Items Pages 904-912  
 
E. Mayor’s Report 

E1. Report from Mayor Connelly Pages 913-918 
 
F. Appointment Report 

F1. Destination Wairarapa Appointment Report from Allan Hogg Pages 919 
 
G. Public Excluded Section  

G1. Confirmation of Public Excluded Minutes 
Proposed Resolution:  That the public excluded 
minutes of the Council meeting held on 2 August 2023, 
are a true and correct record. 

(All Public Excluded papers are 
distributed separately) 

 

G2. Outstanding Water Rates Debtor’s Report  

G3. Swimming Pool Facilities Management and Operation 
– Contract Delegation 

 

G4. Greytown Pavilion Rebuild – Contract Delegation  

   
 

 

 The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local Government 
Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution are as follows: 
 



iii 

Report/General Subject Matter Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to 
the matter 

Ground(s) under 
Section 48(1) for the 
passing of this 
Resolution 

Public Excluded Council Meeting 
Minutes, 2 August 2023  
(Review of corporate accommodation 
and future Requirements; Solid Waste 
Contract Extension and Section 17A 
Review; Outstanding Rates Water 
Debtor Report) 

Good reason to withhold exists 
under section 6(a)&(b); 7(2)(a) 
and 7(2)(i) 
  

Section 48(1)(a) 

Outstanding Rates Water Debtor 
Report 

Good reason to withhold exists 
under section 6(a)&(b); 7(2)(a) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

Swimming Pool Facilities Management 
and Operation – Contract Delegation 

Good reason to withhold exists 
under section  7(2)(b)(i) and 
7(2)(b)(ii) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

Greytown Pavilion Rebuild– Contract 
Delegation 

Good reason to withhold exists 
under section  7(2)(b)(i) and 
7(2)(b)(ii) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

 
This resolution is made in reliance on Section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings 
Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by section 6 or section 7 of that Act which would be 
prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting in public are as follows: 
 

Reason for passing this resolution in relation to the matter Ground(s) under Section 
48(1) for the passing of 
this Resolution 
 

The withholding of the information is necessary to protect the privacy of 
natural persons, including that of deceased natural persons. 

Section 7(2)(a)  
 

The public disclosure of information would be likely: 
(a) to prejudice the maintenance of the law, including the prevention, 
investigation, and 
detection of offences, and the right to a fair trial; or 
(b) to endanger the safety of any person. 

Section 6(a)&(b) 

The withholding of the information is necessary to enable any local 
authority holding the information to carry on, without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations (including commercial and industrial 
negotiations). 

Section 7(2)(i) 

The withholding of the information is necessary to protect information 
where the making available of the information would disclose a trade 
secret. 

Section 7(2)(b)(i) 

The withholding of the information is necessary to protect information 
where the making available of the information would be likely 
unreasonably to prejudice the commercial position of the person who 
supplied or who is the subject of the information 

 

Section 7(2)(b)(ii) 

 
Recommended Council Resolution (required from 4:00pm):  
That the Council meeting on 27 September 2023 continue beyond the six-hour time limit on meetings 
prescribed by South Wairarapa District Council’s Standing Orders. 

 
G. Karakia Whakamutunga - Closing 



South Wairarapa District Council 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

27 September 2023 
Agenda Item: A8.1 

Naming approval for Featherston playground as Requested by 
Featherston Community Board 

1. Purpose

The Featherston Community Board (FCB) seek approval from Council to name the public 
playground in Featherston the Joy Cowley Children’s Playground. 

2. Background

Joy Cowley is a much-loved New Zealand Children’s author, a long-term resident of 
Featherston and the patron of Featherston Booktown. We the Featherston Community 
Board recommend that we celebrate Joy, our living taonga who lives in and champions our 
community, by naming the public playground in her honour. 

Some �me ago the idea of naming the playground on the corner of Fox and Birdwood 
Streets in Joy’s honour was raised by a group of community members. In December 2022 
the Booktown Facebook page floated the idea with its online community, and it received 
considerable support approx. 495 posi�ve interac�ons and 190 comments. 

The idea was brought to the FCB for support earlier this year and the Community Board 
were happy to support the project. Deputy Mayor Melissa has been liaising with the 
community members and Council officers to ensure the right steps are being taken in this 
process. 

The name change has support from local community groups including Booktown Board, 
Connec�ng Featherston, Pae te Mokai O Tauira. 

Importantly Joy herself is very much in favour of her name being used for the park in fact 
she is “delighted”. 

A�er bringing the idea to FCB and checking with officers it was suggested a survey that could 
track Featherston specific support for the idea be run. The community members were happy 
to do this, and a survey was shared online and via posters in local community spaces. The 
survey had 129 responses with 125 in favour of the new park name. 88 of the response were 
from current Featherston residents with the balance of the responses from those with a 
connec�on to or interest in Featherston. 

With Joy's imminent departure from the area, there's a pressing need to complete this 
project. The community members are ready to commission new signs and host a small 

1



community event to mark the occasion. We, the FCB, request the Council's permission to 
officially name the park, which currently lacks a meaningful or sen�mental iden�ty. 

We seek a swi� and posi�ve response from the Council to honour this cherished local 
author and community figure. 

3. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Booktown Facebook post 
Appendix 2 – Email from Joy Cowley affirming her support for the project 
Appendix 3 – Email from Pae tu Mokai o Tauira 
Appendix 4 – Pe��on to rename Featherston Playground 

Submited on behalf of the Featherston Community Board by Deputy Mayor Melissa Sadler-
Futer 

2



Appendix 1 – Booktown Facebook post 

3



4



5



 
Appendix 2 – Email from Joy Cowley 
affirming her support for the project 

  

6



Kia ora Melissa,  

 

Mary Biggs has given me the happy news that the 
Featherston Children's Playground is getting a new 
name. My heart is dancing with delight, and if the 
rest of me could remember how to dance, it would, 
too. 

 

Years ago someone told me the playground was 
going to get my name. I wanted to believe it but 
there was no follow up and I dismissed it as 
rumour. 

 

My love of children gets into books and now it 
will be part of a place where children play.  I can;t 
think of any honour higher than that. 

 

Please extend a rapturous YES to the organisers. 

 

This is wonderful news. 

 

Whakapai ki a koe, 

 

Joy 

 

(Joy Cowley)  

7



 
Appendix 3 – Email from Pae tu Mokai o 

Tauira 
  

8



9



 
Appendix 4 – Pe��on to rename 

Featherston Playground 
 

10



Submission Date First Name Last Name Which town do you live in?

Do you support renaming the 
Featherston Playground to Joy 
Cowley Children's Playground

Jul 24, 2023 Pamela Robinson Featherston Yes
Jul 24, 2023 Anthony Robinson Featherston Yes
Jul 17, 2023 Leonie Hynds Auckland Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Jane Griffin Mount Eden Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Billie Leslie-bird Wellington Yes
Jul 12, 2023 annika leslie-bird wellington Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Aylana Wright Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Aaron WRIGHT Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Barry Wright Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Nicky Wright Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Jesse Griffin Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Taylor Griffin Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Jackie Harrigan Feilding Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Lauren Harrigan New Plymouth Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Nick Burt Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Joan Smith Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 MJ Terry Greytown Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Howie Griffin Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Penny Griffin Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Claire Terry Featherston No
Jul 11, 2023 Daniella Smith Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 June Burt Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Ed Harcourt Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 carmen smith Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Chris Mead Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Sebastian Brooker Hamilton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Harrison Brooker Hamilton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Martin Brooker Hamilton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Amanda Brooker Hamilton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Anne Hynds Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Tracey Smith Matamata Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Melissa Mead Featherston Yes
Sep 4, 2023 Sharon Brinsdon Nelson Yes
Aug 17, 2023 Robyn Ramsden Featherston Yes
Jul 30, 2023 Julie Marshall Featherston Yes
Jul 29, 2023 Will Rushton Birmingham Yes
Jul 23, 2023 Janelle Clark Greytown Yes
Jul 22, 2023 Chanelle McClelland Featherston Yes
Jul 22, 2023 Emma De Jong Wellington Yes
Jul 22, 2023 Ethan Helliwell Wellington Yes
Jul 16, 2023 Katie Beattie Featherston Yes
Jul 14, 2023 Sue Ball Featherston Yes
Jul 14, 2023 Richard Wards Featherston Yes
Jul 13, 2023 Faith Dornan Featherston Yes
Jul 13, 2023 Sue Bartlett Otago Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Carolyn Gebbie Wellington (Te Aro) Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Sian Harcourr Featherston Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Alison Percival Featherston Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Jan Hoskin Featherston Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Maggie Tweedie Wellington Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Shara Hudson Featherston Yes
Jul 12, 2023 Emily Greenberg Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Patricia Dance Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Beth Rooney Greytown Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Sophie Bright Rural greytown Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Megan Verry Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Henri McKenzie Blakeley Wellingtin Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Charlotte Biggs Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Leah Rothman Featherston No
Jul 11, 2023 Fran Dysart Wellington Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Julia Parry Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Emine Kokcu Upper Hutt Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Heather Haylock Auckland Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Rachelle Workman Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 MARINA LIRA Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Emma McCleary Featherston No
Jul 11, 2023 Phillippa Hibbs Auckland Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Garry Thomas Featherston Yes
Jul 11, 2023 Jessica Larking Featherston No
Jul 11, 2023 Felicity Hamlyn featherston Yes

11



Jul 11, 2023 Kristin Hodgins Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Paul Broughton Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Therese Dennison Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Alex Masterton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Denise MacKenzie Ocean Beach Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jack Sheppard Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Emma McDougall Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jenni Roberts Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Lisa Pugh Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Bargh Colleen Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jo Dennes Greytown Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jennifer Grey Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Tina Knapp Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Collette Hutchby Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Daniel Millar Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Tracey Yandle Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Rebecca Johnson Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Ryan McArthur Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Kirstene Saba Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Zoya Huxford Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Christina Beaumont Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jane Grabham Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Ali Ward Ward Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Sophie Leloir Recently departed but was Fea   Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Nic Taylor Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Margaret Fletcher Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Bronwyn Drysdale Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jen Bhati Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Helen Cox Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Anne Hannah Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jeanna Bradley Masterton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Tanja Schubert-McArthur Wairarapa Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Sue Death Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Josephine Walker  (Nee Wilson) Napier (ex Featherston ) Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Lee Priday Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jocelyn Kebbell Martinborough Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Heidi Bichler Ohope Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Kate Barry Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Sonya Logan Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Derek McLuskie Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Anna Crossling Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Denver Grenell Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Big Dick Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Joanna Baldwin Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Cathy Soper Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Principal South Featherston Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Annelise Schroeder Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Tana Klaricich Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Becci Aitken Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Erin Banks Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Kerry Turner Masterton Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Jill Sexton Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Lynda Nation Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Linda Ferretti Greytown Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Lisa Bennett Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Melissa Hitchcock Wellington Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Raewyn Rota Featherston Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Annette Edwards-Hill Wellington Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Stephanie Revell Wellington Yes
Jul 10, 2023 Nikki Davis Porirua Yes

12



 
 

 
 

South Wairarapa District Council  
Minutes from 2 August 2023  

 
 

Present: 
 

Mayor Martin Connelly (Chair) Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter, Councillor Aidan 
Ellims (until 3:01pm), Alistair Plimmer, Rebecca Gray, Martin Bosley and Aaron 
Woodcock, Colin Olds and Kaye McAulay. 
 

Apologies: Councillor Pip Maynard 
 

In Attendance:  Storm Robertson, Karen Krogh and Mel Maynard (via Zoom) (Martinborough 
Community Board). 
 
Paul Gardner (Interim Chief Executive Officer), Amanda Bradley (General 
Manager Policy and Governance), Sheil Priest (General Manager Communications 
and Engagement), Stefan Corbett (Group Manager Partnerships and Operations), 
Russell O’Leary (Group Manager Planning and Environment), Leanne Karauna 
(Principal Advisor Māori), Nicki Ansell (Lead Community Advisor), Kaity 
Carmichael (Lead Policy Advisor) and Amy Andersen (Committee Advisor). 
 
Kim Kelly (Greater Wellington Regional Council). 
 

Public Forum: Peter Biggs, Lee Carter, Warren Woodgyer, Mike Gray and Jim Hedley. 
 

Conduct of 
Business: 

This meeting was held in the Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, 62 Texas Street, 
Martinborough and via audio-visual conference. This meeting was live-streamed 
is available to view on our YouTube channel.  The meeting was held in public 
under the above provisions from 10.01am to 3:26pm except where expressly 
noted. 

  
Open Section 

 A1. Karakia Timatanga - Opening 
  Mayor Connelly opened the meeting. 

 
A2. Apologies 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/104) to accept apologies from Cr Maynard for the 
 meeting; and from Cr Ellims, Cr Gray, Cr Bosely and Cr Woodcock to leave the meeting 
 at various intervals. 

 (Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Ellims)                                                       Carried 

13



 
A3. Conflicts of Interest 

There were no conflicts of interest. 
 

A4. Acknowledgements and Tributes 
Mayor Connelly and Cr Plimmer acknowledged Rick Mead and Council Officers for being 
awarded Super Idea at the LGNZ conference which took place last week in Christchurch. 
Mayor Connelly, Cr Olds, and Cr Woodcock acknowledged the passing of Richard 
Harding, former Mayor of Greytown (1975-1983). Mayor Connelly noted that Council 
had sent floral tribute to Mr Harding’s family. 
Cr Olds and Cr Woodcock acknowledged the passing of Ruby Holmes, Greytown 
resident. 
Cr Plimmer also informed that Brian Jephson, former SWDC Councillor had a medical 
emergency on the weekend and sent best wishes for a speedy covering. 
 

A5. Public Participation 
   
Cr Plimmer left the meeting at 10:07am.  
Cr Plimmer returned to the meeting at 10:17am. 
 
  Peter Biggs – Booktown 
  Mr Bigg, the Chair of Featherston Booktown Trust, spoke to Council about the  
  background and work of the organisation, and their hosting of the hosting the next year 
  global conference next year (14-18 March 2023) and noted the organisation were 
  seeking funding to ensure the conference is successful. 
  Mr Biggs responded to members queries including how many people were expected to 
  attend the conference and potential funding sources to support this. 
 
  Lee Carter – Infrastructure and Community Services Committee meeting, 25 July 2023 - 
  Libraries 
  Ms Carter provided feedback to Council on the libraries item discussed by the ICS 
  Committee last  week including: decision making in relation to funding libraries, shared 
  services, recruitment, management of staff leave, budgets, the lack of a Memorandum 
  of Understanding with Carterton District Council, and governance.  
  Ms Carter responded to members queries including her terms on the Featherston 
  Community Board and Council; and sharing positive feedback. 
   
  Warren Woodgyer – CEO selection process 

Mr Woodgyer spoke to Council about the CEO selection process, regarding transparency 
of the process and shared his views about what Council should be looking for in a 

14



candidate, as well as the inclusion of Community Board to support selection of a 
candidate.  

  Councillor McAulay provided some details about the current selection process and next 
  steps, which will include updates to the Community Boards in the coming weeks. 
 
  Mike Gray – Future for Local Government Review 
  Mr Gray, supported by Mr Hedley, spoke to Council on behalf of a group called Citizens 
  Promoting Quality Community Governance.  Mr Gray offered the group’s support in light 
  of the recent Future for Local Government Review. He noted that the group would like 
  to see local residents included in the rating review process.   
 
  Mr Gardner noted that SWDC did contribute to the Future for Local Government 
  Review, working through LGNZ to champion a way forward.   
 
  Members encouraged the community to submit on future consultations and observed 
  that the group could provide support to the community to engage in the processes 
  led by Council. 
 
  Jim Hedley – After effects of the Annual Plan 23/24 
  Mr Hedley spoke to Council to relay his concerns about the rates review and  
  how rates are currently set. 
  

A6. Actions from public participation 
 Members queried whether more information on financial support could be provided to  

Booktown.  Mr Gardner noted that he had been in contact with Mr Biggs regarding 
applications for the appropriate funding. 

 
A7.  Matters arising from previous minutes 

 There was no extraordinary business. 

 A8. Māori Standing Committee/Community Boards 
  Mr Robertson, supported by Ms Krogh and Ms Maynard, spoke to matters submitted 
  in the request to Council and provided examples of issues that the Community Board 
  were experiencing. 
 
  Community Board members wanted to clarify the high court decision on the bequest to 
  Martinborough Council, answering questions from 2019.   
 

Mr Robertson responded to members queries including what conversations with 
CE/Staff around reasonable timings for information had already occured, whether the 
Community Board would prefer regular provision of adapted financial summaries,  

 
  Members also queried the delegation of responsibilities to the Pain Farm Estate. 
 
  Mr Gardner, supported by Ms Bradley, noted the current plan was for co-design of a 
  Pain Farm Policy, and the high court decision gives remit of the estate to Council and 

15



  any delegations; it was noted the current regularity of financial reporting is  
  quarterly. 
 
  Members sought agreement from the Mr Robertson prior to decisions on a way  
  forward.  
 
Cr Plimmer to the meeting left 11:09am. 
Cr Plimmer returned to the meeting 11:13am. 
 
  COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/105) to: 

1. Receive the Martinborough Community Board – Pain Farm Estate Report. 
(Moved Cr Ellims/Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)    Carried 

2. Delegate the CE to develop a Memorandum of Agreement for Pain Farm Estate with 
the Martinborough Community Board (MCB), the provision of information, 
agreement of overhead charges, disbursements of income and other matters of 
importance to the MCB. 
(Moved Mayor Connelly/ Seconded Cr Ellims)       Carried 

   
A9.  Minutes for Confirmation 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/106) that the minutes of the Council meeting held on 28 
 June 2023 are confirmed as a true and correct record. 

 (Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)                                             Carried 
 
A10.  Matters arising from previous minutes 

 There were no matters arising. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:13am. 
The meeting was reconvened at 11:28am – All present, excluding Cr Ellims.  

 
B  Recommendations from Committees  

B1. Recommendations from the Infrastructure and Community Services Committee 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/107) to: 
1. Receive the Recommendations from the Infrastructure and Community Services 

Committee Report. 
(Moved Cr Plimmer/ Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)   Carried 

2. Delegate to the Chair, Deputy Chair of ICS, and CE to adopt an interim roster for the 
period of 12 weeks. 

3. Agree the CE conduct a thorough review of library services, management and 
shared services, with a report back to the Infrastructure and Community Services 
committee by 15 November 2023. 
 
 

16



4. Delegate to the CE to approve spend from the renumeration budget for the period 
of the review of library services, if needed. 
[Items 2-4 read together] 
(Moved Mayor Connelly /Seconded Cr Plimmer)                                                   Carried 

Cr Plimmer left the meeting at 11:30am. 
 
C  Decision Reports from the Interim Chief Executive and Council Officers 

C1. Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Report  

 Ms Carmichael spoke to matters in the report. 

 Mr Gardner noted under emergency management act, appropriate animal control is in 
 place and therefore the bylaw is required. 

 Ms Carmichael responded to queries including management of dogs on camping 
 grounds/sites in coastal areas and the possibility of joint policy with Masterton and 
 Carterton District Councils. 

Cr Ellims returned to the meeting at 11:35am 

Cr Woodcock left the meeting at 11:36am 

Cr Woodcock returned to the meeting at 11:36am. 
 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/108) to: 
1. Receive the ‘Control of Dogs Policy & Bylaw’ Report; 
2. Agree that in accordance with section 147A of the Local Government Act 2002, the 

proposed bylaw is justified as a reasonable limitation on people’s rights and 
freedoms. 

3. Agree that in accordance with section 155(1) of the Local Government Act 2002, the 
proposed bylaw is the most appropriate way of addressing the perceived problem of 
dog control in the district. 

4. Agree that in accordance with section 155(2) of the Local Government Act 2002, the 
proposed bylaw is the most appropriate form of bylaw and is not inconsistent with 
the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act 1990. 

5. Adopt the Statement of Proposal for public consultation in accordance with the 
special consultative procedure, as provided in sections 83, 86 and 156 of the Local 
Government Act 2002. 

6. Delegate the power to the Chief Executive to amend the Statement of Proposal to 
include any amendments agreed by Council and any minor consequential edits. 
[Items 1-6 read together] 
(Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)                                       Carried 

 C2. Revoking Policy 
 Ms Carmichael spoke to matters included in the report.  Members queried when the 
 policies will be revoked. 
 
  

17



 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/109) to: 
1. Receive the Revoking Policy Report. 

(Moved Cr Ellims/ Seconded Cr Bosley)     Carried 
2. Agree to revoke the following policies: 

a.     Promotion, Publicity and Media Liaison (J100); 
b.     Community Groups Use of and Access to Council Parks, Reserves and Open 
  Spaces (E502); 
c.     Graffiti Prevention and Management Policy (E900); and 
d.    Concessions for Charitable and like Community Organisations and 
Groups (K100). 
(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Olds)                                                      Carried 

3. Agree to amend the Grants Policy to include a relevant policy statement on  
concessions for those who meet eligibility criteria for grant funding. 
(Moved Cr Olds/Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)                                 Carried 

 C3. Representation Review: Voting Options 

 Members discussed preferences in relation to voting options and the merits of both 
 systems. 

 Ms Bradley, supported by Ms Ansell, spoke to matters in the report. 

 Members queried the estimated costs of changing the system, Maori Wards, polling, 
 and potential delays in managing further changes due to the capacity and resourcing of 
 Policy and Governance Team. 

Cr Plimmer joined the meeting at 11:49am. 
 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/110) to: 
1. Receive the Representation Review: Voting Options Report. 

(Moved Deputy Mayor Sadler/Seconded Mayor Connelly)   Carried 
2. Agree that we do not seek a resolution by 12 September 2023. 

(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Plimmer)                                        Carried 
Against: Cr Gray 

 
 C4. Proposed Code of Conduct - Te Tikanga Whanonga – for Members 

 Ms Bradley spoke to matters included in the report. 

 Mr Garnder noted a panel for reviewing reports from investigators would be required 
 for tabletop exercises.   

 Members queried whether a list of consequences for breaching the Code would be 
 required, estimated costs for investigations and what the review panel would cover. 

 Action: Council Officers to provide a list of enforceable options following breaches of 
 the Code of Conduct. 
  

 

18



COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/111) to: 

1. Receive the Code of Conduct - Te Tikanga Whanonga for Members Report. 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Sadler)     Carried  

2. Adopt the Code of Conduct - Te Tikanga Whanonga for the 2022-2025 Triennium. 
3. Adopt the policy as attached in Appendix 1 for dealing with alleged breaches of 

the code. 
(Moved Cr Olds /Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)                                       Carried 

 
 
 C5. Proposed Standing Orders for Meetings of Local Authorities and Community Boards 

Members queried changes to 4.3 Preparation of the agenda; and debated the 
removal/amendment of casting votes, as well as discussion on the definition of abstain 
and inclusion in the body of the document. Mr Gardner noted the complexities relating 
to abstentions. Members discussed what to do when they feel there’s a lack of 
information to make a decision. 

 

  COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/112) to: 

1. Receive the Proposed Standing Orders for Meetings of Local Authorities and 
Community Boards Report. 
(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Ellims)     Carried 

2. Adopt the LGNZ Standing Orders for the conduct of its meetings and those of its 
committees (including community boards) with the following amendments:  
18.3 Chairperson has a casting vote: The Mayor, Chairperson, or any other person 
presiding at a meeting, has a deliberative vote and, in the case of an equality of 
votes, has a casting vote only where there isn’t a status quo; and 
18.7 Members may abstain: to add reference to the definition of abstain on page 13 
of the Standing Orders. 
(Moved Mayor Connelly /Seconded Sadler Futter)                                   Carried 

3. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to approve minor edits to the proposed 
Standing Orders 2023 prior to publication.     
(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Ellims)     Carried 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:30pm. 
The meeting reconvened at 1:03pm; all present excluding Cr Gray. 
 
D Information Reports from the Interim Chief Executive and Council Officers  
 D1. Interim CE Update  
   Mr Gardner spoke to matters included in the report and responded to queries from 

  members including: whether further information about staff resources and LGOIMA 
  could be reported quarterly; information relating to RMA reforms; the upcoming Waka 

19



  Kotahi board meeting (17 August 2023) and whether a letter from Council to support 
  the CE would be beneficial. 

 
Cr Gray returned to the meeting at 1:14pm. 
   
   Members thanked Council Officers for the workshops held for last week on roading and 

  RMA reform, acknowledging the efforts made to provide and present the information. 
 
   Action 293: Council Officers to provide information to Council regarding ways to reduce 

  LGOIMAs; A Bradley. 
  
 D2. Residents Perception Survey Results 

 Ms Bradley spoke to the report and provided an updated version of the report including 
 communications plans. 

 Members commented on the Featherston results, and the key areas of concern being 
 addressed slowly but surely. 

 COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/113) to: 

1. Receive the Resident Perceptions Survey Results Report. 

(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)   Carried 

2. Note that the report will be make publicly accessible on the South Wairarapa 
District Council website . 

(Moved Cr Bosley/Seconded Cr McAulay)                                                       Carried 

 
D3. Options for Alternative Committee Structure (Tabled Report) 
 Ms Bradley spoke to the report tabled at the meeting. 
 Ms Bradley responded to members queries including: how committees are established and the 
 related process, resolution required for committee of the whole, responsibilities council are 

20



  unable to delegate, establishing a subcommittee, governance of the committee and 
  process to appointment a chairperson. 
 
  COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/114) to receive the Options for Alternative Committee 
  Structure report. 
  (Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr McAulay)     Carried  
 
 D4. Action Items 

739: Mr O’Leary informed he had provided a briefing to Council via email which was 
further discussed in the meeting. Noted that the next paper to Council on this action will 
be included in public excluded section of the agenda. 

420: No further updates, but making good progress. 

537: This sits within Wairarapa Combined District Plan Review.  Further progress 
updates will be completed in the coming months. 

227: This will be included in Long-Term Plan discussions; Cr Plimmer provided context. 

259: Ms Bradley requested that Mr Corbett be named as the responsible manager 
against this action. 

45: Council requested prioritisation of this report to the next Infrastructure and 
Community Services Meeting.  S Corbett/A Mattsen 

47: Noted this agreement would be completed in next few weeks. 

 
E Mayor’s Report 
 E1. Report from The Mayor (Tabled Report) 
  Mr O’Leary and Ms Kelly spoke to matters in the report. 
  
  COUNCIL RESOLVED (DC2023/115) to: 

1. Receives the Report from the Mayor. 
(Moved Mayor Connelly /Seconded Cr Ellims)      Carried 

2. Agrees the Wellington Regional Leadership Committee continues as a joint 
committee under clause 30(1)(b) of Schedule 7 of the Local Government Act 2002, 
but on the amended terms set out in the Joint Committee Agreement (dated 2023), 
with the amendments in effect from the date the Wellington Regional Leadership 
Committee Joint Committee Agreement is signed by all local authority parties;  

3. Authorises the Wellington Regional Leadership Committee to appoint a Joint 
Committee Subcommittee for the Future Development Strategy to hear and make 
recommendations on submissions received on the draft Future Development 
Strategy to be developed under the National Policy Statement for Urban 
Development 2020 (and any updates to that Strategy);  

4. Approves the amended Wellington Regional Leadership Committee Joint Committee 
Agreement, including the amended Terms of Reference for the Joint Committee and 
the new Terms of Reference for the Joint Committee. 

21



5. Subcommittee for the Future Development Strategy (noting that as required by the 
existing Agreement, the Wellington Regional Leadership Committee Joint 
Committee has endorsed the amendments to functions and powers of the Joint 
Committee); 8.Delegates all powers and functions to the Wellington Regional 
Leadership Committee set out in the amended Wellington Regional Leadership 
Committee Joint Committee Agreement, including the amended Terms of Reference 
for the Joint Committee and the new Terms of Reference for the Joint Committee 
Subcommittee for the Future Development Strategy; 

6. Authorises the Mayor to sign the amended Wellington Regional Leadership 
Committee Joint Committee Agreement on behalf of the Council; and 

7. Appoints Councillor Rebecca Gray to be a member of the Joint Committee 
Subcommittee for the Future Development Strategy for the purposes of hearing 
submissions on the draft Future Development Strategy (or any updates to it) and 
making recommendations on those submissions to the Wellington Regional 
Leadership Committee. 

(Moved Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter/Seconded Cr McAulay)                               Carried 

  
  [In relation to Item D3] 
  Action 297:   Council officers to work with Cr Gray and Cr Plimmer to develop a TOR for a 
    committee of the whole. 

 
F Public Excluded Business 
  

 The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local Government 
Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution are as follows: 
 

Report/General Subject 
Matter 

Reason for passing this 
resolution in relation to the 
matter 

Ground(s) under 
Section 48(1) for the 
passing of this 
Resolution 

Public Excluded Council Meeting 
Minutes, 28 June 2023 

Good reason to withhold exists under  
section 7(2)(a) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

Review of corporate 
accommodation and future  
Requirements 

Good reason to withhold exists under 
section 7(2)(i) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

Solid Waste Contract Extension 
and Section 17A Review 

Good reason to withhold exists under  
section 7(2)(i) 

Section 48(1)(a) 

Outstanding Rates Water Debtor 
Report 

Good reason to withhold exists under  
section 6(a)&(b); and 7(2)(a) 
 

Section 48(1)(a) 

 
This resolution (DC2023/116) is made in reliance on Section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information 
and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by section 6 or section 7 of that Act 
which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting in 
public are as follows: 
 
 

22



 
 
 

Reason for passing this resolution in relation to the matter Ground(s) under Section 
48(1) for the passing of 
this Resolution 
 

The withholding of the information is necessary to protect the privacy of 
natural persons, including that of deceased natural persons. 
 

Section 7(2)(a)  
 

The public disclosure of information would be likely: 
(a) to prejudice the maintenance of the law, including the prevention, 
investigation, and 
detection of offences, and the right to a fair trial; or 
(b) to endanger the safety of any person. 
 

Section 6(a)&(b) 

The withholding of the information is necessary to enable any local 
authority holding the information to carry on, without prejudice or 
disadvantage, negotiations (including commercial and industrial 
negotiations). 

Section 7(2)(i) 

   (Moved Cr Olds / Seconded Deputy Mayor Sadler-Futter)   Carried 
 
Cr Ellims left the meeting at 3:01pm. 
 
 F1.  Confirmation of public excluded minutes, 28 June 2023 
 F2. Review of corporate accommodation and future requirements 
 F3. Solid Waste Contract Extension and Section 17A Review 
 F4. Outstanding Water Rates Debtor’s Report. 
 
G Karakia Whakamutunga – Closing 
 Mayor Connelly closed the meeting with a karakia. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 3:26pm. 
 
Confirmed as a true and correct record 
 

………………………………………..(Mayor)  
 

………………………………………..(Date) 

23



South Wairarapa District Council 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

27 September 2023 
Agenda Item:  B1 

Recommendations from Hearings Committee  

1. Purpose 

To provide an opportunity for members to consider recommendations received from 
the Hearings Committee.  

2. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the Council: 

1. Receive the Recommendations from the Hearings Committee Report.  

2. Consider the following recommendations made by the Hearings Committee: 

Recommendations from Hearings Committee  Resolution 
Number 

 
To adopt the Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy. 

HC2023/05 

 
Agree to a variable speed zone of 30km during morning drop off and 
afternoon pick up outside all schools in the district.  
 
To consult on a Martinborough speed zone set at 40km/h. 
 
To keep the speed on Western Lake Road at 60km/h until it reaches the 
railway line. 
 
To reduce speed on all gravel roads to 70km/h. 
 
Agree that Council Officers further consider consultation feedback, 
including the content of oral submissions, on High Priority Roads (both 
in terms of inclusions and exclusions, and suggested safe speed levels) 
and report back to Council with final advice. 

HC2023/08 

To adopt the Control of Dogs Policy. 
 
To amend the Control of Dogs 2013 bylaw, including the following 
amendments: 

HC2023/11 

24



i) Page 91 - Schedule A, part i to read: Any public 
building or public place, including any swimming 
pools, cemeteries, library buildings or recreation 
centres, under the control or management of the 
Council and any other areas where dogs may pose a 
threat to the public. The Chief Executive may make an 
exception for special events in the interest of 
community building and education. 

ii) Page 91 Schedule A, to include part v - Any part of the 
District that is subject to events notified by the Chief 
Executive. 

iii) Page 91 Schedule A, part iv - to allow for dogs in the 
Ngawi Campgound and Ngawi surf breaks. 

3. Background 

The reports to the Hearings Committee meetings relating to the recommendations in 
this report are attached in the appendices   

The reports relating to recommendations (HC2023/05 and HC2023/08), was 
considered by the Hearings Committee at their meeting on 16 August 2023. The 
minutes of the meeting are attached.  Please refer to Appendices 1-3. 

The report relating to the recommendation HC2023/11 was considered on 20 
September 2023.   Please refer to Appendix 4.  The minutes for this meeting are not 
yet completed. 

4. Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy Deliberations Report and Policy, 16 
August 2023 
Appendix 2 – 2023 Speed Review Hearings and Deliberations Report, 16 August 2023 
Appendix 3 – Hearings Committee Minutes, 16 August 2023  
Appendix 4 - Control of Dogs Policy & Bylaw Hearings and Deliberations Report, 20 
September 2023. 
 
 

Contact Officers: Kaity Carmichael, Lead Policy Advisor 
 Tim Langley, Roading Manager 
Reviewed By: Amanda Bradley, General Manager, Policy and Governance 
 Stefan Corbett, Group Manager, Partnerships and Operations 
 

25



Appendix 1 – Easter Sunday Shop 
Trading Policy Deliberations Report 

and Policy, 16 August 2023 
  

26



 

 

Hearings Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

16 August 2023 
Agenda Item: C1 

Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Deliberations Report   

1. Purpose 

This report is to provides the hearings committee with a summary of the analysis of 
the submissions on the Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy consultation. A full set 
of submissions has been provided in Appendix 2. 

2. Executive Summary 

The purpose of the deliberations process is for the committee to consider the 
community engagement and consultation, legislation, alignment with key strategic 
documents, and officer advice on the Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy. The 
committee will then make a recommendation to Council on whether to adopt the 
proposed Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy at the upcoming Council meeting on 6 
September 2023.  

3. Recommendations  

Officers recommend that the committee: 

1. Note the Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy (the Policy) is due for review under 
section 5C of the Shop Trading Hours Act 1990 (the Act). 

2. Note that formal consultation with the community on the Easter Sunday Shop 
Trading Policy is required under legislation and took place between 12 June 
2023 and 10 July 2023. 

3. Receive the 24 submissions made for the Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy 
consultation (Appendix 2). 

4. Note results of the consultation indicated that the community’s preference to 
retain the Policy with no substantive amendments. 

5. Note that there are no members of the public who wish to speak to their 
submission. 

6. Recommend to Council at its meeting on 6 September 2023 that it adopt the 
Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy. 

4. Background 

The Shop Trading Hours Act 1990 (the Act) provides restricted trading days on Anzac 
Day morning, Good Friday, Easter Sunday, and Christmas Day. In 2016, amendments 
were made to the Act, which allows territorial authorities to develop and adopt a Local 

27



 

 

Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy. This Policy allows shops to open on Easter Sunday. 
Without a Policy there are set criteria for the types of shops that can trade on this day.  

South Wairarapa District Council (SWDC) first adopted a Policy to enable Easter Sunday 
shop trading throughout the whole district on 2 March 2017. Under Section 5C of the 
Shop Trading Hours Act 1990, the current Policy will automatically revoke on 2 March 
2024, if not reviewed. The Council is not able to stop the current Policy from revoking 
so to continue allowing shops to trade on Easter Sunday, a new Policy must be made. 

All retail employees have the right to refuse to work on Easter Sunday without 
providing a reason to their employer (section 5H of the Act). The Policy does not 
enable shops to open for the sale of alcohol. Alcohol sale and supply is regulated under 
the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012. Alcohol cannot be sold on Easter Sunday 
(unless the off-licence holder makes and sells grape wine or fruit or vegetable wine on 
their premises).  

Under Section 5C(H) of the Shop Trading Hours Act (1990), the Special Consultative 
Procedure (SCP) must be used when deciding to amend, revoke, replace or continue to 
Policy without amendment. Section 5(D) states that the decision whether to adopt, 
amend, revoke or replace a local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy must be made by a 
territorial authority, and may not be delegated to a committee or other subordinate 
decision-making body.  

In June 2023 Council agreed to consult with the community on the option of 
continuing the Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy with no substantive amendments. 
Minor changes to the wording were proposed to the Policy but these changes did not 
affect an existing right of a person to whom the policy applies. In accordance with 
section 5B(2) of the Act, consultation took place between 12 June 2023 and 10 July 
2023. 

5. Discussion 

5.1 Consultation Process 

Consultation on the Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading policy occurred between 12 
June 2023 and 10 July 2023. The opportunity to make a submission was provided to 
the community. Additionally, identified key stakeholders were invited specifically to 
make a submission. These included most of the main religious groups in the district, 
First Union (the main union representing retail workers in the district), business 
associations in each of the three towns, the Māori Business association and 
Destination Wairarapa and meetings were held with most of them. Copies of the 
Statement of Proposal (SoP) and submission form were available on the website and in 
hardcopy at the libraries in each town and the Council office.  

5.2 Submissions 

A total of 24 submissions were received on the Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy 
and no submitters requested to speak to their submissions. All submissions were made 

28

https://swdc.govt.nz/wp-content/uploads/PolicyEasterSundayShopTradingPolicyH1200.pdf


 

 

online, using the online platform (SurveyMonkey). One of the submitters did not 
include their full name or contact details. Their submission has been included.  

6. Analysis 

6.1 Submissions Analysis  

A total of 24 submissions were received during the consultation period. Of these: 

• 24 submitters supported the Policy (leave the policy as is – this means all shops will 
continue to be allowed to open on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if 
they choose to). 

 

• Of the 24 submissions in support of the policy: 

o 46% indicated that supporting the retail & tourism sector was the 
reason for their preferred option. 

o 50% indicated freedom of choice was the reason for their preferred 
option. 

o 4% indicated that having a policy was both good for the region and 
supported the retail and tourism industry.  

29



 

 

 

6.2 Additional Considerations 

In addition to the community feedback, we also considered how the Policy may impact 
certain groups and sectors in our district from other information sources. This 
information is intended to complement the community feedback provided. 

6.2.1. Easter Events 

The Wairarapa Balloon Festival, which attracts large numbers of visitors from outside 
the region, took place over Easter weekend in 2023. We expect this to occur again in 
2024. In addition, other community events will take place over the Easter weekend 
and as a tourist destination, several visitors travel to district over the holiday.  

6.2.2. Easter as a Day of Significance 

Easter as a Day of Significance Easter Sunday is a recognised day of significance across 
New Zealand. 35.6% of people in the Wellington Region identified as Christian (Census 
2018). Under Section 5(G) of the Shop Trading Hours Act (1990), the provision 
requiring shop employees to work, or be available to work, on Easter Sunday in 
unenforceable. This means, that any employee can take Easter Sunday off work, 
without question or penalty. 

6.2.3. Impact of the pandemic 

It is important to consider the ongoing impact of COVID-19 on our community, 
including the economic impact on certain sectors (retail, tourism) across the South 

30



 

 

Wairarapa district. Businesses in the district have indicated that removing the 
opportunity to trade on a given day may further contribute to this impact.  

6.3 Out of Scope 

5A of the Act outlines what cannot be covered in the Policy. A Local Easter Sunday 
shop trading policy may not: 

• permit shops to open only for some purposes; or 

• permit only some types of shops in the area to open; or 

• specify times at which shops may or may not open; or 

 • include any other conditions as to the circumstances in which shops in the area may 
open 

7. Options  

Options Advantages Disadvantages 

1. Recommend to Council to 
continue with the policy 
without amendment. This 
means that all shops will 
continue to be allowed to 
open on Easter Sunday in the 
South Wairarapa District of 
they choose to (status quo). 

Community supported this 
option. 
 
The whole district can benefit 
from trade and will gain 
business from visitors to the 
district for the long Easter 
Weekend. 
 
Allowing businesses to remain 
open on Easter Sunday will 
make provide more options for 
locals and visitors. 
 
Under the Act, workers can 
choose not to work on Easter 
Sunday without providing a 
reason to their employer. 

Although workers can opt out of working on 
Easter Sunday, they may feel pressured to work 
on this day. 

 

Not respecting Easter Sunday as an important day 
in the Christian calendar. 35.6% of people in the 
Wellington Region identified as Christian (Census 
2018). 

2. Recommend to Council to 
revoke the policy. This means 
that only shops permitted by 
Shop Trading Hours Act (1990) 
will be allowed to open Easter 
Sunday (e.g. Pharmacies, 
supermarkets) 

Takes away any pressure on 
workers to work on Easter 
Sunday for shops that would 
have been covered by the 
Policy. 
 
Respecting Easter Sunday as an 
important day in the Christian 
calendar. 

There was no support from the community for 
this option. 

Only trade that is exempt under the Act such as 
pharmacies, garden centres, and petrol stations, 
can open on Easter Sunday. 

Businesses relying on the tourist trade in the long 
weekend will be disadvantaged 

31



 

 

3. Recommend to Council to 
amend the policy so shops will 
only be allowed to open in 
certain areas of the district.  

Parts of the district identified 
can benefit from trade, for 
example cafes gaining visitors 
for the long Easter weekend.  

 

Would not align with Community submissions.  
 
The only towns which can benefit from Easter 
Sunday Trade are those specified in the policy. 
 
Council is not aware of a need to make the policy 
for specific parts of the district. 
 
Shop owners in towns that are excluded from the 
policy would be unfairly disadvantaged. 

 

8. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements 

8.1 Significant risk register 

☒Relationship with iwi, hapū, Māori 

☐Climate Change 

☐Emergency Management 

☐IT architecture, information system, information management, and security 

☐Financial management, sustainability, fraud, and corruption 

☒Legislative and regulative reforms 

☐Social licence to operate and reputation 

☐Asset management 

☒Economic conditions 

☐Health and Safety 
 

8.2 Strategic, Policy and Legislative Implications 

We have committed to supporting economic development through our involvement in 
the Wairarapa Economic Development Strategy (WEDS). Economic development is a 
key part of our Long-Term Plan 2021-31. 

The Local Government Act 2002 states that one of the purposes of Councils is to 
promote the social, economic, environment and cultural well-being of communities, in 
the present and for the future. 

8.3 Significance, Engagement and Consultation 

Consultation followed the Special Consultative Procedure as outlined in the Local 
Government Act (2002) and Shop Trading Hours Act (1990). The different ways that 
the community could have their say and present their views on the Statement of 
Proposal and policy was widely advertised and made available. The consultation period 
ran from 12 June 2023 to 10 July 2023. 

8. Financial Considerations 
 
Costs associated with reviewing the Policy and community consultation sit within 
current budget baselines. The enforcement of the Policy is through the Ministry for 
Business, Innovation and Employment (MBIE). There is no ongoing cost to Council 
associated with this Policy.  

32



 

 

9. Prioritization  

9.1 Tangata whenua considerations 

Māori make up 14.2% of the South Wairarapa District population (Census 2018). Māori 
employers, business owners and employees may be affected. The consultation period 
was promoted to ensure that Mana Whenua, Māori business owners and Māori 
employees were specially invited to submit feedback.  

9.2 Environmental/Climate Change Impact 

The Policy has no direct impact on Environment and Climate Change. It is noted that 
over the Easter break there will be increased traffic in the district. 

10. Conclusion 

The Hearings Committee recommendations will be put forward to Council for 
consideration on 6 September 2023.  

11. Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy 

Appendix 2 – Full set of submissions  

 

Contact Officer: Kaity Carmichael, Lead Policy Advisor    

Reviewed By: Amanda Bradley, General Manager; Policy and Governance

33



 

 

Appendix 1 – Local Easter Sunday 
Shop Trading Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



Local Easter Sunday 

Shop Trading Policy 

Kaupapa Here 
Tauhokohoko Toa-ā-

rohe i te Aranga 

Date of Approval DD MMM 2023 

Policy ID PI-AMS-002 (previously H1200) 

Next Review 06 September 2028 

Version History 02 March 2017 – H1200 Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy adopted by Council 

35



 

 

Contents/Rārangi take 
Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy .................................................................................................................... 3 

1. Relevant Legislation/Ture whaitake ................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Purpose/Te Pūtake .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Scope/Tirohanga whānui ................................................................................................................................ 3 

4. Policy Statement/Kaupapa here tauākī ........................................................................................................... 3 

5. Definitions/Whakamāramatanga.................................................................................................................... 3 

Schedule A: Map of South Wairarapa District ............................................................................................................. 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

36



 

 

Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy 

  Kaupapa Here Tauhokohoko Toa-ā-rohe i te Aranga  
 

1. Relevant Legislation/Ture whaitake 

» Shop Trading Hours Act 1990 

» Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 

 

2. Purpose/Te Pūtake 

The purpose of this policy is to enable shops to trade on Easter Sunday if they wish. This policy is 

made under Subpart 1 of Part 2 of the Shop Trading Hours Act 1990. 

 

3. Scope/Tirohanga whānui 

This policy applies to all shops in the whole of the South Wairarapa district, with the exceptions of: 
 

» The sale and supply of alcohol which is regulated under the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 

2012. 

» Those shops which are exempt under Part 4 of the Shop Trading Hours Act 1990. 

 
4. Policy Statement/Kaupapa here tauākī 

» Shop trading is permitted on Easter Sundays throughout the whole of the South Wairarapa 

district as defined by the map in Schedule A. 

» The choice to open rests with each individual retailer. The Policy neither requires shops to 

open, or individuals to work on Easter Sunday. 

» Council recognises that Easter Sunday is a day of significance across New Zealand and some 

people will choose not to work or shop on this day. Subpart 2 of Part 2 of the Shop Trading 

Hours Act 1990 includes a workers choice provision that outlines a shop employee’s right to 

refuse to work on Easter Sunday. 

 

5. Definitions/Whakamāramatanga 

For the purpose of this policy: 
 

Shop means building, place, or part of a building or place, where goods are kept, sold, or offered for 

sale, by retail; and includes an auction mart, and a barrow, stall, or other subdivision of a market; 

but does not include— 
 

(a) a private home where the owner or occupier’s effects are being sold (by auction or otherwise); or 
 

(b) a building or place where the only business carried on is that of selling by auction agricultural 

products, pastoral products, and livestock, or any of them; or 
 

(c) a building or place where the only business carried on is that of selling goods to people who are 

dealers, and buy the goods to sell them again. 

 

 
3

37

https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1990/0057/latest/DLM212351.html
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2012/0120/latest/DLM3339333.html


 

 

 

Schedule A: Map of South Wairarapa District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



 

 

Appendix 2 – Full set of submissions  

 

40



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Chris Webley

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#1#1
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 1:28:57 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 1:28:57 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 1:30:04 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 1:30:04 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:0600:01:06
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

001

41



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Tony Cox

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#2#2
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 3:55:36 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 3:55:36 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 3:56:24 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 3:56:24 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4800:00:48
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

002

42



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Scott Reid

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#3#3
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 3:59:49 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 3:59:49 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:01:10 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 4:01:10 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:2000:01:20
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

003

43



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Sharon Cox

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#4#4
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:02:25 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 4:02:25 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, June 13, 2023 4:03:38 PMTuesday, June 13, 2023 4:03:38 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:1300:01:13
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

004

44



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Brenda Channer

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#5#5
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 10:26:23 AMWednesday, June 14, 2023 10:26:23 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 10:27:28 AMWednesday, June 14, 2023 10:27:28 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:0400:01:04
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

005

45



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Paul Broughton

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#6#6
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 10:32:19 AMWednesday, June 14, 2023 10:32:19 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 10:33:51 AMWednesday, June 14, 2023 10:33:51 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:3200:01:32
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

006

46



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Shane Kelly

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?
It’s both good for the region and for it’s retail and tourism.
Other (please tell us):

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Common sense should prevail over belief.

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#7#7
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 12:23:09 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 12:23:09 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 12:27:14 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 12:27:14 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:04:0500:04:05
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

007

47



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Angela Williams

Address

City/Town h

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#8#8
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 3:41:18 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 3:41:18 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 3:42:51 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 3:42:51 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:3200:01:32
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

008

48



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Claire Terry

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#9#9
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 6:50:26 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 6:50:26 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 6:51:12 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 6:51:12 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4500:00:45
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

009

49



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Daniel Millar

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

Respondent skipped this question

#10#10
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 7:32:32 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 7:32:32 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 7:33:17 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 7:33:17 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4500:00:45
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

010

50



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Kate Throp

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapadistrict if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#11#11
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 9:40:39 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 9:40:39 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 14, 2023 9:41:25 PMWednesday, June 14, 2023 9:41:25 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4600:00:46
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

   011

51



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Joanna Ludbrook

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#12#12
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, June 17, 2023 1:43:01 PMSaturday, June 17, 2023 1:43:01 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, June 17, 2023 1:44:26 PMSaturday, June 17, 2023 1:44:26 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:2500:01:25
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

012

52



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Denise Eilers

Address

City/Town

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#13#13
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, June 17, 2023 3:05:09 PMSaturday, June 17, 2023 3:05:09 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, June 17, 2023 3:08:14 PMSaturday, June 17, 2023 3:08:14 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:03:0400:03:04
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

013

53



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Kevin Gain

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Very clear consultation document and submission form. Thank you!

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#14#14
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, June 17, 2023 4:46:58 PMSaturday, June 17, 2023 4:46:58 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, June 17, 2023 4:48:29 PMSaturday, June 17, 2023 4:48:29 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:3000:01:30
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

014

54



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Indigo Freya

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#15#15
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Sunday, June 18, 2023 1:53:41 PMSunday, June 18, 2023 1:53:41 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Sunday, June 18, 2023 1:54:25 PMSunday, June 18, 2023 1:54:25 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4300:00:43
IP Address:IP Address:

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

015

55



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Jocelyn Konig

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#16#16
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Thursday, June 22, 2023 7:06:53 AMThursday, June 22, 2023 7:06:53 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Thursday, June 22, 2023 7:07:37 AMThursday, June 22, 2023 7:07:37 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:4400:00:44
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

016

56



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Maria Berry

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#17#17
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 28, 2023 8:34:43 PMWednesday, June 28, 2023 8:34:43 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 28, 2023 8:36:34 PMWednesday, June 28, 2023 8:36:34 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:5000:01:50
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

017

57



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Jane

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#18#18
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, June 30, 2023 10:32:05 PMFriday, June 30, 2023 10:32:05 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, June 30, 2023 10:32:39 PMFriday, June 30, 2023 10:32:39 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:3400:00:34
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

58



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Michael Schaefer

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#19#19
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Monday, July 03, 2023 9:50:40 PMMonday, July 03, 2023 9:50:40 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Monday, July 03, 2023 9:52:56 PMMonday, July 03, 2023 9:52:56 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:02:1600:02:16
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

59



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name carmen smith

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

easter is namely a christian holiday and it’s ridiculous to hold and entire country hostage to a religious holiday. it’s 2023 and not 
conservative america, it stands to reason and if shops or businesses wish to trade then they should be allowed to

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#20#20
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, July 07, 2023 12:02:27 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 12:02:27 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, July 07, 2023 12:04:46 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 12:04:46 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:02:1900:02:19
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

60



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Joanna Baldwin

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#21#21
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, July 07, 2023 2:31:33 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 2:31:33 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, July 07, 2023 2:35:15 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 2:35:15 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:03:4200:03:42
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

61



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Pavel Alexandrov

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Freedom of choice.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#22#22
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, July 07, 2023 4:43:25 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 4:43:25 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, July 07, 2023 4:43:58 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 4:43:58 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:3300:00:33
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

62



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name V

Address Read

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#23#23
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, July 08, 2023 7:23:00 AMSaturday, July 08, 2023 7:23:00 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, July 08, 2023 7:24:31 AMSaturday, July 08, 2023 7:24:31 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:3000:01:30
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

63



Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Kiri

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

Do you think we should?

Continue to have a policy that allows all shops to open
on Easter Sunday in the South Wairarapa district if they
choose to (the status quo).

Q3

What is the reason for your preferred option?

Supporting the retail and tourism sector.

Q4

Is there anything else you would like to tell us?

Respondent skipped this question

Q5

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings on 19 July 2023?

No

#24#24
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, July 08, 2023 11:57:46 AMSaturday, July 08, 2023 11:57:46 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, July 08, 2023 11:58:48 AMSaturday, July 08, 2023 11:58:48 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:0100:01:01
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

64



Appendix 2 – 2023 Speed Review 
Hearings and Deliberations Report, 16 

August 2023 
  

65



 

Hearings Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

 

16 August 2023 
Agenda Item: E1 

 
2023 Speed Review Hearings and Deliberations Report 

 

1. Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the submissions on the 2023 Speed 
Review and a summary of the analysis of the submissions for consideration.  

 

2. Executive Summary 

Consultation on the draft 2023 Speed Management Plan Annual Plan 2023/24 occurred 
between 23 June 2023 and 23 July 2023 using the Special Consultative Procedure (Section 
82 of the Local Government Act), which provides an opportunity for submitters to present 
their submissions orally. A total of 183 submissions were received and 32 submitters are 
speaking to their submissions, as part of the hearings process. 

An overwhelming majority of submitters agreed with the proposal to reduce school speed 
limits.  A slim majority of submitters agreed with reduction of speed limits and 
introduction of signage in front of marae.  This will be an area where we will need to 
listen closely to reasoning in oral submissions.  A large majority of submitters were 
opposed to the proposals laid out for high priority roads and many changes were 
requested – including for high use roads such as Ponatahi, Papawhai, Cape Palliser, and 
Lake Ferry.  A key decision will be whether we address high priority road speeds in the 
draft Speed Management Plan or defer those decisions at this time and concentrate on 
schools and marae.  Again, the content of oral submissions on these roads will be 
important.   

During the consultation period, we heard much frustration at the perceived blanket 
approach to speed reduction that lies behind the Government’s Policy Statement and 
Waka Kotahi’s Road to Zero Policy.  Many residents saw these documents as taking 
insufficient account of local conditions.  Disagreement with the policy behind recent 
speed reductions on the State Highways added to the strength of feeling from some 
submitters.  Overall, the level and quality of engagement was excellent, and we have 
many suggestions for additions and exclusions that have greatly helped us shape the 
proposed draft Speed Management Plan.     

 

3. Recommendations 

Officers recommend that the Council: 

1. Receive the 2023 Speed Review Hearings and Deliberations Report. 

66



2. Receive the full set of submissions on the 2023 Speed Review (Appendix 3) 

3. Note that 183 submissions were received and of those received submissions, 32 are 
confirmed to be heard. 

4. Recommend proposals regarding reduced school speeds are included in the draft 
Speed Management Plan. 

5. Recommend proposals regarding reduced speed and signage near marae are included 
in the draft Speed Management Plan.  

6. Recommend that Council Officers further consider consultation feedback, including 
the content of oral submissions, on High Priority Roads (both in terms of inclusions 
and exclusions, and suggested safe speed levels) and report back to Council with final 
advice.   

7. Recommend that proposals for gravel roads are not included in the draft Speed 
Management Plan at this time. 

 

4. Background 

The New Zealand Government has launched the Road to Zero Strategy 2020-2030, that 
targets a 40% reduction in deaths and serious injuries by 2030. South Wairarapa District 
Council (SWDC), along with Waka Kotahi have a shared responsibility to bring about safe 
and appropriate measures to facilitate lower impact speed, especially to vulnerable road 
users around schools.  

As a Council, we are focusing on infrastructure improvements and speed management on 
high priority roads, as well as intervention measures to achieve lower speed limits around 
schools and marae, through the development of a draft Speed Management Plan (Appendix 
1). This plan has been developed with Carterton District Council and will help us transition 
from the way we have set speed limits in the past, to a new, more flexible approach that 
better considers local conditions and the surrounding environment, by establishing the 
priorities of our approach to speed management in the district.  
 
Recent changes to the Land Transport Rule: Setting Speed Limits 2022 and direction from 
Waka Kotahi mean we must create a 3-year Speed Management Plan that sets out our 
approach for managing speed and safety, including safety goals, speed limit changes for 
the roading network, and engineering improvements.  
 
On 7 June 2023, Council approved the draft Speed Management plan and the 
consultation document. 
 
Following the hearings process and with direction from elected members, the draft 
Interim Speed Management Plan will be prepared and submitted to the Waka Kotahi 
Director of Land Transport for review, comments, and certification.   
 
Following the Director of Land Transport approval Waka Kotahi publishes the plan, and 
South Wairarapa District Council submits the Plan to Greater Wellington Regional Council 
for inclusion into the regional speed management Plan. 

67



 

5. Discussion 

5.1 Draft Speed Management Plan Priorities 

Priority 1 – Reducing School Speed Limits 

The Government requires us to have reduced speed limits in the vicinity of all schools to a 
maximum of 30km/hour in urban areas and 60 km/hour in rural areas.  Where schools are 
located on no-exit roads or within residential neighbourhoods, we propose permanent 
speed limits be installed. For locations that are on roads with higher speed limits, we 
propose utilising variable speed limits, as they protect pedestrian activity during high-use 
times while helping ensure driver acceptance and compliance. For rural schools we are 
proposing both options - a lower permanent speed limit of 60km/h at all times, with a 
variable speed limit of 30km/h during drop off and pick up times. Under this draft Speed 
Management Plan, these changes will be completed by 2024. 

The following schools in the district are proposed to have a 30 km/hour speed limit: 

• Kuranui College 
• Greytown School 
• St Teresa’s School 
• Featherston School 
• Martinborough School 
• South Featherston School 

 
The following schools are proposed to have a 60km/hour permanent speed limit: 

• Pirinoa School 
• Kahutara School 

 

Priority 2 – Reducing Marae Speed Limits and Introducing Signage  

Our proposed approach is to install advance and directional signage at each marae location. 
There are also proposed speed limit changes around marae as part of our approach to high-
risk roads. In some cases, there are papakāinga located next to marae that will be impacted 
by the proposed changes. Under the Interim Speed Management Plan these changes will be 
completed by the end of 2024. 

The following marae are proposed to have new signage and/or speed limits: 

• Hau Ariki Marae 
• Pāpāwai Marae 
• Kohunui Marae 

 

68



Priority 3 – Reducing Speed Limits on High Priority Roads 

We have reviewed all the crash data for local roads within the South Wairarapa district for 
2012-2021. Those roads that have had three or more serious or fatal crashes in this period 
have been considered to be high priority roads. A complete list of high priority roads can be 
found in the draft Speed Management Plan (Appendix 1) and Consultation Document 
(Appendix 2). 

5.2 Consultation Process 
Consultation on the 2023 Speed Review occurred between 23 June 2023 and 23 July 2023. 
The 2023 Speed Review Consultation Document and submission forms were available on 
our website, from the Council office and the three libraries. The opportunity to submit 
was widely advertised to our community through social media and advertising in the 
Midweek.  

 
The Māori Standing Committee and Community Boards were actively invited to participate 
in the consultation process, and two community boards have made submissions to the 
Speed Review.  

 
5.3 Consultation Topics 
The consultation document allowed the community to provide feedback on the draft speed 
management plan, and asked the following questions: 

 
1. Do you agree with the Councils’ proposed approach and principles around 

schools? 
2. Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach and principles around 

Marae? 
3. (Carterton only) 
4. Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach to the high priority roads 

included in this document? 
5. Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the above that 

you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management Plan? Please 
include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads you suggest will be 
presented to councils for consideration.  

6. Should gravel roads be highlighted in our speed review and considered 
alongside our high priority roads? Please list any specific gravel roads you would 
like us to consider. Any roads you suggest will be presented to Council for 
consideration. 
 

5.4 Consultation Documentation Inconsistencies 
A few documentation inconsistencies have been identified through the process. These   
are outlined in the table below. 
 

Description in Table 6.3 Reflected in  Figure 6.4 
30km/h zone on East Street, near Kuranui 
College, between Wakelin Street and 85m 
northeast of Wakelin Street 

Extent is correct but no shown 

69



30km/h zone on East Street, near 
Greytown School is proposed to run 
between 100m southeast of Church 
Street and extend to 75m northeast of 
McMaster Street 

The speed is correct, Figure does not 
show the speed reduction zone extended 
100m southwest of Church Street. 

30km/h zone on Church Street between 
East Street and Reading Street. 

Th extent and proposed speed is correct, 
but is shown as 60km/h 

 
 

5.5 Submissions 
A total of 183 submissions were received on the 2023 Speed Review consultation and 32 
submitters are speaking to their submissions. 178 submissions were made online, using 
the online platform. 5 completed their submission on the physical submission form and 4 
provided their submission via email or letter. 

 
Type of Submission Number Received 

Online Submission 178 
Written Submission 5 
Total 183 
 
An analysis of addresses provided indicates that 56% of submitters lived in the 
Martinborough ward, 20% in the Featherston ward, 18% in the Greytown ward and 6% in 
another area.  

 
Submissions of those who wish to be heard are included in Appendix 3.  

 
6. Analysis of Submissions 

 
6.1 Speed around schools 
 
174 submitters responded to the question on Councils’ approach and principles around 
schools. Of these submitters: 
 

• 73.6% of submitters agreed with Councils’ proposed approach and principles around 
Schools.  

• 26.4% of submitters did not agree with Councils’ proposed approach and principles 
around schools.  

 
Question 1: Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach and principles around Schools? 
Number of Reponses Yes No 

174 128 (73.6%) 46 (26.4%) 

 
6.2 Speed around marae 
 
168 submitters responded to the question on approach and principles around marae. Of 
these submitters: 
 

70



• 51.8% of submitters agreed with Councils’ proposed approach and principles around 
marae. 

• 48.2% of submitters did not agree with Council’s proposed approach and principles 
around marae. 

 
Question 2: Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach and principles around Marae? 
Number of Reponses Yes No 

168 87 (51.8%) 81 (48.2%) 

 
6.3 Speed on high priority roads 
 

163 submitters responded to the question on Councils’ approach and principles on high 
priority roads in the area. Of these submitters: 

 
• 26.4% of submitters agreed with Councils’ approach and principles on high priority 

roads. 
• 73.6% of submitters did not agree with Councils’ approach and principles on high 

priority roads. 

 
Question 4: Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach to the high priority roads 

included in this document? 
Number of Reponses Yes No 

163 43 (26.4%) 120 (73.6%) 

Those who did not agree with the proposed approach to high priority roads were asked to 
provide feedback on roads they think should be excluded from the plan. Of these 
submitters: 

• 26 indicated that current speed limits should remain the same on all high priority 
roads. 

• 26 indicated that Ponatahi Road should be excluded from the proposed change. 

• 9 indicated that Papawai Road should be excluded from the proposed change. 

• 7 indicated that Cape Palliser Road should be excluded from the proposed change. 

• Other roads suggested for exclusion from the high priority list include: 

o Lake Ferry Road 

o White Rock Road 

o Wood Stret 

o Kuratawhiti Street 

o Gregs Lane 

o Bidwills Cutting Road 

o Jellicoe Street 

71



o Tora Road 

o Underhill Road 

o Purutanga Road 

 

In addition to this, several comments also noted that State Highway 2, between 
Featherston and Greytown should be reinstated to 100km/hour. 

“The State Highways between towns are only 80kmh. Restore them to 100kmh, your data 
does not support these draconian measures and you are gaslighting an increasingly angry 
public who drive at 100kmh anyway while causing negligible harm.” 

 

A number of submitters also indicated that the proposed speed reductions would be 
frustrating to motorists, particularly commuters. 

“Looking at the proposal, this will frustrate motorists no end.”  

“Because it cost time for people travelling. Even if it's 1 minute per person per day, if you 
times that by the amount of people travelling it adds up.” 

 

Several submitters also indicated that other external factors contribute to collisions and 
noted the unintended impact this review may have. 

“As your document clearly outlines speeding motorists is 1 or 4 issues on the roads, with 
Alcohol, loss of control (due to alcohol or poor roads?), observations (poor roadside 
maintenance, and tree blocking visibility at junctions and signage?). Reducing speed will 
NOT stop the idiots, they will always speed” 

“What ever happened to teaching kids/people to "Look right, Look left, look right again, 
and if safe, cross the road" 

“The ideology of the policy makers aspirational concept of Road to Zero is flawed. Have 
they not factored in that us as humans make mistakes. Creating different speed zones in 
towns around schools and /or marae is realistic however changing speed in other areas of 
a town and in certain streets  is piecemeal and unrealistic.” 

“Lowering the speed limit for main streets in and around the Martinborough township will 
significantly increase the turn out time for emergency services and personnel to respond 
to life threatening emergency situations.  This will impact on Fire and Emergency, 
Ambulance and personnel to be effective in our roles and responsibilities to ensure we 
respond to incidences.  This will have a direct affect on our ability to save peoples lives. 
More emphasis should be placed on roading infrastructure, appropriate cycle lanes, 
footpaths and lighting in and around Martinborough.” 

 

Additionally, a number of submitters indicated the importance of the speed 
management plan and speed reduction, and highlighted areas where additional 
consideration is required. 

72



“There is no where to comment, so I'll do it here. The faster you go the bigger the mess.  
Many drivers are so young they lack driving experience. New Zealand drivers are the best 
tail gaters I have come across. Slowing down is proven to be safer. Anything over 30kph 
increases the chance of death, especially with a collision with pedestrians. slowdown” 

Underhill Road MUST have speed-reducing strips on it outside "the stadium"…. YOU WILL 
KILL CHILDREN IF YOU DO NOT PUT JUDDER BARS ON UNDERHILL ROAD.” 

On the interactive map: 1. Market Street between East Street and Reading Street is 
marked as 60km/h. This road encircles the Greytown School playing field and is approx 
100m in length. The 60km/h is EXCESSIVE in this school area and for such a short segment 
of Market Street. 

I also would like Pirinoa to change to 50 rather than 60, with 80 coming into town as we 
have to reverse onto Lake Ferry rd when collecting children. And also alot of people 
wander across the rd between the store and the Cafe having parked on the opposite side 
of the road. 

“You need to make the main road 30 km, a lot of school children cross the road to get to 
school. The double trucks speed down that road doing 60 km an hour or more.” 

 

 
Question 5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the above that you 

believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management Plan? 
Number of Reponses Yes No 

98 49 (50%) 49 (50%) 

Those who indicated additional priority roads should be included in the Draft Speed 
Management Plan, most highlighted specific sections of roads that should be reduced. 
These include: 

• Murphys Line 

• Fabians Road 

• Wakefield Street (Around Featherston Sports Hub) 

• Bucks Road (DoC camping area) 

• Regent Street 

• Underhill Road (adjacent to the sports stadium) 

• Te Awaiti Road 

• Tora Farm Settlement Road 

• Lake Ferry Road should be reduced further (going through Pirinoa)  

• White Rock Road (From Ferry Road to Fraters Road) 

• Dublin Street (as it’s a heavy truck bypass) 

• Princess Street 

• Jellicoe Street 

73



• Fox Street (at skate park, mini fell and playground area) 

• Western Lake Road (from Moore Street) 

• Woodside Road 

• Humphries Street 

• Martin’s Road 

• Reduced speed in all of Martinborough town boundary due to cyclists 

• The entire block around the Martinborough square 

• Church Road 

• The exit form SH2 joining No 1 Lin 

• Mora Road 

• Bidwills Cutting Road 

• Wards line 

• Longbush Road 

• Mahaki Road 

• Corner of Reading Street/McMaster Street 

• Oxford Street 

 

 
Question 6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our speed review and considered alongside 

our high priority roads? 
Number of Reponses Yes No Maybe/Don’t Know 

104 29 (27.9%) 71 (68.3%) 4 (3.8%) 

Of those who indicated that gravel roads should be considered, some submitters 
suggested specific roads for consideration. These included: 

• Underhill Road 

• Moroa Road 

• Bucks Road 

• Tora Road 

• Ruakokopatuna Road 

• Cundys Road 

• Shooting Butts Road 

• Humphries Street (gravel section) 

• Hinekura Road 

• White Rock Road 

74



• Algies Road 

• Te Muna Road 

• Mahaki Road 

• Wharetoto Road 

 
6.4 Additional Submissions 
 

Martinborough Community Board, Greytown Community Board and the Ministry of 
Education made written submissions to the 2023 Speed Management Plan Consultation.  

 
1. Martinborough Community Board 
Martinborough Community Board indicated overall support for the draft Speed 
Management Plan but indicated the importance of geographical consistency across the 
implementation. The board outlined potential areas for consideration, including 
Memorial Square, the outer block of memorial square, school/early childhood centers 
(rural and urban), and Huangarua and Putuatanga Roads.  
 
2. Greytown Community Board 
Greytown Community Board indicated that priority should be on road quality, traffic 
calming measures and driver education as opposed to reduced speed.  
 
3. Ministry of Education  
The Ministry of education indicated support for the proposed limit reductions around 
schools throughout the South Wairarapa district and encouraged engagement with 
schools in the area to ensure that the proposed changes will achieve the safest 
outcomes for each individual school. The submission recommended further 
consideration be given to the area around South Featherston School and recommended 
the use of traffic calming measures as part of the plan. The submission also outlined 
some proposed inconsistencies for consideration.  
 

 

7. Summary of Considerations 

7.1 Significant risk register 

☒Relationship with iwi, hapū, Māori 
☒Climate Change 
☒Emergency Management 
☒IT architecture, information system, information management, and security 
☒Financial management, sustainability, fraud, and corruption 
☒Legislative and regulative reforms 
☒Social licence to operate and reputation 
☒Asset management 
☒Economic conditions 

75



☒Health and Safety 
 
8. Conclusion 

 
8.1  Next Steps 
Council will be presented with a final proposed Interim Speed Management Plan in the next 
few weeks and will consider the recommendations of the Hearings Committee.  Once 
adopted, we intend to continue work to review the speed management planning for the 
district, developing a Full SMP to progress the implementation of principles-based Speed 
Management Planning provided for under the Rule. We will consider wider principles, 
appropriate speed changes and infrastructure changes to support road safety for the whole 
of our District roading network. This will set out the principles of developing safe and 
appropriate speeds across other areas of the local road network, with implementation set 
out over three-year action plans for 2024-2027.  
 
Our future Full Speed Management Plan will involve further community engagement and 
public consultation to formalise our speed management planning for the 2024-2027 period. 
This will include collaborating with Waka Kotahi (State Highways), and other Road Controlling 
Authorities such as Carterton and Masterton District Councils, the Department of 
Conservation.   
 
 8.2  Strategic Context  
The Government Policy Statement (GPS) on land transport is central to investment decisions 
across the land transport system. The GPS supports investment in highways and local roads 
to accelerate the implementation of the Speed Management Guide which focuses on treating 
the top 10 percent of the roading network. Focusing on the top 10 percent will result in the 
greatest reduction in deaths and serious injuries as quickly as possible. The council plans to 
implement this strategy where possible as part of developing our 10-year speed management 
plan.  

 
 

9. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft Speed Management Plan 

Appendix 2 – Consultation Document 

Appendix 3 – Full set of 2023 Speed Management Plan Consultation submissions 

 
 

Contact Officer:  Tim Langley, Roading Manager 

Reviewed By: Stefan Corbett, Group Manager, Partnership & Operations 

76



Appendix 1 – Draft Speed 
Management Plan 

  

77



 

REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Interim Speed Management 
Plan 

Prepared for 

Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa 
District Council 

Prepared by 

Tonkin & Taylor Ltd 

Date 

June 2023 

Job Number 

1020397.0000 v3.2 

78



 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Document control 

 

Title: Interim Speed Management Plan 

Date Version  Description Prepared by: Reviewed 
by: 

Authorised 
by: 

02/12/2022 1.0 Draft Plan Sam Wilkie 

Shu Zhang 

Alan Gregory Chris Perks 

05/12/2022 2.0 Draft Plan Sam Wilkie 

Shu Zhang 

Alan Gregory Chris Perks 

25/05/2023 3.0 Draft for SWDC review  Sam Wilkie 

Shu Zhang 

Alan Gregory Chris Perks 

02/06/2023 3.1 Updated Section 5 with roads in 
CDC 

Sam Wilkie 

Shu Zhang 

Alan Gregory Chris Perks 

22/06/2023 3.2 Updated Sections 5 and 6 based 
on client feedback 

Sam Wilkie 

Shu Zhang 

Alan Gregory Chris Perks 

      
 

Distribution: 

Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa 
District Council 
 

2 PDF copies 

Tonkin & Taylor Ltd (FILE) 1 PDF copy 

 

 

79



 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Table of contents 

1 Introduction 1 

2 Purpose of this Document 3 

3 The effects of speed 4 

4 Speed Management – Why is it important? 6 
4.1 Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022 6 
4.2 Government Policy Statement (GPS) on Land Transport 2021 7 
4.3 Vision Zero and the Safety System 8 
4.4 Road to Zero 9 
4.5 Wellington Regional Land Transport Plan 10 
4.6 One Network Framework (ONF) 10 
4.7 Speed Management Guide: Road to Zero Edition 2022 11 
4.8 Safe and appropriate speed limits 13 
4.9 Existing condition of speed issues 14 
4.10 Past speed management in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 16 

4.10.1 Carterton District Council Speed Limits Bylaw 2005 16 
4.10.2 Wellington Region’s School Travel Plan Programme 16 
4.10.3 National Speed Limit Register 18 

5 2023 Speed Management Plan 19 
5.1 Vision 19 
5.2 Objectives and policies 19 
5.3 Principles 19 
5.4 Schools 20 
5.5 Marae 20 
5.6 Assessment process for other roads 20 
5.7 Future reviews 21 

6 Implementation Plan 22 
6.1 Proposed Speed Limits in Carterton District 22 
6.2 Proposed Speed Limits in Greytown Township 27 

6.2.1 Schools and marae in Greytown 28 
6.2.2 Other local priority roads in Greytown 28 

6.3 Proposed speed limits in Featherston Township 29 
6.3.1 Proposed permanent speed limits on roads near schools and marae in 

Featherston 30 
6.3.2 Other local priority roads in Featherston 30 

6.4 Proposed speed limits in Martinborough Township 31 
6.4.1 Schools and marae 31 
6.4.2 Other local priority roads in Martinborough 32 

6.5 Proposed speed limits in other areas of South Wairarapa 33 
6.5.1 Schools and marae 33 
6.5.2 Other local priority roads in other areas of South Wairarapa 33 

6.6 Recommended appropriate speed limits for future review 34 
6.6.1 Carterton District 34 
6.6.2 South Wairarapa District 39 

7 What’s next 49 
7.1 Next Steps 49 
7.2 Public engagement and consultation 50 

8 Applicability 51 
 

80



 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Appendix A : List of Schools in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 

Appendix B : Review of Carterton and South Wairarapa District Crash History 

Appendix C : Existing speed limits 

Appendix D : Safe and appropriate speed limits criteria 

 

81



1 

 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 
 

 

1 Introduction 

Tonkin & Taylor Limited (T+T) has been commissioned by South Wairarapa District Council to 
prepare an Interim Speed Management Plan (ISMP) for the Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts. 
The ISMP for Carterton District Council (CDC) and South Wairarapa District Council (SWDC) follows 
the Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency (Waka Kotahi) Speed Management Guide and will provide an 
implementation plan for safer speeds in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts. The development 
of a full speed management plan will start in late 2023 or 2024 for the 2024-2027 National Land 
Transport Planning (NLTP) cycle. 

The first full speed management planning period, 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2027, is preceded by a 
transitional period, where local authorities can utilise interim speed management plans. The 
transitional period also includes an initial pre-interim period that enables RCAs to set speed limits 
under the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2017, for a period not exceeding two months 
after the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022 comes into effect. For speed limit 
changes are required before the 2024/25 – 2026/27 land transport planning cycle, RCAs are 
encouraged to use the interim speed management process to make those changes sooner rather 
than later1. 

The technical review (of each road or section of road) identified a number of recommendations that 
have been collated to form an implementation plan.  The full technical assessment is included in the 
Technical Assessment document (separate document available on the council website). The 
technical assessments review the Safe and Appropriate Seed (SaAS) from Megamaps and propose 
speed limits that may differ from the SaAS following a series of sense checks and reviews of the road 
characteristics and One Network Framework categories etc. 

The Interim Speed Management Plan comprises a report including the following information: 

• Strategic context including Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022 (which came into 
effect on 19 May 2022), Government Policy Statement on Land Transport, Vision Zero, Road 
to Zero Strategy 2020-2030 and One Network Framework. 

• Description of previous work related to speed management in Carterton and South Wairarapa 
Districts, especially around school safety programmes. 

• Proposed speed management approach including principles and priorities to guide the 
application of speed management. 

• Maps of proposed changes to speed limits for both districts and details for the urban areas 
within each district. 

• Descriptions of proposed changes for urban areas and townships. 

• Steps to implement the Speed Management Plan including engagement. 

The appendix includes the following: 

• Appendix A is a list of schools in both districts. 

• Appendix B is a review of crashes in both districts. 

 
1 Appendix 5 of the Speed Management Guide Road to Zero Edition: https://www.nzta.govt.nz/assets/resources/speed-
management-guide-road-to-zero-edition/speed-management-guide-road-to-zero-edition-appendices.pdf 
 

82



 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

• Appendix C is the criteria for selecting a different speed limit within the range based on One 
Network Framework Categories. 

• Appendix D contains details of crashes on local roads reported to Crash Analysis System (CAS) 
in both districts over the ten-year period of 2012-2021. 

83



3 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

2 Purpose of this Document 

The purpose of this document is to take the information provided in the Waka Kotahi NZ Transport 
Agency Speed Management Guide and create an implementation plan for safer speeds in Carterton 
and South Wairarapa districts.  

 

Figure 2.1: Location of Carterton District and South Wairarapa District 

New Zealand’s Road Safety Strategy 2020-2030 “Road to Zero” establishes a vision that no death or 
serious injury is acceptable while travelling on New Zealand roads.  

Road safety risk can be reduced by investigating and funding infrastructure improvements to make a 
road safer at current speeds, or by managing travelling speeds down through a combination of road 
function, design, risk-targeted enforcement and education on safe behaviour, all reinforced by 
introducing appropriate speed limits for the roads. 

The ISMP sets out what work needs to be done, by who and where, with a focus in this financial year 
(2022/2023) leading into South Wairarapa District Council (SWDC) 2021-2031 Long Term Plan and 
Carterton District Council (CDC) 2021-2031 Ten Year Plan. 

  

84



4 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

3 The effects of speed 

The relationships between speed and crashes, and the effects of speed on severity of crashes are 
well established. The higher the impact speeds are, the larger forces vehicle occupants must absorb 
in a crash, in accordance with kinetic energy principles. Occupant protection systems are effective 
when the impact speeds are low and moderate, but they cannot protect occupants as effectively 
from kinetic forces when the impacts speeds are high. 

Pedestrians, cyclists or motorcyclists are particularly exposed to vehicle impacts, especially at speeds 
above the limits of human tolerance. The elderly and the very young are more vulnerable to being 
injured in a crash than road users in other age groups. 

Excessive vehicle speed increases the likelihood of having a crash due to less response time to avoid 
hazards for drivers, and severity of a crash which is more likely to result in death or serious injury 
when one occurs. 

 

Figure 3.1: Reaction, braking and stopping distances at different speeds (Source: Wairarapa Road Safety 
Council2) 

Higher speed results in more serious injuries because of greater crash forces. The physics of crashes 
means double crash impact speed leads to four times higher kinetic energy. These sudden crash 
forces and high deceleration are the causes of harm to drivers and passengers in a crash. Crashes 
involving pedestrians, cyclists, children, the elderly, and those struck by heavy vehicles are more 
likely to be injured or result in a fatality even at relatively lower speeds. 

 

 
2 https://www.wairsc.org.nz/services/safe-speeds 

85



5 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Research has shown that: 

• A collision at 30 km/h is equivalent to falling from the first floor of a building. 

• A collision at 50 km/h is equivalent to falling from the third floor of a building. 

• A collision at 80 km/h is equivalent to falling from the eighth floor of a building. 

This indicates the impact of a collision increases disproportionately as the vehicle speed increases. 
Research has also shown that a crash is twice as likely to be fatal should it occur at 120 km/h as at 
100 km/h. 

Data taken from Austroads Research Report AP-R560-18 is summarised in Figure 3.2. For crashes 
involving a pedestrian in urban areas, the risk of death increases from 10% at 50 km/h impact speed 
to 95% at 60 km/h. 

 

Figure 3.2: Safe speed for pedestrians (Source: Auckland Transport3) 

  

 
3 https://at.govt.nz/projects-roadworks/vision-zero-for-the-greater-good/safe-speeds-programme/safe-speeds-the-
reasons/ 

86



6 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

4 Speed Management – Why is it important? 

Speed management is about achieving safe and appropriate speeds on the road network, reflecting 
diverse road functions and use, different road designs and the risks that exist on them. Ensuring the 
speed limits are aligned to the safety features and use of the road is proven to be effective in 
improving road safety, saving lives and preventing debilitating injuries4.  

Driving at speeds in excess of the posted speed limit is a widespread social problem, many roads 
cannot be driven safely even at the posted speed limits as Waka Kotahi estimates that over 85% of 
the speeds limits in New Zealand are above the safe and appropriate speed limits in the Speed 
Management Guide: Road to Zero Edition 2022. Exceeding the speed limit contributes to about 60% 
of fatal crashes in New Zealand, while 71% of injury crashes occur at speeds higher than the safe and 
appropriate speed. 

Moving people and goods efficiently around our transport network is important. However, we also 
need to reduce death and serious injuries to help achieve a safe transport system by using an 
integrated speed management planning process, including safety infrastructure and safety 
enforcement. 

Speed management also offers environmental benefits. Speeding results in increased greenhouse 
gases, harmful emissions and noise pollution.  By reducing these environmental damages, our 
communities will be more attractive for living, working and visiting. 

Speed management offers significant social, economic and environmental benefits. Speed 
management can help achieve appropriate speeds that achieve both safety and efficiency objectives, 
but it requires inputs from policy makers, engineers, educators, general public and the Police to be 
effective.  

4.1 Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022 

The Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits (‘the Rule’) is part of the Tackling Unsafe Speeds 
programme. This Rule gives effect to a new regulatory framework for speed management and the 
requirements for safer speed limits around schools and has replaced the Land Transport Rule: 
Setting of Speed Limits 2017. This Rule came into force on 19 May 2022. 

The Rule sets out some key components as follows: 

• Waka Kotahi is required to produce a State Highway Speed Management Plan5. This plan sets 
out proposed speed management reviews and safety infrastructure changes on the State 
Highway network over a 10-year period. Plans will be developed every six years, with 
allowance for variation every three years (plans will provide more specific details about 
proposals for the first three years of the plan). An independent speed management 
committee will certify this plan. 

• Road Controlling Authorities (RCAs) are required to work collaboratively with their regional 
transport committee and Waka Kotahi to produce regional speed management plans, set out 
speed management treatments in the region over a 10-year period. These plans will be 
developed every six years, and will be updated every three years, to align with the land 
transport planning process. Waka Kotahi (as regulator) is responsible for certifying regional 

 
4 Development of the Waka Kotahi Speed Management Guide: Road to Zero edition: 
https://www.nzta.govt.nz/safety/partners/speed-and-infrastructure/safe-and-appropriate-speed-limits/speed-
management-guide/development-of-the-speed-management-guide-road-to-zero-edition/ 
5 A draft Interim State Highway Speed Management Plan was published and open for consultation between 14 November 
and 12 December 2022. 

87



7 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

speed management plans. All speed management plans will be made publicly available on the 
Waka Kotahi website. 

• RCAs must ensure speed limits for roads outside at least 40% of the schools directly accessed 
from roads under their control comply with the new speed limits by 30 June 2024 and all 
roads outside schools comply with the new speed limits by 31 December 2027. 

• RCAs are required to reduce speed limits around category 1 schools (mostly in urban areas) to 
30 km/h and around category 2 schools (mostly in rural areas) to a maximum of 60 km/h. 
These could be variable speed limits where appropriate, with the lower speed applying during 
school travel times. 

• Schools with an existing 40 km/h speed limit on 20 April 2021 and continuing until the 
commencement of this Rule will retain the speed limit, but RCAs will need to review the speed 
limits in its next speed management plan and set the new speed limit to 30 km/h or designate 
the school as a category 2 school. 

4.2 Government Policy Statement (GPS) on Land Transport 2021 

The GPS is central to how investment will be allocated across the land transport system and sets four 
strategic priorities as follows: 

• Safety – Developing a transport system where no-one is killed or seriously injured. 

• Better Travel Options – Providing people with better transport options to access social and 
economic opportunities. 

• Climate Change – Developing a low carbon transport system that supports emissions 
reductions, while improving safety and inclusive access. 

• Improving Freight Connections – Improving freight connections for economic development. 

 

Figure 4.1: Strategic Direction of GPS on Land Transport 2021 

88



8 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

This Interim Speed Management Plan is fully aligned with the GPS on Land Transport 2021. Table 4.1 
Below demonstrates the consistency of the ISMP with the GPS. 

Table 4.1: Alignment of this Interim Speed Management Plan with the GPS 

GPS Priority How the Speed Management Plan aligns with the GPS 

Safety In line with Vision Zero, Road to Zero and the 2021 GPS, the ISMP is 
working towards a local road network where no-one is killed or seriously 
injured. The ISMP paves the pathway to contribute to achieving the Road 
to Zero target of reducing 40% death and serious injuries by 2030. 

Better Travel Options Focus on urban areas and schools will lead to safe and appropriate 
speeds that also encourage more people to walk, cycle, scooter or use 
other forms of active travel. 

Climate Change Managing speeds can encourage more active travel which in turn can 
help reduce vehicle kilometres travelled/carbon emissions. It will also 
reduce harmful emissions and noise pollutions. 

Improving Freight Connections Manging speeds significantly reduces crashes, making journeys more 
reliable. As a result, improved safety and reduced number of fatal and 
serious crashes in the road network will result in fewer road closures and 
therefore less diversion of vehicles to a longer alternative route is 
needed. 

The GPS on Land Transport supports investment in state highways and local road to accelerate the 
implementation of the Speed Management Guide through the Road to Zero activity class. The focus 
is on treating the top 10 percent of the network, which will result in reduction in deaths and serious 
injuries sought through Road to Zero. 

4.3 Vision Zero and the Safety System 

Vision Zero is a global movement to end traffic-related fatalities and serious injuries by taking a 
systemic approach to road safety, which emphasises: 

• People make mistakes but serious or fatal outcomes are preventable. 

• People are vulnerable to injuries. 

• Responsibility is shared between road users, and the people who design and operate our 
roads. 

• No death or serious injury on the roads is acceptable. 

• Safety should be a critical decision-making priority in our transport decisions. 

Vision Zero shifts the focus from assuming human error as the root of the road safety problem to 
creating a transport system that allows simple mistakes without resulting in life-ending and life-
changing consequences. 

The Safe System approach is a holistic safety approach underlying the Vision Zero strategy. The Safe 
System approach shifts responsibility from road users to people designing them, integrating core 
management and action areas to create a forgiving road system that protects people from being 
killed or seriously injured when they crash. 

Road to Zero, the government’s road strategy for 2020-2030, is grounded in the Safe System 
approach. 

89



9 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

4.4 Road to Zero 

Road to Zero6 is the Government’s road safety strategy 2020-2030. The strategy establishes a vision 
for New Zealand to be a country where no one is killed or seriously injured in road crashes by 
adopting the world-leading Vision Zero approach where the core premise is “in every situation a 
person might fail, the transport system should not.” 

Road to Zero strategy articulates a vision, guiding principles for designing road network and making 
road safety decisions as well as setting targets and outcomes for 2030. The strategy sets a target of 
40% reduction in deaths and serious injuries by 2030. This would mean around 750 fewer people 
would be killed on our roads, compared to 2018. 

Road to Zero establishes five focus areas with respective actions in order to achieve the vision: 

• Infrastructure improvements and speed management – Improve road safety of our cities and 
regions through infrastructure improvements and speed management. 

• Vehicle safety – Significantly improve the safety performance of the vehicle fleet. 

• Work-related safety – Ensure that businesses and other organisations treat road safety as a 
critical health and safety issue. 

• Road user choices – Encourage safer choices and safer behaviour on our roads. 

• System Management – Develop a management system that reflects international best 
practice. 

 

Figure 4.2: Road to Zero – Focus areas (Source: Ministry of Transport7) 

 
6 https://www.transport.govt.nz/multi-modal/keystrategiesandplans/road-safety-strategy/ 
7 https://www.transport.govt.nz/assets/Uploads/Report/Road-to-Zero-strategy_final.pdf 

90



10 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

4.5 Wellington Regional Land Transport Plan 

The Wellington Regional Land Transport Plan (RLTP) 20218 sets the direction for the Wellington 
Region’s transport network for the next 10 – 30 years. The Wellington RLTP 2021 has identified five 
strategic objectives as follows: 

• People in the Wellington Region have access to good, affordable travel choices. 

• Transport and land use are integrated to support compact urban form, liveable places and a 
strong regional economy. 

• The impact of transport and travel on the environment is minimised. 

• People can move around the Wellington region safely. 

• Journeys to, from and within the Wellington region are connected, resilient and reliable. 

The Wellington RLTP 2021 also outlines the focus on safety for Carterton District Council and South 
Wairarapa District Council in order to develop a transport system where no-one is killed or seriously 
injured. Much of the work takes place as part of the low-cost, low-risk programmes and speed 
management has a key role. The focus of both councils’ safety activities is on safe network 
operations, speed management and secondary collector road geometric and delineation 
improvements. 

4.6 One Network Framework (ONF) 

The One Network Framework (ONF) is the new national classification system enhanced and evolved 
from the ONRC to better include pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users and reflect that 
transport corridors are not just for travelling. 

The ONF acknowledges the transport network has a ‘Place’ function. This means roads and streets 
are destinations for people, as well as transport corridors. The framework also introduces 
classifications for different modes of transport, recognising that our roads and streets have different 
functions for different modes. 

The ONF is used to determine the function of our roads and streets and inform decision making. The 
ONF recognises that shared, integrated planning approaches between transport and land-use 
planners will result in better outcomes. 

The ONF enables Road Controlling Authorities (like Carterton and South Wairarapa District Councils) 
to better define and differentiate between urban and rural transport needs. It also provides a 
consistent and level-playing field for future investment conversations, based on locally recognised 
needs. 

Carterton District and South Wairarapa District include networks that have all the rural categories 
and all other urban categories except City Hubs and Transit Corridors. 

 
8 Wellington Regional Land Transport Plan 2021: https://www.gw.govt.nz/assets/Documents/2021/10/Wellington-
Regional-Land-Transport-Plan-2021web.pdf 

91



11 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

 

Figure 4.3: One Network Framework (Source: Waka Kotahi9) 

4.7 Speed Management Guide: Road to Zero Edition 2022 

The Waka Kotahi Speed Management Guide: Road to Zero Edition was published on 28 July 2022. 
This guide sets out an approach to speed management planning for Aotearoa New Zealand that 
draws together the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022, Road to Zero and One 
Network Framework. The result is a principle-based approach to setting speed limits and managing 
speeds. 

Four guiding principles for speed management are designed in this guide in order to help guide the 
ISMP process and understand the rationale behind advice about speed limits from Waka Kotahi. The 
guiding principles are safety, community wellbeing, movement and place, and whole of system, as 
shown in Figure 4.4 

 
9 https://www.nzta.govt.nz/assets/Roads-and-Rail/onf/images/ONRC-to-ONF.png 

92



12 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

 

Figure 4.4: Guiding principles for speed management (Source: Waka Kotahi10) 

Principle 1 – Safety establishes the basic Safe System concept of human vulnerability – the human 
body’s tolerance to physical force which is at the core of speed limit setting. The Safe System 
approach is used to set safe speed limits by identifying the survivable impact speeds at which the 
possible types of crash that could occur in a given part of the transport network, as shown in Table 
4.2.  

Table 4.2: Survivable impact speeds for different collision scenarios (Source: Waka Kotahi11) 

Road users combined with road and section type Safe System Speed 

Roads and sections with people present outside and inside vehicles ≤30km/h 

Roads with intersections with potential for side-on conflicts between vehicles ≤50km/h 

Roads with potential for head-on conflicts between vehicles ≤70km/h 

Roads with no potential for head-on or side-on conflicts between vehicles and no 
people present outside vehicles 

≤100km/h 

Principle 2 – Community Wellbeing establishes that the setting of speed limits needs to consider 
environmental, economic and other benefits in addition to reducing deaths and serious injuries. It 
also covers the qualitative impacts of poor road safety on choice of travel mode and route and 
accessibility. This principle aims to make roads and streets safe and accessible for all, especially 
children and other vulnerable users. Safe and appropriate speeds will reduce stress for road users to 
help people feel safer to use active modes or travel with children. Safe and appropriate speeds also 
provide equity benefits to Māori as road traffic mortality rates are between 60% and 200% higher 
for Māori compared with non-Māori. Locations where marae, kura or papakāinga may be in need of 
safe speed limits and further speed management approaches as these are destinations, where large 
groups including tamariki and kaumātua, concentrate for hui and tangihanga. 

 
10 Figure 2 in Waka Kotahi Speed Management Guide 2022: Road to Zero Edition: 
https://www.nzta.govt.nz/assets/resources/speed-management-guide-road-to-zero-edition/speed-management-guide-
road-to-zero-edition.pdf 
11 Table 1 in Waka Kotahi Speed Management Guide 2022: Road to Zero Edition. 

93



13 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Principle 2 also aims to generate environmental and economic benefits. Reducing speed limits to 
safer speeds reduces emissions from diesel vehicles, the wind and rolling resistance and propulsion 
noise. Safe and appropriate speed limits reduce serious crashes and subsequently generate 
economic benefits by reducing the road crashes social cost which was estimated to be $4.6 billion in 
201912.   

Principle 3 – Movement and Place integrates the movement and place-based approach of the One 
Network Framework into setting safe and appropriate speed limits. As a result, safe speed limits will 
be appropriate for the function and design of a road and street, and it will also help to identify 
places where the design and infrastructure need to be improved to better attuned to the speed 
limit. 

Principle 4 – Whole of System combines safe and appropriate speed limits with an integrated, 
consistent and balanced approach to regulation and through the use of regulatory tools such as 
enforcement, engagement, and education, supported by monitoring and adaptation. The objectives 
of this principle are building public trust and understanding, understanding and influencing 
behaviours, partnering with Māori and continually reflect, learn and adapt to maximise public 
understanding and lower mean operating speeds. 

4.8 Safe and appropriate speed limits 

A safe and appropriate speed limit is a speed limit that is safe according to standards set by the Safe 
System approach and appropriate in terms of aligning with community wellbeing objectives as well 
as with the movement and place function, design and infrastructure of the street or road. 

The Setting of Speed Limits Framework provides the rationale for identifying the safe and 
appropriate speed limits for all streets and roads. This framework is informed by the four principles 
that underpin the Speed Management Guide: safety, community wellbeing, movement and place, 
and whole of system. 

The inputs into a safe and appropriate speed limit include the following: 

• the Safe System speed thresholds for crash survivability. 

• the One Network Framework Street categories that reflect the movement and place functions 
of a street or road. 

• the infrastructure risk rating, which is a road assessment methodology to assess road safety 
risk. 

• the presence or planned implementation of safety infrastructure to reduce the risk of harm 
for people outside vehicles. 

The setting of a safe and appropriate speed limit involves integrating and aligning the One Network 
Framework Street categories with safe and appropriate speed limit ranges, then using criteria, either 
manually, or provided by MegaMaps13, to identify the safe and appropriate speed limit from within 
that range for the specific street or road. The safe and appropriate speed (SAAS) is based on several 
inputs including speed limit ranges for each of the new One Network Framework (ONF) street 
categories and the infrastructure risk rating (IRR). MegaMaps defaults to the lowest safe speed limit 
in the ONF range unless other criteria for higher speed limits are satisfied, which typically relate to 
the provision of Safe System infrastructure. 

 
12 Ministry of Transport Social cost of road crashes and injuries 2020 update June 2020: 
https://www.transport.govt.nz/assets/Uploads/Social-Cost-of-Road-Crashes-and-Injuries-2020_final.pdf 
13 MegaMaps is the geospatial tool that contains speed management information and guidance for the network of each 
road controlling authority.  

94



14 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

The Speed Management Guide sets out the range of safe and appropriate speeds for each urban and 
rural street category, as shown in Table 4.3 and Table 4.4. The full table with descriptions of each 
ONF category and the criteria that must be satisfied to select a different speed limit within the range 
are included in Appendix D.  

Table 4.3: ONF urban street categories and safe speed limit ranges 

ONF urban street categories Safe and appropriate speed limit 

Civic spaces 10-20km/h 

Local streets 30km/h 

Activity streets 30-40km/h 

Main streets 30-40km/h 

City hubs 30-40km/h 

Urban connectors 40-60km/h 

Transit corridors 80-100km/h 

Table 4.4: ONF rural street categories and safe speed limit ranges 

ONF rural street categories Safe and appropriate speed limit 

Interregional connections 60-110km/h 

Rural connectors 60-100km/h 

Rural roads 60-80km/h 

Peri-urban roads 50-80km/h 

Stopping places 40-80km/h 

4.9 Existing condition of speed issues 

The total number of fatalities on local roads14 in Carterton District over the 10-year period (2012-
2021) was six (in six fatal crashes). The total number of fatalities on local roads in South Wairarapa 
District over the same 10-year period was eight (in seven fatal crashes). The total lives lost on local 
roads in both districts over the 10-year period are 14, that is on average 1.4 fatalities per year. 

The total number of deaths and serious injuries on local roads in both districts over the same 10-
year period is 92 (in 84 fatal and serious crashes). The total number of deaths and serious injuries on 
local roads and state highways in both districts between 2012-2021 is 146 (in 134 fatal and serious 
crashes) across both districts. 

The top four contributing factors to fatal and serious injury crashes in both districts were: 

• Alcohol. 

• Loss of control. 

• Poor observation. 

• Inappropriate speed. 

The relationship between speed and road trauma is well-established internationally and that’s why it 
is important to set safe and appropriate speed limits. 

 
14 i.e. excludes State Highways 

95



15 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

The percentages of all crashes involving inappropriate speed in both districts in the 10-year period 
(2012-2021) are shown in Figure 4.5. The percentages of crashes involving inappropriate speeds 
dropped between 2012 and 2019 but increased in the recent two years. Although speed is a factor in 
most crashes and even if some crashes occurred at or below the posted speed limit (i.e., speed is not 
identified as a crash factor), the outcomes will likely be less severe should the crashes occur at the 
safe and appropriate speed limit.  

 

Figure 4.5: Percentages of all crashes involving inappropriate speed in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 
in 10-year period (2012-2021) from Crash Analysis System 

However, Figure 4.6 shows that the percentage of death and serious injury crashes involving 
inappropriate speed was the highest of 53.8% in 2013 then reduced to the lowest of 4.8% in 2017. 

 

Figure 4.6: Percentages of fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate speed in Carterton and South 
Wairarapa Districts in 10-year period (2012-2021) from Crash Analysis System 

This means that we can reduce the number of death and serious injuries on our roads by 
implementing an effective speed management programme. If we can increase the number of drivers 
driving at a safe and appropriate speed, we can reduce the number of people in our community 
whose lives are devastated by road trauma. 

 

 

27.4%

19.8%
14.2%

17.5%
13.7% 15.0%

10.5% 12.8%

24.6% 26.5%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

% of all crashes

25.0%

53.8%

25.0%

7.1%

27.3%

4.8%

20.0% 20.0%

37.5% 35.7%

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%
40.0%
45.0%
50.0%
55.0%
60.0%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

% of fatal and serious injury crashes

96



16 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

It was also discovered that in both districts: 

• Almost all crashes (91%) involving inappropriate speed in the 10-year period (2012-2021) 
happened in areas with a 100km/h speed limit. 

• 73% of crashes involving inappropriate speed (2012-2021) occur during the day. 

• Almost all crashes (91%) involving inappropriate speed involve one vehicle only. 

Recent community feedback on Waka Kotahi’s engagement on the SH2 Featherston to Masterton 
Speed Review15 included the following points:  

• The majority of locals thought that speed needs to be reduced through the towns of 
Featherston, Carterton, Greytown and Masterton and that the current 70-100 km/h speed 
limits are far too fast. 

• Many said they needed to go down to 50km/h to prevent crashes. 

4.10 Past speed management in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 

Both CDC and SWDC have been active in the area of speed management. The CDC Speed Limits 
Bylaw 2005 was reviewed and adopted in 2014 with a further review due in 2024. CDC and SWDC 
along with Masterton District Council fully adopted the Wairarapa Consolidated Bylaw 2019: Part 
Eleven – Speed in 2019. This Bylaw aims to set speed limits on any council-owned roads within the 
jurisdiction of the local authority. In addition, Carterton and South Wairarapa District Councils 
supported the Wellington Region’s School Travel Plan Programme. In addition, both district councils 
have made efforts to target specific groups such as motorcyclists, young and senior drivers and 
issues such as fatigue and use of restraints. Following the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed 
Limits 2022, both district councils have been engaging with Waka Kotahi to record, update and share 
speed limit data in the National Speed Limit Register. 

4.10.1 Carterton District Council Speed Limits Bylaw 200516 

The Carterton District Council Speed Limits Bylaw 2005 details posted speed limits in the following 
schedules: 

• Schedule 4: Urban traffic areas – Road that have a speed limit of 50 km/h. 

• Schedule 6: Roads that have a speed limit of 70 km/h. 

• Schedule 7: Rural areas – Roads that have a speed limit of 50 km/h. 

4.10.2 Wellington Region’s School Travel Plan Programme17 

A school travel plan is a practical approach to improving road safety and encouraging the whole 
school community to use active modes of transport to get to and from school. The benefits of school 
travel plans are: 

• Improved health and well-being. 

• Reduced traffic congestion. 

• Increased children’s travel options. 

• Reduced pollution in our environment. 

 
15 https://www.nzta.govt.nz/assets/projects/sh2-masterton-to-featherston-speed-review/SH2-Masterton-to-Featherston-
speed-review-engagement-summary-January-2021.pdf 
16 https://cdc.govt.nz/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/Speed-Limits-Bylaw-2005-ReviewApril-2014-Final-adopted-25-06-
14.pdf 
17 https://www.gw.govt.nz/assets/Documents/2016/02/School-Travel-Plan-Brochure.pdf 

97



17 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

• Enhanced local communities. 

Carterton and South Wairarapa District Councils along with other territorial authorities in the 
Greater Wellington Region supported the Wellington Region’s School Travel Plans in 2016. 

Actions which school communities have selected include: 

• Walking and cycling initiatives: walk to school days, walking routes, walking school buses, 
cyclist skills training, cycle club and activity days. 

• Education: road safety education programmes and initiatives and environmental education. 

• Enforcement: parking and speeding monitoring and enforcement strategies. 

• Engineering: assessment of infrastructure issues identified through the school travel plan, 
pedestrian crossings, cyclising facilities, road markings and signage, etc. 

More specifically, some of the initiatives in both districts include: 

• Involvement in ‘Movin’March’ led by Greater Wellington Regional Council: this is to encourage 
safe active travel (walking, scooting or cycling) for years 1-6 predominantly. Students receive 
prizes for stamps on their travel passport after completing each trip. The school travel 
programme coordinator sends ‘mailchimp’ newsletters to all schools with links to Waka Kotahi 
safe school travel platforms which provide safe parking and stopping tips, safe crossing points 
and other information for parents and students about safe school travel. 

• ‘Safe Scooter Skills’ and ‘Bike Ready’ programmes: this is led by the local school community 
police officer who provides scooter training in schools. The Wairarapa Road Safety Council 
owns 40-50 scooters, and the same amount of scooter helmets to suit all kids at all ages. 

• Speed sessions in maths curriculum: the school travel programme coordinator uses a speed 
radar gun to measure speed and lets the children record speed to highlight the various travel 
speeds and distances of different vehicle types. 

• Informal discussions around safe travel at assemblies: use of mobile phones when crossing 
roads, vehicle speeds and licence conditions, occasionally with NZ Police. 

• Others: rural school bus safety sessions with Tranzit and GoBus, driver vehicle speed feedback 
signage on trailer outside schools where speeding is an issue. 

Both districts also had the following activities targeting certain groups or specific issues: 

• Motorcyclists: A campaign was held in September 2021 and February 2022 to offer ‘ride 
forever’ on-road safety courses to the local riders and partner with local retailers to provide 
free 12-point safety checks. 

• Young drivers: Newsletters, school bulletins, and in-person sessions at colleges promote 
‘drive.govt.nz’ to both young drivers and their parents. A Wairarapa Driver Mentor 
programme has succeeded to reduce young driver crashes and licence breaches since 2017 by 
training and mentoring 45 voluntary driver mentors to help young drivers and refugees and 
migrants to obtain driver licences and secure local employment. 

• Senior drivers: There have been regular ‘Staying Safe’ workshops for age concern clients which 
include ‘Carfit’ clinics and talks on travel time and routes planning, driver awareness and 
medication. 

• Fatigue and distraction: Creative flyers with information on fatigued and distracted drivers are 
provided at participating service stations. Information on these topics is also provided online, 
in print, and on radio. 

• Restraints: The public can book online or attend ad hoc for regular child restraint clinics. 

98



18 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

• Others: road safety billboards on safe speeds, restraints, fatigue, distraction and motorcycle 
safety tips, engagement with road safety partners and participation of national road safety 
conference to keep up with the best practice. 

4.10.3 National Speed Limit Register18 

The Land Transport (Register of Land Transport Records – Speed Limits) Regulations 2022 came into 
force on 19 May 2022. This regulation requires road controlling authorities to supply speed limit 
information to Waka Kotahi for the speed limits to be legally enforceable. 

The National Speed Limit Register (NSLR) provides an online, maps-based, central source of speed 
limits for roads in New Zealand. It has combined the individual speed limit records of all Road 
Controlling Authorities in New Zealand.  

Both Carterton District and South Wairarapa District have supplied the speed limit records in their 
respective districts and the speed limit information is now live in the National Speed Limit Register. 

  

 
18 National Speed Limit Register: https://speedlimits.nzta.govt.nz/ 

99



19 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

5 2023 Speed Management Plan 

5.1 Vision  

Following the Vision Zero approach for road safety and ONF national classification system, any loss 
of life is not acceptable in the transport network and there will be more people using the streets and 
roads as ‘Places’. 

This Speed Management Plan aligns with the vision for the Wellington Region of:  

“Our vision for Wellington is a connected region, with safe, accessible and liveable places – where 
people can easily, safely and sustainably access the things that matter to them and where goods are 
moved efficiently, sustainably and reliably (RLTP 2021 vision).” 

5.2 Objectives and policies  

The objective of this Speed Management Plan is to:   

“Create a roading network where residents and visitors can travel safely and efficiently around the 
district, no matter how they travel”. People can move around the Wellington Region safely (RLTP 
2021)  

The policies underpinning this Speed Management Plan are:   

• Ensure speed limits are appropriate to the movement and place function of the transport 
network. 

• Ensure safe speed limits around schools/kura, marae and other areas of local significance. 

5.3 Principles 

Drawing on the principles set forward in the Waka Kotahi Speed Management Guide: Road to Zero 
Edition 2022 and New Zealand Government’s road safety strategy 2020-2030 “Road to Zero”, we 
have defined the following principles to guide the application of speed management for CDC and 
SWDC: 

• The speed environment around schools at the start and end of the school day will be 30 km/h 
in the urban area. While in rural areas, the implementation plan will explain that a speed limit 
of 60 km/h or less is safe and appropriate for the road. The speed limits around rural schools 
will be reviewed in the next implementation plan. 

• Similarly for marae, the speed environment will be 30 km/h in urban areas and 60 km/h in 
rural areas with those in rural areas having variable 30 km/h (with a manual flip-down speed 
limit sign) at times when the marae has events. 

• Consider lowering the speed environment on roads with high risk. 

Other areas for review such as town centres, residential speed limits and remote rural speed limits 
will be considered in subsequent reviews of the Speed Management Plan in conjunction with the 
development of the Regional Speed Management Plan for the Greater Wellington region, to ensure 
that there is a consistent approach to the treatment of these areas.  

Changes to speed limits will be ongoing as development in the district continues, and to achieve 
alignment with the Governments Road to Zero Action Plan with respect to speed management.  This 
initial Speed Management Plan provides guidance on Council’s approach to when, how and why 
speed should be managed on each of the roads identified.  

100



20 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Details on the technical assessment of each of the roads based on the above-mentioned criteria are 
included in the technical assessment documents (separate documents and will be available on the 
Council website).    

5.4 Schools 

The current speed limit on roads in the vicinity of urban schools within the towns of both districts 
are 50km/hr or 40km/hr and for rural schools either 70km/hr or 100km/hr depending on the 
location of the school.  By 2027, Council will be required to have reduced the speed limits in the 
vicinity of all 14 schools within both districts to a maximum of 30km/hr for urban schools or 60km/hr 
for rural schools. Speed limits can be either variable or permanent. Where schools are located on a 
no exit road or within residential neighbourhoods then permanent speed limits would be installed.  
For locations that are on through roads with higher speed limits, then a variable speed limit is 
considered to be the most appropriate form of treatment.    

5.5 Marae 

There are four marae in South Wairarapa and Carterton where the current speed limits on roads in 
the vicinity of these marae are 100km/h. Marae are social centres where activities occur almost 
every day. When tangihanga, poukai or other hui are held, the capacity of marae grounds to hold all 
parked vehicles is insufficient. The demand then overflows to any available on-road parking. 
Especially at tangihanga, people walk to and from their vehicles in both daylight and after dark, 
crossing or walking along the roadway. Therefore, it is important to engage with marae and kōhanga 
reo (within the vicinity of the marae) on the development of speed management plans to ensure 
that this Speed Management Plan supports the desire of the community, improves road safety 
outcomes and reduces the impact of unsafe speed limits of all communities. 

5.6 Assessment process for other roads 

The selection of other roads consists of two sources, local knowledge from the professionals at local 
councils and filtered roads based on criteria. A list of roads with local priority is obtained from the 
engineer at both SWDC and CDC. These roads are reviewed for compliance likelihood and public 
acceptance with additional measures identified to ensure compliance and acceptance. All other 
roads will be filtered based on the following criteria to identify the roads with the highest risks: 

• Personal or Collective Risk: medium or above. 

• Infrastructure Risk Rating: medium-high or above. 

• Difference between the posted speed limit and SaAS more than 30km/h (inclusive). 

• Difference between the mean operating speed and SaAS more than 5km/h (inclusive). 

Figure 5.1 shows the entire process for assessing the proposed speed limit changes in Carterton and 
South Wairarapa. 

101



21 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

 

Figure 5.1: Flowchart for assessing the proposed speed limit changes 

5.7 Future reviews 

Future reviews of the Speed Management Plan are likely to focus on the urban areas of the districts. 

The rural roading network will continue to be a balance between safety and efficiency with speed 
limits required across local authority and regional boundaries to be consistent to avoid confusion 
and driver frustration.  This will be a longer-term project requiring collaboration across the Greater 
Wellington region with Waka Kotahi and neighbouring territorial authorities. 

 

102



22 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

6 Implementation Plan 

The technical review (of each road or section of road) identified a number of recommendations that 
have been collated to form an implementation plan.  The full technical assessment is included in the 
Technical Assessment document (separate document available on the council website). The 
technical assessments review the SaAS from Megamaps and propose speed limits that may differ 
from the SaAS following a series of sense checks and reviews of the road characteristics and ONF 
categories. 

The plan for implementation will be reviewed every three years in alignment with the Long-Term 
Plan funding cycle to provide alignment with funding opportunities.  The Speed Management Plan 
will also be reviewed when significant changes in development or funding occur, necessitating a 
change to the implementation plan. 

This section shows the roads and road sections proposed for change in the upcoming three years 
(2024-2027). These roads and road sections focus on schools and marae and local priority roads 
identified by both councils. This section also shows the recommended future speeds identified by 
MegaMaps and these speeds will be reviewed in the future. 

Due to funding limitations those locations that require physical works will need to be prioritised. The 
initial ranking has been undertaken based on risk, however due to the legislative requirements for 
schools these locations are likely to prioritised in the first instance.    

6.1 Proposed Speed Limits in Carterton District 

 

Figure 6.1: Map of proposed speed limits in Carterton township 

He Pounamu 
early nurture 

Dalefield School 

Carterton School 

Ponatahi Christian School 
and St Mary’s School South End School 

Carterton Preschool 

Just Us Kids Preschool 

103



23 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Table 6.1: Proposed speed limits on roads near schools and marae in Carterton District 

School Name Road or road sections Posted speed 
limits (km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Carterton School 

 

Dixon Street  50 30 30 

Nelson Crescent 50 30 30 

Tyne Street 50 30 30 

Holloway Street 50 10 30 

Ponatahi 
Christian School 
and Saint Mary’s 
School  

King Street 50 30 30 

Deller Drive 50 30 30 

Howard Street 50 30 30 

Clifton Avenue 50 30 30 

Fairbrother street (Waklin 
Street to Richmond Road) 

50 30 30 

South End 
School 

Brooklyn Road between 
SH2 and 95m northwest of 
SH2 

50 30 30 

Dalefield School Dalefield Road between 
85m southeast of Thomas 
Road and 175m northwest 
of Thomas Road 

100 80 60 (30 VSL) 

Watersons Line between 
Dalefield Road and 95m 
southwest of Dalefield 
Road 

100 60 60 (30 VSL) 

Thomas Road between 
Dalefield Road and 200m 
northeast of Dalefield 
Road 

100 60 60 (30 VSL) 

Hurunui o Rangi Gladstone Road between 
Te Whiti Road and 3.4km 
northwest of Te Whiti 
Road 

100 60 60 (30 VSL19) 

Gladstone 
School 

Te Whiti Road between 
140m southwest of 
Brooklands Road and 95m 
southwest of Fitzherbert 
Street 

100 60 60 (30 VSL) 

Fitzherbert Street 100 60 30 

Carterton 
Preschool and 
Playcentre 

Belvedere Road between 
Augustus Street and Taylor 
Street 

50 30 50 (30 VSL) 

 
19 The Variable Speed Limit of 30km/h applies between 1.5km and 3.4km northwest of Te Whiti Road the time of events 
with a manual flip-down sign 

104



24 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Just Us Kids 
Preschool 

Victoria Street between 
Fisher Place (northeast 
approach) and Porritt 
Place 

50 30 50 (30 VSL) 

He Pouanmu 
Early Nurture 

Dalefield Road between 
665 Dalefield Road and 
718 Dalefield Road 

100 60 100 (30 VSL) 

 

Figure 6.2: Map of proposed speed limits northeast of Carterton District 

105



25 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

 

Figure 6.3: Map of propsed speed limits southeast of Carterton District 

Table 6.2: Proposed speed limits on local priority roads in Carterton District 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Safe and Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Lincoln Road from 
Belvedere Road to 185m 
southwest of Victoria Street 

50 50 50 

Lincoln Road from 185m 
southwest of Victoria Street 
to Dalefield Road 

70 40 50 

Moreton Road between SH2 
and 350m southeast of SH2 

50 30 50 

Moreton Road between 
350m southeast of SH2 and 
Rutland Road 

50 50 50 

Moreton Road between 
150m northwest of Rutland 
Road and Carters Line  

100 60 80 

Rutland Road 100 60 60 

Taverner Street 50 40 50 

Hughes Line 100 60 60 

Cornwall Road between SH2 
and Hughes line 

100 60 60 

East Taratahi Road 
(between SH2 and Hughes 
Line 

100 60 60 

Dalefield Road between SH2 
and Lincoln Road 

70 30 50 

Gladstone School 

Hurunui o Rangi marae 

P
o

n
at

a
h

i R
o

ad
 

106



26 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Safe and Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Dalefield Road between 
Lincoln Road and 75m 
northwest of Lincoln Road 

70 60 50 

Dalefield Road between 
100m northwest of Lincoln 
Road and 85m southeast of 
Thomas Road 

100 80 80 

Dalefield Road between 
85m southeast of Thomas 
Road and 175m northwest 
of Thomas Road 

100 80 60 

Carters Line between 
Moreton Road and Park 
Road 

100 80 80 

Watersons Line between 
Dalefield Road and 95m 
southwest of Dalefield Road 

100 60 60 

Thomas Road between 
Dalefield Road and 200m 
northeast of Dalefield Road 

100 60 60 

Belvedere Road between 
Taverner Street and 
Connollys Line 

70 30/40 50 

Park Road (between 205m 
southeast of Dixon Street 
and Rutland Road)   

100 60 50  

Richmond Road (between 
50m southeast of Deller 
Drive and Rutland Road) 

70 40 50 

Hilton Road (between 25m 
southeast of Madison Street 
and Rutland Road) 

100 60 50 

Chester Road 100 60 80  

Chester Park Drive 100 60 60 

Parkers Road 100 60 60  

Wiltons Road (between SH2 
and Chester Road) 

100 60 80 

Norfolk Road (between SH2 
and David Lowes Lane) 

100 60 60 

Norfolk Road (between 
David Lowes Lane and 
Chester Road) 

100 60 80 

Waingawa Road 100 60 60  

Norman Avenue 100 60 60 

Ahumahi Road 100 60 50  

Pakihi Road 100 60 50 

107



27 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Safe and Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

David Lowes Lane 100 60 60 

Maungahau Road 100 60 60 

Jordan Road 100 60 60 

Te Whiti Road between 
Gladstone Road and 130m 
northeast of Waipoapoa 
Road 

100 60 60 

Waipoapoa Road 100 60 30  

Brooklands Road 100 60 30 

Kokotau Road 100 80 80 

Opuakaio Road 100 60 60 

Johnsons Road 100 60 60 

Waitangi Road 100 60 60 

Baylys Road 100 60 60 

6.2 Proposed Speed Limits in Greytown Township 

 

Figure 6.4: Greytown proposed speed limit changes map 

Greytown School 

Kuranui College 

Papawai Marae 

108



28 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

6.2.1 Schools and marae in Greytown 

Table 6.3: Proposed permanent speed limits on roads near schools and marae in Greytown 

School 
Name 

Road or road section Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Kuranui 
College 

 

Arbor Place 50 30 30 

Bidwills Cutting Road from 
Main Street (SH2) to 240m 
south on Bidwills Cutting 
Road 

50 30 30 

Bidwills Cutting Road from 
240m south on Bidwills 
Cutting Road to Kemptons 
Line (transition between 
proposed 60km/h and the 
existing 100km/h) 

70 30 60 

East Street between Wakelin 
Street and 85m northeast of 
Wakelin Street 

50 30 30 

Wakelin Street 50 30 30 

Greytown 
School  

Church Street between East 
Street and Reading Street 

50 30 30 

East Street between 100m 
southwest of Church Street 
and 75m northeast of 
McMaster Street 

50 30 30 

McMaster Street between 
East Street and Reading 
Street 

50 30 30 

Reading Street between 
McMaster Street and Church 
Street 

50 30 30 

Papawai 
Marae 

Pa Road 
100 60 30 

6.2.2 Other local priority roads in Greytown 

Table 6.4: Proposed permanent speed limits on other roads with local priority in Greytown 

Road or road section Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Hawke Street 100 60 60 

Hecklers Road 100 60 60 

Kuratawhiti Street between 185m 
southeast of Hawke Street to the end of 
Kuratawhiti Street at Waiohine River.  

100 60 60 

109



29 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road or road section Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Papawai Road between 375m southeast 
of East Street and Tilsons Road 

100 80/60 60 

Tilsons Road 100 60 60 

Wilkie Street 100 60 60 

Wood Street between 125m northwest of 
Mole Street and the end of Wood Street 

100 60 60 

 

6.3 Proposed speed limits in Featherston Township 

  

Figure 6.5: Featherston proposed speed limit changes map 

St Teressa’s School 

Featherston School 

South Featherston School 

110



30 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

6.3.1 Proposed permanent speed limits on roads near schools and marae in 
Featherston 

Table 6.5: Proposed permanent speed limits on roads near schools and marae in Featherston 

School Name Road Posted speed 
limits (km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed 
Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

St Teresa’s 
School 

 

Bell Street between Johnston 
Street and 100m southeast of 
Birdwood Street 

50 30 30 

Birdwood Street between 20m 
northeast of Tait Crescent and 
Harrison Street East 

50 30 30 

Featherston 
School  

Lyon Street between Revans 
Street (SH53) and Fitzherbert 
Street (SH2) 

50 30 30 

South 
Featherston 
School 

South Featherston Road between 
Longwood East Road and 160m 
south of Longwood East Road 

50 30 30 

South Featherston Road between 
Longwood East Road and 100m 
north of Longwood East Road 

50 40 30 

Longwood East Road between 
South Featherston Road and 90m 
west of South Featherston Road 

50 30 30 

South Featherston Road between 
160m south of Longwood East 
Road and 360m south of 
Longwood East Road 

100 60 60 

6.3.2 Other local priority roads in Featherston 

Table 6.6: Proposed permanent speed limits on other roads with local priority in Featherston 

Road Existing Speed 
Limits in NSLR 
(km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Cundys Road 100 60 60 

Donald Street between 20m south of SH53 and 
Longwood West Road 

100 60 60 

Underhill Road from 740m northeast on Underhill 
Road to 800m northeast on Underhill Road 
(relocation of speed limit threshold by 60m) 

100 60 60 

Western Lake Road from Moore Street to 80m 
southwest of Moore Street (relocation of speed 
limit threshold by 80m) 

50 60 60 

Western Lake Road from 80m southwest of Moore 
Street to 200m south of Railway crossing 

100 60 60 

111



31 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

6.4 Proposed speed limits in Martinborough Township 

  

Figure 6.6: : Martinborough proposed speed limit changes map 

6.4.1 Schools and marae 

Table 6.7: Proposed speed limits on roads near school and marae in Martinborough  

School Name Road Posted speed 
limits (km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 

Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed 
Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Martinborough 
School 

Dublin Street from Greenaway 
Place to Vintners Lane 

50 30 30 

Grey Street from 230m 
northwest of Jellicoe Street to 
the north-western end of Grey 
Street 

50 30 30 

Roberts Street between Dublin 
Street and Grey Street  

50 30 30 

Hau Ariki 
Marae 

Regent Street from 100m 
northeast of New York Street to 
250m southwest of Puruatanga 
Road 

100 60 30 VSL 

 

Martinborough School 

Hau Ariki Marae 

112



32 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

6.4.2 Other local priority roads in Martinborough 

Table 6.8: Other roads with local in Martinborough  

Road Existing Speed Limits 
in NSLR (km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate speeds 
(km/h) 

Proposed Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Cambridge Road from 
Memorial Square to 
Strasbourgh Street 

50 30 30 

Campbell Drive 50 30 40 

Cork Street 50 30 30 

Huangarua Road 70 30 60 

Jellicoe Street between 
Memorial Square and Naples 
Street 

50 30 30 

Jellicoe Street between Naples 
Street and Ferry Road 

50/70 30 40 

Jellicoe Street between Ferry 
Road and 75m southwest of 
Campbell Drive 

70 40 60 

Jellicoe Street between 75m 
southwest of Campbell Drive 
and White Rock Road 

100 80 60 

Kansas Street 50 30 30 

Memorial Square 50 30 30 

Nelsons Road 70 40 40 

Ohio Street 50 30 30 

Martins Road 100 60 60 

Oxford Street between 
Memorial Square and Cork 
Street 

50 30 30 

Ponatahi Road between 
Nelsons Road and 105m 
northeast of Nelsons Road 

70 40 60 

Ponatahi Road between 105m 
northeast of Nelsons Road and 
170m northeast of Johns Way 

100 80 60 

Princess Street (between 50m 
northeast of New York Street 
West and Nelsons Road) 

70 40 60 

Puruatanga Road from 
Cambridge Road to 35m 
northeast of Regent Street 

70 30 60 

Puruatanga Road from 35m 
northeast of Regent Street to 
Todds Road 

100 80 60 

Texas Street 50 30 30 

113



33 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

 

6.5 Proposed speed limits in other areas of South Wairarapa 

6.5.1 Schools and marae 

Table 6.9: Proposed speed limits on roads near school and marae in other areas of South 
Wairarapa 

School Name Road Posted speed 
limits (km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 

Speeds (km/h) 

Proposed 
Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Pirinoa School Lake Ferry Road between 70m 
northeast of McDougalls Road and 
220m southwest of McDougalls 
Road 

70 30 60 (30 VSL) 

Kahutara 
School 

Kahutara Road between 250m 
west of Pukio West Road and 
160m northeast of Pukio West 
Road 

100 80 60 (30 VSL) 

Pukio West Road between 
Kahutara Road and 90m south of 
Kahutara Road 

100 80 60 (30 VSL) 

Tuhirangi – 
Kohunui marae 

Lake Ferry Road (exact location of 
variable speed limit to be 
determined) 

100 80 100 (30 VSL) 

6.5.2 Other local priority roads in other areas of South Wairarapa 

Table 6.10: Other roads with local in other areas of South Wairarapa 

Road Existing Speed 
Limits in NSLR 
(km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Ben Avon Grove 100 30 30 

Cape Palliser Road between Lake Ferry Road 
and 5.51km south of Whangaimoana Beach 
Road 

100 60 80 

Cape Palliser Road between 5.51km south of 
Whangaimoana Beach Road and 0.1km south 
of Te Miha Crescent 

100 60 60 

Cape Palliser Road between 0.1km south of 
Te Miha Crescent to 250m northwest of 
Tilsons Avenue 

100 80 80 

Cape Palliser Road between 250m northwest 
of Tilson Avenue and 105m south of Seaview 
Avenue 

50 30 30 

Cape Palliser Road between 105m south of 
Seaview Avenue and 100m south of Ben 
Avon Grove 

100 60 80 

114



34 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Existing Speed 
Limits in NSLR 
(km/h) 

Safe and 
Appropriate 
speeds (km/h) 

Proposed Speed 
Limit (km/h) 

Cape Palliser Road between 100m south of 
Ben Avon Grove and the end of Cape Palliser 
Road 

100 60 60 

Ponatahi Road (between 170m northeast of 
Johns Way and Carterton) 

100 80 80 

Riverside Road 100 60 60 

Foreman Jury Road 100 60 60 

Hemi Street 50 30 30 

Lake Ferry Road between 640m southwest of 
Raho Ruru Road and 230m southwest of 
McDougalls Road 

100/70 80 60 

Lake Ferry Road between 2.34km southwest 
of Cape Palliser Road and 2.48km southwest 
of Cape Palliser Road (relocation of speed 
limit threshold sign by 140m) 

100 80 30 

Lake Ferry Road between 2.48km southwest 
of Cape Palliser Road and the end of Lake 
Ferry Road 

50 40 30 

Mangatoetoe Grove 100 30 30 

Seaview Avenue 50 30 30 

Te Miha Crescent 100 30 30 

Tilson Avenue 50 30 30 

Western lake Road from 6.46km South of 
Cross Creek Road to 8.47km Northwest of 
East West Access Rd 

100 60 60 

Whangaimoana Beach Road 100 60 60 

 

6.6 Recommended appropriate speed limits for future review 

This section shows the recommended future speeds identified by MegaMaps and these speeds will 
be reviewed in the future. 

6.6.1 Carterton District 

Table 6.11: Recommended appropriate speed limits in Carterton District 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Admiral Road 100 60 

Admiral Station Road 100 60 

Ahiaruhe Road 100 60 

Ahiaruhe Settlement Road 100 60 

Andersons Line 100 60 

115



35 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Arcus Road 100 60 

Barley Flat Road 100 60 

Beach Road 100 40 

Belvedere Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 60/80 

Bismark Road 100 60 

Blakes Road 100 60 

Borlase Road 100 60 

Brooklyn Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 80 

Buchanan Road 100 60 

Cameron Road 100 60 

Carters Line (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 60 

Chester Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 60/80 

Clifton Grove Road 100 60 

Cobden Road 100 80 

Cornwall Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 60/80 

Craigie Lea Road 100 60 

Dalefield Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

70/100/100 40/60/80 

Dorset Road 100 80 

Driscoll Road 100 60 

Eringa Road 100 60 

Flat Point Road 100 60 

Foreman-Jury Road 100 60 

Forest Glen 100 60 

Francis Line 100 80 

Gallon Road 100 60 

Gertrude Street 50 40 

Gladstone Braes 100 60 

Gladstone Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 80 

Glenburn Road 100 60 

Haringa Road 100 80 

Hinau Gully Road 100 60 

Hoeke Road 100 60 

Hughes Line (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 60/80 

116



36 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Hururua Road 100 80 

Jervois Road 100 80 

Kaiwhata Road 100 60 

Longbush Road 100 80 

Mahupuku Road 100 60 

Mangatarere Valley Road from Chester Road 
to Mclennans Road  

100 80 

Mangatarere Valley Road Mclennans Road to 
the end of Mangatarere Valley Road 

100 60 

Mannings Road 100 60 

Marshall Road 100 60 

Matarawa Road  100 60 

McLennans Road 100 60 

Millars Road 100 80 

Moffats Road 100 80 

Moreton Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 840 

Mt Holdsworth Road 100 60 

Neiches Lane 100 60 

Ngatawhai Road 100 60 

Nunu Drive 100 40 

Para Road 100 80 

Perrys Road 100 60 

Puk Lane 100 40 

Puketiro Road 100 60 

Railway Road 100 80 

Rayners Road 100 80 

Reids Road 100 60 

Riddells Road 100 60 

Riversdale Road 100 60 

Rocky Hill Road 100 60 

Ruakiwi Road 100 60 

Short Road 100 60 

Somerset Road 100 80 

Taumata Island Road 100 60 

Te Awa Awa Road 100 60 

Te Kopi Road 100 60 

Te Wharau Road from Te Whiti Road to 
Driscoll Road 

100 80 

Te Wharau Road from Driscoll Road to Flat 
Point Road 

100 60 

117



37 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Te Whiti Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 60/80 

Tea Creek Road 100 60 

Thomas Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100 80 

Tiffin Road 100 60 

Udys Road 100 60 

Waihakeke Road from SH2 to Taumata Island 
Road 

100 80 

Waihakeke Road from Taumata Island Road 
to the southern end of Waihakeke Road 

100 60 

Waimana Road 100 60 

Waingawa Road 100 60 

Waiohine Gorge Road 100 80 

Watersons Line 100 80 

Westmere Road 100 60 

Angus Place 50 40 

Armstrong Avenue 50 40 

Augustus Street 50 40 

Austin Reid Avenue 50 40 

Baillie Crescent 50 40 

Ballinger Place 50 40 

Barrett Place 50 40 

Belvedere Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50/70/100 40/40/80 

Booth Street 50 40 

Broadway 50 40 

Brooklyn Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50/70 40 

Brown Avenue 50 40 

Callister Place 50 40 

Carrington Drive 50 40 

Charles Street 50 40 

Chisholm Place 50 40 

Clifton Avenue 50 40 

Connollys Line 50 40 

Costley Street 50 40 

Costley Street West 50 40 

Daffodil Grove 50 40 

Dakins Road 100 60 

Danske Close 50 40 

118



38 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Davy Street 50 40 

De Lacy Lane 50 40 

Diamond Street 50 40 

Dixon Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Dudson Place 50 40 

East Taratahi Road (excluding section(s) 
already reviewed) 

100 60/80 

Endelave Way 50 40 

Fantail Avenue 50 40 

Faraday Street 50 40 

Feist Street 50 40 

Fisher Place 50 40 

Frederick Street 50 40 

Garrison Street 50 40 

Hartley Avenue 50 40 

Hereford Drive 50 40 

Hilton Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

100/50 40 

Hornsby Street 50 40 

Hughan Place 50 40 

Kea Court 50 40 

Kent Street 50 40 

Kenwyn Drive 50 40 

Kupe Drive 50 40 

Lincoln Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Macs Lane 50 40 

Madison Street 50 40 

Masson Street 50 40 

McKenzie Terrace 50 40 

Memorial Square 50 40 

Mill Grove 50 40 

Molesworth Street 50 40 

Moore Crescent 50 40 

Park Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Pembroke Street 50 40 

Philip Street 50 40 

Plimsoll Street 50 40 

Porritt Place 50 40 

119



39 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Portland Road 100 40 

Rexwood Street 50 40 

Rhodes Street 50 40 

Richmond Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50/70/100 40/40/60 

Seddon Street 50 40 

Stubbs Lane 50 40 

Tait Place 50 40 

Takahe Drive 50 40 

Tararua Crescent 50 40 

Tasman Crescent 50 40 

Taverner Street 50 40 

Taylor Street 50 40 

Valkyrie Close 50 40 

Victoria Street 50 40 

Wakelin Street 50 40 

Warrington Court 50 40 

Wheatstone Street 50 40 

William Wong Place 50 40 

Woodlands Road 100 60 

Wyndham Street 50 40 

6.6.2 South Wairarapa District 

6.6.2.1 Greytown township 

Table 6.12: Recommended appropriate speed limits in Greytown Township 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Balfour Street 50 40 

Bidwills Cutting Road from Kemptons Line to 
SH53 

100 80 

Church Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Clara Anne Grove 50 40 

Cotter Street 50 40 

East Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Garrity Lane 50 40 

Governors Green Drive 50 40 

Hastwell Street 50 40 

120



40 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Hewson Lane 50 40 

Horton Street 50 40 

Hospital Road 50 40 

Humphries Street 50 40 

Hupenui Road 100 40 

James Kidd Place 50 40 

Jellicoe Street 50 40 

Kempton Street 50 40 

Kemptons Line between Bidwills Cutting Road 
and Cross Line 

100 80 

Kemptons Line between Cross Line and 
Fabians Road 

100 60 

Kuratawhiti Street 50 40 

Loasby Place 50 40 

Mahupuku Street 50 40 

Market Road 50 40 

Massey Street 50 40 

Matai Grove 50 40 

McMaster Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Mole Street 50 40 

North Street 50 40 

Oak View Place 50 40 

Orchard Road 50 40 

Papawai Road between Main Street (SH2) and 
375m southeast of East Street 

50 40 

Pierce Street 50 40 

Prendiville Lane 50 40 

Reading Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

South Street 50 40 

Udy Street 50 40 

West Street 50 40 

Westwood Avenue 50 40 

Wood Street between Main Street (SH2) and 
125m northwest of Mole Street 

50 40 

Yule Grove 50 40 

121



41 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

6.6.2.2 Featherston township 

Table 6.13: Recommended appropriate speed limits in Featherston Township 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Ataahua Place 50 40 

Bell Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Bethune Street 50 40 

Birdwood Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Boar Bush Gully Road 50 40 

Boundary Road from SH53 to 100m northeast 
of SH53 intersection 

100 60 

Boundary Road from 100m northeast of SH53 
intersection to Fitzherbert Street (SH2) 
intersection 

70 60 

Boundary Road from Fitzherbert Street (SH2) 
intersection to 65m northeast of Fitzherbert 
Street (SH2) 

70 40 

Boundary Road from 65m northeast of 
Fitzherbert Street (SH2) intersection to the 
north-eastern end 

50 40 

Brandon Street 50 40 

Card Crescent 50 40 

Churchill Crescent 50 40 

Clifford Square 50 40 

Colonel Place 50 40 

Crawford Street 50 40 

Daniell Street 50 40 

Donald Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Farrier Grove 50 40 

Fox Street 50 40 

Hardie Grove 50 40 

Harrison Street East 50 40 

Harrison Street West 50 40 

Hart Street 50 40 

Hayward Street 50 40 

Hickson Street 50 40 

Johnston Street 50 40 

Kenward Crescent 50 40 

Kereru Grove 50 40 

Kowhai Grove 50 40 

122



42 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Ludlam Street 50 40 

Lyon Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

McKerrow Place 50 40 

Moore Street 50 40 

Renall Street 50 40 

Revans Street 50 40 

Skipage Grove 50 40 

Tait Crescent 50 40 

Titoki Grove 50 40 

Totara Grove 50 40 

Underhill Road 100/50 40 

Waite Street 50 40 

Wakefield Street 50 40 

Wallace Street 50 40 

Watt Street 50 40 

William Benton Street 50 40 

Woodward Street East 50 40 

Woodward Street West 50 40 

6.6.2.3 Martinborough township 

Table 6.14: Recommended appropriate speed limits in Martinborough 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Barlow Road 50 40 

Birdie Way 50 40 

Broadway Street 50 40 

Burgundy Drive 50 40 

Cambridge Road (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Cologne Street 50 40 

Daniel Street 50 40 

Dublin Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Eagle Place 50 40 

Esther Street 50 40 

Fairway Drive 50 40 

Ferry Road from Jellicoe Street to 70m 
northwest of Jellicoe Street 

70 40 

123



43 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Ferry Road from 70m northwest of Jellicoe 
Street to the north-western end of Ferry Road 

50 40 

French Street 50 40 

Greenaway Place 50 40 

Grey Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Hawkins Drive 50 40 

Hinekura Road 100 60 

Malcolm Street 50 40 

Naples Street 50 40 

Nelsons Road 70 40 

New York Street from Princess Street to 25m 
southeast of Regent Street 

50 40 

New York Street from 25m southeast of 
Regent Street to Todds Road 

100 40 

New York Street West 50 40 

Oxford Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Panama Street 50 40 

Princess Street from Vintners Lane to 50m 
northeast of New York Street West 

50 40 

Princess Street from 50m northeast of New 
York Street West to Huangarua Road 

70 40 

Puruatanga Road from Cambridge Road to 
35m northeast of Regent Street 

70 40 

Puruatanga Road from 35m northeast of 
Regent Street to Todds Road 

100 40 

Radium Street 50 40 

Regent Street from Puruatanga Road to 40m 
northeast of New York Street (excluding 
section(s) already reviewed) 

100 40 

Regent Street from 40m northeast of New 
York Street to 45m southwest of Burgundy 
Drive (excluding section(s) already reviewed) 

50 40 

Roberts Street (excluding section(s) already 
reviewed) 

50 40 

Sackville Street 50 40 

Strasbourge Street 50 40 

Suez Street 50 40 

Syrah Lane 50 40 

Todds Road from Dublin Street to 210m 
southwest of New York Street 

50 40 

Todds Road from 210m southwest of New 
York Street to Puruatanga Road 

100 40 

124



44 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits (km/h) Recommended appropriate 
speed limits (km/h) 

Tuscan Lane 50 40 

Venice Street 50 40 

Vintners Lane 50 40 

Weld Street 50 40 

Wilson Way 50 40 

6.6.2.4 Other areas of South Wairarapa 

Table 6.15: Other recommended appropriate speed limits for future review in other areas of 
South Wairarapa District 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Recommended 
appropriate Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Ahikouka Road 100 60 

Algies Road 100 60 

Ashbys Road 100 60 

Backwater Road 100 60 

Bartons Road 100 60 

Battersea Road 100 80 

Beach Road 100 60 

Bicknells Road 100 60 

Bidwills Cutting Road 100 80 

Bidwills Road 100 60 

Birch Hill Road 100 60 

Blue Rock Road 100 60 

Bucks Road 100 60 

Bush Gully Road 100 60 

Camp Road 100 60 

Cannock Road 100 60 

Cape River Road 100 60 

Chishams Road 100 60 

Clarkes Road 100 60 

Clay Creek Road 100 60 

Cross Creek Road 100 60 

Cross Line 100 80 

Donalds Road 100 60 

Dry River Road 100 60 

Duddings Line 100 60 

East West Access Road 100 80 

Fabians Road 100 80 

125



45 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Recommended 
appropriate Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Fenwicks Line 100 60 

Fraters Road 100 60 

Georges Road 100 60 

Glendhu Road 100 60 

Glendryneoch Road 100 60 

Glenmorven Road 100 60 

Greens Road 100 60 

Harris Road North 100 60 

Haurangi Road 100 60 

Hikawera Road 100 60 

Hikunui Road 100 60 

Hinekura Road from Todds Road to Te 
Muna Road 

100 60 

Hinekura Road from Te Muna Road to 
Cannock Road 

100 80 

Hinekura Road from Cannock Road to 
Moeraki Road 

100 60 

Hodders Road 100 60 

Humes Road 100 60 

Humphries Street 100 80 

Humphries Street 100 60 

Judds Road 100 60 

Kahutara Road from Lake Ferry Road to 
250m west of Pukio West Road 

100 80 

Kahutara Road from 160m northeast of 
Pukio West Road to SH53 intersection 

100 80 

Kaiwaka Road 100 60 

Kemptons Line from 70m southeast of 
Bidwillls Cutting Road to Cross Line 

100 80 

Kemptons Line from Cross Line to 
Fabians Road 

100 60 

Kumenga Road 100 60 

Kuratawhiti Street from Mole Street to 
185m southeast of Hawke Street 

100 60 

Lagoon Hill Road 100 60 

Lake Domain Road 100 60 

Lake Ferry Road from White Rock Road 
to access of 239 Lake Ferry Road 

100 60 

Lake Ferry Road from access of 239 Lake 
Ferry Road to Kahutara Road 

100 80 

126



46 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Recommended 
appropriate Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Lake Ferry Road from Kahutara Road to 
Pouawha Road 

100 60 

Lake Ferry Road from Pouawha Road to 
640m southwest of Raho Ruru Road 

100 60 

Lake Ferry Road from 230m southwest of 
McDougalls Road to 2.34km southwest 
of Cape Palliser Road 

100 60 

Longwood East Road 100 60 

Mahaki Road 100 60 

Maramaramau Road 100 60 

McIvors Road 100 60 

Moeraki Road 100 60 

Moiki Road 100 60 

Moroa Road 100 60 

Murphys Line 100 60 

Ngakonui Road 100 60 

No 1 Line 100 80 

Ocean Beach Road 100 60 

Oystershell Road 100 60 

Pahaoa Road 100 60 

Pahautea Road from Buicks Road to 
Hikunui Road 

100 60 

Pahautea Road from Hikunui Road to 
Kahutara Road 

100 80 

Papatahi Road 100 60 

Parera Road 100 60 

Paruwai Road 100 60 

Pharazyns Road 100 60 

Phillips Line 100 60 

Pouawha Road 100 60 

Pukio East Road 100 60 

Pukio West Road (excluding section(s) 
already reviewed) 

100 60 

Raho Ruru Road 100 60 

Range Road 100 60 

Ruakokoputuna Road 100 60 

Settlement Road 100 60 

Shooting Butts Road 100 60 

South Featherston Road from SH2 
intersection to SH53 intersection 

100 60 

127



47 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Recommended 
appropriate Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

South Featherston Road from SH53 
intersection to Longwood East Road 

50 40 

South Featherston Road from Longwood 
East Road to 170m southwest of 
Longwood East Road 

50 40 

South Featherston Road from 170m 
southwest of Longwood East Road to 
Ashbys Road 

100 60 

South Soldiers Settlement Road 100 60 

Southdown Drive 100 60 

Summer Hill Road 100 60 

Sutherland Drive 100 60 

Te Awaiti Road 100 60 

Te Hopai Road 100 60 

Te Maire Road 100 80 

Te Muna Road 100 60 

Te Rata Road 100 60 

Tora Farm Settlement Road 100 60 

Tora Road 100 60 

Underhill Road 100 60 

Viles Road 100 60 

Wainuioru Road 100 60 

Waiohine Valley Road 100 60 

Wairio Road 100 60 

Wards Line 100 80 

Warrens Road 100 60 

Western lake Road from 200m south of 
Railway Crossing to 6.46km South of 
Cross Creek Road 

100 60 

Western Lake Road from 8.47 km 
northwest of East west Access Rd to the 
end of Western Lake Road at Ocean 
Beach 

100 60 

Whakarua Road 100 60 

Whakatomotomo Road 100 60 

Wharekauhau Road 100 60 

Whareroto Road 100 60 

White Rock Road from Jellicoe Street to 
Tora Road 

100 80 

White Rock Road from Tora Road to the 
end of White Road 

100 60 

Woodside Road 100 80/60 

128



48 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

Road Posted speed limits 
(km/h) 

Recommended 
appropriate Speed Limit 
(km/h) 

Yeronga Road 100 60 

  

129



49 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

7 What’s next 

7.1 Next Steps 

Steps to implement the Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council Interim 
Speed Management Plan (SMP) are detailed below, following the Speed Management Guide: Road 
to Zero edition 2022. It is currently at Step 2, and the public will be engaged on the principles and 
priorities, and any speed concerns. 

 

Step 1

Develop territorial authority SMP.

Step 2 (WE ARE HERE)

Seek Council approval to consult with stakeholders and community on the draft 
territorial authority SMP.

Step 3

Assess consultation feedback and update local plans in response and seek approval 
from Council to finalise SMP.

Step 4

Submit the final SMP to the Director of Land Transport for certification.

Step 5

Waka Kotahi publishes the territorial authority SMP, certificate and associated material.

Step 6

Council implements changes to speed limits.

Step 7

Submit certified speed limit changes to Waka Kotahi National Speed Limit Register.

130



50 

 
Tonkin & Taylor Ltd  June 2023 
Interim Speed Management Plan  Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

 

7.2 Public engagement and consultation 

Changing a speed limit is a legal process that includes a formal consultation step. The public will be 
introduced to the plan to manage speeds on the local roads, including proposed speed limit changes, 
which will be developed and refined using the technical information and feedback gathered from the 
engagement.  During this consultation stage, the public and stakeholders will provide their local 
knowledge and any additional information that should be taken into account and might have an 
impact on the final decision. 

Once all consultation feedback has been considered and a decision will be made on whether or not 
to accept the proposed speed limit changes. Everyone who provided a submission will be updated 
on the outcome of the decision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

131



51 

 

   

Tonkin & Taylor Ltd 
Interim Speed Management Plan 
Carterton District Council and South Wairarapa District Council 

June 2023 
Job No: 1020397.0000 v3.2 

 

8 Applicability 

We have been engaged by our client South Wairarapa District Council to complete this report. The 
report has been prepared for use by both South Wairarapa District Council and Carterton District 
Council with respect to the particular brief given to us and it may not be relied upon in other 
contexts or for any other purpose, or by any person other than South Wairarapa District Council and 
Carterton District Council, without our prior written agreement. 

We understand and agree that this report will be used by Carterton District Council and South 
Wairarapa District Council in undertaking its regulatory functions in connection with the speed limit 
changes in Carterton District and South Wairarapa District. 

 

Tonkin & Taylor Ltd 
Environmental and Engineering Consultants 

Report prepared by: Report prepared by: 

 

 

.......................................................... ...........................….......…............... 

Shu Zhang Sam Wilkie 
Transport Planner Senior Principal Transport Planner 

 

Report reviewed by: Authorised for Tonkin & Taylor Ltd by: 

 

 

.......................................................... ...........................….......…............... 

Alan Gregory Chris Perks 
Principal Transport Planner Sector Director – Transport 

 
T:\Hamilton\Projects\1020397\WorkingMaterial\Draft CDC and SWDC Interim Speed Management Plan_v3.2_clean_version.docx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



 

 

  

133



 

 

Appendix A List of Schools in Carterton and South 
Wairarapa Districts 

No. School Years Urban/Rural Area Prioritisation 
Rating 

1 St Mary’s School 0-8 Urban 
Carterton, 
Carterton 
District 

High 

2 
South End 
School 

0-8 Urban 
Carterton, 
Carterton 
District 

High 

3 Kuranui College 9-15 Urban 
Greytown, 
South 
Wairarapa 

High 

4 Pirinoa School 0-8 Rural 
Pirinoa, South 
Wairarapa 

High 

5 
Gladstone 
School 

0-8 Rural 
Gladstone, 
Carterton 
District 

Medium-
High 

6 
South 
Featherston 
School 

0-8 Rural 
Featherston, 
South 
Wairarapa 

Medium-
High 

7 Kahutara School 0-8 Rural 
Kahutara, 
South 
Wairarapa 

Medium-
High 

8 
Featherston 
School 

0-8 Urban 
Featherston, 
South 
Wairarapa 

Medium 

9 
Martinborough 
School 

0-8 Urban 
Martinborough, 
South 
Wairarapa 

Medium 

10 Dalefield School 0-8 Rural 
Carterton, 
Carterton 
District 

Low-Medium 

11 Carterton School 0-8 Urban 
Carterton, 
Carterton 
District 

Low-Medium 

12 
Ponatahi 
Christian School 

7-13 Urban 
Carterton, 
Carterton 
District 

Low-Medium 

13 Greytown School 0-8 Urban 
Greytown, 
South 
Wairarapa 

Low-Medium 

14 
St Teresa’s 
School 

0-8 Urban 
Featherston, 
South 
Wairarapa 

Low-Medium 

 

134



 

 

Appendix B Review of Carterton and South 
Wairarapa District Crash History 

A review of Crash Analysis System (CAS) for Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts during the past 
10 years (2012-2021) shows on average eight to nine fatal and serious injury crashes occurred on 
local roads every year. 

It is noted that crashes reported to CAS were attended by the Police and typically had a Traffic Crash 
Report (TCR) completed. These statistics may not cover all crashes occurred in the area, given higher 
underreporting rate on rural roads and in remote locations. 

The analysis of the data for Fatal and Serious (F+S) Crashes which occurred in both districts during 
2012-2022 is shown in Figure Appendix B.1 below. There were 20 fatal and 114 serious crashes that 
resulted in 21 deaths, 125 serious injuries, and 462 minor injuries. 

 

Figure Appendix B.1: Fatal and serious injury crashes by year in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 2012-
2021

 

Figure Appendix B.2: Fatal and serious injury crashes by months in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 
2012-2021 

12
13

8

14

11

21

15

10

16
14

9
8

4

9
7

14

8

5

9
11

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20
22

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

F+
S 

C
ra

sh
es

Year

Include State Highways On Local Roads

17

7 7

10
11

3
5

3
5

8
6

10

5
6

4
2

7
6

5
3

2
0

7 7

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18

N
o

. o
f 

F+
S 

C
ra

sh
es

Month

On Local Road On State Highway

135



 

 

 

Figure Appendix B.3: Fatal and serious injury crashes in South Wairarapa District (Left) and Carterton District 
(Right) 2012-2021 

 

Figure Appendix B.4: Fatal and serious injury crashes in South Wairarapa District (Left) and Carterton District 
(Right) (excluding on State Highways) 2012-2021 

The Top four contributing factors to fatal and serious injury crashes are shown in Appendix B Table 
1. 

 

136



 

 

Appendix B Table 1: Top four contributing factors to fatal and serious injury crashes in CDC and 
SWDC 

Factors 
Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts New Zealand 

Including SHs Local Roads only Including SHs Local Roads only 

Alcohol 28% 26% 33% 37% 

Poor observation 27% 25% 30% 32% 

Poor handling 26% 37% 27% 26% 

Travel Speed 25% 29% 22% 23% 

From Appendix B Table 1, the following findings are summarised: 

• Travel speed in the two districts is higher than the national data. 

• Travel speed is the second highest contributing factor to fatal and serious injury crashes on 
local roads in the two districts. 

For Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts, the percentage of all crashes on local roads involving 
inappropriate speed20 has varied from 5% to 19% in the ten-year period of 2012-2021, as shown in 
Figure Appendix B.5. The total number of crashes recorded in the two districts were 1,345, of which 
657 crashes occurred on roads administered by CDC and SWDC. 

 

Figure Appendix B.5: Percentage of all crashes involving inappropriate speed in Carterton and South Wairarapa 
Districts, 2012-2021  

 
20 CAS crash contributing cause factors codes used: 110-113; 115-119 and 518 

13%

16%

6%
7% 7%

9%
8%

3%

18%

13%13%

6%
7%

10%

8%

10%

5%

10%
11%

19%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

P
er

ce
n

t

Year

On State Highway On Local Roads only

137



 

 

 

Figure Appendix B.6: Percentage of fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate speed in Carterton 
and South Wairarapa Districts, 2012-2021 

Figure Appendix B.6 shows that the percentage of fatal and serious injury crashes involving 
inappropriate speed occurring on local roads is much higher than those occurred on State Highways 
in eight of the ten years, with the highest of 56% on local roads in 2013. 

Under the Road to Zero strategy, a significant change can be made in the number of death and 
serious injuries on our roads by implementing a good speed management programme. If drivers are 
driving at safe and appropriate speeds, the social costs will reduce considerably through possible 
lives saved and the reduction in the number of people who suffer from road trauma. Appendix B 
Table 2 shows other factors for the crashes involving appropriate speed between 2012 and 2021, in 
Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts. 

Appendix B Table 2: Other factors for the crashes involving inappropriate speed in Carterton 
and South Wairarapa Districts 

Crashes involving inappropriate speed 
Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts 

On State Highways Local Roads Only 

Occurred on open roads 34% 49% 

Occurred during night 13% 25% 

Occurred at intersections 9% 15% 

A clear relationship between crashes and inappropriate speed has been shown, in particular on our 
local roads where speed limits are currently higher than the SAAS. 

B1 Crashes in Carterton, Greytown, Martinborough and Featherston 

Similarly, the CAS database has been used to understand the reported crash history in the four 
urban areas in both districts (Carterton, Greytown, Martinborough and Featherston) over the 10-
year period (2012-2021). 

8%

13%

17%

0% 0%

11%

25%

0%

11%
8%

11%

56%

10%
7%

27%

0%

14% 13%

25%

14%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

P
er

ce
n

t

Year

On State Highway On Local Roads only

138



 

 

The analysis of the data for the reported fatal and serious injury crashes in the four areas during the 
10-year period reveals: 

• There have been 502 crashes in total, of which three are fatal crashes, 30 serious injury 
crashes, 122 minor injury crashes, and 347 non-injury crashes. 

• The crashes resulted in 3 deaths, 33 serious injuries and 158 minor injuries. 

The detailed number of fatal and serious injury crashes by year between 2012 and 2021 are 
illustrated in Figure Appendix B.7. 

 

Figure Appendix B.7: Fatal and serious injury crashes by year in Carterton, Greytown, Martinborough and 
Featherston, 2012-2021 

Figure Appendix B.7 shows that in recent six years (2016-2021), more fatal and serious injury crashes 
occurred on local roads than on state highways. 

Figure Appendix B.8 shows the distribution of fatal and serious injury crashes in the four major urban 
areas. 17 crashes occurred on urban roads and 16 crashes occurred on rural roads in the areas.  

3

1

3

1

0

2 2

1

2

0

2

0

1

0

3

4 4

0

2 2

0

1

2

3

4

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Fa
ta

l a
n

d
 S

er
io

u
s 

in
ju

ry
 C

ra
sh

es

Year

On State Highway On Local Roads only

139



 

 

 

Figure Appendix B.8: Heatmap showing fatal and serious injury crashes within four urban areas in Carterton 
and South Wairarapa Districts, 2012-2021  

Travel speed is among the top three contributing factors21 to fatal and serious injury crashes in these 
areas and these are: 

• Alcohol: 10 crashes, 30% 

• Poor observation: 10 crashes 30% 

• Travel speed: eight crashes, 24% 

The Figure Appendix B.9 shows all crashes involving inappropriate speed in the four areas. Detailed 
reviews of the crashes are in Appendix B1.1 to B1.4. 

 
21 Note: one crash often has multiple contributing factors. 

140



 

 

 

Figure Appendix B.9: Crashes involving inappropriate speed in four urban areas in Carterton and South 
Wairarapa Districts 

B1.1 Carterton Township Crash Review 

Carterton township is in Carterton District, approximately 15km southwest of Masterton in 
Masterton District or 9km northeast of Greytown in South Wairarapa District.  

In Carterton township and the immediate area, 15 crashes have been recorded over the 10-year 
period involved travel speed as a contributing factor. Locations of these crashes are provided in 
Figure 10 and details of fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate speed are provided in 
Appendix B Table 3. 

 

 

Figure 10: Collision diagram of crashes involving inappropriate speed in Carterton township and its vicinity, 
2012-2021  

8
5

13 11

4

1

4 8
2

0

2
2

1

0

0
1

0

4

8

12

16

20

24

Carterton Greytown Featherston Martinborough

Non-injury Minor injury Serious injury Fatal

141



 

 

Appendix B Table 3: Summary of fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate speed 
for Carterton township, 2012-2021 

Location Code Severity Date and Time Speed Limit Description 

Moreton 
Road 

201617176 

Serious 04/11/2016 

Friday 

1:27 

50km/h 

Driver driving west along 
Moreton Road. Vehicle has 
veered to the left hitting a 
tree on the side of the road 

Victoria 
Street 

2021175799 

Serious 

08/01/2021 

Friday 

15:02 

Driver intended to turn right 
onto Garrison Street but 
veered left and then turned 
right. The driver collided with 
a car travelling west on 
Victoria Street. 

In addition to the three fatal and serious injury crashes listed in Appendix B Table 3, there were 12 
minor-injury and non-injury crashes involving inappropriate speed occurred within the ten-year 
period. One of the 12 crashes involved cyclist and none of the crashes involved pedestrians. 

B1.2 Greytown Township Crash Review 

Greytown is located in South Wairarapa District, approximately 9km southwest of Greytown in 
Carterton District.  

Over the ten-year period 2012-2021, there were 94 reported crashes in the Greytown township area 
with the majority (68 crashes) happened along State Highway 2. These crashes resulted in one 
fatality, ten serious injuries and 47 minor injuries.  

In Greytown township and the immediate area, six crashes have been recorded over the 10-year 
period involving travel speed as a contributing factor. None of these crashes involving inappropriate 
speed in Greytown were fatal or serious injury. None of the six crashes involved pedestrians or 
cyclists. Locations of these crashes are provided in Figure 11.  

 

Figure 11: Collision diagram for crashes involving inappropriate speed in Greytown township and its vicinity, 
2012-2021 

142



 

 

B1.3 Featherston Township Crash Review 

Featherston township is in South Wairarapa District, approximately 13km southwest of Greytown or 
18km northwest of Martinborough in South Wairarapa District.  

Over the ten-year period 2012-2021, there were 123 reported crashes in the Featherston township 
area with more crashes (71 crashes) occurred along State Highway 2 and State Highway 53. These 
crashes resulted in one fatality, three serious injuries and 30 minor injuries.  

In Featherston township and the immediate area, 19 crashes have been recorded over the 10-year 
period involving travel speed as a contributing factor. None of these crashes involving inappropriate 
speed in Featherston were fatal but two crashes were serious injuries. None of the 19 crashes 
involved pedestrians but one of the crashes involved a cyclist. Locations of these crashes are 
provided in Figure 12. Two serious crashes involving inappropriate speed occurred on State Highway 
2 and no fatal or serious crashes involving inappropriate speed occurred on local roads in 
Featherston township. 

 

Figure 12: Collision diagram for crashes involving inappropriate speed in Featherston township and its vicinity, 
2012-2021 

B1.4 Martinborough Township Crash Review 

Martinborough township is in South Wairarapa District, approximately 20km south of Greytown or 
18km southeast of Featherston in South Wairarapa District.  

Over the ten-year period 2012-2021, there were 107 reported crashes in the Martinborough 
township area with more crashes (73 crashes) occurred on local roads. These crashes resulted in one 
fatality, 12 serious injuries and 48 minor injuries.  

143



 

 

In Martinborough township and the immediate area, 22 crashes have been recorded over the 10-
year period involving travel speed as a contributing factor. One of these crashes involving 
inappropriate speed were fatal and two crashes were serious injuries. None of the 22 crashes 
involved pedestrians or cyclists. Locations of these crashes are provided in Figure 13 and details of 
fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate speed are provided in Appendix B Table 4. 

 

Figure 13: Collision diagram for crashes involving inappropriate speed in Martinborough township and its 
vicinity, 2012-2021 

Appendix B Table 4: Summary of fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate speed 
for Martinborough township, 2012-2021 

Location Code Severity Date and Time Speed Limit Description 

Ponatahi 
Road 

201414055 

Serious 14/07/2014 

Monday 

17:15 

100km/h 

Vehicle lost control after a 
possible tyre blowout. Vehicle 
crossed the centreline, hit a 
bank and rolled once. 

Shooting 
Butts 
Road 

201600219 

Fatal 29/09/2016 

Thursday 

7:00 

A vehicle failed to remain on 
the gravel surface and 
collided with deep culvert 
with no seat belt fastened. 

Fraters 
Road 

2021176303 

Serious 10/01/2021 

Sunday 

7:45 

The driver entered a corner 
too fast and veered off onto 
the grass verge. 

  

144



 

 

B1.6 Crashes on other roads 

In Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts, MegaMaps shows approximately 32% of the roads 
(urban and rural) are unsealed. 44% of the rural roads in the two districts are unsealed. 

Gravel, or other unsecured material can move if braking suddenly and a lot of crashes happen from 
vehicles losing traction and sliding off the roads at speed22. 

CAS database has been used to understand the reported crash history in the rural area of Carterton 
and South Wairarapa Districts over the 10-year period (2012-2021). 

The analysis of the data for the reported fatal and serious injury crashes in the rural areas during the 
10-year period reveals: 

• There have been 907 crashes in total, of which 19 fatal crashes, 95 serious injury crashes, 240 
minor injury crashes, and 553 non-injury crashes. 

• The crashes resulted in 20 deaths, 103 serious injuries and 336 minor injuries. 

The detailed number of fatal and serious injury crashes by year between 2012 and 2021 are 
illustrated in Figure Appendix B.14. 

 

Figure Appendix B.14: Fatal and serious injury crashes by year on roads with maximum speeds of 100km/h 
2012-2021  

Figure Appendix B.14 shows that in the 10-year period, there were more fatal and serious injury 
crashes occurred on local roads than on state highway in Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts. 
Figure 15 shows the distribution of fatal and serious injury crashes on open roads of the two 
districts. 

 
22 Paraphrased from Department of Conservation: https://www.doc.govt.nz/parks-and-recreation/things-to-

do/scenic-driving/tips-for-driving-on-unsealed-roads/ 

2

5

2

5
4

6
7

4
5

2

7
8

4

9

5

12

6
5

6

10

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021Fa
ta

l a
n

d
 s

er
io

u
s 

in
ju

ry
 c

ra
sh

es

Year

On State Highway On Local Roads only

145

https://www.doc.govt.nz/parks-and-recreation/things-to-do/scenic-driving/tips-for-driving-on-unsealed-roads/
https://www.doc.govt.nz/parks-and-recreation/things-to-do/scenic-driving/tips-for-driving-on-unsealed-roads/


 

 

 

Figure 15: Heatmap showing fatal and serious injury crashes on open roads administered by CDC and SWDC, 
2012-2021 

 

Travel speed is among the top three contributing factors23 to fatal and serious injury crashes in these 
areas and these are: 

• Poor handling: 33 fatal and serious injury crashes, 29% 

• Travel speed: 31 fatal and serious injury crashes, 27% 

• Alcohol: 31 fatal and serious injury crashes, 27% 

• Poor observation: 31 fatal and serious injury crashes, 27% 

B1.7 Crashes related to schools 

Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts have a total of 14 schools as listed in Appendix A, of which 
five are rural schools. As on 1 July 2021, the 14 schools have enrolled 2,678 students24. National 
statistics indicate that an average of 13% of children would walk and or cycle to school unattended. 
If Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts were representative of the national average, of these 
students 348 would walk and or cycle to school unattended. 

 
23 Note: one crash often has multiple contributing factors. 
24 Source: Education Counts: South Wairarapa District: https://www.educationcounts.govt.nz/know-your-region/territorial-
authority/student-population/year?district=50&region=9 
Carterton District: https://www.educationcounts.govt.nz/know-your-region/territorial-authority/student-
population/year?district=49&region= 

146



 

 

A total of four crashes occurred within the immediate 100m buffer area of schools in the two 
districts over the 10-year period. One of them was a serious injury crash and the other three were 
minor injury crashes. Although none of the crashes recorded involved inappropriate speed and none 
of these occurred during school time, there were high number of crashes that happened in the 
vicinity of schools where the posted speed limit is above 30km/h for urban schools and 60km/h for 
rural schools. 

Two crashes occurred on local roads within 100m buffer area of schools in the two districts, as 
summarised in Appendix B Table 5. 

Appendix B Table 5: Crashes occurred on local roads within 100m buffer area of schools in 
Carterton and South Wairarapa 

Crash ID 
Crash 
road 

Date Time Injuries 
Urban or 
open 
road 

Surf
ace 

Natural 
Light 

Weather Description 

2018122
72 

Lyon 
Stree
t 

Sat, 
20/03
/2018 

0:30 1 minor Urban Dry Dark Fine Driver spun onto a 
raised island and hit 
a give-way sign. 

2019784
14 

Te 
Whiti 
Road 

Mon, 
18/11
/2019 

17:40 1 
serious 

Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine A wheel on the back 
of a tractor fell off 
and impacted with a 
cyclist. 

147



 

 

Appendix C Existing speed limits 

The National Speed Limit Register shows that the existing speed limits are 100km/h outside the main 
four urban areas: Carterton, Greytown, Featherston and Martinborough, as shown in Appendix C.1. 

 

Appendix C.1: Existing speed limits in Carterton District and South Wairarapa District 

148



 

 

The posted speed limit in the urban area of the township is shown in  Appendix C.2. 

 

 Appendix C.2: Posted speed limit in NSLR for Carterton township 

The posted speed limit in the urban area of the township is shown in Appendix C.3. 

 

Appendix C.3: Posted speed limit in NSLR for Greytown township  

149



 

 

The posted speed limit in the urban area of the township is shown in Appendix C.4. 

 

Appendix C.4: Posted speed limit in NSLR for Featherston township  

The posted speed limit in the urban area of the township is shown in Appendix C.5. 

 

Appendix C.5: Posted speed limit in NSLR for Martinborough township 

150



 

 

Appendix D Safe and appropriate speed limits 
criteria 

The setting of safe and appropriate speed limits involves integrating and aligning the One Network 
Framework street categories with safe and appropriate speed limit ranges and using the following 
criteria as advised in the Speed Management Guide: Road to Zero Edition 2022, as shown in  Figure 
Appendix D.1 to Figure Appendix D.4. 

 

 

151



 

   

 

 

Figure Appendix D.1: Criteria for safe and appropriate speed limits – civic spaces, local streets, activity streets, main streets and city hubs  

152



 

   

 

 

Figure Appendix D.2: Criteria for safe and appropriate speed limits – urban connectors and transit corridors  

153



 

   

 

 

Figure Appendix D.3: Criteria for safe and appropriate speed limits – stopping place, peri-urban roads and rural roads  

154



 

   

 

 

Figure Appendix D.4: Criteria for safe and appropriate speed limits – rural connector and interregional connectors  

155



 

   

 

Appendix E Reported fatal and serious injury crashes involving inappropriate 
speeds on local roads in Carterton and South Wairarapa districts 

Crash ID 
Crash 
road 

Side road 
Metres from 
side 
Road/feature 

Day Date Time FAT SEV MIN 
Schoo
l Zone 

Urban 
or open 
road 

Surface 
Natural 
light 

Weather Description 

201211368 HUGHES 
LINE 

CORNWALL 
ROAD 

260 Fri 24/02
/2012 

18:20 0 1 2 Yes Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine A vehicle 
attempted to have 
a car racing with 
another vehicle but 
then lost control 
when travelling 
onto the opposite 
side. 

201211632 KAHUTA
RA 
ROAD 

EAST-WEST 
ACCESS 
ROAD 

540 Sun 22/04
/2012 

12:25 0 1 0 No Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine Front wheel of 
vehicle lost control 
on change of road 
surface when the 
driver of exiting 
raised bridge 
downhill with 
possible excessive 
speed. 

201211934 PONATA
HI 
ROAD 

CARTERTON 
LONGBUSH 
ROAD 

1500 Tue 15/05
/2012 

13:30 0 1 0 Yes Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine A truck loaded with 
logs travelling 
north to 
Martinborough 
had its trailer 
rolled over and 
started to slide 
down the road. 

156



 

   

 

201310008 KOKOTA
U ROAD 

PONATAHI 
ROAD 

1200 Tue 12/02
/2013 

18:15 1 0 0 Yes Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine A vehicle travelling 
home came a 
round a moderate 
bend and went to 
the right side of 
the road then lost 
control and went 
through the fence. 
The vehicle rolled 
and the driver was 
ejected possible 
through the 
sunroof. 

201310009 WILTON
S ROAD 

  0 Sun 17/02
/2013 

8:11 1 1 0 Yes Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine A vehicle collided 
with the side of a 
locomotive after 
failing to stop at 
railway crossing 
with East Taratahi 
Road. The driver 
was thrown out of 
the vehicle landing 
20-30m south of 
the crossing. 

201310024 KAHUTA
RA 
ROAD 

ROTOTAWA
I ROAD 

870 Thu 30/05
/2013 

2:59 1 1 0 No Open Wet Dark Fine A vehicle came 
around a bend and 
lost control sliding 
sideways into a 
fencepost before 
coming to a full 
stop. 

201310051 ADMIRA
L ROAD 

TE WHITI 
ROAD 

2800 Mon 14/10
/2013 

15:30 1 0 0 Yes Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine A truck lost control 
and overturned 
when turning left. 

157



 

   

 

201311725 TE 
WHARA
U ROAD 

PUKETIRO 
ROAD 

2040 Sat 18/05
/2013 

4:00 0 1 0 Yes Open Wet Dark Fine A car travelling 
down Te Wharau 
Hill Road and drove 
straight ahead over 
the side of the hill 
and broke through 
a fence. Driver 
probably 
intoxicated and 
there were no 
brake marks prior 
to the crash. 

201414055 PONATA
HI 
ROAD 

JOHNS WAY 2250 Mon 14/07
/2014 

17:15 0 1 0 No Open Dry Twilight Fine A vehicle lost 
control after a 
possible tyre 
blowout. The 
vehicle hit grass 
verge before 
overcorrecting and 
crossed centreline 
hitting a bank and 
rolled once. 

201510997 LAKE 
FERRY 
ROAD 

POUAWHA 
ROAD 

50 Sat 21/03
/2015 

18:00 0 1 0 No Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine Head-to-tail crash 
occurred at a right-
hand bend on Lake 
Ferry Road. The 
front vehicle 
slowed down as 
approaching the 
bend but the car 
behind didn't 
reduce the speed 
and crashed into a 
ditch. 

158



 

   

 

201600026 CAPE 
PALLISE
R ROAD 

WHANGAIM
OANA 
BEACH 
ROAD 

750 Sun 24/01
/2016 

13:00 1 0 0 No Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine A motorcyclist 
enters corner too 
fast and from too 
far to the left and 
fell from the bike 
and got trapped 
under a car 
travelling in the 
opposite direction. 

201600219 SHOOTI
NG 
BUTTS 
ROAD 

WHITE 
ROCK ROAD 

1170 Thu 29/09
/2016 

7:00 1 0 0 No Open Dry Dark Fine Driver travelling 
west has failed to 
remain on a 
straight section of 
Butts Road with 
gravel surface. The 
vehicle left road 
and collided with 
deep culvert then 
rolled. 

201617176 MORET
ON 
ROAD 

BOOTH ST 100 Fri 4/11/
2016 

1:27 0 1 0 No Urban Dry Dark Fine Driver driving west 
along Moreton 
Road. Vehicle has 
veered to the left 
hitting a tree on 
the side of the 
road 

201810317 WESTER
N LAKE 
ROAD 

ROTOMANU 
RISE 

1090 Fri 12/01
/2018 

15:50 0 1 1 No Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine A truck was 
heading north on 
Western Lake Road 
when it went 
across the road 
and slid sideways 
back onto the left-
hand side where 
the front has hit a 
tree breaking the 
tree off and 
causing the van to 
roll over onto the 
driver-side. 

159



 

   

 

201950099 TE 
WHITI 
ROAD 

WAIPOAPO
A ROAD 

235 Sat 2/02/
2019 

20:20 0 1 0 Yes Open Dry Twilight Fine Driver consumed 
alcohol and drove 
off at speed then 
crashed into a bank 
and rolled his 
vehicle. 

201960957 NORFOL
K ROAD 

CHESTER 
ROAD 

567 Fri 2/08/
2019 

8:26 0 1 1 Yes Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine The driver was 
possibly exceeding 
the speed limit 
when coming to 
the corner past 
Chester Road. The 
driver hit the grass 
verge, then fence 
and rolled multiple 
times and then 
coming to a stop in 
the middle of a 
grass paddock. 

202014346
8 

LAKE 
FERRY 
ROAD 

WHAKATO
MOTOMO 
ROAD 

537 Su 19/01
/2020 

11:45 0 1 0 No Open Wet Overcas
t 

Light rain The motorcyclist 
was approaching a 
left hand bend 
with poor visibility 
at an estimated 
speed of 120kmph. 
The motorcyclist 
was then thrown 
from his 
motorcycle into a 
ditch on his side of 
the road. 

160



 

   

 

202014897
1 

DAKINS 
ROAD 

EAST 
TARATAHI 
ROAD 

567 Sat 21/03
/2020 

17:36 0 2 0 Yes Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine A vehicle was 
driving at speed 
and hit the bank to 
the left of the road 
which caused the 
vehicle to roll 
approximately 50 
metres down the 
road. Neither 
passenger nor 
driver was wearing 
seatbelts. 

202015537
8 

HIGH 
STREET 
SOUTH 

PEMBROKE 
STREET 

  Fri 19/06
/2020 

12:26 1 0 1 Yes Urban Wet Overcas
t 

Fine A driver overtook a 
line of northbound 
traffic at speed. He 
then clipped one of 
the cars he has 
overtaken and 
then has collided 
head-on with a 
southbound 
vehicle. 

202016524
4 

BUCKS 
ROAD 

UNDERHILL 
ROAD 

2430 Sat 26/09
/2020 

13:30 0 1 2 No Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine A driver lost 
control of the 
vehicle on a corner 
travelling at about 
50km/h. The 
vehicle came to a 
stop once it made 
impact with the 
grass bank and 
tree. 

202016796
0 

ADMIRA
L ROAD 

TE WHITI 
ROAD 

3142 Sat 17/10
/2020 

11:23 0 2 0 Yes Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine Competitor's 
vehicle has left the 
road on the exit to 
a right hand bend. 

161



 

   

 

202117579
9 

VICTORI
A 
STREET 

GARRISON 
STREET 

  Fri 8/01/
2021 

15:02 0 1 1 Yes Urban Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine A vehicle intended 
to turn right into 
Garrison Street but 
then veered left 
and turned right 
and collided with 
another vehicle 
travelling on the 
opposite direction. 

202117630
3 

FRATER
S ROAD 

WHITE 
ROCK ROAD 

645 Sun 10/01
/2021 

7:45 0 1 0 No Open Dry Bright 
sun 

Fine The driver entered 
the corner too fast 
and veered off 
onto the grass 
verge on the left of 
the road before 
crashing into a 
ditch and flipped 
onto its side 
causing extensive 
damage. 

202120117
3 

EAST 
WEST 
ACCESS 
ROAD 

TE HOPAI 
ROAD 

653 Mon  27/09
/2021 

23:30 0 1 0 No Open Wet Dark Light rain A vehicle lost 
control and the 
vehicle spun 180 
degrees as it 
crossed both lanes 
and went into a 
culvert on the 
other side of the 
road. 

202120893
9 

TORA 
ROAD 

WHITE 
ROCK ROAD 

4315 Sat 25/12
/2021 

15:07 0 1 1 No Open Dry Overcas
t 

Fine Driver lost control 
of the vehicle 
shortly after 
transitioning onto 
gravel road due to 
inexperience with 
driving on gravel 
road. 

 

162



    

 

 

 

 

163



Appendix 2 - Consultation Document 

  

164



 

Draft SpeedDraft Speed
Management Plan &Management Plan &

Speed ReviewSpeed Review
ConsultationConsultation

C l o s e s
2 3  J u l y  2 0 2 3

Statement ofStatement of
ProposalProposal

165



Speed Review Summary
We are seeking your feedback
Consultation Process
Why are Councils required to have a Speed Management Plan?
The Draft Speed Management Plan Statement of Proposal - Executive summary
Priority 1 – Reducing school and Early Childhood Education Centre speed limits
Priority 2 - Reducing marae speed limits and introducing signage
Priority 3 – Reducing speed limits on high priority roads
What else are we asking?
Have your say
Frequently asked questions
Submission Form
Table 1: Proposed permanent speed limits for high priority roads in Carterton District
Table 2: Proposed permanent and variable speed limits around schools and marae in
Carterton District
Table 3: Proposed speed limits around schools and marae in South Wairarapa
Table 4: Proposed permanent speed limits with local priority in Greytown 
Table 5: Proposed permanent speed limits on other roads with local priority in Featherston
Table 6: Proposed permanent speed limits on other roads with local priority in
Martinborough
Table 7: Other roads with local priority in other areas of South Wairarapa
Maps 

ContentsContents
2
4
5
6
7
8
11
12
13
14
15
17
19

21
23
25
26

27
28

166



We are seeking public feedback on speeds and how we manage our roads.
The way we manage speed is changing, with Road Controlling Agencies (of which includes
our councils) now required to have speed management plans. Plans need to outline a 10-
year vision and a three-year implementation plan as a whole-of-network approach to
speed management.

The New Zealand Government has launched the Road to Zero (R2Z) strategy 2020-2030,
that targets a 40% reduction in deaths and serious injuries by 2030.
Wairarapa district councils, along with Waka Kotahi, have a shared responsibility to bring
about safe and appropriate measures to facilitate lower impact speed, especially to
vulnerable road users around schools.

We’re focusing on infrastructure improvements and speed management on high priority
roads, and intervention measures to achieve lower speed limits around schools, marae
and early childhood education centres.

The addition of the Setting of Speed Limit 2022 to the Land Transport Rule states that
40% of schools must comply with the new, reduced speed limits by 30 June 2024, and
the remainder by 31 December 2027. 

Speed Review SummarySpeed Review Summary

Our focusOur focus

Why are we reviewing our speeds?Why are we reviewing our speeds?

22
167

https://www.nzta.govt.nz/safety/what-waka-kotahi-is-doing/nz-road-safety-strategy/?utm_source=google&utm_medium=cpc&utm_id=Paid&gclid=Cj0KCQjw2cWgBhDYARIsALggUhqARAJO00e6N-YnUZUtPeyhVt_VT0w-aggpmodnbnIzH3y_sIUhW_MaAqM8EALw_wcB&gclsrc=aw.ds


Our Draft Speed Management Plan for the Carterton and South Wairarapa Districts will
help us transition from the way we have set speed limits in the past to a new, more
flexible approach that better takes into account local conditions and the surrounding
environment. Rather than looking at speed limit changes on a street-by-street basis, our
draft Speed Management Plan establishes the priorities of our approach to speed
management in the district.

Changes to the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022, and direction from
Waka Kotahi (New Zealand Transport Agency), mean we need to confirm this draft Speed
Management Plan with the community before we can make it happen. The draft Speed
Management Plan will then be certified by Waka Kotahi and will become law when the
speed limits are recorded in the National Speed Limit Register.

This statement of proposal has been jointly produced by South Wairarapa and Carterton
District Councils for both districts as part of our joint roading venture called Ruamāhanga
Roads. This combined roading maintenance contract has been in effect since 2019 to
maximise efficiency, achieve increased regional consistency and value for money, as well
as share and optimise the use of internal resources.

While we are working together to deliver our proposals, decisions for the two districts will
be made separately by each Council's elected members. This means South Wairarapa
District Council will make decisions on roads for all South Wairarapa roads, and Carterton
District Council will make decisions on roads for all Carterton roads. There will be
separate submission hearings for each council. 

33

Who is making this proposal?Who is making this proposal?

What information is available?What information is available?
To help you make an informed submission, we have the following documents available for
you to view:
The Statement of Proposal (this document)
This outlines what we are doing and why, and how you can provide feedback.
Technical Report
This report explains in detail what we are proposing for each road, and the assessments
made to inform these proposals.
Draft Interim Speed Review Management Plan
Our overall approach and implementation plan related to safer speeds in Carterton and
South Wairarapa.
Online Interactive Maps
We have interactive maps available on our council websites that provide more detail than
the maps included in this document.

You can view these at cdc.govt.nz and swdc.govt.nz, and at your local libraries and
council office.

168



This statement of proposal includes a summary of the priorities in our draft Speed
Management Plan and a submission form for your feedback. For speed limits to be effective,
they need to be understood and supported by the community. That’s why we want to hear
from you about the approach we have taken in developing the draft Speed Management Plan
and if there are other high priority roads we should be including.

Anyone can make a submission on any of our proposals. You may make a submission for both
Carterton and South Wairarapa districts if you wish, however, we will need you to please fill
out two separate submission forms. You can find additional forms on our websites, or at our
Council offices and libraries.

We are seeking your feedbackWe are seeking your feedback

We are accepting feedback until 5pm, Sunday 23 July 2023. 

Further details on how you can have your say are included on pages 14 and 17 

44
169



Consultation processConsultation process
Consultation opens for public feedback  23 June

Consultation closes 23 July

Carterton District Council Hearings 

Council deliberations

Revised Speed Management Plan adopted by Councils

South Wairarapa District Council Hearings 

Speed Management Plan certified by Waka Kotahi

This is the date we will start accepting public feedback. 

You can opt to speak to your Carterton submission.

You can opt to speak to your South Wairarapa submission.

The finishing date for receiving public feedback.

The two councils will discuss your submissions and take into consideration any
suggested changes as a result of public feedback. Carterton District Council will
make decisions on Carterton roads.
South Wairarapa District Council will make decisions on South Wairarapa Roads.

Any changes as a result of public feedback will be made and a finalised
version will be adopted by each Council in a public meeting.

This confirms the plans meet the requirements and new speed
limits can take effect.

55

Council implements changes to speed limits

Submit certified speed limit changes to Waka Kotahi
National Speed Limit Register.

170



Recent changes to the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022 and direction from
Waka Kotahi (New Zealand Transport Agency) mean we must create a 10-year Speed
Management Plan that sets out our approach for managing speed and safety, including safety
goals, speed limit changes for the roading network, and engineering improvements. The plan
will be reviewed on a three-yearly basis.

We have taken a staged approach to speed management. Our initial focus is roads around
schools, marae, and high-priority roads. In Carterton, we are also reviewing roads of Early
Childhood Education Centres. The proposed changes involve both the lowering of speed
limits in some places, as well as safety improvements particularly focused on
improved signage.

Changes around schools and marae will be made by 2024, as well as roads we are consulting
on in this document.

The Government and Waka Kotahi are promoting zero tolerance of road deaths and
serious injuries. Waka Kotahi’s strategy, known as ‘Road to Zero’, is a plan to work
towards zero road deaths and serious injuries. The Government is committed to tackling
unsafe speeds as part of this vision. The risk of a crash occurring, and the resulting
severity of injury resulting from that crash, depends significantly on the speed of the
vehicles involved. A key part of the work to support this vision is reviewing speed limits all
over the country with a view to lowering them in high-risk areas.

66

The Draft Speed Management Plan that we
have prepared aligns with the goals set out
by Waka Kotahi, with the changes proposed
in a way that will support compliance and
community buy-in to the changes.

Why are Councils required toWhy are Councils required to
have a Speed Management Plan?have a Speed Management Plan?

171



There are 14 schools across both districts that will ultimately have lowered
speed limits by 2024. In the interim plan, which takes effect in mid-2024, we
are working on 6 urban schools and two rural schools in South Wairarapa,
and 4 urban and 2 rural schools in the Carterton district.

The Draft Speed ManagementThe Draft Speed Management
Plan Statement of ProposalPlan Statement of Proposal
Executive SummaryExecutive Summary  

The proposal would lower the speed limits to 30km/hr around urban schools
and 60km/hr variable speed limit for rural schools in South Wairarapa, and
either a 30km/hr permanent or variable speed limit for all schools in Carterton.

It would also lower the speed limits around marae. Hurunui-o-Rangi Marae in
Carterton will have a proposed permanent lower speed limit with a variable speed
limit during events. South Wairarapa will have a full-time limit around Pāpāwai Marae
and Hau Ariki Marae, and a variable zone during events for Kohunui Marae. One
marae in Carterton will also have a variable speed limit during events.

We are asking for feedback on proposed speed reductions on a number of high
priority roads and changes may be incorporated into the interim plan. See the
list of roads at the back of this document. 

In South Wairarapa, we have included two gravel roads in our list of high
priority roads. In Carterton, we have not included any gravel roads. Both
councils would like to know if you think we should include all gravel roads, and
whether there should be any speed reductions on these roads. 

If there is a road you think should be added to the list of priority roads for a
speed reduction, please mention this in your printed or online submission form,
with reasons why these areas should be included. Any roads you suggest will be
presented to councils for consideration.

To make an informed submission, we have the following documents for you to
view:

The Statement of Proposal (this document)
Technical Report
Draft Interim Speed Management Plan
Online Interactive Maps

77You can view these at cdc.govt.nz and swdc.govt.nz, and at your local
libraries and council office. 172



The Draft Speed ManagementThe Draft Speed Management
Plan Statement of ProposalPlan Statement of Proposal
Priority 1 – Reducing School and Early Childhood EducationPriority 1 – Reducing School and Early Childhood Education
Centre speed limitsCentre speed limits

88

A lower speed limit decreases the chance of crashes occurring and reduces the injury
severity if a crash occurs. This will reduce the risk for the students and others travelling to
and from school. 

The current speed limit on roads in the vicinity of urban schools and marae in Carterton
and South Wairarapa is either 50km/h or 40km/h, and either 70km/h or 100km/h for rural
schools (depending on the location of the school).

The Government requires us to have reduced the speed limits in the vicinity of all schools 
 in Carterton and South Wairarapa to a maximum of 30km/h in urban areas and 60km/h in
rural areas. 

Where schools are located on no-exit roads or within residential neighbourhoods, we
propose permanent speed limits be installed. For locations that are on through roads with
higher speed limits, we propose utilising variable speed limits, as they protect pedestrian
activity during high-use times while helping ensure driver acceptance and compliance. In
Carterton, Elected Representatives have also proposed to reduce the speed limit on roads
in the vicinity of Early Childhood Education Centres.  Not all Early Childcare Centres have
been included in the technical report, however we are asking you to let us know if you
agree with the proposed changes and whether we should include all Early Childcare
Centres in the Carterton district.

A variable speed limit is when the speed limit can change due to the road and driving
conditions. In this instance, the lower speed limit will be in play during drop off and pick
up times.

A permanent speed limit is a posted speed limit that applies at all times. The speed limit
that is in play at any given time will be clearly signposted. These proposals align with the
current Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limit 2022.

For rural schools we are proposing both options - a lower permanent speed limit of
60km/h at all times, with a variable speed limit of 30km/h during drop off 
and pick up times.

173



99

Kuranui College
Greytown School
St Teresa’s School
Featherston School
Martinborough School 
South Featherston School
Carterton School
St Mary’s School
Ponatahi Christian School

The following schools are proposed to have aThe following schools are proposed to have a
30km/h permanent speed limit:30km/h permanent speed limit:

The following schools and Early Childcare Centres areThe following schools and Early Childcare Centres are
proposed to have a 30km/h variable speed limit:proposed to have a 30km/h variable speed limit:

Dalefield School
Gladstone School
Pirinoa School
Kahutara School
South End School and Kindergarten
Just Us Kids Carterton
He Pounamu Early Nurture Centre
Carterton Preschool 

Under this draft Speed Management Plan, these changes will be completed by
2024. Maps highlighting all the proposed changes are included in the Consultation
Draft Speed Management Plan document.

174



1010

The following schools are proposed to have a 60km/hThe following schools are proposed to have a 60km/h
permanent speed limit:permanent speed limit:

Dalefield School*
Gladstone School*
Pirinoa School*
Kahutara School*

*This means the roads in the vicinity of these four schools will have a proposed
permanent speed limit of 60km/h, with a variable speed limit of 30km/h during school
pick-up and drop-off times at school terms. More information is available on pages 11-15.

175



Hau Ariki Marae
Pāpāwai Marae
Kohunui Marae
Hurunui-o-Rangi Marae 

Priority 2 – Reducing marae speed limitsPriority 2 – Reducing marae speed limits  
and introducing signageand introducing signage

The following marae are proposed to have new signage and/or speed limits:

South Wairarapa and Carterton Districts have a number of marae, located in both
urban and rural locations. Our assessments show that some marae do not have
sufficient signage to identify their locations to road users.

Our proposed approach is to install advance and directional signage at each marae
location. There are also proposed speed limit changes around several marae as
part of our approach to high-risk roads. In some cases there are papakāinga
located next to marae that will be impacted by the proposed changes.

Under the draft Speed Management Plan these changes will be completed by the
end of 2024. 

Maps highlighting all the proposed changes are included in both this document and
the technical report.

1111
176



Priority 3 – Reducing speed limits on high priority roadsPriority 3 – Reducing speed limits on high priority roads
We have reviewed all the crash data for local roads within the Carterton and South Wairarapa
districts for 2012-2021. Those roads that have had three or more serious or fatal crashes in this
period have been considered to be high priority roads.

We have assessed each of these roads as well as other high priority roads (as identified in the
technical report) to determine what improvements are appropriate to lower the risk to road
users. This includes safety improvements as well as changes to speed limits. 

It is important to note that non-speed related safety improvements will not be addressed until
the final Speed Management Plan is developed.

Any priority roads identified in our proposal as requiring a speed reduction are not yet
finalised. Any submissions opposing our proposal will be discussed at council deliberations
and taken into consideration before finalising the interim speed management plan.

The starting point is the safe and appropriate speed for each road reviewed. We considered
the risks associated with features on each road including road width, whether there are many
curves, hazards on the roadside, e.g. drains and poles, as well as how people are currently
using the road including operating speeds (i.e. how close are people going to the proposed
speed limit) and number of crashes. The Speed Management Guide Road to Zero Edition is
referred to for guidance for safe and appropriate speeds depending on the features and
characteristics of the particular road or road sections. We also considered how the land next
to the road is used which indicates how people used the road e.g. number of people walking in
the area and the safety risks associated.

Our speed management plan highlights additional safe and appropriate speeds for future
review which are not included in this document. We are not consulting on these additional
roads or proposing to lower the limits of these roads at this stage. We have included them in
the speed management plan as they formed part of the overall assessment.

Maps highlighting all the proposed changes are included in both this document and the
technical report. We also have more detailed interactive maps available on our council
websites.

1212
177



1313

What else are we asking?What else are we asking?

We have assessed our roads across the district and included any we believe are high risk
or high priority. However, our local road users may be able to provide insight on roads
they believe may need assessing in terms of speed reductions. 

We're asking whether you have identified any roads you believe should be included in our
speed review, with reasons for why these areas should be included. Any roads you
suggest will be discussed at council deliberations and taken into consideration before
finalising the final speed management plans.

Gravel roadsGravel roads
In South Wairarapa, we have included two gravel roads in our list of high priority roads. In
Carterton, we have not included any gravel roads. Both councils would  like to know if you
think we should include all gravel roads, and whether there should be any speed
reductions on these roads. 

We would also like to know if there are any specific gravel roads we should be looking at,
and the reasons you think we should consider them.

Any roads you suggest will be presented to council for consideration.

Roads identified by youRoads identified by you

178



1414

Complete one of our online
submission forms at: 

South Wairarapa
 
South Wairarapa District Council  
 Office 
19 Kitchener Street, Martinborough 

Greytown Library
89 Main Street, Greytown

Featherston Library
70-72 Fitzherbert Street,
Featherston

Martinborough Library
Waihinga Centre, Texas Street,
Martinborough

Have your sayHave your say

Between 9am and 4pm 
Monday to Friday 
(excluding public holidays)

Email your submission or
feedback to: 

South Wairarapa
swdc.govt.nz/consultation

South Wairarapa
submissions@swdc.govt.nz 

Carterton
submissions@cdc.govt.nz

South Wairarapa 
06 306 9611 
Between 9am and 4pm
Monday to Friday 
(excluding public holidays)

Carterton District Council
06 379 4030

Pick up a submission form:

Carterton 

Carterton District Council Office 
28 Holloway Street
Carterton

Carterton Events Centre and
Carterton Library
50 Holloway Street

Email your submission or
feedback to: 

Carterton
cdc.govt.nz/haveyoursay

Complete one of our online
submission forms at: 

179

mailto:submissions@swdc.govt.nz


Can I provide feedback on the speeds you are proposing for different roads? 

Frequently asked questionsFrequently asked questions

You are welcome to provide comment on speeds. Please note that our proposal aligns with Waka
Kotahi guidance and reflects local knowledge and behaviour, including statistics around crashes.
Details are set out in the technical assessment document. The speed limits in the vicinity for
schools are proposed as part of the Setting of Speed Limit 2022 to the Land Transport Rule, which
states that 40% of schools must comply with the new, reduced speed limits by 30 June 2024

Speed isn’t the problem, drivers are. Why aren’t you focusing on them?
Even the most skilled drivers make mistakes. Good speed management gives drivers the cues they
need to judge the safe and appropriate speed for the road they are on. The faster you go, the more
likely you are to crash and the greater your risk of serious injury or death. No matter what causes a
crash, vehicle speed directly affects the force of impact.

What is good speed management?

Good speed management is when technology, data, first-hand observation and local knowledge
are used to inform interventions to make a road safer for drivers. This is why your feedback will
help us understand if we have our proposals right or not. 

Q.Q.
A.A.

Q.Q.
A.A.

Q.Q.
A.A.

How did you identify the proposed speed limits?

The starting point is the safe and appropriate speed for each road reviewed. We considered the
risks associated with features on each road including road width, whether there are many curves,
hazards on the roadside, e.g. drains and poles, as well as how people are currently using the road
including operating speeds (i.e. how close are people going to the proposed speed limit) and
number of crashes. The Speed Management Guide Road to Zero Edition is referred to for guidance
for safe and appropriate speeds depending on the features and characteristics of the particular
road or road sections. We also considered how the land next to the road is used which indicates
how people used the road e.g. number of people walking in the area and the safety risks
associated.

Q.Q.
A.A.

Why are only some Early Childcare Centres included?

Carterton District Council's elected representatives requested for its Council to consider including
Early Childcare Centres in addition to schools as part of its speed review. Not all Early Childcare
Centres have been included in the technical report, however we are asking you to let us know if you
agree with the proposed changes and whether we should include all Early Childcare Centres in the
Carterton district.

Q.Q.
A.A.

1515
180



Does going a few kilometres per hour faster or slower actually make any difference to
safety?
Yes, it does. Speed can be the difference between a correctable mistake and a fatal error. Every
extra kilometre per hour increases the likelihood of someone being killed or injured in a crash.
Regardless of what causes a crash, speed plays a part. 

Will slowing down mean that it will take longer to get anywhere?

Not necessarily. Research shows that going faster doesn’t save as much time as we think.
Waiting at intersections or for traffic to move means total travel times don’t vary much, even if
you drive 10 km/h slower. 

Q.Q.
A.A.

Q.Q.
A.A.

How do you make drivers slow down to the set speeds?

We are only responsible for setting the road speed limits; the policing of vehicle speeds is the
responsibility of the NZ Police.

Q.Q.
A.A.

What happens after the Council adopts the draft Speed Management Plan, is it just a
case of changing the speed signs? 

Once the Council has adopted the draft Speed Management Plan, the plan will be submitted
to the Director of Land Transport for certification. Then staff will be able to start implementing
the changes included in the Speed Management Plan. New signs will be installed to inform the
road users and the change will be recorded in the National Speed Limit Register. It will then
be enforceable by NZ Police.

Q.Q.
A.A.

No, we are using local knowledge and data to make sure we have done everything we can to make
our roads safer. Our aim is to make sure that our local roads have travel speeds that minimise the
risk. 

Aren’t you just trying to lower speed limits? Q.Q.
A.A.

1616
181



Yes (in person) Yes (online)

South Wairarapa

Yes 

This submission form allows you to give feedback on the draft Speed Management Plan. 
Please fill out all sections so we can formally record your submission.
You can make a submission in a number of ways:

Privacy StatementPrivacy Statement

Online - 

Paper copy - 

Complete the submission form online at: swdc.govt.nz/consultation or cdc.govt.nz/haveyoursay

 Email it to us at submissions@swdc.govt.nz or submissions@cdc.govt.nz
 Post to PO Box 6, Martinborough 5741 or PO Box 9, Carterton 5743 
 Hand deliver to either Council office or any of our Carterton and South Wairarapa libraries

Please provide your feedback by 5pm Sunday 23 July

What We Do With Your Personal Information
All submissions (excluding contact details) will be made available to the public and media via the
Council website. 

Your DetailsYour Details
Full name ...............................................................................................................................

Organisation (if applicable)

Postal address

Phone

Email

....................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................

Submission FormSubmission Form

........................................................................................................................

Would you like to participate in the hearing process? 

Which district are you providing feedback on? If you would like to provide feedback on both, please submit
two separate submission forms.

Carterton

Would you like someone to contact you about your submission?

No

........................................................................................................................

No

1717
182

mailto:enquiries@swdc.govt.nz


..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................................................................

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the above that you believe should be
included in the Draft Speed Management Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included.
Any roads you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. You can use a blank sheet of paper
if you need more room.

...................................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................................

...................................................................................................................................................................

Q2: (CARTERTON ONLY) Do you agree with the Council's proposed approach and principles around Early
Childhood Education Centres?

Yes No

Q3:  Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach and principles around Marae?

Yes No

Q4:  Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach to the high priority roads included in this document?

Yes No

Please list any specific gravel roads you would like us to consider. Any roads you suggest will be
presented to council for consideration. You can use a blank sheet of paper if you need more room.

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our speed review and considered alongside our high priority
roads? 

Yes No

FeedbackFeedback
Q1: Do you agree with the Councils' proposed approach and principles around Schools? 

Yes No

1818

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be excluded? Please
identify it and give your reason why.
...................................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................................
...................................................................................................................................................................

183



Road Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h) Proposed Speed Limit (km/h 

Lincoln Road from Belvedere Road to 185m
southwest of Victoria Street 50 50 50 

Lincoln Road from 185m southwest of Victoria
Street to Dalefield Road 70 40 50 

Moreton Road between SH2 and 350m
southeast of SH2 50 30 50 

Moreton Road between 350m southeast of
SH2 and Rutland Road 50 50  50 

Rutland Road 100 60 60

Hodders Road 100 60 60

Hughes Line 100 60 60

Johnsons Road 100 60 60

Waitangi Road 100 60 60

Baylys Road 100 60 60

Cornwall Road between SH2 and Hughes line 100 60 60

Dalefield Road between SH2 and Lincoln Road 70 30/60 50

East Taratahi Road and Cornwall Road
High between Cornwall Road and the end 100 60 60

Dalefield Road between 100m northwest of
Lincoln Road and 85m southeast of Thomas
Road

100 80 80

Dalefield Road between 85m southeast of
Thomas Road and 175m northwest of Thomas
Road

100 80 60

Watersons Line between Dalefield Road and
95m southwest of Dalefield Road (the rest of
Watersons Line?)  

100   60 60

Thomas Road between Dalefield Road and
200m northeast of Dalefield Road (The rest of
Thomas Road)  

100 60 60

Belvedere road between Taverner Street and
Connollys Line 70 30/40 50

1919

Table 1: Proposed permanent speed limitsTable 1: Proposed permanent speed limits
for high priority roads in Carterton Districtfor high priority roads in Carterton District

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 184



Road Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h) Proposed Speed Limit (km/h

Park Road (between 207m southeast of Dixon
Street and Rutland Road) 100 60 50

Park Road between Rutland Road and Carters
Line 100 60 80

Carters Line between Park Road and Moreton
Road 100 60 80

Richmond Road (between 50m southeast of
Deller Drive and Rutland
Road)

70 40 50

Hilton Road (between 25m southeast of
Madison Street and Rutland Road) 100 60 50

Chester Road (between SH2 and Norfolk Road) 100 60 80

Chester Park Drive 100 60 60

Parkers Road 100 60 60

Wiltons Road (between SH2 and Chester Road) 100 60 80

Norfolk Road (between SH2 and David Lowes) 100 60 60

Norfolk Road (between David Lowes and Chester
Road) 100 60 80

Waingawa Road 100 60 60

Norman Avenue 100 60 60

Ahumahi Road 100 60 50

Pakihi Road 100 60 50

David Lowes 100 60 60

Maungahau Road 100 60 60

Jordan Road 100 60 60

Gladstone Road (between Te Whiti road and
3.4km northwest of Te Whiti Road) 100 60/80 80

Te Whiti Road between Gladstone Road and
130m northeast of Waipoapoa Road 100 60 60

Waipoapoa Road 100 60 30

Brooklands Road 100 60 30

Kokotau Road 100 80 80

Ponatahi Road between Kokotau Road and 170m
northeast of Johns Way 100 80 80

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 2020

185



School Name Road or road sections Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed Speed Limit
(km/h)

Carterton School

Dixon Street 
Nelson Crescent
Tyne Street
Holloway Street

50
50
50
50

30
30
30
10

30
30
30
30

Ponatahi Christian School
and Saint Mary’s School 

King Street
Deller Drive
Howard Street

50
50
50

 

30
30
30

 

30
30
30

 

South End School and
Kindergarten

Brooklyn Road between SH2 and 95m
northwest of SH2 50 30 30 VSL

Dalefield School

Dalefield Road between 85m southeast of
Thomas Road and 175m northwest of Thomas
Road 100 80 60 (30 VSL)

Watersons Line between Dalefield Road and
95m southwest of Dalefield Road 100 60 60 (30 VSL)

Thomas Road between Dalefield Road and
200m northeast of Dalefield Road 100 60 60 (30 VSL)

Hurunui-o-Rangi Marae Gladstone Road between Te Whiti Road and
3.4km northwest of Te Whiti Road 100 60

60 (30 VSL with
manual flip-down sign

during events)

Gladstone School

Te Whiti Road between 140m southwest of
Brooklands Road and 95m southwest of
Fitzherbert Street 100 60 60 (30 VSL)

Fitzherbert Street 100 60 30

Table 2: Proposed permanent and variable speedTable 2: Proposed permanent and variable speed
limits around schools and marae in Carterton Districtlimits around schools and marae in Carterton District

2121

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

186



School Name Road or road sections Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed Speed Limit
(km/h)

Carterton Preschool Limited
and Carterton Playcentre

Belvedere Road between Augustus Street
and Taylor Street 50 30 30 VSL

Just Us Preschool 36 Victoria Street between Fisher Place and
Porritt Place 50 30 30 VSL

He Pounamu Early Nurture Dalefield Road 100 60 30 VSL

2222

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

187



2323

School or Marae Name Road or road section Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed Speed
Limit (km/h)

Kuranui College Arbor Place 50 30 30

Bidwills Cutting Road from Main Street
(SH2) to 240m south on Bidwills Cutting
Road 

50 30 30

Bidwills Cutting road from 240m south
on Bidwills Cutting Road to Kemptons
Line (transition between proposed
60km/h and the existing 100km/h)

70 30 60

East Street between Wakelin Street and
85m northeast of Wakelin Street 50 30 30

Wakelin Street 50 30 30

Greytown School Church Street between East Street and
Reading Street 50 30 30

East Street between 100m southwest of
Church Street and 75m northeast of
McMaster Street

50 30 30

McMaster Street between East Street and
Reading Street 50 30 30

Reading Street between McMaster Street
and Church Street 50 30 30

Pāpāwai Marae Pa Road 100 60 30

Table 3: Proposed speed limits around schools andTable 3: Proposed speed limits around schools and
marae in South Wairarapamarae in South Wairarapa

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

188



2424

School or Marae Name Road or road section Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed Speed
Limit (km/h)

St Teresa's School Bell St between Johnston Street and
100m southeast of Birdwood Street 50 30 30

Birdwood Street between 20m northeast
of Tait Crescent and Harrison Street East 50 30 30

Featherston School Lyon Street between Revans Street
(SH53) and Fitzherbert Street (SH2) 50 30 30

South Featherston School
South Featherston Road between
Longwood East Road and 160m south of
Longwood East Road

50 30 30

South Featherston Road between
Longwood East Road and 100m north of
Longwood East Road

50 40 30

Longwood East Road between South
Featherston Road and 90m west of South
Featherston Road

50 30 30

South Featherston Road between 160m
south of Longwood East Road and 360m
south of Longwood East Road

100 60 60

Martinborough School Dublin Street from Greenaway Place to
Vintners Lane 50 30 30

Grey Street from 230m northwest of
Jellicoe Street to the north-western end
of Grey Street

50 30 30

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

189



2525

School or Marae Name Road or road section Posted speed limits
(km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed Speed
Limit (km/h)

Martinborough School (cont) Roberts Street between Dublin Street and
Grey Street 50 30 30

Hau Ariki Marae
Regent Street from 100m northeast of
New York Street to 250m southwest of
Puruatanga Road

100 60 30

Pirinoa School
Lake Ferry Road between 70m northeast
of McDougalls Road and 220m southwest
of McDougalls Road

70 30 60 (30 VSL)

Kahutara School
Kahutara Road between 250m west of
Pukio West Road and 160m northeast of
Pukio West Road

100 80 60 (30 VSL)

Pukio West Road between Kahutara Road
and 90m south of Kahutara Road 100 80 60 (30 VSL)

Tuhirangi - Kohunui marae Lake Ferry Road (exact location of
variable speed limit to be determined) 100 80 100 (30 VSL)

Table 4: Proposed permanent speed limits withTable 4: Proposed permanent speed limits with
local priority in Greytownlocal priority in Greytown  

Road or road section Posted speed limits (km/h) Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed speed limits
(km/h)

Hawke Street 100 60 60

Hecklers Road 100 60 60

Kuratawhiti Street between 185m southeast of Hawke Street to the
end of Kuratawhiti Street at Waiohine River 100 60 60

Papawai Road between 375m southeast of East Street and Tilsons
Road 100 80/60 60

Tilsons Road 100 60 60

Wilkie Street 100 60 60

Wood Street between 125m northwest of Mole Street and the end of
Wood Street 100 60 60

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

190



2626

Road or road section Existing speed limits in
NSLR (km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed speed limit
(km

Cundys Road 100 60 60

Donald Street between 20m south of SH53 and Longwood West
Road 100 60 60

Underhill Road from 740m northeast on Underhill Road to 800m
northeast on Underhill Road (relocation of speed limit threshold
by 60m)

100 60 60

Western Lake Road from Moore Street to 80m southwest of
Moore Street (relocation of speed limit threshold by 80m) 50 60 60

Western Lake Road from 80m southwest of Moore Street to
200m south of Railway crossing 100 60 60

Table 5: Proposed permanent speed limits onTable 5: Proposed permanent speed limits on
other roads with local priority in Featherstonother roads with local priority in Featherston

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

191



Table 6: Proposed permanent speed limits on otherTable 6: Proposed permanent speed limits on other
roads with local priority in Martinboroughroads with local priority in Martinborough

2727

Road or road section Existing speed limits in
NSLR (km/h)

Safe and Appropriate
Speeds* (km/h)

Proposed speed limits
(km/h)

Cambridge Road from Memorial Square to Strasbourge
Street 50 30 30

Campbell Drive 50 30 40

Cork Street 50 30 30

Huangarua Road 70 30 60

Jellicoe Street between Memorial Square and Naples
Street 50 30 30

Jellicoe Street between Naples Street and Ferry Road 50/70 30 40

Jellicoe Street between Ferry Road and 75m southwest
of Campbell Drive 70 40 60

Kansas Street 50 30 30

Memorial Square 50 30 30

Nelsons Road 70 40 40

Ohio Street 50 30 30

Oxford Street between Memorial Square and Cork
Street 50 30 30

Martins Road 100 60 60

Ponatahi Road between Nelsons Road and 105m
northeast of Nelsons Road 70 40 60

Ponatahi Road between 105m northeast of Nelsons
Road and 170m northeast of Johns Way 100 80 60

Princess Street (between 50m northeast of New York
Street West and Nelsons Road 70 40 60

Puruatanga Road from Cambridge Road to 35m
northeast of Regent Street 70 30 60

Puruatanga Road from 35m northeast of Regent Street
to Todds Road 100 80 60

Texas Street 50 30 30

Jellicoe Street between 75m southwest of Campbell
Drive and White Rock Road 100 80 60

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

192



Other areas of South WairarapaOther areas of South Wairarapa
Table 7: Other roads with local priority in other areas ofTable 7: Other roads with local priority in other areas of

South WairarapaSouth Wairarapa  
Road Existing speed limits in

NSLR (km/h)
Safe and Appropriate

Speeds (km/h)

Recommended
appropriate speed

limits (km/h)

Ben Avon Grove 100 30 30

Cape Palliser Road between Lake Ferry Road and 5.51km south of
Whangaimoana Beach Road 100 60 80

Cape Palliser Road between 5.51km south of Whangaimoana Beach
Road and 0.1 km south of Te Miha Crescent 100 60 60

Cape Palliser Road between 0.1km south of Te Miha Crescent to 250m
northwest of Tilsons Avenue 100 80 80

Cape Palliser Road between 250m northwest of Tilson Avenue and
105m south of Seaview Avenue 50 30 30

Cape Palliser Road between 105m south of Seaview Avenue and 100m
south of Ben Avon Grove 100 60 80

Cape Palliser Road between 100m south of Ben Avon Grove and the end
of Cape Palliser Road 100 60 60

Ponatahi Road (between 170m northweast of Johns Way and Carterton) 100 80 80

Riverside Road 100 60 60

Hemi Street 50 30 30

Lake Ferry Road between 640m southwest of Raho Ruru Road and
230m southwest of McDougalls Road 100/70 80 60

Lake Ferry Road between 2.48km southwest of Cape Palliser Road and
the end of Lake Ferry Road 50 40 30

Lake Ferry Road between 2.34km southwest of Cape Palliser Road and
2.48km southwest of Cape Palliser Road (relocation of speed limit
threshold sign by 140m)

100 80 30

Mangatoetoe Grove 100 30 30

Seaview Avenue 50 30 30

Te Miha Crescent 100 30 30

Tilson Avenue 50 30 30

Western Lake Road from 6.46km south of Cross Creek Road to 8.47km
northwest of East West Access Road 100 60 60

Whangaimoana Beach Road 100 60 60

2828

*Safe and Appropriate Speeds (Saas) sometimes differ from the speed limit proposed if lower
speeds require substantial infrastructure work. This may be reviewed in the final plan. 

193



MapsMaps

2929

The following pages contain generalised maps to give an overview of the proposed speed
reductions.

For more detailed maps, please view our interactive online maps on our council websites:

swdc.govt.nz/consultation
cdc.govt.nz/haveyoursay

Map keyMap key

194



3030
195



3131
196



3232
197



3333
198



Appendix 3 – Full set of 2023 Speed 
Management Plan Consultation 

Submissions 
 

199



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

1 Jocelyn Konig Yes No No State Highway 2 Featherston to Greytown should be reinstated back to 100km Leave the speed limits on back roads as they are. No

2 Catherine Clouston Yes Yes Yes Murphys Line Featherston between SH53 and Soldiers Settlement Road is 
100km, gravel and quite dangerous for anyone cycling along it. It is quite 
narrow and potholes form easily.

As above

3 Stephen Duncalf Yes Yes No Looking at the proposal, this will frustrate motorists no end. As your document clearly 
outlines speeding motorists is 1 or 4 issues on the roads, with Alcohol, loss of control (due 
to alcohol or poor roads?), observations (poor roadside maintenance, and tree blocking 
visibility at junctions and signage?). 
Reducing speed will NOT stop the idiots, they will always speed. 
Then what about cyclists, do they come under this? Especially as some ebikes can exceed 
these speed limits and can cause injuries to people, as well as cause accidents with 
motorists.
Honestly, I'd have to ask if there's any need to classify SH2 & SH53 as State highways if you 
reduce the speed limit to less than 100km? Reducing around schools agree (but only 
during hours of attendance i e. not over the Xmas period), central town areas where 
there's lots of pedestrians also agree, not a couple of blocks from these areas that's stupid.

No, current speed limit on roads is fine apart from close to schools etc. 
where it should be reduced, but only during school attendance times.

What speed are you proposing? I live on a gravel 
road where trucks normally travel in excess of 
60km and cause damage to the to road which 
then causes damage to the cars that travel on the 
road as they aren't built like trucks. Cars can 
travel 50km on the road without much impact 
but rarely do, it's trucks and larger vehicles that 
are causing issues and damage.

Gravel roads that link specific 
townships and settlements, or 
directly used on a regular basis.

4 Jennifer Scott Yes Yes

5 Jack Sheppard Yes Yes No The State Highways between towns are only 80kmh. Restore them to 100kmh, your data 
does not support these draconian measures and you are gaslighting an increasingly angry 
public who drive at 100kmh anyway while causing negligible harm.
Underhill Road MUST have speed-reducing strips on it outside "the stadium" / Card 
Reserve similar to Cotter Street in Greytown. In fact, rip up the Cotter Street strips and 
plant them on Underhill Road -- there is NO pavement access there, Barr Brown Reserve 
opposite, hundred of sports kids unable to be seen from angle parking on the berm - and 
now dozens of speeding trucks from the stupidly-located quarry on Underhill Road/Algies. 
YOU WILL KILL CHILDREN IF YOU DO NOT PUT JUDDER BARS ON UNDERHILL ROAD.

No, I do not accept that you are taking State Highways off the table here. 
Listen to the public, and restore the State Highways to 100kmh — it is a lazy 
joke. The reduced speed around kura and marae is very good though.
Traffic calming judder bars on Underhill Road please. No pavement; sports 
stadium; hundreds of kids dodging speeding trucks filled of quarry rocks; oh 
yeah and a cycle trail that is now being promoted down Underhill Road. YOU 
WILL KILL CHILDREN IF YOU DO NOT PUT JUDDER BARS ON UNDERHILL 
ROAD.

Perhaps Underhill Road
Moroa Road

6 Sian Hudson Yes Yes Yes Papawai and fabians road Possibly

7 Anne Hynds Yes Yes Yes Wakefield Street around the Featherston Sports Hub should also have a 
reduced speed limit - many schools / children's sports teams use the fields. 
As cars park on the grass verge (both sides of the road) there are no 
footpaths available. It is difficult to see young children crossing the road, 
who may in their excitement dash across the road. Wakefield Street is used 
by Featherston Quarry trucks and other heavy vehicles, including stock 
trucks.
Bucks Road ( a narrow gravel road) in Featherston should also be included. 
It currently has a speed limit of 100km an hour - it is a no exit road that ends 
at a DoC camping ground. In the summer Bucks Road is a popular camping 
and swimming site.

Yes - it is great to see Underhill Road Featherston 
identified as a road that should have a reduced 
speed limit. Currently the speed limit is 100 km 
an hour. Underhill Road is a narrow rural road - 
(part tarseal and part gravel) and it is part of the 
5 trails cycle network. There is a quarry at the 
end of Underhill Road. It is not wide enough for 
two trucks to pass each other and in the summer 
the dust from trucks and cars makes it impossible 
to see cyclists. I walk dogs down Underhill Road 
regularly and the road is enjoyed by cyclists, 
horse-riders and pedestrians alike. The current 
speed limit (100km an hour) is dangerous and I 
fear that someone will get injured or killed due to 
cars travelling at excess speeds for the road 
conditions.
Bucks Road ( a narrow gravel road) in 
Featherston should also be included in the speed 
review. It currently has a speed limit of 100km an 
hour - it is a no exit road that ends at a DoC 
camping ground. In the summer Bucks Road is a 
popular camping and swimming site.  This road is 
very narrow and in parts it is very challenging for 
two cars travelling in opposite directions to pass 
one another. There are many 'blind' corners. Due 
to the proximity of the newly opened cycle 
bridge - it is predicted that this road will be used 
by many more cyclists. The speed limit should be 
reduced to ensure public safety.

All of Underhill Road Featherston 
(including the gravel section).
Bucks Road Featherston
The newly named 'Kelly's Lane' - 
another small narrow gravel road 
that is part of the cycle network 
and ends at the Tauwharenikau 
river and new cycle bridge (on 
the Featherston side).

200



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

8 Derek McLuskie Yes Yes Yes All of Underhill Road, Featherston - particularly the gravel section. This road 
is very narrow and the current speed limit of 100km is dangerous. Cars and 
trucks regularly swerve the pot-holes (which can be substantial). In the 
summer the dust kicked up by cars and trucks makes it extremely difficult to 
see pedestrians and cyclists (as well as other cars). 
Bucks Road, Featherston should also be included in the Draft Speed 
Management Plan. It is also a narrow, gravel road that is frequently used by 
trampers, campers and swimmers alike.

Yes As above
All of Underhill Road, Featherston 
and Bucks Road Featherston.

9 James Macfie No  

 

No No I disagree with the premise of lowering speeds around certain buildings in an attempt to 
lower overall road deaths so, no, I don't think there's any one road that should be 
excluded but all.

No If there is evidence of there being more road 
deaths on gravel roads then yes. If not, then no.

--

10 Donna Bennett Yes  No No No

11 Casey Magee

12 Seth Rance Yes  Yes No Keep the speeds as they are.

13 Ethan Hammond Yes No No Hughsline until you have finished the Highway upto masterton Change hughsline back to 100kms No

14 Laura Courtman Yes Yes No

15 John Dyckhoff Yes Yes No There is no need to reduce the speed on Ponotahi road No Yes

16 Laura Courtman Yes  Yes No

17 Charl Jacobs Yes  

18 Guy Walmsley No No No What ever happened to teaching kids/people to "Look right, Look left, look right again, 
and if safe, cross the road".

No

19 Elaine Herve Yes No Yes I support the 50km on Belvedere to Connollys Line. Thank you. 

Would you look into extending the 70km limit to beyond the stream and the 
dangerous double corners and bridge.  As a pedestrian walking dogs and 
also cyclist these corners and bridge are scary as drivers do take them at 
100km. 
It is impossible to always be safely walking facing the traffic without crossing 
the road blind.

These corners have on more than one occasion been discussed on social 
media as dangerous.

20 Rex Haslip Yes Yes Yes Regent Street for its entire length
While the local Marae is covered  with a reduction (Despite some 
disgraceful driving being exhibited by Marae activity participants recently, 
perhaps the Marae needs protection from itself) the rest of Regent Street is 
50km, inspite of their being other public facilities that also require people to 
frequent them in the day and night time hours, namely the Tennis court, 
Rugby Ground, Bowling club and a Gym.  Signage in this area is very poor 
and at the western end of Regent Street where there is no Footpaths, this 
has become a raceway with may vehicles obviously exceeding the 50km 
limit.  This at a minimum requires more signage

No

21 bruce sullivan Yes  Yes No

22 John Rhodes Yes Yes Yes No road in the district should have a speed limit above 80 kph. We are in a 
climate crisis. Motor vehicles travelling at 100 kph emit more carbon dioxide 
than those travelling at 80 kph.

all roads should be considered

23 Tony Cox Yes No No Ponatahi Road, it is perfectly safe as a 100kmh road, I have been driving it for many years.

  24 Murray Higginson Yes Yes No Put Masterton Featherston highway back to 100km and leave everything 
alone .Maintain the roads and there would be no problem

No None

25 Jacqui Eyley No

26 Abby Hammersley Yes Yes No

27 Gina Smith Yes  Yes Yes No No

201



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

28 Harry Howard No  

 
 

 
 

Yes No I believe all the former 100kph roads proposed to drop to 6okph, should only drop to 
80kph. 
All propose 100kph roads proposed to drop to 80kph, should remain at 100kph.
All proposed 30kph school zones should be 30kph variable zones, only active during school 
drop offs/pick ups, except Kurinui College Bidwills Cutting Rd entrance, remain at 50kph. 
Free following and unrestricted arterial routes must be preserved, otherwise traffic will be 
push into secondary roads. The greatest improvement to road safety from a network 
perspective will be engineered solutions, improved road quality, better roads surfaces, 
better intersection layout, including better signage.

State Highways should be included in the one review, it's the same network 
and making changes to one, will have impacts on the other.

Consider a blanket 80kph speed limit on any 
'open road' unsealed roads. This should be a 
national standard attached to 'open road' speed 
set out in the road code, so that there is not a 
need for unnecessary signage.

as above

29 John Ryan Yes  Yes Yes

30 Nika Richards Yes  

 
 

Yes No On the interactive map:
1. Market Street between East Street and Reading Street is marked as 60km/h.
This road encircles the Greytown School playing field and is approx 100m in length. The 
60km/h is EXCESSIVE in this school area and for such a short segment of Market Street.

31 Thomas Pepper Yes  No No Should seal highly used gravel roads instead. Marora road needs sealing

32 Chris Miller Yes Yes Yes There is increasing concern for the safety of tamariki on the stretch of 
Underhill Road adjacent to the Sports stadium, tennis court and soccer 
fields - particularly as there are no footpaths along there and with muddy 
verges, kids will stay out of the mud by walking on the road behind the 
backs of cars. The potential for harm - particularly as this road is now being 
used by heavy vehicles going to and from the quarry - is a real risk. I believe 
this stretch of the road should be considered as well - if we genuinely want 
to reach Net Zero.

Yes. I think that would be wise. Gravel roads 
should be considered.

33 Katie Rees Yes  Yes No Ponetahi road, I don’t believe slowing this road will achieve

            34 Mike Firth Yes  

 

No No Pontahi road & Kuratau road 
Both have small volumes of traffic and are of small risk at the current. Sorry limit. 
It would also make the journey from south Wairarapa north take far to long.

Te Awaiti road  & Tora settlement road. 
Both are coastal road that should be 50kms/hr due to the amount of people 
that walk or ride bikes along them

No As above

35 Peter Hull Yes  Yes Yes

36 Alistair and 
Jenny

Boyne Yes  

 
 

Yes No Ponatahi Road and the Lake ferry road beyond 239  and the White Rock Road to Tora Road 
remain at 100kms and the  Tora Road , and at 404 Tora Road reduced to 80kms on gravel 
section to the Te Awaiti Read

37 shirley Baker Yes No Yes you need to make the main road 30 km, alot of school children cross the road to get to 
school. The double trucks speed down that raod doing 60 km an hour or more. This makes 
the glass rattle and the lights move. I have brought this up several times, does it take a 
child to be knocked over and killed. Theses college students walk around with the face 
looking down at the cell phone. They dont all live on the same side as the college and alot 
of them need to cross the main road. Please open your eyes SW city council.

you need to make the main road 30 km, alot of school children cross the 
road to get to school. The double trucks speed down that raod doing 60 km 
an hour or more. This makes the glass rattle and the lights move. I have 
brought this up several times, does it take a child to be knocked over and 
killed. Theses college students walk around with the face looking down at 
the cell phone. They dont all live on the same side as the college and alot of 
them need to cross the main road. Please open your eyes SW city council. 
SWe have the child care centre on the main raod and parents use this road 
to drop off their children. Does not make sense as to why you have not 
uncliuded this in your plans. Ignorence is not bliss.  I invite you to my house 
to listen to the traffic and see the dangers.  Let alone the damage to the 
roads done by the trucks. More and more people live in Greytown and 
nothing is done about the build up of gtraffic and the constance traffic on 
the main road. Its not all about the revenue to Greytown, surely safety is 
paramount,

Main Road. Does not make sense why you made 
it 30km on the main street to church strewet. 
When there is a child care centre on the main 
road.
Parents are having to cross the busy road with 
their child

38 Joy Rogerson Yes  

 

No Yes Tora Road (gravel) Yes definitely.  Try living on a gravel road with 
trucks and boaties thrashing past at 100km. It's 
severely dangerous to me and visiting family.

Tora Road

39 Charles Post Yes Yes No Not enough speed reduction around Gladstone School, particularly at to southern end 
between Fitzherbert and Admiral. The 30kmph variable speed limit should start around 
100m further south than is proposed to allow cars time to slow down to 30 before 
reaching he school. Otherwise cars will approach the school at 60kph.

Not considered on a risk basis - if there have been serious 
enough crashes to warrant it.

202



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

40 Scott Wylie Yes  

 
 

Yes No Ponatahi Road reduced to 80km/h.
This is only going to cause more accidents from people getting impatient and overtaking in 
stupid spots, as I have seen in other speed reduced areas.

Lake Ferry Road going through Pirinoa Village should be reduced to 50km/h No No

41 Hamish Reud No No No All speedlight should stay the same

42 Michael Schaefer No No No

43 Ray Lilley Yes Yes Yes White Rock Road, from the Ferry Road corner to Fraters Road.
Higher densities of dwellings and accommodation have developed in the 
past five years, and now exceed the levels of accommodation and business 
traffic on Jellicoe/Ferry between Pinot Grove and White Rock Road, which 
under the new speed restrictions proposals will be limited to 60 kmh. 
That same limit should apply from the beginning of White Rock Road down 
to Fraters Road corner. This stretch of road currently carries domestic. 
commercial, forestry and farming traffic, often heavily loaded yet doing 100 
kmh. It has much more private and commercial dwellings traffic as the 
traffic counts will indicate. From peersonal experience the proposed 60 kmh 
limit for Jellicoe/Ferry should also apply to White Rock road, at least as far 
as Fraters.

Yes Ruakokopatuna Road.

44 Michael  
and 

Philippa

Arapoff Yes Yes Yes

45 John MONRO Yes Yes Yes Yes. Following a meeting with councillors and staff Monday 3rd July in St 
Andrew's Hall we discussed the serious problem of noise from heavy good 
vehicles along Dublin St , though this also includes Princess St and Jellicoe 
St. One of the things that might help this is to reduce speed limits for HGVs 
to 30 kph along these stretches of roads. Research has show a singificant 
overall reduction in noise by 1.6 decibels with each 10 km/hr speed 
reduction. Allied to improving the irregular road surface residents of Dublin 
St might be able to sleep better at night and have less intrusive noise levels 
through the day.  So my wife (Tess) and I would strongly urge that the 
proposed 30kph limit by the Martinborough Primary School should be 
extended along the length of Dublin St to Jellicoe St, and although not 
directly concerning us, along Princess St as well, both for safety concerns 
especially for the school, but especially for noise  abatement for all the 
residents living alongside this route. The extra time HGVs would take to 
traverse the town would be less than a minute so I hope HGV operators will 
not wish to submit against this proposal. . Thank you for the opportunity to 
submit, and also thank you for the extensive work you have commissioned 
to improve safety on New Zealand's roads.

46 Jeniah Peterson Yes Yes Yes Western lake road from Moore street it's too fast at 100kms especially for 
people exciting the Cemetery I've seen some near misses with drivers doing 
well over 100 kms

Yes Cundys road where I was riding 
my horse and can't as people go 
very fast

47 Shane Hunt Yes Yes No All roads that are 100kph should stay at 100kph except areas by a school should be 
reduced it is peoples driving that is bad not the speed limit

No No

203



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

48 Chris Hooson Yes  

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No This is a Government Policy - you are not funded by central Government to undertake this 
work and the Council should write , ensuring that the overburdened ratepayers are able to 
see your letter, and state the Council will not comply with any central Government 
requests unless accompanied by sufficient ongoing funding to totally cover all the costs.
Further this will delay both responses by Volunteer Fire and Medical responders, along 
with all emergency services, and any resulting deaths lie firmly with the Council should 
they introduce this plan

NO - This is a Government Policy - you are not funded by central 
Government to undertake this work and the Council should write , ensuring 
that the overburdened ratepayers are able to see your letter, and state the 
Council will not comply with any central Government requests unless 
accompanied by sufficient ongoing funding to totally cover all the costs.
Further this will delay both responses by Volunteer Fire and Medical 
responders, along with all emergency services, and any resulting deaths lie 
firmly with the Council should they introduce this plan

NO - This is a Government Policy - you are not 
funded by central Government to undertake this 
work and the Council should write , ensuring that 
the overburdened ratepayers are able to see 
your letter, and state the Council will not comply 
with any central Government requests unless 
accompanied by sufficient ongoing funding to 
totally cover all the costs.
Further this will delay both responses by 
Volunteer Fire and Medical responders, along 
with all emergency services, and any resulting 
deaths lie firmly with the Council should they 
introduce this plan

NO - This is a Government Policy - 
you are not funded by central 
Government to undertake this 
work and the Council should 
write , ensuring that the 
overburdened ratepayers are 
able to see your letter, and state 
the Council will not comply with 
any central Government requests 
unless accompanied by sufficient 
ongoing funding to totally cover 
all the costs.
Further this will delay both 
responses by Volunteer Fire and 
Medical responders, along with 
all emergency services, and any 
resulting deaths lie firmly with 
the Council should they introduce 
this plan

49 Corina Lawson Yes  

 
 

 
 

No No Lowering the speed limit for main streets in and around the Martinborough township will 
significantly increase the turn out time for emergency services and personnel to respond 
to life threatening emergency situations.  This will impact on Fire and Emergency, 
Ambulance and personnel to be effective in our roles and responsibilities to ensure we 
respond to incidences.  This will have a direct affect on our ability to save peoples lives.
 More emphasis should be placed on roading infrastructure, appropriate cycle lanes, 
footpaths and lighting in and around Martinborough.

50 Joanna Baldwin Yes  

 

Yes Yes Fox Street at skate park, mini fell, playground area! This area is accident 
waiting to happen, cars fly off Fitzherbert Street onto fox, there is no 
pedestrian crossing either

No No

51 Graeme Sargent Yes No No All of them. Speed restrictions are totally unnecessary. No No

52 Sandie Perry Yes No No Not necessary to change existing speed limits in the South Wairarapa. No No

53 Nicola Perry No  

 
 

No No I think that all of the changes are totally unnecessary in and around the Martinborough 
area.

I think all of the changes are totally unnecessary in and around the 
Martinborough area.

Not necessary. Existing speed limits are just fine, 
people just need to take note of 
the road and weather conditions 
and adjust their driving 
accordingly.

54 Benno Gypser No  

 

No No None. I think the existing speed limit is good enough. Answer as above. Waist of money. No. If everyone would drive to their ability and 
conditions, we would not need any changes at all.

Answer as above

55 Cheryl Gallaway Yes Yes Yes Fox street and birdwood intersection should be 30km also. Residents have 
been asking for this black spot between facilities for children and elderly to 
be made safer for as many years as I have lived in Featherston. 7 years.  
Speed bump on this interaction would be great. If the fire station argues it 
will impede a fast emergency response, I would argue that their route 
should nagate this section of road that is predominantly used by pedestrians 
that are mostly children and elderly (playground , skatepark, RsA and 
retirement flats).

I see on the map that Martinbourough and greytown schools have a blue 
line (30) and yes featherston schools don't. They need to be 30km also.

Yes

204



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

56 Rosy Fenwicke No No No The information in the technical document provides proof that there is no need for the 
proposed speeding restrictions. 1. drivers already drive to the conditions (see Table 2.1 on 
page 4). The current operating speed are generally below at ot just over the proposed 
speed limit already and any further steps taken to reduce the speed limit will not only be 
superfluous and a waste of money (which the councils acnnot afford) but worse will do 
absolutely nothing to fix a problem which does not exist. 
2. Nowhere in any of the documents do we have hard statistical evidence that speed has 
played a factor in any accidents on any roads.  Instead we have statements to that effect. I 
could make the statement that wearing water wings will stop people dying on NZ roads 
and it would have just as much credibility as the statements in the documents presented. 
3. Nowhere is there any acknowledgement that roads with uneven cambers, poor sight 
lines and potholes are more likely to cause accidents than speeding. 
4. I would rather see money spent on ensuring that drink/drug drivers are apprehended by 
the scarce local police force before they cause accidents than that same money (there is 
no extra) spent on decorating the area with confusing speed sign graffiti. 
4. The current system is simple. 1. Open road speed limit: 100 km/hr. 2. Urban speed limit: 
50 km/hr. 3. Above all drive to the conditions bearing in mind the limitations of the vehicle 
you are driving. Putting road signs all over the place with different speeds over short 
distances on different roads is likely to cause distractions and inattention to what is in 
front of the driver. Sudden braking causes tail ending, causes accidents. Above all when a 
law is ridiculous as these speeding laws will be if they are instituted then it will be ignored. 
And it won't matter. 

The Road to Zero policy is already a flop. NZ has experienced the highest road toll in the 
last 12 months (since the policy was introduced) since 2017.  The fixation with a numerical 
assessment of deaths as a sign post of road safety is flawed.  It takes no account of the 
number of vehicles on roads and the distances travelled. Policy which does not take into 
account numbers of deaths/per drivers/per distance travelled, is inherantly flawed and 
thus will do nothing to make our roads safer.  I would suggest the councils delay any 
changes and spending until a proper analysis of the cause of road deaths and accidents in 
the South Wairarapa is completed.

No. 

More information needed.

How do we know that gravel roads are a 
problem? There is no evidence in the technical 
report which supports this statement. 
Until we do know this and that other methods of 
mitigating any risks identified are not more cost 
effective ( bang for the buck) then it will be a 
waste of money to signpost and police speed 
limits roads where drivers tend to drive to the 
conditions perfectly adequately.

No.

57 Clem Beck Yes No No This report , although published with good intent, is a very good example of 
setting parameters for what you want to hear whilst ignoring all else and 
giving little , or no encouragement , to submit alternative suggestions . 
Whilst all reasoning for change is “ supposedly based on “ SAFETY “, it is 
primarily based on the safety of car passengers cocooned in their steel box . 
Nowhere in this review do I denote any reference to exposed people on 
steel frames - BICYCLES !
During weekends especially , there can be over 600 bicycles in and around 
Martinborough enjoying our unique wine village . Consider that our bicycle 
hire outlets in Kitchener Street alone contribute this number , which does 
not include “ Crocodiles “ and bicycles supplied with accommodation and 
visitors who bring their own bicycles . Having visited the largest hire facility , 
it is obvious your consultants , only provided a “ desktop “ report and failed 
to visit and view . Living in Princess Street we continually see close calls 
between vehicles and bicycles , made worse by the signs advising drivers to 
give bicycles 1.5m of clearance which is an invitation to cross the centre line 
( if any ) and risk a head on collision with another vehicle . Let us be 
proactive and reduce our entire village to 50kmh maximum by erecting 5 
large signs welcoming visitors to the most condensed ,unique Wine Village 
in the world and ask them to respect all pedestrians , bicycles , moving 
objects and our environment and take the time to enjoy what 
Martinborough has to offer . Signs would be double sided so that when 
people leave our village they get a thank you and be safe message . I suggest 
Signs should be big and erected at the following points 
1.     Ponatahi bridge , corner of Martins Road and Hinakura Road , 
intersection of Shooting Butts and Todd’s road , Jellicoe Street before Ferry 
Road and Kitchener Street before Palliser Vinyard .
In conclusion , I feel this suggestion promotes both safety for all and 
promotes the unique nature of Martinborough “ The Most Unique Wine 
Village in The World ‘ . Thanking you for your consideration in this matter .

58 Jocelyn Kebbell Yes No No Lake Ferry Road (apart from outside Pirinoa School)

59 Jamiee Burns No No No Pa Road, Papawai Road, Wood Street, Kuratawhiti Street No No No

60 John Van Vliet No  No No Pa Road, Papawai Road, Wood Street no No no

205



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

61 Melissa Burns No  No No Gregs Lane, Pa Road, Papawai Road, Wood Street No No No

62 Richard Schofield No  

 
 

 
 

No No The proposals are highly nuanced, whereas this survey is highly dumbed done to prevent 
meaningful feedback.
Where do I get to say:
- 30kmph is slower than the new town centre 40 kmph limits - that makes no sense
- Bidwills Cutting Rd is a major thru route, a fixed 30kmph is not acceptable, and why did 
the council spend money on car parks there if it is so dangerous?!

I could go on, but you obviously don't want meaningful feedback.

No.  Some gravel roads are straight with good 
visibility, others aren't.  Unless you want to set 
different limits for different roads, leave them 
alone.  Is there any data that says they need 
attention?

63 Stuart Campbell Yes  No No

64 Brett Abercrombie Yes  

 
 

 
 

Yes Yes 1. Dublin St West from Jellicoe St to Greenaway Pl - should also be 30km/hr 
(same as School Zone starting at Greenaway Pl). Many young school 
children attend After School Care and Activities at the St Andrews Church 
Hall (at the Jellicoe St end of Dublin St West), and often cross the road from 
the Martinborough School side of Dublin Street to the Church side of Dublin 
Street.
2. Extend the 30km/hr Permanent School Zone from Greenaway Pl to 
Venice St (rather than Vintners Lane). Otherwise speed change is on a sharp 
corner and there is a good chance sign will not be seen as drivers are 
navigating the sharp corner. This section of Dublin St is also outside the 
public pool and many children cross the road between Venice St and 
Vintners Lane in order to access the pool and park.

Yes Shooting Butts Road between 
White Rock Rd and Rapaki 
Hillside Walk

65 Neil and 
Greg

Montgomeri
e-Crowe

Yes Yes Yes Woodside Road and Humphries Street (sealed portions) should be reduced 
from 100 to 80km as stated in the original recommendation . The gravel 
sections of each of these roads should be reduced to 60km. The intersection 
Woodside Road/Humphries Street is very dangerous given the current 
100km particularly at the intersection. Commuter train traffic along these 
roads travel at speed and in convoy after a full days work .

Yes all gravel roads should be reduced to a 
minimum of 60km. Please include the gravel 
section of Humphries Street in the 
Wilkie/Wood/Hawke/Kuratawhiti Streets speed 
revision.

Please include the gravel section 
of Humphries Street. This section 
should be aligned with  Wilkie 
Street in the 
Wilkie/Wood/Hawke/Kuratawhiti 
Streets proposal. 
Also the gravel portion of 
Woodside Road, Underhill Road 
and the Waiohine Valley Road.

67 Dave Shepherd Yes  

 
 

Yes No The speed limits need to be simplified and be consistent across the urban and locations. 
You can’t have one rural road speed limit of 70km/hr and then another at 60km/hr as this 
creates confusion for all motorists. Should be one speed limit as it’s now for urban edges 
of town last at 70km/hr

Martin’s Road. No

68 Bruce McLean Yes  

 
 

 

No No Princess street north end is currently 70kmh and the plan proposes 60kmh to beyond the 
bridge to the north of Martinborough and onto Ponatahi road.  This change is supported 
100% except that the proposed 60kmh is still too fast and hazardous especially where 
tourists on mult-person bikes travel. It would seem logical (given the remainder of Princess 
St is at 50kmh) and safer to impose a 50kmh limit rather than the proposed 60kmh over 
the length of the revised plan.

Traffic at 100kmh is dangerous on White Rock (west end) before it 
intersects with Ferry Road. 100kmh is now dangerous in this area where 
there has been urban development and where Brackenridge exists.  The 
road is also currently in use by a number of logging trucks. The existing 
100kmh limit is also too fast to approach the White Rock Rd/Ferry  Rd 
intersection. A reduction from the existing 100kmh for (say) 2 to 3 km is 
needed at the western end of White Rock Road.

No N/A

206



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

69 Graeme Locke No No No This is an appalling submission form as it doesn't lend itself to qualify a question, the  
resultant answer and really solicit your residents point of view. You have designed this to 
pre determine an outcome. For example Q1 broadly speaking I and everyone else would 
agree safer speeds around schools is critical. However you asked a question in the 
consultation document  around whether this should be variable or permanent. There is no 
question that relates to this view. For the record this should be variable given the limited 
times throughout the day and school year considerations. We are well used to the variable 
approach and timings as they exist today and see no good reason for this to change 
outside of reducing the speed.  Similarly for the "priority" roads. There is no evidence in 
the consultation document that I can see that outlines a specific need for change (outside 
of Waka Kotahi's point of view - fine if they are paying for it but they are not). We already 
have many variable speed limits some of which are ridiculously close to each other eg: (40 
to 50, 70 to 80 etc...) and is 
 a minefield to navigate. Have we learnt nothing around the issues with SH2? If limits must 
change then keep them consistent. For the back interconnecting roads keep the speed 
limit as it is. This enables safer legal overtaking to be done (where its safe to do so) as 
most drive 10-20kms under the limit now. Reducing this will ensure the average speed will 
go well below the posted limit with the potential to cause more accidents and more risky 
option taking by drivers.  The only recommendation I support is the extension of 70km's 
on Jellicoe Street to just past White Rock Road given the large amount of traffic now 
turning into White Rock Road that actually makes perfect sense.

No its a waste of money as the few people who 
drive these roads do so at a speed that is 
generally less than the speed limit. Council has 
bigger priorities

70 Edward Allen Yes Yes Yes YES Hinakura Rd. from Hikawera Rd. 
to Bush Gully Rd.to Pahaoa 
station
White Rock Road from 
Tuturumuri
Tora Road from pavements end 
past Tuturumuri to coast
Ruakokopatuna Rd/Haurangi Rd
Fenwicks line

71 John and 
Elizabeth

MacGibbon Yes Yes Yes We agree with the speed proposals for Martinborough, in the Interim Speed 
Management Plan, with the following exception:
We would like to see the proposed maximum speed limit of 30kph in Dublin 
Street be extended further west, to the intersection with Jellicoe Street
Our support for this extension is on the basis of safety, noise reduction and 
street surface preservation:
1. Safety: Dublin Street, up to the junction with Jellicoe Street, is a heavy 
traffic bypass. There is considerable heavy traffic use on the street. There 
has been a significant increase in heavy traffic use of the street over the 
past 20 years, and predictions are for this to increase further, particularly 
due to forestry development. Truck speeds can be considerable – easily 
reaching the current limit of 50kph and sometimes exceeding it.
2. Noise reduction: the heavy trucks are very noisy and a reduction in speed 
would reduce this noise.
3. Street surface preservation: a reduction of speed to 30kph along the 
whole of the Dublin Street heavy traffic bypass would considerably reduce 
wear and tear in the street surface. We appreciate that work has recently 
started on improving the condition of the street surface, but the 
improvements are only being made to the worst-affected areas. The reality 
is that the sub-surface of the entire street is inadequate for sustained heavy 
traffic use and the current repairs are at best a temporary fix. Extending the 
30kph speed limit to Jellicoe Street would at least extend the life of the 
current inadequate repairs.

Yes Shooting Butts Road, 
Martinborough

72 Kim Hayes Yes Yes No Cape Palliser Road -  as a frequent traveler of this road and knowing others who travel 
daily, we do not want the speed reduced on this road, we all drive to the conditions and 
have always used our initiative and common sense.  We find that tourists and visitors drive 
slowly on this road anyway, as they are all busy looking at the scenery. 
 By reducing the speed you are going to literally have them crawling along, while those 
that are travelling to and from work will become frustrated and I can see that is where the 
accidents are going to happen.  Sometimes I feel that those making these 
recommendations need to live in areas or at least talk to those who do before making 
decisions.

No, the majority of people who drive on gravel 
roads know how to drive on a gravel road and 
they are your frequent users who will be 
disadvantaged.  As I said above, others need to 
drive to the conditions.

207



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

73 Martina Day Yes Yes

74 Chris Cox Yes  

 

Yes No Unless your introducing variable speeds zones due to traffic volume, leave all the roads as 
they are. Apart from the morning/afternoon work/school runs the roads highlighted are 
low traffic volumes.  Every other time there’s little traffic

75 Laura Courtman No  

 
 

 
 

No No On Jellicoe street coming from Lake Ferry Road the speed will go from 100 to 60 to 40 to 
30 at the square.
This is too many changes in a short piece of Road for people to pay attention to. It should 
just go 60 until Ferry Road then 40 through the middle of Martinborough. The same goes 
for roads coming in from other directions.
Also Ponatahi Road from Martinborough  to Carterton being 80. (And other roads 
changing to 80) I don't believe people will stick to this as it has a huge impact on business 
and profitability in the area. 90 if any change would be much more realistic.
I also would like Pirinoa to change to 50 rather than 60, with 80 coming into town as we 
have to reverse onto Lake Ferry rd when collecting children. And also alot of people 
wander across the rd between the store and the Cafe having parked on the opposite side 
of the road.

No

76 Karen Coltman Yes Yes

77 Storm Robertson No Yes Yes No, they will need separate evaluations based on 
state of road condition, location and 
environmental considerations

78 sue Ball Yes  Yes Yes Yes All of Underhill road plus Bucks 
Road and Algies Road

79 Guusje de 
Schot

De Schot Yes Yes No 1.  Ponatahi Rd from Johns Way to Carterton, I believe this road speed should remain at 
100km/h.  Please keep it at 100km/h.  As part of the "Martinborough back road" it 
provides an alternative route to SH2 for rural drivers - rural freight, rural services, and 
work commuters between Martinborough and Masterton.   Bends and indicative safe 
speeds are well-signed, no passing lines are in places.  Natural road features like curves, 
inclines and declines, camber, slow traffic anyway where it needs to slow.
While the road speed is 100km/h, some vehicles travel at 70, 80, 90, and 100 km/h which 
means traffic can flow easily as passing is possible in well-known places.  If you impose an 
80 km/h speed limit, you'll get queues of traffic behind one car going 80 or 70, and then 
you'll create a new traffic hazard - driver frustration leading to increased impatience and 
impulsive overtaking.  
2. Cape Palliser Rd between Lake Ferry Rd and Whangaimona Rd - please keep at 
100km/h, same reasons as above.  There's a long straight stretch between the Ferry turn 
off and the descent into Whangaimona, both of which naturally slow traffic anyway - 
reducing the speed to 80 km/h will make felons of us ordinary average law-abiding 
sensible drivers.
3. Cape Palliser Rd between Whangaimona Rd and Te Miha Cres (Whatarangi) - please 
make it 80 km/h - if you make it 60 km/h, drivers will sometimes have to sit on 40 km/h 
and frustration will follow.
4.  Cape Palliser Rd between Te Miha Crescent and Tilsons Ave (Ngawi) - please keep the 
road speed at 100 km/h, this road features lovely long stretches of straight road, and its a 
long piece of road - speed reduction will affect rural workers and businesses needing to 
get to and from towns, both ways.
5.  Cape Palliser Rd between Seaview Ave (Ngawi) and Ben Avon Grove (Mangatoetoe) - 
please leave this stretch of road at 100 km/h.  Same reasons as above, plus the roads 
natural features - bends, inclines and declines, cambers, road works - will naturally cause 
traffic to slow.
6.  Cape Palliser Rd between Ben Avon Grove and the end of the road - please make this 80 
km/h not 60 km/h - local drivers currently manage balancing getting from A to B with 
sharing the road with tourists who drive very slowly and frequently stop...a 60 km/h speed 
limit would result in traffic queues and jams in the high tourist times, and frustrated 

I believe Lake Ferry Rd from the north side of the Pirinoa Hall to the south 
side of Pirinoa School, past the Pirinoa Store and Land Girl, should be 30 
km/h.  Especially since the last accident outside the store.  It gets very busy 
in that area and traffic pulling out from the store and Land Girl dont have a 
long sighted view of oncoming traffic due to the roads curve.

80 paul southey No  No No all roads in greytown and carterton no

81 Jayne Parris Yes No No I do not think the speed limit on any of the high priority list need to be reduced.  The road 
to zero will not achieve it's aim by reducing speed limits on these roads. Road 
maintenance is a far better use of council and government money. The reduction on SH2 
that has already taken place does  not achieve anything other than extending the amount 
of time traffic is on the road, along with frustrating frequent travellers between 
Featherston and Masterton, where once you leave those areas you can travel again at 
100k. No sense at all.

none nonone

82 Kevin Nation Yes  Yes Yes

208



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

83 Rachael McGuckian Yes Yes Yes Yes I agree - But I would advocate for the speed limit of 50km along the length of Jellicoe 
Road onto Lake Ferry Road, up to the point of the Martinborough Awhea Road (White 
Rock Road) junction.  This would ensure a consistent speed through to this intersection 
and prevent trucks exiting onto Lake Ferry Road, heading to Martinborough speeding up 
to simply apply their engine breaks before entering the village on Jellicoe Road.   There are 
a number of residential entry points on this early stage of Lake Ferry Road, entering onto 
this road can be dangerous with vehicles regularly travelling over the recommended speed 
of 70km.  Dropping it to 60km will have little impact - be braver and drop it to 50km up to 
White Rock Road.  It will eliminate any confusion.

Given the nature of cycling traffic and pedestrians in the main vineyard road 
of Martinborough, I would advocate a simple approach of 50km within the 
general town boundaries - full stop.  Make is simple for people to comply - 
this would Princess St North, Huangarua to Martins Road.

84 Sam Hunter No No No

85 Joelle Thomson Yes  

 
 

 
 

 
 

Yes Yes Dublin Street in Martinborough has signs that indicate it is a heavy traffic 
bypass, however, this street is the location of Martinborough Primary 
School, which has been here for approximately 150 years. It is full of 
primary school children on bikes, scooters and walking and is, therefore, 
highly inappropriate as a truck bypass. It is also a residential zone and is 
extremely noisy 24/7 with trucks, the majority of which appear to ignore the 
current 40km speed limit. The majority of vehicles travelling down this 
street also ignore the speed limit, which I can see from working from the 
front room of my home, which I have turned into an office.  It is disturbing 
to see and hear the speeding on this street, especially given it is home to a 
primary school. 
I  therefore propose that the permanent speed restriction on this street is 
30km and that speed bumps are installed along with a high number of new 
speed restriction signs and I also propose that the truck bypass be moved to 
a more suitable location - ie, on a street that does not have a primary school 
on it

Yes. Te Muna Road.

86 John Dyckhoff Yes  Yes No No requirement to change the limit on Ponatahi Road No Yes

87 Tanya Cowen Yes Yes Yes The entire block around the square, I live on the corner of Kansas & Naples 
Streets. 
Naples street is a racetrack, esp. when they are driving towards Regent 
Street. And if they are travelling from Regent St end to the square there is 
no slowing down as the swing into Kansas Street. We've even had one car 
miss the street altogether , then drive along the footpath, only to pop out 
on to the street again. Park, & then go to the Puke...!!! Police were notified...

Yes

88 Shelley Hancox Yes  

 
 

Yes No All of them. Can’t see any legitimate justification for lowering these speed limits in such 
a blanket way.  I note that the report (god knows how much that has cost 
over-burdened SWDC ratepayers) lists multiple contributing factors 
including inappropriate speed for conditions to accident and Injury rates but 
the only proposed solution is to reduce speed.

No

89 Denish Kapuria Yes  Yes Yes

90 Jenny Wilkie No No No NO NO

91 Toni Cook Yes  No No Moore street, featherston No

92 Donna Bennett Yes No No

93 Michael Bing No  No

94 Hamish Rees Yes  

 
 

Yes No The proposed roads present very limited risk and the cost benefit of these works is not 
appropriate or necessary. This is especially relevant given the councils current rates 
increases, under funding of key infrastructure and the complete embarrassment that is a 
abatement notice in relation to sewer treatment facilities in Martinborough

Leave the speed limits alone and focus on actual issues rather than following 
a fruitless government led idea that produces little benefit

No No

95 Belinda Milnes No No No No, you are ignoring all the relevant road and accident data. None I strongly object to all the speed restrictions as they are not evidence 
based

No see above None

96 Ceilidh Hooper Yes Yes No

209



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

97 wendy boerman Yes Yes No Recommend Jellicoe street be reduced to 40km at White Rock Road. 
Martinborough school children, cyclists and scooter users as well as those 
on foot, cross Jellicoe twice daily....50km is too fast to stop at a split second 
if needed, especially large trucks, construction and logging, loaded up, these 
guys would never stop in time
to avoid a child . 
In fact, a 40km speed limit within the Martinborough township would be an 
even better idea. All main roads into town and subsidiaries 40km.

n/a n/a

98 Ruby Barker-
Thomson

Yes  Yes Yes Dublin street

99 Tony Allen No  

 
 

 
 

No No Changing the speed limits on rural roads like Ponatahi Road and Cape Palliser Road is a 
nonsense. NZ has 1,000s of kms of these sorts of roads and picking these out further 
enforces the view that these changes are crazy. These are not is the top 1% of dangerous 
roads in NZ. The prime Minister has stated that only the most dangerous 1% are to be 
targeted, why  are they even here?
Further, changes to the speed limits in these sorts of roads will be largely ignored (as has 
happened on SH2) as the chances of being "caught" are pretty much nil. People will drive 
to the conditions as they always have.
Schools etc should have temporary speed reductions. The vast majority of the time these 
institutions are not being used so there is no danger to the kids etc. Why speed limits 
around them need to be permanently changed is way beyond me.

No No they should not. It is mainly locals who use 
them, putting a sign up changing the speed limit 
is not going to change anything. People will still 
use these roads at the same speed they always 
have, don't waste your time.

No

100 Jacqui Eyley No No No The road from Campbell Drive to Brackenridge should be 80km. Trucks are 
too fast here and there are people walking. All roads between towns should 
remain at 100km

No

101 Ceilidh Hooper Yes  

 
 

Yes No Mahaki Road needs to be tar 
sealed as there is an increased 
amount of traffic on this road due 
to the new subdivision. The 
increase traffic means that there 
are more othholes and the re

102 Dylan Firth Yes  

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No Broadly speaking it is disappointing to see the continuation of this work across NZ where 
there has been Government commitment to focus on the 1% of most dangerous roads. I 
would have hoped this focus was continued on with community areas. The myopic focus 
on speed only vs the state of the roads and safety where there is damage is disapointing. It 
should be noted that a huge proportion of the population do not support these measures. 
But do not have the time, understanding or desire to engage with a process that they see 
as a forgone outcome. While I support reducing speeds in areas proven to need it through 
assesment against actual use or number of issues/incidents in the past. For example 
schools, when in use, or high crash areas. Not against a criteria which is so tight it makes 
all urban roads 30kmph and all others 80kmph. Specifically for this proposal I highlight 
concerns with the Ponatahi Rd proposal. This is a large and long stretch of road used for 
commuting and business purposes. A reduction in speed will overly impact travelers and 
users.
It should also be noted in the Tonkin and Taylor report it does not highlight a number of 
key metrics which have been included for other roads in the proposal, such as where the 
speed measurements are taken and vehicle number of movements. It is disappointing that 
there is a lack of consistency here and makes the information hard to asses. But from what 
is provided it states the average speed is already 81kmph on this road. Which seems to 
give a rational for reducing speed, but without the information I have highlighted above, it 
is hard to agree with the justification. I highly disagree with the proposal for this and more 
broadly the whole thing.

no no

103 Guy Walmsley No No No All roads should stay at the current speed limit. Road to Zero is nonsense and a total waste 
of tax payers money. Put the money towards driver education and teach them to 
concentrate. it's not a "joyride". Heavy fines for cellphone useage, repeat 
offences,drink/drug driving.

104 John Tanner Yes Yes No Featherston to Carterton Yea All

210



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

105 Liam Knight Yes  

 
 

 
 

Yes No I disagree with the proposal for Papawai Road, with it proposed to be reduced from 
100km to 60km.  It is a ridiculous proposal given the lack of evidence presented regarding 
accidents under the current 100km and that the proposed reduction to 60km would 
reduce accidents - making it safer.  If the speed were to reduce to 60km - there would be 
limited if nonexistent compliance which I would thought was a significant part of the 
considerations in determining a reduction as safer.  Indeed reducing it to 60km is likely to 
make it less safe - as you see drivers taking matters into their own hands.  There might be 
merit to reducing the speed to 80kms along its length with a further reduction to 50kms - 
100 metres prior to 270 Papawai Road and for the length of Tilsons Road and Hecklers 
Road therafter.  This is likely to ensure compliance with the speed.

106 Eli Thomas No

107 Kelly-Ann Hubbard Yes  

 

Yes No Ponatahi Road & Kokotau Road
These roads are perfectly fine for travelling at 100km in good weather, it makes no sense 
to change the speed.

No - state highway should be increased back to 100 as well. Ridiculous to 
have it changed here but no where else in the country. 
Crap drivers will still crash regardless.

108 Shane Kelly Yes Yes No

109 Julian Greenall Yes Yes

110 Matt Campbell Yes  

 
 

 
 

 

Yes No Poniati road should be excluded because, 
1 ,it's one of the roads in the best condition in wairarapa, if you're not able to drive 
100kph there you might as well make all roads 80kph.
2, slowing traffic  hinders economic productivity and in these times probably not the best 
thing to do. 
3, causes frustration amongst road users as a lot of vehicles travel well under 100kph now 
these same vehicles will more than likely travel well under 80kph, causing people to take 
unnecessary risks to pass just to get up to 80kph.
4, It will push more vehicles on to longbush road to get to Masterson quicker which is 
already happening as a consequence of the road works on state highway 2.
Longbush road is very narrow and windy much more dangerous than Poniati road I would 
have thought.
Leave it be please!

No No

111 Greig Hamlyn No  No No No

112 Liz Larkin Yes  

 
 

 

Yes The back road from Martinborough to Masterton is the only way we go now,  the speed 
limits accompanied with the roadworks  just make the traveling to Masterton to long, we 
will just go over the hill if these changes take place.  You are just going to kill the rural 
townships.  Also I think that there is a hidden agenda of not maintaining our roads.  
Clearing this is the case out at the beach.
The councils needs to stick to what they are good at or coming up with ways to keep our 
rates down.  The system is broken and doesn't need playing with.

Absolutely not We aren't idiots we know how to drive on 
country roads we've done it for years.  Stop 
wrapping us in cotton wool and micro managing 
us.

113 Louise Hight No No No No

114 Angela Sinclair Yes  

 
 

Yes No Ponatahi - this is a well used road as the main link between Martinborough and carterton/ 
masterton. This will increase time to get to masterton for work/ hospital appointments 
and make make Martinborough a less appealing place to live. 
Jellicoe - too many speed changes on one piece of road.

No No N/a

115 Pip Wilkinson Yes  

 
 

 
 

Yes No Ponatahi and Longbush roads need to be 100km roads. These are not heavy traffic roads 
like state highways. We need these to stay as 100km. Restricting speed is still not going to 
get road toll down as there are other factors, fog frost rain etc. We in Nz also dont have 
the Policing Policing Policing staff  to monitor. It is fine as it is.
Longbush - between REIDS road to HINAKURA rd, narrow and windy, not road marked in 
small portion. This needs to have trees removed by vineyard op Whakarua road. New 
culvert has been put in and there is no where to go when meeting oncoming vehicle.  This 
would be suitable to  be reduced in speed . Approx 5km of road

No No.
If you can't drive on gravel stay off them.
I have lived my whole life on gravel and no 
accident. Same as my kids who also drive.
No as they dont have the traffic volume as a main 
road/highway.
People drive to the conditions and not the speed.

None.
To be fair every single person I 
know who lives on gravel 
wouldn't do 100km anyway. 
Again drive to the conditions. 
With gravel they are usually very 
low traffic volume and not an 
issue. If it was a gravel state 
highway absolutely restrict.

116 Fiona Firth Yes No No Ponatahi Rd should not be reduced to 80km, it is a back road access to masterton for 
people from Martinborough and is not dangerous

211



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

117 Richard Le Mare Yes  

 
 

 
 

Yes Yes There is no where to comment, so I'll do it here.
The faster you go the bigger the mess.  Many drivers are so young they lack driving 
experience.
New Zealand drivers are the best tail gaters I have come across.
Slowing down is proven to be safer.
Any thing over 30kph increases the chance of death, especially with a collision with 
pedestrians.
slow down

Yes.  The gravel roads should have slower speed 
limits.  Some times it appears that drivers think 
the are in the Indianappolis 500.

Ruakokopatuna rd

118 Alistair Holmes Yes Yes No All roads No No None

119 Donna Grewal Yes  Yes Yes No Yes N/A

120 Emma Bargh Yes No No Ponatahi - there is no need for a reduced speed limit. There is no major school and no one 
is out walking on the roads or anything. People know to slow down for stock and those 
who travel that road often do so a lot so are aware of pot holes and risks etc.

No - I know very few people who travel 100km 
on gravel roads as it is. People more often than 
not reduce their speed on these roads anyway

121 Tana Klaricich Yes  

 
 

 
 

Yes Yes I BELIEVE THAT SOUTH FEATHERSTON ROAD SHOULD BE 30KM FROM THE 
INTERSECTION OF SH53/SOUTH FEATHERTON ROAD AS THERE ARE A 
NUMBER OF OUR CHILDREN THAT WALK ALONG THAT ROAD TO AND FROM  
 SCHOOL. I ALSO BELIEVE THAT IT SHOULD BE 30KM FOR A GREATER 
DISTANCE AFTER OUR SCHOOL TRAVELLING SOUTH ALONG SOUTH 
FEATHERSTON ROAD, POSSIBLE ANOTHER 100M. FAR TOO MANY VEHICLES, 
INCLUDING LARGE CATTLE TRUCKS AND FARM UTES, ARE STILL GOING WAY 
TOO FAST OVER THE REQUIRED SPEED ZONE AT OUR SCHOOL.

122 Dallas Powell Yes No

123 Daniel Whiting Yes  

 
 

 

Yes No Papwai Road between east street and fabains, has no schools and maria quite far away, its 
a pretty straight road with heaps of time to notice people pulling out of drive ways

put speed back to 100 on state high ways
the problem isnt the road its the stupid driver becomeing statoranry all of a 
sudden with out notice
With lowering the speed limtis that you have alrready done, has cause more 
risk to people on the road due to the fact that people are getting bored on 
disttracteed pulling out there phones or falling asleep behind the wheel

no no

124 Taylor Dewis Yes  

 

Yes No Ponatahi rd. Accidents on that road usually happen on corners. People will still travel at 
80km around those corners which is too fast anyway therefore reducing the speed to 
80km won’t change anything.

Yes

125 Shaun Wethead Yes  Yes Yes Church road in Greytown should be 30km not 60km as noted on the 
interactive map

Yes

126 Hana Pakai Yes Yes Yes I drive to marty everyday using the ponatahi road. Few potholes here and 
there but my biggest issue is the no lines on the outside of the road . When 
it’s foggy the only way I can drive the road is in the middle of the road or 
using the  reflective white Pilar’s.which can be dodgy both ways. Would be 
nice if the road was properly painted so I don’t have to worry when driving 
at night .( i work night shift)

127 Angela McFetridge No No No Ponatahi Road and White Rock Road No - it’s not driver speed, but rather driver 
competence and people cutting corners to miss 
the nightmare that the Whakapuni hill is.

128 Jane Lenting Yes  Yes

129 Abhirami Durairaj Yes  

 
 

Yes Yes The exit from SH2 joining No 1 Line and Morea road along the no 1 line has 
to be limited to atleast 60 kmh. There are quiet a number of properties 
close to the main road and the entry/exit from our property to a 100kmh 
road has been very tricky and dangerous. Could you please consider? I am 
happy to discuss. Thanks

130 Jane Lenting Yes  Yes Yes no don't know N/A

131 Meg Excell Yes  

212



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

132 Wilfred Van Beek Yes  

 
 

No No People should drive according to the conditions. Most accidents happen when people go 
over the speed limit or are fatigued. Lowering the speed limit doesn't stop people from 
speeding. The list of roads to comment on is too long to comment on in this survey. State 
highways should be 100km/h. And there should be an opportunity to pass slow vehicles.

No No. Just tarseal gravel roads

133 Bernadette Saywell Yes  

 
 

No No The ideology of the policy makers aspirational concept of Road to Zero is flawed. Have 
they not factored in that us as humans make mistakes.
Creating different speed zones in towns around schools and /or marae is realistic however 
changing speed in other areas of a town and in certain streets  is piecemeal and unrealistic.

keep reminding people to drive to the conditions and improve road safety 
with better maintained roads.

In this day and age there should be no gravel 
roads.

134 Pieter Van Beek No No No Because it cost time for people travelling.
Even if it's  1 minute per person per day, if you times that by the amount of people 
travelling it adds up

Same

135 Catherine Mitchell No  

 
 

No No All the roads should be excluded  This is a stupid plan with no doubt a sinister objective of 
not saving lives but revenue gathering for Central Government. In addition I take offence 
to the countless increases in rates over the years not being spent on crap water but 
unnecessary sign changes and speed bumps! Roll on the changes of government who will 
kick this stupid idea into touch!

No, Status quo please. No None

136 Barry Brailey No  

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No Most (probably all) of the reductions appear completely unnecessary. The cost of new 
signage alone would be a flagrant waste of money, for speed reductions that are not 
supported by credible evidence that they will in some way make roads safer.

I do support temporary speed reductions around all schools during school hours, it should 
be noted that schools only operate 5 days a week for about 40 weeks a year. Meaning that 
80% of the time children are not present hence permanent speed reductions seem 
excessive, to say the least.

This plan, if implemented, will significantly impact travel time around the Wairarapa and is 
likely only necessary because so much traffic now avoids SH2 (due to excessive speed 
reduction there also). For businesses and workers within the region, this is annoying at 
best and probably costly for those that travel as part of their work.

No, this process is a waste of ratepayer money. No N/A

  137 rachel cooper Yes  Yes Yes

138 K Gruender Yes  

 
 

 
 

No No Ponatahi Road. There is absolutely no need for a 80kmh limit. This is the main connection 
between Martinbourough and Masterton for people traveling to work, school, childcare, 
supplies, tradespeople, deliveries, freight etc. It's in good order and mostly open with no 
tight corners and many long open stretches with excellent visibility. Yellow lines are in 
place  at the right areas already and anyone with some common sense will slow down for 
a corner. There are no schools, major businesses or many houses along the road. Blanket 
lower limits will lead to frustration, delays, cost increases for tradespeople and an increase 
of accidents bc people will overtake slow cars and ignore the speed limit anyway.

You could consider 80kmh limit for all gravel 
roads. Hardly anyone will be going faster anyway 
as this is unsafe. Maybe. How about lowering the 
speed limit to 80 or 60 on all gravel roads? 
100kmh limit on the is typically ridiculous and 
would be very unsafe. Especially with the terrible 
maintenance gravel roads have had in the last 
few years.  80km or 60km signs on gravel roads 
like the popular route to Tora beach might make 
visitors slow down and not crash because they 
are going too fast.

Tora Road. Terribly maintained in 
the last few years by council, 
visitors struggle with the road 
conditions and locals ruin their 
cars having to drive on it. 80kmh 
limit may make people slow 
down.Tora Road (gravel part)? 
Alternatively, invest in some 
tarseal of particularly bad 
stretches?!

139 Abby Hammersley Yes  

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No The Ponatahi road should not be reduced to 80kms, the road is used to bypass the main 
drag from Masterton to Martinborough via Greytown and I think more crashes would 
occur due to impatient drivers if the speed were to be reduced. 100km is a comfortable 
speed limit for that road and if people aren’t comfortable they can drive slower. Drive the 
road nearly everyday for work and 100kms is a safe reasonable speed. The Cape Palliser 
road should also not be reduced.  If people aren’t comfortable they can go slower and 
drive to conditions but the road is perfectly fine to drive 100kms for the most part. Rural 
roads shouldn’t be considered in lowering speeds. If you don’t know how to drive to 
conditions and slow down for corners regardless of speed then you shouldn’t be driving at 
all. The speed at the Gladstone area shouldn’t be reduced either. speeding isn’t the issue. 
There should be a stop sign on the Gladstone road turn off as people just simply pull out of 
intersection and don’t look for traffic. Also drive Te whiti road nearly every day too and 
100kms is safe it’s just the people who don’t look when pulling onto road from Gladstone 
Rd.

No No

213



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

140 Trudy Tannant No  No No

141 Doug Harris Yes  

 
 

Yes No (1) Longbush road. Ridiculous to reduce the speed here in the same was as the main road 
Featherston-Masterton. Unless you want to encourage people to check phones, make 
calls, send txts etc. These are long or curvy roads, mainly with good visibility. Not accident 
areas of note.
(2) Tora road from Tuturumuri. 80k is good 60k is ridiculous, just as 100k is. 70k is 
appropriate but Lisa don't seem to use this so if not 70 then Definitely not 60, yes 80k

As above 70k on the gravel to 
Tora

142 Manu Didsbury No  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No Cape palliser road
Ponatahi road 
Te whiti
These roads are safe 100kmph speed limit roads if people are: 
-Not speeding (over 100kmph)
-Haven't been drinking or on any form of drugs.
-Are not on their phone and actually watching the road Not looking at a cow or a sheep if 
you want to see a animal go to a zoo with everyone else
-And driving to the road conditions as if the roads are wet you drive slower if the roads are 
dry faster in a corner use your breaks. 
Main thing I'm trying to get across is that people are going to keep crashing even at 
80kmph if they are not watching the road or can't drive a car and in that case they should 
be at home. 
Also since the main highway from masterton to fetherston has been reduced there has 
been a lot more traffic on ponatahi road and te whiti and from what I've seen they do not 
know how to drive these roads it's bloody dangerous they can't go around a corner 
without slamming on the breaks and going 60 often taking locals by surprise as these 
corners are usually 80 to 100 corners.
If this proposal goes ahead it will not stop people from speeding as if someone goes 120 or 
150 in a 100 they are going to do 120 or 150 in a 80kmph speed limit if they want to break 
the law they will and they are the people that die or kill innocent others not people driving 
to the conditions that know how to drive. 
I hope this makes sense to you all and I hope you make the right decision for the rural and 
local community who use and live on there roads and to who it will negatively affect the 
most with no positive outcome for us. 
And as for 30 past schools that's just ridiculous. And a speed limit past a Marae is silly I 
have Maori in me I'm not racist but a Marae is a meeting place for Maori much the same 
as where any people meet whatever the race and if they can't pull out of the driveway of 
the Marae safely how can they pull put of their own driveway at home. 
Thanks for your time 

No. Gravel roads should be driven to the 
conditions. And also the drivers experience on 
gravel as a person that has lived on a gravel road 
can drive in straight parts safely at 80+kmph, but 
a (towny) or person that has never or rearly 
driven gravel might only be able to go 30 to 40 
safely. If people can't recognize this they 
shouldn't have been given a driver's license or 
should stick to the highway.

143 Rochelle McCarty No  

 
 

 
 

No No This is absolutely ridiculous. The speed limit on state highway 2 has been reduced to 80 
and now people drive at 60.  Now when you drive through town at 10 pm there are no 
cars you still have to drive 40 this will be the same when driving past schools and maraes
There is no need for all roads in town to go to 40.  There are already speed restrictions 
past schools so why change it.  Cape palliser road should not be reduced neither should 
underhill road

No

144 Dunan MacKay No No No No the speed limit has been working for decades No No

145 Emma McGregor No  No No I significantly disagree with most of the proposed speed amendments. No No No

146 Richard Coltman Yes  

147 Brian Deverill Yes  No Yes

148 Mark Latimer No  

 
 

 
 

No No There are already  speed restrictions on the schools when schools are operating if they are 
not working then need  policing not more  restrictions. 
Police the people that are complying.
And stop punishing normal road users  with  un thought out speed restrictions.
And for the rates you  have  now doubled of mine I don't  want  spent on this rubbish  pay 
off  the debts so we are not going to get hammered even more.

No No

214



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

149 Kim Lace Yes  Yes No No

150 colin fenwick Yes Yes No The Ponatahi Road.   This is a very good road with very little serious accidents. The only 
improvement would be a passing lane coming into Martinborough.

All gravel roads should be reduced to 80 kph. Yes. All gravel roads.

151 Petra Fransen Yes  

 
 

No No Yes, Ponatahi Road. Largely straight rural road. 
Back roads of Carterton - road works are temporary and once completed the risk will be 
lowered and less traffic on back roads. Easily managed with temporary signs  until road 
works are finished. 
For all Marae - lower speed limits should be for events only. The risk is lower than schools 
as Marae are generally less busy day to day - events are the exception.

No.  From my personal experience the lowering of speed limits has caused 
more frustration and lack of concentration when driving.

No I don’t think it’s necessary. Drivers  already 
adjust speed on gravel roads due to conditions 
and regardless of speed limits.

152 Brendon Redfern No  

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No Longbush Rd, Papawai Rd, the reduced speed to 30kph around schools and early 
childhood centres, Riverside Rd. 
1/ Any speed limit review should only be done following majority support from ratepayers.
2/. Any review should be postponed until the general election as a new government may 
reverse NZTA's speed reduction plan. So why waste rate payers money on doing it now.
3/. I regularly travel on the abovementioned roads by many modes of transport including 
on a bicycle and believe in particular, the papawai and longbush reductions are completely 
unnecessary. 
4/. Productivity of our region is being effected by speed reductions. 
5/. The Papawai marae is already in a speed reduced section, so it is unnecessary to 
reduce the limit for the whole Papawai road, for such a small distance that the marae 
occupies toward the end of Papawai road.
6/. It is unconstitutional to impede the travel of motorists for the majority of times that 
schools and maraes are not  in att

No. No. None.

153 Alistair Mackenzie Yes  

 
 

No No Sh53 Kitchiner St should only a speed restriction in the square area and 500m West were 
resteraunts & shops are ( the CBD)

We would like to see the heavy Duty truck bypass Dublin st  reduced to 30 
km/hr the presence of a school, swimming pool etc means a large number 
of school aged pedestrians. The bypass is not fit for class 1  road  (zone 
Kitchiner SH53 - Princess St 
 ,Dublin St to Jellico St

No leave as current 
Driver common sense should apply!

154 Richard Kirton Yes Yes Yes In general I support the lowering of speed limits for safety across the 
Wairarapa. I believe the proposal should go further to lower the speed limit 
on all main roads within the region. Safety of vehicle users is not the only 
aspect of safer roads. The safety of walkers, runners and cyclists need to be 
considered. From an environmental perspective we need to encourage low 
carbon travel. Lower speed limits on often travelled roads encourages the 
use of cycling particularly as a means of transport. We are lagging the rest of 
NZ in terms of cycleways and safe cycling options. Our rural roads are 
narrow and unsafe. Lowering the speed limits adds mere minutes to vehicle 
travel but can be the difference between life and death for other users.

The roads I would encourage you to consider in the SW region are:
- Woodside Rd to the Train station. Very busy high speed road.
- SH 53 between Featherston and Martinborough
- Bidwells cutting Rd to SH53 intersection
- Wards Line
- Western Lake Rd from Featherston to Cross Creek turn off.
- Longbush to Martinborough (Part of Tour Aotearoa)

Yes Underhill Rd (North) - Woodside 
station to the road end
Underhill Rd (South) - 
Featherston to the Road end

155 jim hedley No No No All roads need to stay at their existing speeds.  The Road to Zero means nobody will be 
able to drive these roads unless they are doing Zero.  People make mistakes at all speeds, 
just because you have a speed limit for it doesn't mean they will abide by it.   Drivers have 
to drive to the conditions of the road and the majority do, but you are implementing a 
policy that is not enforceable to the minority that don't worry about the conditions and 
the speed limit set.  by putting a lower speed limit will never fix that.

No gravel roads are treated with respect and 
accordingly those that live or drive alot on them 
drive to the conditions of those roads.

215



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

156 Chris Rawson No No No No No - in general, people are already travelling at 
safe and reasonable speeds for the conditions of 
these roads.

N/AFirst of all, I make this submission in full knowledge that the Council is highly likely to 
ignore any and all public feedback on this speed management plan and go with whatever 
its "preferred option" might be, just as NZTA did during its sham consultation over the 
speed reductions on SH2. It's clear by the structuring of this consultation's survey that the 
Council is only doing the bare minimum required in seeking public feedback while also 
attempting to "subtly" steer any submitted feedback toward supporting the Council's 
position that these speed reductions are "necessary". In my considered opinion as a local 
resident and regular user of these roads, and someone who has successfully driven a wide 
variety of vehicles for over 30 years without causing a single fatality, no, these speed 
reductions are not in any way necessary. I am, in general, opposed to *all* proposed 
speed reductions because the statistics around the number of fatalities and/or injuries per 
million kilometres travelled and/or million vehicles travelling a particular stretch of road 
do not appear to support the assertion that these speed reductions are necessary. I also 
object to the methodology Tonkin & Taylor has used to identify "safe and appropriate 
speeds" for these roads - the same flawed methodology they used in their absurd 
recommendations for speed reductions on SH2. Their analysis of these roads appears to 
be based on an algorithm, eg number of curves per section of road / width of the road / 
surrounding environment / et cetera … and *not* based in any way on, for example, 
*actually driving on these roads*.  Local drivers who are familiar with these roads have no 
issues travelling safely on them at the existing speed limits; drivers from outside the region 
who are not familiar with the roads have the OPTION to travel on these roads at a rate 
below the speed limit if they feel safer doing so. As NZTA is often fond of saying, "It's a 
limit, not a target", and the speeds on these roads should not be reduced to the lowest 
common denominator and force skilled local drivers with high familiarity of these roads 
and their features to travel at an absurdly low speed just because tourists from outside 
the district feel safer travelling at those speeds (or because consultants in Auckland and 
Wellington, not familiar with the actual road conditions have analysed a "safe and 
appropriate speed" via an algorithm rather than actual driving experience). I am 
additionally opposed to all suggested speed reductions under the "Road to Zero" 
campaign because NZTA has already been directed by the Prime Minister to scale back the 
scope of their changes to speed limits in New Zealand under this campaign, for a variety of 
reasons which include lack of public support for the changes. NZTA's public consultation 
around their speed limit changes has been a farce, and they have explicitly admitted in 
their response to an OIA I issued over their speed reductions on SH2 that they never had 
any intention of respecting public feedback on the speed reductions *or* exploring any 
safety improvements to these roads *instead of* speed reductions. Considering the 
already low Police presence on local roads, I am mystified as to how the Council proposes 
to enforce these lower speeds anyway - Police have to come all the way from Masterton 
to patrol these roads, and in general they do not bother patrolling much outside SH2 itself. 
I also know via people familiar with the matter that many sworn Police personnel are 
growing tired of having to focus so much on speed enforcement to the expense and 
neglect of other priority work; these proposals will only add more unwelcome and frankly 
unneeded work to an already overburdened enforcement organisation. To reiterate, I am 
opposed to *all* of the proposed speed reductions, but I am particularly and vehemently 
opposed to the following proposals:

1. Reduction of the existing open-road limits on Cape Palliser Road - the proposed speed 
reduction to 80 kph from Lake Ferry Road to just past Whangaimoana Beach Road (where 
I live) is ridiculous. This is a wide, fairly well-maintained road with good visibility, and there 
are two sections of the road that are perfectly straight for more than a kilometre. There is 
no good reason for anyone to be forced to drive 20 kph slower than the current limit on 
this stretch of road. Past Whangaimoana Beach Road, there is also little to no justification 
for any explicit speed limits, because the nature of the road imposes a speed lower than 
100 kph on most drivers anyway, or at least it does on the curvy / narrow sections - the 
straightaways just before Ngawi are perfectly safe to travel at the existing open-road limit 
of 100 kph.
2. I also strenuously oppose the reduction of the speed limits on Ponatahi Road between 
Martinborough and Carterton from the current open-road limit to anywhere from 80 kph 
all the way down to 60 kph. This road has become a vital bypass corridor for locals trying 
to efficiently transit east-west (and vice versa) across the district without hitting the 
absurd traffic snarl that SH2 has become thanks to NZTA's "improvements" to the 
formerly most-efficient arterial route through the district. This road is also fairly well-

              
                

               
 

                
               

                
               

  
              
              

            
                 

           

216



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

157 Lee Carter Yes No No Please leave all targeted high priority roads at the same road speed they are currently at.  
There is no need to reduce the speed of your indicated high priority roads.

no No, people should understand the fabric of the 
road they are driving on and drive to the road 
condition  - as simple as that.

n/a

158 Cerelia Diprose No  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No No - your ratepayers apply common sense in our 
use of roads, including gravel roads.

                 
               

               
               

              
           

              
               

               
               

             
            

               
              

              
             

                   
               

                
               

                  
                   

                 
             

               
              

             
            
            

               
                 

             
               

                 
             

           
                

                
                

               
               

              
            

              
    

               
               

                
                 

                  
               

                
                   

              
  
               

             
                  
             

             
y    g        y 

maintained with generally good visibility, and locals familiar with this road have no issue 
travelling it safely under the existing speed limits. Reducing the limit on this route to 80 
kph or less all but eliminates any efficiency gained in bypassing SH2 when transiting across 
the district.
3. I oppose posting explicit speed limits on Whangaimoana Beach Road, which is the road I 
live on. Residents and visitors are already travelling at safe and reasonable speeds for the 
local conditions, especially since more than half of this road is gravel. There is no benefit 
to be gained by posting explicit limits here when everyone using this road is already 
travelling it safely.
In conclusion, I am opposed to the entirety of the Council's speed management proposals 
for the reasons outlined above, and I am particularly and strenuously opposed to the 
changes proposed for Cape Palliser Road, Whangaimoana Beach Road, and Ponatahi Road. 
I welcome the opportunity to speak at a hearing in support of my position, especially if I 
have the option to speak remotely via Teams / Zoom / etc.

All of them should be excluded. You’ve significantly increased our rates, and your 
communications about why explicitly state that the deteriorating condition of our roads is 
a major driver for this.

Dropping speed limits and adding extra rules is a cop out - you’ve used the same 
consultancy NZTA and the ‘Road to Zero’ programme used, and it became abundantly 
clear that reducing speed limits was shorthand for ‘we don’t intend to appropriately 
maintain the roads concerned, so we’re going to reduce the speed limits and wash our 
hands of the matter’.

“It’s not a target” is an ethos clearly applied by locals on ALL roads for which you have 
proposed speed reductions. I am a frequent traveller, in cars and motorcycles, on all of 
them, and I consistently observe drivers choosing speeds appropriate to the conditions on 
all of them.

The design of this survey makes it clear, as in so many other cases, that this consultation is 
designed to railroad submitters into not speaking on the whole issue. As such, I’m using 
this text field to supply additional feedback beyond your questions.

If you spend any time travelling on the South Wairarapa roads tapped for speed limit 
reductions, you would know that locals already exercise common sense in selecting 
speeds appropriate to the conditions. The hazardous nature of the roads during cold, 
rainy, and foggy conditions should not be used to justify speed limit reductions that 
prevent us from travelling at 100kph when conditions are safe to do that.

What you should do, in the short term, is post signs in areas where the surface is 
compromised to indicate that the road may be slippery when wet or icy. It’s easy to see 
which areas have compromised surfaces… some areas on Kahutara Road and Lake Ferry 
Road (particularly the 8km stretch from Martinborough to the first bend on Lake Ferry 
Road) reflect so much light even in winter that one can think, in fog, that there is 
oncoming traffic even when there isn’t. Fix the roads, instead of regulating to compensate 

   

               
              
              

                
       

                 
              
       

              
               
            

      

               
              217



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

159 DOUG ROWAN Yes  

 
 

 
 

 
 

No No It is well knoqwn practice that speed reductions occur with supporting data which includes 
crash history , minor and serious injury crash data , fatal crash data , to arbitrairily reduce 
speed limits because NZTA have a mandate for some areas is an absurdity, why are 
motorists to be punished and made to drive at a 30kph speed limit in a 50 kph area when 
there has been no crash history to support a reduction, i whole heartedly support variable 
speed limits around all schools due to the vulnairability of children , its also absurd to want 
reductions around marae , and not shoping centres , churchs, libraries, petrol stations who 
receive more traffic flow , also if Council were foolish enough to reduce speed limits to 
30kph who ias going to enforce the spped limit , certainly not the police they have very 
little capacity now , when did you last see a speed camera van in Martinborough  , a police 
car carrying out dedicated speed enforcement , have you obtained police speed tickets 
issued data to support a problem with speeding drivers , please dont get sucked into trhe 
police and NZTA's road to zero schemme , this exact programme was established in the 
late 2010 to 2013 era under a different name , it failed thjen as it will now due to lack of 
resourcing , ability and will

160 Robert Carter Yes No No do not reduce speeds on any roads - leave road speeds as is.  There is no need to change 
the road speed.

no no - do not change an gravel roads speed limits none

161 David Houston Yes Yes No Reducing Ponatahi road to 80 is seems unecessary and frustrating.  The  bends and curves 
already limit a large number of 100 km/h stretches.  I suspect it will lead to more 
aggravated drivers on the road, and at times when this is the only exit from 
Martinborough during flooding, it will slow down an already slow process.

Princess street to Dublin Street in Martinborough should be slowed down at 
the curve transition.  Along with safety issues for children and pedestrians 
crossing in this area, trucks frequently use engine breaking leading up to the 
corner, causing excessive noise, often early in the morning.  Also the 30 
zone around the Martinborough school should extend to Jellicoe.  There's 
no reason to have 50 km/h for two blocks when residents are already 
exhausted with truck and traffic noise.

No opinion.

162 Matthew Connelly Yes  

 
 

 
 

Yes No The reduction in speed out Ponatahi all the way to Carterton. There is no need for that to 
be 80km/h. The roads are good, plenty of visibility (yes, people should reduce speed on 
the corners, as you would on any road). Driveways have good visibilty. I can't understand 
reducing the speed here.

Yes, in Martinborough it shoud be 30km/h on the following:
Princess street from Kitchener to Dublin. Dublin Street from Princess to 
Jellico. Reason being, with Considine park (pool, park, and potential pump 
track) heaps of Children play along the road, and cross the road. Then on 
Dublin, heaps of children walk to school, crossing wherever. This will 
increase safety of our children, elderly, dogs, and general population making 
use of these facilities. Too many trucks, and other vehicles come racing 
down Princess rounding the corner onto Dublin.  A side effect will be a 
reduction in noise from empty stock trucks.

             
             

    

                
             

             
               

   

                  
               

             
  

                  
               

         

               
            

             
              

            

                 
                 

             
              
                 

              
for their dismal condition.

The Labour government’s Road to Zero policy was misguided enough to be an issue that 
drove voters away from them, and when this was recognised, the party abandoned the 
policy. This council should do similarly - as implementing this policy would incentivise me 
(and no doubt many other ratepayers) to vote for an alternative council as soon as the 
next opportunity to do so presents itself. 

We have supported you in raising our rates by 39% because we were led to believe that 
this would enable you to maintain our roads better, thereby making our travels around 
the rural south Wairarapa safer and more efficient.

I’m tired of consultation after consultation about speed limits. I’m tired of the implication 
that drivers can’t make good decisions - if that’s your opinion, please advocate for policies 
that mandate professional driver training at learner and restricted license stages, and 
periodic practical testing for fully licensed drivers.

I have some measure of faith in our council to make better decisions than speed 
reductions - but should you go through with this, that faith will be lost entirely.

218



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

163 sam beesley No  

 
 

 
 

No No The blanket reduction in speed across the region is nonsense solution to reduce harm and 
fatalities and the main government policy of road to zero is likely to be binned at the next 
election by the new incoming government. Poor driver training, elderly drivers unable to 
maintain a reasonable speed, poor maintenance of vehicles or driving very old poorly 
designed vehicles, poor maintenance of existing road infrastructure, risk taking behaviour, 
drug driving, inattention and general distractions, inadequate vision acuity,   are far more 
significant inputs that speed alone.  Existing speeds should be left as they are and other 
factors addressed

none no no

164 Tracey Phelps No No No The main highway between Masterton and Featherston should be 100 No No No

165 Matthew Wos No No No No No N/A - should be out of scope

166 Heidi Addis Yes  No No People who don’t know how to drive on gravel 
roads shouldn’t be on them!

167 Karen Duncalf Yes  

 
 

No Around schools I agree with the reduce speed limits. Reducing speeds on State Highways 
is ridiculous and will cause more accidents.

I feel Mahaki Road should have a speed restriction as some
Trucks come down so fast.

Some yes, Mahaki Road is a rough road to go 
down when it is really bad. I would like to see this 
done as a proper road instead of having to keep 
being scraped because of all the potholes.

Mahaki Road

168 Linda Mackenzie Yes Yes Yes SH53 Kitchener Street CBD, Dublin Street from Princess to Jellicoe Street 
should be 30kph, particularly passing the school. To help with the noise of 
heavy trucks 24 hrs a day I believe that the restriction p0ut in place for 
repairs should remain.

169 Terina Kaiwai Yes Yes Yes Corner of Reading Street, Mc Master street. Dangerous corner, very busy 
with kindy, retirement village and school. One side of road has no footpath . 
It’s a really dangerous corner

No

170 Raewyn Castle Yes No No Ponatahi Road should not be reduced to 40km, I think if the speed needs to be lowered 
80km is more appropriate .  Also Puratanga Road, the only dangerous component of that 
road is the cyclists

Yes

171 Barry O'Neale Yes No

172 MCB See Written submission

173 Louise Lyster No No No See Written submission

174 Taison Pelman

175 Joanne Smith See Written submission

176 Michael Dennes No No No Preference would be for variable speed zones around schools and maraes with electric 
signs. Blanket low speed limits at all times are less effective.

No

219



# First Name Last
Name

Q1.Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Schools?

 
 

Q3:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed 
approach and 

principles around 
Marae?

Q4:  Do you agree 
with the Councils' 

proposed approach 
to the high priority 
roads included in 
this document?

If you answered no, is there a road on the high priority list that you think should be 
excluded? Please identify it and give your reason why.

Q5: Are there any roads (excluding State Highways) not included in the 
above that you believe should be included in the Draft Speed Management 
Plan? Please include the reason these areas should be included. Any roads 
you suggest will be presented to councils for consideration. 

Q6: Should gravel roads be highlighted in our 
speed review and considered alongside our high 
priority roads?

Please list any specific gravel 
roads you would like us to 
consider. Any roads you suggest 
will be presented to council for 
consideration. 

177 Pauline Hedley Yes No No All roads within the SWDC boundaries need to remain what they are now. Responsibility is 
on the driver to drive to road conditions

If you lower speeds on rural roads this will not stop bad driving. 
Accountability is on the driver to drive to the conditions lowering the speed 
limit will not stop a driver falling asleep at the wheel, hitting power poles 
will still cause death.

No Gravel roads are treated with 
respect from drivers who 
commute on them a lot. Crashes 
only occur with inexperienced 
drivers not use to gravel - we 
don't want speed limites to be 
turned into money making for 
governments. We don't have 
enough police for urban crime, 
let alone out of the way rural 
roads.

178 Elisabeth Creevey No No No Arbour place - no need. Extreamly slow driving rates exist. See attached submission. Bidwells cutting from SH2 to Moroa Rd. This involves SH2 as it impacts on 
Bidwells Cutting Road safety. See submission attached. 

No

179 Shelley Frow Yes No - many marae 
are infrequently 

used. Introducing 
signage identifying 

marae. Do not 
dramatically 

reduce speed on 
open roads.

No Improve/provide driving lessons and fix pot holes. Don't waste our money on road 
hearings. Ponatahi Road, Kokotau Road. Largely starigh roads. You are reducing access to 
Carterton and Masterton and increasing cost to freight items.

No

180 David Frow Yes No No No. Ponatahi, Kokatau, Somerset, Chester, Lake Ferry, Cape Palliser Roads. 
Not reduced to 80 or 60. Claim that records for priority 3 roads show 3 or 
more fatal or severe crashes. Show me the data.

No

181 James Doohan Yes Yes Yes Maybe all of oxford street martinborough because of side streets and 
people and cars coming away from golf course. 

Yes Maybe Hinekura Rpad, Kahutara. 
Maybe Pukio West Road, 
Kahutara, Maybe Wharetoto 
Road, Kahutara.

182 Greytown 
Community 

 Board

See Written submission

183 Ministy of 
Education

See Written submission

220



Anne Hynds – 007 
Photos to support submission 

221



 

222



 
 

 
 
 

223



 
 
 

224



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

225



226



 
The Speed Review 2023 submissions hearings and deliberations meeting is scheduled for 16
August 2023.
 
I can now confirm your presentation as follows:
 
Name: John Monro
Your Presentation Time: 10.45am
Date: Wednesday, 16 August 2023
Location:  Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, 62 Texas Street, Martinborough
 
If your presentation time is inconvenient, please respond to this message no later than
Wednesday 9 August, 3pm with a preference for a morning or afternoon slot and we will
accommodate requests where possible. Please note, due to the high volume of people making
submissions we are unable to guarantee changes to your presentation time.
 
If you no longer wish to speak, please let me know so we can alter the schedule accordingly.
 
To make your presentation to Council, please arrive in plenty of time, we suggest 10 minutes
early as the hearings will run to time.  Quietly take a seat in the public area and you will be called
to the table when it is your turn to present your submission.  You are welcome to stay and listen
to other presentations either before or after your submission.  When you leave the building, exit
via the main reception area and sign out. 
 
You are allotted 5 minutes.  It is suggested that you make your presentation during the first 3
minutes and allow 2 minutes for questions from councillors.  Your allotted time includes both
your presentation time and time for questions from councillors.  Due to time pressures use of
electronic equipment for presentations is discouraged and the interactive screen will not be
available.
If you want to view the agenda, your submission, other submissions, or the officers summary of
submissions, the documents will be loaded to our website here at least 2 working days before
the meeting: https://swdc.govt.nz/meeting/hearings-committee-16-august-2023-regulatory-
policies/
 
When the hearings are completed the South Wairarapa District Mayor and councillors will move
into deliberations and make recommendations to Council.
 
If you have any questions, please let me know.
 
Ngā mihi
Amy
 
Amy Andersen
Committee Advisor (pronouns: She/Her/Hers)

<image001.png>
South Wairarapa District Council
06 306 9611 ext 826
PO Box 6  Martinborough 5741
19 Kitchener Street  Martinborough 5711
www.swdc.govt.nz

227



 
Please consider the environment before printing this e-Mail.
This message is intended solely for the recipient and may contain confidential or privileged information.
If you have received this e-mail in error please notify the sender and delete.

228



Submission to SWDC on Speed Review 

July 2023 

From Storm Robertson, , Mar�nborough 

First and foremost, I generally support the Speed Review Plan, however there 
are a number of items that need greater detail and considera�on.  

As a general rule considera�on should be given to trea�ng like or similar areas 
in one standard form. For example, all schools and early childcare centres need 
to be set at 30km/h. this would provide consistency and deliver a fixed and 
standard message. It would avoid the poten�al for drivers not to acknowledge 
when variable changes come in to play. The only way it could be acceptable is 
to post variable speed zones signs when a variable speed zone is installed. 
Otherwise, as stated, you are leaving the legal status of such roads to 
interpreta�on. 

Refer the data collected to support the introduc�on of variable speed zone 
signs for school zones undertaken in Christchurch in the early 2000’s. This led 
to an acceptable standard for such zones (archived.ccc.govt.nz) 

Mar�nborough Township 

1. In Mar�nborough we should look at trea�ng geographic areas with a
speed zone treatment that reflects the loca�on. For example, the
Memorial Square loca�on, incorpora�ng the block covered by Ohio,
Naples, Cork and Strasbourge Streets should all be set to 30lm/h, and
incorporate all streets that fall within that zone.

2. The next stage would cover the block comprising Princess, New York,
Regent and Dublin Streets and all roads, not covered in item 1., that fall
within that zone, should all be set at 40km/h.

These two sectors will be self-managed but may contain zones of different 
speeds within them. 

In addi�on to the 30km/h speed zone defined around the Memorial Square 
considera�on should be given to crea�ng street furniture, or similar, to be 
placed in and around the road that surrounds the actual square. NZTA has 
mul�ple sugges�ons as to what and how such treatments could be applied. 

077

229



The reasoning being that such furniture has the effect of grabbing the driver’s 
aten�on and therefore adding to controlling their driver behaviour. 

As Mar�nborough is now recognised as a des�na�on, tourists come here for 
specific purposes. Prominent is the hospitality sector with our wide variety of 
wineries, eateries and cafes available and we should be proac�ve in making 
visits to these loca�ons as safe as possible.  

One very important area to look at is the Huangarua / Putuatanga Rds, and 
surrounding roads, home to many wineries / eateries, within easy walking or 
cycling distance from the township. Considera�on should be given to making 
this a 40km/h zone, except for the inner township zone, to be consistent with 
the speeds we are looking at for the area. This may cause issues for business 
people moving about the area so perhaps a beter op�ons would be the 
establishment of a shared cycle / pedestrian pathway. This should become a 
priority. This could run from the Square along Oxford Street to Todds Rd, from 
the intersec�on of Todd’s and Puruatanga Rd to Princess Street and then from 
Princess Street along Kitchener back to the Square. 

There appears to be something missing from the review, and that is data that 
confirms the changing of a speed zone indicator has an impact on driver 
speeds. In fact many studies, both here and overseas, suggest that the 
changing of speed indica�on on their own do not achieve the desired speed 
reduc�on. I would ques�on whether this single ac�on approach of changing 
the speed via signage will deliver the appropriate outcome. It is my experience 
that reinforcement at the �me of change, be it temporary or permanent, is 
required to bring about a change in driver behaviour.  So what addi�onal things 
are proposed to help with reinforcement? 

Finally I would draw your aten�on to one of the published Q & A’s. 

Q. How do you make drivers slow down to the set speeds? 

A. We are only responsible for se�ng the road speed limits, the policing of 
vehicle speeds is the responsibility of NZ Police. 

This is a very poor response because you actually have a number of op�ons 
available to get drivers to recognise and conform to speed changes and that are 
not just enforcement. For some key areas simple ac�on like narrowing the road 
width beyond the speed change, pu�ng judder bars of rumble strips at the 

230



entrance or just past the change can have a reinforcing effect. Have any of 
these op�ons, or others, been considered? 

Storm Robertson 

231



232



233



234



235



236



237



Submission to SWDC on Speed Review 

July 2023 

From Mar�nborough Community Board (MCB) 

First and foremost, MCB generally support the Speed Review Plan, however we 
would consider these to be only part of a wider plan for the township.  

We consider trea�ng like or similar areas in one standard form will ul�mately 
deliver a beter solu�on and provide consistency for residents and tourists 
alike. For example, we believe all schools, rural or otherwise, and early 
childcare centres need to be set at 30km/h. This would provide consistency and 
deliver a fixed and standard message to all as they travel through our region. 
The risk to rural school children should not be any different to urban school 
children. 

The only way it could be acceptable is to post variable speed zones with a 
variable speed zone sign installed. Such a sign would change the regulated 
speed electronically to coincide when school children are moving about the 
zone.Otherwise, as stated, you are leaving the legal status of such roads to 
interpreta�on and placing rural school children at increased risk, and not too 
many would support that.  

Refer the data collected to support the introduc�on of variable speed zone 
signs for school zones undertaken in Christchurch in the early 2000’s. This led 
to an acceptable standard for such zones (archived.ccc.govt.nz) 

Mar�nborough Township 

1. In Mar�nborough we should look at trea�ng geographic areas with a
speed zone treatment that reflects the loca�on. For example, the
Memorial Square, incorpora�ng the block covered by Ohio, Naples, Cork
and Strasbourge Streets should all be set to 30lm/h, and incorporate all
streets that fall within that zone.

2. The next stage would cover the block comprising Princess, New York,
Regent and Dublin Streets and all roads, not covered in item 1., that fall
within that zone. All should be set at 40km/h.

These two sectors will be self-managed but may contain zones of different 
speeds within them. 

172

238



In addi�on to the 30km/h speed zone defined around the Memorial Square 
considera�on should be given to crea�ng furniture treatments or similar, to be 
placed in and around the road that surrounds the actual square. These would 
have the added impact of calming traffic speeds in this area, which has a 
significant amount of foot traffic all year round. NZTA has mul�ple sugges�ons 
as to what and how such treatments could be applied. 

As Mar�nborough is now recognised as a des�na�on, tourist come here for 
specific purposes. Prominent is the hospitality sector with our wide variety of 
wineries, eateries and cafes available and we should be proac�ve in making 
visits to these loca�ons as safe as possible.  

One very important area to look at is the Huangarua / Putuatanga Rds, and 
surrounding roads, home to many wineries / eateries, and within easy walking 
or cycling distance from the township. Considera�on should be given to making 
this a 40km/h zone to be consistent with the speeds we are looking at for the 
area. This may cause issues for business people moving about the area so 
perhaps the establishment of a shared cycle / pedestrian pathway should 
become a priority. This could run from the Square along Oxford Street to Todds 
Rd, up to Puruatanga Rd, along that road to Princess Street and then from 
Princess along Kitchener back to the Square. 

If such a proposal is not possible ini�ally possible then the area above should 
be iden�fied and regulated to display vulnerable road sign, using Fluorescent 
Yellow Green material, along the following lines. 

“40km/h Speed when cyclists are present.” 

This type of sign is currently in use within the Mar�nborough region. 

MCB has a ‘Greater Plan’ in mind when it comes to moving around our 
township, and so in addi�on to the speed review we will be considering a 
number of op�ons to improve and enhance the experiences for people as they 
move around. In brief these will include, but not limited to; 

 Pedestrian crossings and associated treatments 
 Ligh�ng of streets and the Memorial Square 
 Bike and walking trails  
 The Dark Sky reserve and treatments 

 
 

239



Finally we would draw your aten�on to one of the published Q & A’s. 

Q. How do you make drivers slow down to the set speeds? 

A. We are only responsible for se�ng the road speed limits, the policing of 
vehicle speeds is the responsibility of NZ Police. 

This is a very poor response because you actually have a number of op�ons 
available to get drivers to recognise and conform to speed changes and that are 
not just enforcement. For some key areas simple ac�on like narrowing the road 
width beyond the speed change, pu�ng judder bars of rumble strips at the 
entrance or just past the change can have a reinforcing effect. Have any of 
these op�ons, or others, been considered 

240



Submission – ISMP 

Jellicoe Street (between Weld St and Ferry Rd  - Martinborough)  

1. Waka Kotahi assess a SaAS of 30km/hr.
2. In their expert technical review, Tonkin and Taylor recommended a 40km/hr speed limit. (see

reports to December 2022 Council Meeting and May 2023 Council Workshop)
3. Taking a phased approach to reducing speeds, I support a SaAS of 40km/hr.

• This section of road has both 50km and 70km speed signs, so actual operating
speeds between 46 -59km/hr are expected.

• There is no evidence that compliance will be a problem (see paragraph 13 below).
4. I live in this section of Jellicoe St - my submission is based on local knowledge and experience:

• There are high numbers of people walking, cycling and crossing the road from
Burgundy Drive.

• I can recall four occasions where vehicles have left the road and crashed into fences,
gardens and power poles on this section of road.   Homes are set very close to the
street.

• The road suddenly narrows, increasing the risk of turning traffic being 'rear-ended.'
Potholes, uneven surfaces, and concrete power poles further increase the risk of
serious injury if speed is a factor.

• Average vehicle movements will likely be around 8,000 per day (twice the vehicle
count taken on 12-13 April 2023). Add walkers and cyclists to this number, and you
have a busy road!

Heavy traffic bypass from SH 53 through to Ferry Road. 

5. Waka Kotahi assess a SaAS of 30km/hr. Tonkin and Taylor recommended 40km/hr.
6. I support a SaAS of 40km/hr from the corner of SH 53/Princess St through to Ferry Rd (30km/hr

between the area of the current school traffic signs).
7. The bypass is the route to the transfer station, a heavy vehicle repair depot, two transport

operators and the only entry/exit point for people travelling south out of Martinborough.
8. Traffic, especially heavy traffic, has increased exponentially over the last 15 years (see Council

traffic counts).
9. As the RCA, the Council must consider broader community needs. The 50km/hr speed limit

needs to be reduced for the comfort and safety of residents, visitors, cyclists, and pedestrians.
• The road condition creates intolerable noise and vibration for residents in the area.

The noise from articulated trucks and trailers reverberates down the side streets
even though most vehicles travel around 50km/hr. (Hawkins Transport trucks
routinely travel at 50 km/hr - those trucks are a good yardstick against which to
judge the speed and noise of other vehicles).

• Lower speed equals lower noise on our uneven roads.

Area Speed Zone for Martinborough 

10. I support a SaAS of 40km/hr within the urban area of Martinborough. Logic and consistency
suggest an area speed zone:
• The grid street layout naturally reduces operating speeds making Martinborough ideal for a

40km/hr area speed zone.

173

241



• Large signs at the entrances to Martinborough could welcome visitors and politely ask 
them to respect our 40km/zone. 

• An area speed zone avoids the need for multiple traffic signs. Current proposals for 30, 40 
and 50km will be unsightly and confusing.  
 

Rural Roads  
11. I support a SaAS of 60km/hr for gravel roads, especially Ruakokapatuna Road, where safety 

concerns are frequently reported to the Council.   Also, Shooting Butts (outskirts of 
Martinborough) is regularly used by walkers and cyclists doing the block around Shooting Butts 
Road, White Rock Road and Lake Ferry Road back to Martinborough.    

12. I support the SaAS for Rimutaka Hill Road and SH2. For safety and consistency, I support a SaAS of 
80km/hr on: 
• Ponataahi Road.  
• Western Lake Road. 

 
Reasons to support SaAS 

13. There is no evidence to suggest that compliance with SaAS will be a problem:  
• Many drivers are comfortable (and prefer) to travel at 80km/hr on the open road.   
• Most people choose to comply with the law if they understand that there are good reasons 

for it.  
• Demerit points and the threat of loss of licence will deter the minority of drivers who 

choose to exceed the posted speed limit.  
• Waka Kotahi and the New Zealand police have strategies and plans to support the 

introduction of lower speed limits.   
14. Apart from reducing the number of deaths and serious injuries on our roads, the Road to Zero 

policy has many positive economic, social and environmental benefits.  
15. I would like to see the District Councils and the Wellington Regional Transport Committee work 

with Waka Kotahi on a phased approach to implementing SaAS by 2027.  
 
I wish to speak about this submission, in person, at the hearing  
From: Louise Lyster 
Date: 20 July 2023 
 
  

242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



Governance <nicki.ansell@swdc.govt.nz>; Greytown Community Board
<greytowncommunityboard@swdc.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Speed Review Submission

Hi guys,

I attended the national meeting at the Greytown town hall on-road speeds. Aaron Slight
was there who knows his stuff when it comes to speeding and roading.
The state highway speed as we know was 50 km and now 40 going through the Greytown
township. Aaron said that on average people actually travelled 46 km so less than the
speed the sign stated. That means that the drivers are driving to the conditions. Now they
are avoiding the main street and travelling down the side streets. ( Warren attended the
meeting too so please correct if I have got any facts incorrect)

1. Let's focus on road quality i.e. fixing potholes quickly for safety i.e. tyre hitting hole
can cause car damage or an accident. As most of you know the roading out at
Papawai was of poor quality and had to be fixed..if you drive out there you will find
potholes now.

2. Let's review Bidwells cutting - put a traffic managing tool on the road- that black
counter device to show increased traffic now medical centre there and the problem
is flow and driver courtesy. The parallel parking there requires drivers to reverse out,
if the car coming around the corner actually stopped and allowed them to drive
rather than overtake reversing cars that would be great. Again driver attitudes need
to change, not signs. I did see two police cars outside Kuranui College the other day
but they were checking WOF and regos.

Recommendation: remove the traffic island and put in a roundabout (this would
be NZTA roading as it is on a state highway but affects flow into Bidwells)

3. What is the outcome of reducing speeds? Reduce deaths? Driver education does
this. It does not matter what the speed sign says now a driver will ignore the speed
limit and speed. A good driver will drive to the conditions. I know from my driver
training that although the speed sign says 100km and I can legally travel that speed.
For example, I drive out of Gladstone to avoid town and roadworks, if it is pouring
with heavy rain and lots of traffic I drive to the conditions and slow right down as
visibility is poor.

4. I spoke to a resident down by the orchard's retirement and a lot of tradies were
speeding out of the development. It was the site manager from Higgins that
reminded them to follow the speed and a cop parked there for a bit for a visual
reminder that if you go over the speed and not driving to conditions i.e. congestion
of children leaving the school you will get a fine. Do we actually have enough police
to police the speeds now in the SWDC? I know what the answer will be to that
question.

marae- Greytown example there is a 50 km sign there but I believe it was put up illegally by

259



residents to slow people down- pah road. Along Papawai road it is 100km. 
I agree with the 50 km sign outside Marae. I use to live out there so as you come around
the corner you would slow right down. When a tangi/funeral is on you slow right down for
obvious reasons.  A sign does not change behaviour, education does.
 
Schools. See the image from Australia attached.
 
 
As a teacher, my recommendation is to keep 50 but 40 during pick up and drop-offs like
the sign attached. Again, people do that anyway due to congestion you can't travel that
fast. You will often see buses dropping off students on East Street and the road code states
20 km past a bus. 
 

"The speed limit for passing a stationary school bus that is
dropping off or picking up children is 20kph in either direction."
So again, does the swdc really need to change signs? We are stating the obvious. 
 
My recommendation is that we keep the speeds as they are. The cost of changing all the
signs cost and benefit analysis needs to be undertaken. I looked through the statistics and
the amount of deaths on the swdc roads is low. I would rather see an education campaign
on travelling past schools, maraes and stationary buses. 
 
 
cheers
Jo
 

From: GCB-Louise brown <Louise.Brown@swdc.govt.nz>
Sent: 21 July 2023 11:57
To: Nicki Ansell- Lead Advisor - community Governance <nicki.ansell@swdc.govt.nz>; Greytown
Community Board <greytowncommunityboard@swdc.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: Speed Review Submission
 
Hi
 
I think if everyone can read through the material provided online and think about what they
want said and we start an email discussion then we can turn that into an email of agreed position
and obtain email confirmation of that position.
 

Ngā mihi, 

 

Louise Brown 

260



Greytown Community Board Chair 

 

South Wairarapa District Council 

0272535732
PO Box 6  Martinborough 5741 

19 Kitchener Street  Martinborough 5711 

www.swdc.govt.nz 

 

 

From: Nicki Ansell- Lead Advisor - community Governance <nicki.ansell@swdc.govt.nz>
Sent: Friday, 21 July 2023 10:06 am
To: Greytown Community Board <greytowncommunityboard@swdc.govt.nz>
Subject: Speed Review Submission
 
Hi All,
 
Nice to catch up last night.
 
Just confirming I have checked with Amanada and if you wanted to submit a GCB submission for
the Speed Review then you can decide/vote over email before Sunday and then also
mention/note it in the meeting next week, so that we have a record of the decision.
 
Here is the link - Draft Interim Speed Management Plan and Speed Review - SWDC SWDC
 
Thanks
Nicki
 
Nicki Ansell
Lead Advisor – Community Governance
 

 
South Wairarapa District Council
06 306 9611
PO Box 6  Martinborough 5741
19 Kitchener Street  Martinborough 5711
www.swdc.govt.nz
 
 
 

 

261



262



Memo 

To: South Wairarapa District Council 

PO Box 6 
Martinborough 5741  And 

Sent via email to: 
submissions@swdc.govt.nz 

Carterton District Council 

PO Box 9 
Carterton 5743 

submissions@cdc.govt.nz 
Date: 21 July 2023 

Subject: Ministry of Education – Feedback on the Draft Interim Speed Management 
Plan 

Background 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide feedback on the South Wairarapa and Carterton District Councils’ 
Draft Interim Speed Management Plan (‘the Plan’). The Ministry of Education (‘the Ministry’) is the 
Government’s lead advisor on the New Zealand education system, shaping the direction for education 
agencies and providers and contributing to the Government’s goals for education. The Ministry assesses 
population changes, school roll fluctuations, and other trends and challenges impacting on education 
provision at all levels of the education network to identify changing needs within the network so the Ministry 
can respond effectively.  

The Ministry has responsibility for all education property owned by the Crown. This involves managing the 
existing property portfolio, upgrading, and improving the portfolio, purchasing, and constructing new property 
to meet increased demand, identifying, and disposing of surplus State school sector property, and managing 
teacher and caretaker housing. The Ministry is therefore a considerable stakeholder in terms of activities that 
may impact existing and future educational facilities and assets in South Wairarapa and Carterton. 

Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limit Rule 2022 

As part of the nationwide programme under the government's "Road to Zero" National Road Safety Strategy, 
all councils must review their road speed limits. The aim of the review is to reduce the number of serious 
injuries and fatal crashes on New Zealand roads by setting safe and appropriate speed limits that better 
match the road environment. One of the key actions in the Road to Zero Strategy is to set safe speed limits 
around all schools by the end of 2027, with an interim target of 40% of schools by 30 June 2024. 

As part of this strategy, Waka Kotahi released a new 'Setting of Speed Limit Rule 2022' (‘the Rule’). The new 
Rule sets out new requirements and acceptable speed limits near schools, with the aim of making walking 
and cycling to and from schools much safer. The new Rule requires councils to set a permanent or varied 
speed limit of 30kph outside Category 1 schools (urban or peri urban schools). The Rule requires schools 
identified as Category 2 to have a maximum speed limit of 60kph (or less). Category 2 schools include rural 
schools where there is no associated pedestrian activity in the road environment (including off-street pick-up 
and drop-off for all vehicles, including school buses).  

The Ministry’s feedback on the Speed Management Plan 

South Wairarapa and Carterton District Councils (‘the Councils’) have notified and are seeking feedback on 
their Draft Interim Speed Management Plan which proposes to reduce the speed limit on identified roads 

183

263



 

Memo 

 

surrounding all 14 schools within both districts. This is in response to the Rule and the reduction of speed 
limits around schools, and is consistent with the Road to Zero Strategy 2020-2030. 

Speed reductions are proposed for the following schools: 

• Carterton School 
• Ponatahi Christian School 
• St. Mary’s School 
• South End School 
• Dalefield School 
• Gladstone School 
• Kuranui College 
• Greytown School 
• St. Teresa’s School 
• Featherston School 
• South Featherston School 
• Martinborough School 
• Pirinoa School 
• Kahutara School 

Support for the proposed speed limit reductions 

The Ministry is supportive of the proposed speed limit reductions around schools throughout the South 
Wairarapa and Carterton districts. The speed limit reductions proposed by the Councils will provide greater 
safety for students during pick-up and drop-off times during school days as well as members of the public 
using school facilities outside of these hours. 

The Ministry has consulted with the above-listed schools regarding the proposed changes. No specific 
feedback has been received from the schools at this point, but this will be forwarded to Council as it is 
received. The Ministry encourages engagement with the schools will ensure that the proposed changes will 
achieve the safest outcomes for each school and identify any risk points within the roading environment that 
need to be considered. 

Modifications to consider 

It is noted that the Councils have proposed creating a 40km/h zone to the north of the South Featherston 
School 30km/h zone. It is proposed to run along South Featherston Road between Longwood East Road 
and 100m north of Longwood East Road. The Ministry appreciates the addition of a buffer zone added 
before entering the 30km/h school zone. However, it is concerned that the 100km/h zone of South 
Featherston Road between State Highway 53 and this 40km/h creates too great of a contrast in speed for 
drivers to slow down effectively before entering the school zone. As such, the Ministry proposes one of the 
following options: 

- Extend the 40km/h zone to span between Longwood East Road and State Highway 53 
- Add a 60km/h zone between 100m north of Longwood East Road and State Highway 53 

Each of the above options provides a clear divide between State Highway speed and local road speed. As 
such, the Ministry hopes to ensure the safety of those accessing South Featherston School at all times. 

264



 

Memo 

 

Inconsistencies noted 

The Ministry notes that there are some inconsistencies between Table 6.3 and Figure 6.4 of the Plan. These 
are outlined in the table below. The Ministry thought it important to bring these inconsistencies to the 
Council’s attention to assist the Council in finalising the Plan in the future. The Ministry acknowledges that it 
may have missed other inconsistencies throughout the Plan, and the Council should not mistake this list as 
all-encompassing. 

Description in Table 6.3 Reflected drawing in Figure 6.4 

30km/h zone on East Street, near Kuranui College, between 
Wakelin Street and 85m northeast of Wakelin Street. 

Not shown in the figure. 

30km/h zone on Church Street between East Street and 
Reading Street. 

The extent is correct; however, it is shown as a 60km/h zone. 

30km/h zone on East Street, near Greytown School, is proposed 
to run between 100m southwest of Church Street and extend to 
75m northeast of McMaster Street. 

The speed is correct; however, the drawing does not show the 
speed reduction zone extended 100m southwest of Church 
Street. Instead, it stops at Church Street. 

Alternative traffic calming infrastructure 

The Council does not mention the incorporation of any traffic calming interventions, such as lane narrowing, 
speed bumps, or raised crossings, throughout the Plan. Traffic calming infrastructure is key to ensuring that 
vehicles adhere to the posted speed limits. The Ministry understands that the Plan is interim, presumably in 
lieu of a more permanent plan, and understands that this infrastructure may be in the works for the future. 
Should that be the case, the Ministry would like to see that explicitly stated in the Plan, with indications as to 
what type of infrastructure might be used in the future. 

Lastly, the Ministry also requests that the Council engage with the following schools confirm the appropriate 
speed reduction times based on each individual school’s peak pick up and drop off periods, as the Plan 
proposes they are to have variable speed limits on surrounding roads: 

• Dalefield School 
• Pirinoa School 
• Kahutara School 
• Gladstone School 

If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned on behalf of the Ministry. 

 

 

 

Taison Pelman 

Planner  
Beca 

 
  

265



Appendix 3 – Hearings Committee 
Minutes, 16 August 2023 

  

266



 
 

 
 

Hearings Committee 
Minutes for Regulatory Policies and 2023 Speed Review  

Hearings and Deliberations 
16 August 2023  

 
 

Present: Mayor Martin Connelly (Chair), Councillors Alistair Plimmer, Rebecca Gray and Pip 
Maynard. 

Apologies:  
 
In attendance: 

Councillor Kaye McAulay. 
 
Amanda Bradley (General Manager Policy and Governance), Kaity Carmichael 
(Lead Policy Advisor) Sara Edney (Building Control Manager), Stefan Corbett 
(Group Manager Partnerships and Operations), Tim Langley (Roading Manager) 
and Amy Andersen (Committee Advisor). 
 

Submitters: Anne Hynds, Jeniah Peterson, Jenny Boyne, Ray Lilley, Storm Robertson, Rosy 
Fenwicke, Clem Beck, Jamiee Burns, John Van Vliet, Pauline Hedley, Elisabeth 
Creevey Doug Rowan, Louise Lyster, Guusje de Schot, and  
Beatrix Miller-Holley, Stella Bhati, Monty Miller-Holley and June Walker on behalf 
of South Featherston School. 

 
Conduct of 
Business: 

 
This meeting was held in the Supper Room, Waihinga Centre, 62 Texas Street, 
Martinborough and via audio-visual conference. This meeting was live-streamed 
is available to view on our YouTube channel.  The meeting was held in public 
under the above provisions from 09.00am to 3:27pm except where expressly 
noted. 
 

  
A Open Section 

 A1. Karakia Timatanga – opening 
 Mayor Connelly opened the meeting. 
 
A2. Apologies 

HEARINGS COMMITTEE RESOLVED (HC2023/03) to accept apologies from Cr 
McAulay. 
(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Plimmer)    Carried 

 
A3. Conflicts of Interest 
 There were no conflicts of interest declared. 
 

267



A4. Confirmation of minutes 
HEARINGS COMMITTEE RESOLVED (HC2023/04) to accept the minutes of the 
Hearings Committee meeting held on 19 July 2023 as a true and accurate record. 
(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Plimmer)     Carried 
 

B Submissions Hearings on Regulatory Policies 

 There were no submitters present at the meeting. 
 

C Deliberations on Regulatory Policies 
 C1. Local Easter Sunday Shop Trading Deliberations Report 

 Ms Carmichael spoke to the report and responded to queries from members 
 regarding any restrictions to the sale of alcohol. 

 

 HEARINGS COMMITTEE RESOLVED (HC2023/05) to: 
1. Note the Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy (the Policy) is due for review 
under section 5C of the Shop Trading Hours Act 1990 (the Act). 
2. Note that formal consultation with the community on the Easter Sunday Shop 
Trading Policy is required under legislation and took place between 12 June 
2023 and 10 July 2023. 
3. Receive the 24 submissions made for the Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy 
consultation (Appendix 2). 
4. Note results of the consultation indicated that all submitters’ preference was 
to retain the Policy with no substantive amendments. 
5. Note that there are no members of the public who wish to speak to their 
submission. 
6. Recommend to Council at its meeting on 27 September 2023 that it adopt the 
Easter Sunday Shop Trading Policy. 
[Items 1-6 read together] 

 (Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Maynard)          Carried 

 
C2. Dangerous, Affected and Insanitary Buildings Deliberations Report 
 Ms Carmichael supported by Ms Edney spoke to the report and responded to 
 queries from members regarding the purpose of the policy and provision of 
 feedback to the submitters.  
 
 Members suggested looking at the Building Act Section 123(a)(2) to check any
 buildings of concern against this. 
  

 HEARINGS COMMITTEE RESOLVED (HC2023/06) to: 

1. Note the Dangerous, Affected & Insanitary Buildings Policy is due for review 
under section 132 of the Building Act (2004) (the Act). 

268



2. Note that formal consultation with the community on the Dangerous, 
Affected and Insanitary Buildings Policy is required under legislation and took 
place between 12 June 2023 and 10 July 2023. 

3. Receive the 16 submissions received for the Dangerous, Affected and 
Insanitary Buildings Policy consultation. 

4. Note that there were two members of the public who wished to speak to 
their submissions, but were not present at the meeting. 

5. Consider the submissions received and adopt the proposed Dangerous, 
Affected and Insanitary Buildings Policy. 

[Items 1-5 read together] 

(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Maynard)          Carried 
 
D Submissions Hearings on 2023 Speed Review   
 The following submitters were heard by the Hearings Committee: 
 

• Anne Hynds – Submission 007  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:29am. 
The meeting was reconvened at 10:10am. 
 

• Jeniah Peterson – Submission 046  
• Jenny Boyne – Submission 036  
• Ray Lilley – Submission 043  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:35am 
The meeting was reconvened at 10:55am. 
 

• Storm Robertson – Submission 077 
• Storm Robertson on behalf of Martinborough Community Board – Submission 172   
• Rosy Fenwicke – Submission 056  
• Clem Beck – Submission 057  
• Jamiee Burns – Submission 059 
• John Van Vliet – Submission 060  

The meeting was adjourned at 11:38am. 
The meeting was reconvened at 12:30pm. 

 
• Pauline Hedley – Submission 177 
• Pauline Hedley on behalf of Jim Hedley – Submission 155 
• Elisabeth Creevey – Submission 178  

269



• Beatrix Miller-Holley, Stella Bhati, Monty Miller-Holley, June Walker on behalf of 
Featherston School – Submission 121  

• Doug Rowan – Submission 159  
• Louise Lyster – Submission 173  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:15pm. 
The meeting was reconvened at 1:26pm. 
 

• Guusje de Schot – Submission 079  
 

E 2023 Speed Review Hearings and Deliberations Report 
 Mr Corbett supported by Mr Langley spoke to matters in the report and responded to 
 queries from member including: why Megamaps were not captured in the report, 
 focusing on high benefit roads, whether the overall reduction of speed would lengthen 
 the life of a road / reduce carbon emissions, variable speed signs and the budget for 
 signage. 

Action 321: To request Māori Standing Committee representatives to communicate 
proposals regarding signage near marae and report back to Council Officers prior to 
further recommendations to Council. S Corbett/T Langley 

Action 322: To request Council Officers to report back to Council on options to make 
areas outside the Featherston sports grounds safer. S Corbett/T Langley 

 
  HEARINGS COMMITTEE RESOLVED (HC2023/07) to continue the meeting past 
  3:15pm (meeting time elapsed more than six hours). 
  (Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Plimmer)      Carried 
 

 HEARINGS COMMITTEE RESOLVED (HC2023/08) to: 

1. Receive the 2023 Speed Review Hearings and Deliberations Report. 

(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Gray) Carried 

2. Receive the full set of submissions on the 2023 Speed Review. 

3. Note that 183 submissions were received and of those received submissions, 
16 submissions were heard. 

[Items 1&2 read together] 

(Moved Cr Maynard/Seconded Cr Plimmer)   Carried 

4. Recommend to Council a variable speed zone of 30km during morning drop 
off and afternoon pick up outside all schools in the district. 

(Moved Mayor Connelly/Seconded Cr Gray)  Carried 

270



5. Recommend to Council to consult on a Martinborough speed zone set at 
40km/h. 

(Moved Cr Maynard/Seconded Mayor Connelly) Carried 
For: Cr Maynard, Mayor Connelly, and Cr Gray 
Against: Cr Plimmer 

6. Recommend to Council to keep the speed on Western Lake Road at 60km/h 
until it reaches the railway line. 

(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Mayor Connelly)   Carried  
For: Cr Maynard, Mayor Connelly, and Cr Gray 
Against: Cr Plimmer 

7. Recommend to Council to reduce speed on all gravel roads to 70km/h. 

(Moved Cr Plimmer/Seconded Cr Maynard) Carried 

8. Recommend to Council that Council Officers further consider consultation 
feedback, including the content of oral submissions, on High Priority Roads 
(both in terms of inclusions and exclusions, and suggested safe speed levels) 
and report back to Council with final advice. 

(Moved Cr Gray/Seconded Cr Plimmer)          Carried 
 
F Karakia Whakamutunga – closing 

Mayor Connelly closed the meeting. 

 
The meeting closed at 3:27pm. 
 
Confirmed as a true and correct record 
 

………………………………………..(Mayor)  
 

………………………………………..(Date) 

271



Appendix 4 - Control of Dogs Policy & 
Bylaw Hearings and Deliberations 

Report, 20 September 2023 

 

272



Hearings Committee 
Kia Reretahi Tātau 

20 September 2023 
Agenda Item: C1

Control of Dogs Policy & Bylaw Hearings and Deliberations 
Report 

1. Purpose

This report provides the hearings committee with a summary of the analysis of the 
submissions on the Control of Dogs Policy and consultation. A full set of submissions 
received is provided in Appendix 3. 

2. Executive Summary

The purpose of the hearings and deliberations process is for the committee to consider 
the community engagement and consultation, legislation, alignment with key strategic 
documents, and officer advice on the Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw. The committee 
will then make a recommendation to Council on whether to adopt the proposed 
Control of Dog Policy and Bylaw at the upcoming Council meeting on 27 September 
2023.  

3. Recommendations

Officers recommend that Council: 

1. Receive the ‘Control of Dogs Policy & Bylaw Hearings and Deliberations’ Report.

2. Receive the 10 submissions made for the formal Control of Dogs Policy and
Bylaw consultation (Appendix 3).

3. Note that there is one member of the public who wishes to speak to their
submission.

4. Recommend to Council at its meeting on 27 September 2023 that it adopt the
Control of Dogs Policy, as per Appendix 1.

5. Recommend to Council at its meeting on 27 September 2023 that it amend the
Control of Dogs 2013 bylaw, as per Appendix 1.

4. Background

Section 10 of the Dog Control Act 1996 requires local authorities to adopt a policy in 
respect of dogs in the district.  

A dog control policy: 

o shall specify the nature and application of any dog control bylaw made.

273



o shall identify any public places in which dogs are to be prohibited, either 
generally or at specified times, pursuant to a dog control bylaw. 

o shall identify any public places and areas in which dogs (other than working 
dogs) in public places are required by a dog control bylaw to be controlled on a 
leash. 

o shall identify any places that are to be designated by a dog control bylaw as a 
dog exercise area in which dogs may be exercised at large. 

o must state whether dogs classified by SWDC or by any other local authority as 
menacing dogs are required to be neutered. 

 
A dog control policy may also include other details such as fees or proposed fees, 
owner education programmes, dog obedience courses, the classification of owners, 
the disqualification of owners, and the issuing of infringement notices. 
In addition to a dog control policy, Section 20 of the Dog Control Act 1996 empowers 
local authorities, in accordance with the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA), to make 
bylaws for dog control purposes.  
 
The Council is empowered under the LGA to make bylaws for the following purposes: 

o Protecting the public from nuisance 

o Protecting, promoting and maintaining public health and safety, and 

o Minimising the potential for offensive behaviour in public places. 

 
A local authority must review a bylaw made by it no later than five years after the date 
on which the bylaw was first made. After the first review, further reviews are required 
every 10 years. 
 
The current Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw were adopted in September 2013, 
following a review of the 2007 Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw. A review of the 
Control of Dogs Bylaw is therefore due by September 2023. In accordance with section 
160A of the LGA, a bylaw that is not reviewed as required is revoked on the date two 
years after the last date on which the bylaw should have been reviewed (September 
2025).  
 
As part of this process, the existing policy must also be reviewed in line with section 
10AA of the Dog Control Act which states that a local authority must review its policy if 
the bylaw implementing the policy requires review. 
 
In August 2023, Council agreed that the proposed bylaw is justified as a reasonable 
limitation on people’s rights and freedoms, is the most appropriate way of addressing 
the perceived problem of dog control in the district, is the most appropriate form of 
bylaw and is not inconsistent with the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act 1990. Council also 
adopted the Statement of Proposal for public consultation in accordance with the 
Special Consultative Procedure (SCP). Consultation took place between 3 August 2023 
and 3 September 2023. 

274

https://swdc.govt.nz/wp-content/uploads/PolicyDogControl2013.pdf
https://swdc.govt.nz/wp-content/uploads/BylawDogControl1909013(1).pdf


5. Discussion 

5.1 Engagement 

As part of the review process, initial engagement activities were undertaken to 
understand if the current bylaw and policy are working from a user perspective. All dog 
owners were provided with information on the Policy and Bylaw review process, as 
part of their dog registration in July 2023. Signage requesting feedback on our current 
policy and bylaw was posted at all Dog Parks, and information was provided on our 
social media and website. All members of the public were invited to provide initial 
feedback on the Policy and Bylaw. Eighteen members of the public provided feedback 
at the engagement stage. This feedback has informed the draft policy and bylaw for 
consultation and is included in Appendix 2.  

Based on this feedback the following amendments to the policy/bylaw were made for 
formal consultation with the community, 

• A purpose statement and policy principles have been added to increase the 

clarity of the policy. 

• Minor editorial and formatting improvements have been done to make the 

policy easier to understand. 

• An introductory statement recognising the value of dog ownership has been 

included in the Policy. 

• Changes were made to align the bylaw with the policy and clarify that dogs are 

required to be on lead in all areas in the district.  

 

In addition, our current policy and bylaw prohibits dogs from five coastal camping 
areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te 
Awaiti). We have heard from the community that there is an interest in this prohibition 
being reviewed and in the Statement of Proposal, we put forward options for 
consideration by our communities. 

5.2 Consultation 

Formal consultation on the Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw occurred between 3 
August 2023 and 3 September 2023, using the SCP. The opportunity to make a 
submission was provided to the community and identified key stakeholders were 
invited to make a submission. These included all schools and early learning facilities 
and veterinary services in the district. Branches of the SPCA and Service Dog 
Associations who service the district were also contacted. Copies of the Statement of 
Proposal and submission form were available to the public on the website and in 
hardcopy at the libraries in each town and the Council office. Additionally, signage 
notifying the public of the consultation was posted at all Dog Parks. 

5.3 Submissions 

A total of 10 submissions were received throughout the formal consultation process 
and one submitter requested to speak to their submission. Nine submissions were 
made online, using the online platform (SurveyMonkey). One submission was made via 
email. 

275



6. Analysis 

6.1 Submissions Analysis 

Number Submission Feedback Officer Comment and Recommended Action 

001 Option 1: Maintain the stance of the current policy and bylaw, 
which is a prohibition of dogs in coastal camping areas (status 
quo). 
 
It would be good to know what actual feedback about allowing 
dogs in the camping areas is. For example some numbers, 
summary of feedback, maybe survey so that a person can make 
more weighted decision. It was not easy to identify 
amendments in the text. The summary of the changes could 
contain references to the document for each change, e.g. (1. 
Introduction, 3.1, 7.1). Another possible options is to use colour 
coding and show combined text of both versions. Text on green 
background means added text or newer version of existing. Text 
on red background means removed or previous version of 
existing. 
 

We have changed our template for policies 
and bylaws, which make it difficult to 
demonstrate specific changes using tracked 
changes. This approach will be taken moving 
forward.  

The submitter did not provide accurate 
contact details and was not able to be 
provided with information as requested. The 
engagement and consultation feedback is 
provided in Appendix 2 and 3 and outlines 
the number of submitters who indicated a 
desire for dogs to be allowed in outlined 
camping areas.  

002 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year. (Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 
I would like it to be noted that our current mayor does not 
follow the bylaws and walks his dog off leash around Greytown, 
even going so far as to point out to me that it was lucky his dog 
wasn't on a leash as if it were, our dogs would be tangled up. I 
would suggest in future that we work towards no registration 
tags for dogs and just do compulsory microchipping as they do 
in other places like Sydney. The added tag seems unnecessary 
for microchipped animals. Incidentally, why do we have to pay 
registration fees annually? Surely once your dog is microchipped 
and registered it should be a lifetime registration. It seems to be 
a double standard as cat owners do not need to try and keep 
their pet on their property, or microchip it, or register it ever, let 
alone every year. Cats come on to our fully fenced property all 
the time and the owners do not have to take any responsibility 
for it. 
 

Noted. Feedback provided to the Regulatory 
team for consideration in for future dog 
registration. 

003 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year. (Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 

Noted. 

004 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year. (Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 

Noted. 

005 Option 2: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
coastal camping areas during specific times of the year at all 
sites (Example: allowed between 1 May and31 October 
annually) 
 
Great to be able to take dogs to coastal areas when they aren’t 
busy. Can we have maps so we know exactly where these areas 

 

 

These are different – under the Dog Control 
Act (1996), all amendments to the policy are 
required to be completed using the special 
consultative procedure (outlined under the 
Local Government Act). Changes to the 

276



are? There are inconsistencies between policy and bylaw that 
we noticed that causing us some confusion. 
 
Example 1: The policy says adding a schedule may involve 
engagement under the Significant & Engagement Policy but the 
bylaw says there will be consultation under a section of the local 
government act. Are these the same thing?  
 
Example 2: Policy says exercise areas in Schedule B, bylaw says 
Schedule C. I think it means schedule B? There is no schedule C? 
 
Example 3: The public places prohibited in the policy don’t 
follow exactly the public places in bylaw. Transfer station, 
pensioner flats in one but not other. Maybe just examples but 
can be confusing for us trying to follow the rules. Could they be 
matched to avoid possible interpretation issues? We don’t want 
to be fined! 
 
Don’t understand differences in clauses 6.1 and 6.2 and why one 
directs to schedule A and other to B? Cheers J  
 

policy can be made without formally 
consulting under the Local Government Act, 
but would require consideration of Councils 
significance and engagement policy to 
determine the level of engagement required 
to make changes.  

 
 
Corrected.  
 
 
Both the policy and the bylaw refer to any 
public building or public place, under the 
control or management of the Council. 
However, wording has been changed to 
ensure for consistency between the 
documents.  
 
Clarified. 

006 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dog sin 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.(Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 
Proposal to Amend the Dog Control Bylaw – submission to the 
South Wairarapa District Council 15th July 2023.  
On behalf of the Cape Palliser Residents and Ratepayers Assn, 
we are proposing that dogs be allowed to accompany campers 
visiting the Cape Palliser camping area at Ngawi (Lot 101 DP 
29304, coastal side of the Cape Palliser road, opposite the 
settlement).  
Many people are accompanied by their dogs while caravanning / 
holidaying around NZ. On the whole their animals are well 
controlled and well cared for members of their “family”.  
We feel visitors will feel much more welcomed and law-abiding 
if their dogs are allowed officially to accompany them. On the 
understanding of course that their dogs are under control and 
on a lead where needed at all times. Signage to state this would 
be proposed, also the necessity to clean up after their dogs.  
Regards the Cape Palliser Residents and Ratepayers Committee. 
 

Noted. 

007 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dog sin 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.(Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 

Noted. 

008 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.(Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 

Noted. 

009 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.(Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dog friendly’.) 
 
Stop legislating on breed as it is utterly stupid 
 

Noted. 

 

This is required under the Dog Control Act 
(1996). 

277



010 Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in 
specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.(Example: 
have two sites designated as being ‘dogfriendly’.) 
 
I would like to see the third option adopted with regards to dogs 
at coastal sites. Some designated areas I.e. areas at 
Ngawi and Tora available to dogs. I would expect dogs to need 
to be under control at all times and on lead. I understand the 
need to protect farm areas from sheep measles so the right sites 
need to be selected. 
 

Noted. 

 

In our current Policy and Bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five coastal camping areas 
within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). 
We have heard from the community that there is an interest in this prohibition being 
reviewed and we have put forward a few options for consideration as part of the 
consultation process. Submitters were asked which of the following options they 
supported: 

• Option 1: Maintain the stance of the current policy and bylaw, which is a 
prohibition of dogs in coastal camping areas (status quo). 

• Option 2: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in coastal camping 
areas during specific times of the year at all sites (Example: allowed between 1 
May and 31 October annually) 

• Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs in specific coastal 
camping sites at all times of the year. (Example: have two sites designated as 
being ‘dog friendly’.) 

 

Of the 10 submissions received: 

• 80% (8 submissions) indicated support for amending the policy and bylaw to 
allow for dogs in specific coastal camping areas at all times of the year 
(Example: have two sites designated as ‘Dog Friendly’). 

• 10% (1 submission) indicated support to amend the policy and bylaw to allow 
for dogs in coastal camping areas during specific times of the year at all sites 
(Example: between 1 May – 31 October). 

• 10% (1 submission) indicated support to maintain the stance of the current 
policy and bylaw, which is a prohibition of dogs in coastal camping areas (status 
quo). 

278



6.2 Additional Considerations 

In addition to the community feedback, we also considered how the Policy and Bylaw 
may impact certain groups and sectors in our district from other information sources. 
This information is intended to complement the community feedback provided. 

6.2.1. Impact on Farming Communities  

The issue of ‘Sheep Measles’ has a major impact on rural communities which rely on 
maximising the returns from their livelihoods which is farming and meat production. 
Therefore, dog owners have a key role in reducing the spread of sheep measles which 
includes the control of where they interact with the rural environment. Increasing the 
current level of dog numbers from “outside” the region increases to potential for 
spread. The farming community places a lot of trust on dog owners to ensure their 
dog/s are appropriately treated and are restricted from roaming onto pasture from 
which their animals graze. When dogs defecate in or near pastures, it can release 
thousands of tapeworm eggs on grass, these live for months and can be carried for up 
to 10 kms by flies, other insects and wind. 

Consideration must be given to the increase of dog numbers that the area would see 
and therefore the increase in potential adverse economic impact for the farming 
community. 

6.2.2. Enforcement of Bylaw  

South Wairarapa District covers a large area, with a number of coastal communities 
and recreational areas. Currently, we have two FTE officers, who are tasked with dog 
enforcement, as one component of a wider regulatory role.  

7. Options 

Options Advantages Disadvantages 

1. Recommend to Council to adopt 
the proposed policy and bylaw, 
maintaining the status quo around 
coastal camping areas. This means 
that dogs will not be allowed in five 
coastal camping areas within the 
district (Ngawi, Ngawi Surf Breaks, 
North Tora, South Tora and Te 
Awaiti). 

Minimal further enforcement 
resourcing required. 

 

No mitigation required to protect 
farming communities in those 
areas from dog transmitted 
diseases. (ie. Sheep measles).  

 

Did not align with the limited community 
feedback around dogs being allowed in 
coastal camping areas, particularly in 
Ngawi.  

2. Recommend to Council to amend 
the proposed policy and bylaw, to 
allow for dogs in nominated coastal 
camping areas in as requested by a 
small number of people in the 
community. 

Would align with community 
feedback around dogs being 
allowed in coastal camping areas, 
particularly in Ngawi.  

Additional resources to enable 
enforcement of the bylaw in coastal 
camping areas would be required, 
especially during peak summer periods, 
would be required (ie. Changes to 
signage and additional staff resources).  
 
Consideration to mitigate the risks to 
farming communities in that area is 
recommended. 

279



8. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements 

8.1 Significant risk register 

☒Relationship with iwi, hapū, Māori 

☐Climate Change 

☐Emergency Management 

☐IT architecture, information system, information management, and security 

☒Financial management, sustainability, fraud, and corruption 

☒Legislative and regulative reforms 

☒Social licence to operate and reputation 

☒Asset management 

☒Economic conditions 

☒Health and Safety 
 

8.2 Significance, Engagement and Consultation 

Consultation followed the SCP as outlined in the Local Government Act (2002) and the 
Dog Control Act (1996). The different ways that the community could have their say 
and present their views on the Statement of Proposal and was widely advertised. The 
consultation period ran from 3 August 2023 to 3 September 2023. 

9. Financial Considerations 

Costs associated with reviewing the policy, bylaw and community consultation sit 
within current budget baselines. Consideration would need to be given to enforcement 
costs associated with allowing dogs in coastal camping areas.  

10. Prioritization  

10.1 Tangata whenua considerations 

Māori make up 14.2% of the South Wairarapa District population (Census 2018). Māori 
dog owners and members of the community may be affected. The consultation period 
was promoted to ensure that Māori have an opportunity to submit feedback. 

10.2 Environmental/Climate Change Impact 

The Policy and Bylaw have no direct impact on Environment and Climate Change.  

11. Risks & Mitigations 

11.1 Communications   

A communications plan was developed.   

12. Conclusion 

The Hearings Committee recommendations will be put forward to Council for 
consideration on 27 September 2023.  

280



Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Draft Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw 

Appendix 2 – Full set of Engagement Feedback 

Appendix 3 – Full set of Formal Consultation Submissions 

 

Contact Officer: Kaity Carmichael, Lead Policy Advisor  

Reviewed By: Amanda Bradley, General Manager, Policy and Governance 

 Rick Mead, Manager Environmental Services 

281



 

Appendix 1 – Draft Dog Control Policy 
and Bylaw 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

282



Control of Dogs Policy

Date of Last Approval DD MMM 2023 

Policy ID PI-AMS-002 (previously H200) 

Next Review DD MMM 2028 

In accordance with section 10AA of the Dog Control Act (1996), this policy must be reviewed 
if bylaw implementing policy requires review.  

Version History First adopted 19 September 2013 (H200) 

Amended  

283



 

 2  
 

 

Contents 
Control of Dogs Policy ............................................................................................................................. 3 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Relevant Legislation .................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Purpose ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

4. Scope ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

5. Principles ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

6. Nature and Application of Bylaws ............................................................................................... 3 

7. Access to Public Places ................................................................................................................ 4 

8. Dog Exercise Areas ...................................................................................................................... 4 

9. Menacing Dogs ............................................................................................................................ 4 

10. Dog Owners ................................................................................................................................. 4 

11. Dog Control Fees ......................................................................................................................... 5 

12. Definitions ................................................................................................................................... 6 

 

  

284



 

 3  
 

 

Control of Dogs Policy 

1. Introduction 

There are many medical, social and physiological benefits of owning a dog including reductions in 

levels of anxiety and stress, improved social life and increased activity. South Wairarapa District 

Council (SWDC) supports responsible dog ownership, protection of the public and the recreational 

needs of dogs and their owners.  

2. Relevant Legislation 

» Dog Control Act 1996 

» Local Government Act 2002 

» Animal Welfare Act 1999 

» Conservation Act 1987 

3. Purpose  

3.1 The purpose of this policy is to set out how SWDC will: 

» ensure dog owners meet their obligations under the Dog Control Act (1996) and associated 

bylaws; 

» actively promote responsible dog ownership and the care and welfare of dogs; 

» prevent potential danger caused by dogs to the public, wildlife and natural habitats; 

» minimise potential distress and nuisance caused buy dogs to the public (including children), 

wildlife and natural habitats; and 

» provide from the exercise and recreational needs of dogs and their owners. 

4. Scope 

4.1  The policy applies to all dogs that reside in or visit the South Wairarapa District. 

5. Principles 

5.1  The relevant principles of section 10 of the Dog Control Act are taken into account in 
preparing and applying this policy.  

6. Nature and Application of Bylaws  
6.1      In accordance with the Dog Control Act, SWDC has a bylaw that gives effect to this policy. 
 
6.2  The Control of Dogs Bylaw specifies requirements for the keeping of dogs, including provision 

of shelter, limitations on the number of dogs allowed and control of dogs. The bylaw also 
specified public spaces where there are restrictions on having dogs. 

 
6.3 Breaching any part of the bylaw may result in penalties or infringement notices.  

285

https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1996/0013/latest/DLM374410.html
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/2002/0084/latest/DLM170873.html
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1999/0142/latest/DLM49664.html
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1987/0065/latest/DLM103610.html


 

 4  
 

 

7. Access to Public Places 

7.1 Dogs are to be kept on a leash at all times in public places within the South Wairarapa District, 

including public parks, reserves, pensioner flats, transfer stations, recycling stations and also 

public reserves in rural areas under the control or management of the Council. 

7.2 Dogs are prohibited from any public building or public place, outlined in Schedule A.  

7.6 Access of dogs may be controlled under other legislation, including the Conservation Act 1987 
and Reserves Act 1977. Refer to www.doc.govt.nz to identify such areas in the South 
Wairarapa district. 

8. Dog Exercise Areas 

8.1 Dogs are not required to be kept on a leash in a designated dog exercise area, outlined in 

Schedule B, where they are under continuous surveillance and effective control. 

8.2 The Council may, by resolution publicly notified make additions or deletions from the 

schedule. Where SWDC intend to make a resolution, engagement may be undertaken as 

required under our Significance and Engagement Policy. 

9. Menacing Dogs 

9.1 SWDC will classify a dog as menacing by breed, type or deed, in accordance with the Act 

(s.33A). 

9.2 All dogs classified as menacing dogs must be desexed in accordance with s33E(1) (b) of the Act 

within one month after receipt of notice of the classification. In the case of dogs classified as 

menacing by another council, that the dog be neutered within one month of registration with 

the Council. 

9.3 The menacing dog owner must, at their expense, provide evidence that the dog has been 

desexed or is unfit to be desexed by the specified date. If the appropriate evidence is not 

provided within one month, the dog may be impounded and will only be released to the 

veterinarian appointment to be desexed, as arranged by the owner. 

9.4      In accordance with the Act (s.33E) a dog classified as menacing must be muzzled when in 

public places (unless confined within a cage or vehicle). 

10. Dog Owners 

10.1 Any person convicted of an offence under the Dog Control Act (s.21) or who commits three 
infringement offences (not related to a single incident) within a 24 month period, may be 
classified as a probationary owner. 

 
10.2 A probationary owner may be required to undertake, at their own expense, a dog owner 

education programme or dog obedience course (or both). 

10.3 A decision to classify an owner as a probationary owner can be appealed by the owner to 

Council. 

286



 

 5  
 

 

10.4 Council must disqualify a person from being the owner of a dog if that person is convicted of 
certain offences, unless Council is satisfied the circumstances of an offence do not warrant 
disqualification. 

 
10.5 Where a person who is classified as a probationary owner and is convicted of certain offences 

the Council may disqualify that person from being the owner of any dog. The disqualification 
can be for any period up to a maximum of 5 years. A disqualified owner must dispose of any 
dog/s owned within 14 days. 

 
10.6 Council’s will classify an owner as disqualified for an appropriate period as provided for in the 

Act. A decision to classify an owner as a disqualified owner can be appealed by the owner to 
Council. 

 
10.7 Owner education is seen as an important part of the policy. Officers will work with dog owners 

and other stakeholders in the community to: 
 

i) Inform and educate dog owners and the general public about responsible dog ownership 
by raising awareness through education programs, distributing information and the use of 
media. 

 
ii) Ensure complaints received are followed up by Officers with appropriate action taken. 

11. Dog Control Fees 

11.1 The Council will annually review its dog control fees to suit operational requirements. The 

structure of dog control fees will be aligned with the Annual Plan each year. The Council aims 

to self-fund dog control operations from dog control fees. All dogs over 3 months must be 

registered. 

i) Desexing - The Council will continue to promote desexing of dogs by imposing a lower 

registration fee for spayed or castrated dogs. 

ii) Late registration - A late registration penalty fee will be added for all dogs not registered 

by the end of the first week of August as set by the Council of the registration year. The 

penalty fee will be 50% of relevant registration fee, or as set by the Council. 

iii) Rural dogs - It is recognised that rural dogs cause fewer dog control problems and 

therefore a differential between rural and urban fees will apply. 

iv) Disability Assist dogs - Disability Assist dogs, as defined by Schedule 5 of the Dog Control 
Act, will not be charged a fee upon registration. 
 

11.2 All dogs (except working dogs) registered after 1 July 2006 must be microchipped. If the dog 
is not microchipped by SWDC, a microchip certificate is to be provided to SWDC within 30 
days of registration. All impounded dogs will be microchipped before being released. 

 
11.3 Every person who commits an offence, who does anything prohibited, or who fails, refuses 

or neglects to do anything to be done according to the South Wairarapa District Council 
Control of Dogs Bylaw and is liable to: 
 
i) The penalty provisions of section 242 Local Government Act 2002; or 

287



 

 6  
 

 

 
ii) Any other penalty pursuant to the Dog Control Act 1996; or 
iii) Be served with an infringement notice pursuant to section 66 of the Dog Control Act 
1996. 

 
11.4 The Dog Control Act provides for infringement notices for certain offences under the Act. 

Infringement notices can be served at the time of the offence on the owner as defined in the 
Act and generally the person in charge of the dog. The infringement requires an 
infringement fee to be paid or for the owner to request a court hearing in respect of the 
alleged offence. 

12. Definitions 

Menacing Dog By Breed refers to those dogs belonging wholly or predominantly to one or more 
breeds or types listed below.  

a) Brazilian Fila 
b) Dogo Argentino 
c) Japanese Tosa 
d) Perro de Presa Canario 
e) American Pit Bull Terrier 

 
Menacing Dog by Deed refers to those dogs considered by Council to pose a threat to any person, 
stock, poultry, domestic animal or protected wildlife due to observed or reported behaviour of the 
dog or any characteristics typically associated with the dog’s breed or type. 
 

Working Dog refers to any dog outlined in Section 2 of the Dog Control Act (1996). 
 
Disability Assist Dog  refers to those dogs certified by one of the organisations listed in Schedule 5 of 
the Dog Control Act (1996) as being a dog that has been trained (or is being trained) to assist a 
person with a disability. 

 

288

https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1996/0013/latest/DLM374415.html
https://www.legislation.govt.nz/act/public/1996/0013/latest/LMS175895.html#LMS175895


 
 
 

SOUTH WAIRARAPA DISTRICT COUNCIL 
CONTROL OF DOGS BYLAW 2013  

(as at DD MMM 2023) 
 
 
 
  

289



Contents 
SOUTH WAIRARAPA DISTRICT COUNCIL ............................................................................................... 1 

CONTROL OF DOGS BYLAW 2013 ......................................................................................................... 1 

Contents ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

Referenced Documents..................................................................................................................... 3 

Bylaw History .................................................................................................................................... 3 

Foreword ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

1. Title and Commencement ......................................................................................................... 4 

2. Scope ......................................................................................................................................... 4 

3. Interpretation ............................................................................................................................ 4 

4. Dogs to be under control at all times ....................................................................................... 5 

5. Shelter ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

6. Areas where dogs are prohibited and where dogs must be kept on a leash ........................... 5 

7. Dog exercise areas .................................................................................................................... 5 

8. Diseased dogs............................................................................................................................ 5 

9. Bitches on heat ......................................................................................................................... 6 

10. Dogs causing or becoming a nuisance or injurious to health ................................................... 6 

11. Limitation as to Number of Dogs Allowed ................................................................................ 6 

12. Dogs fouling in public areas ...................................................................................................... 7 

13. Conviction and fines .................................................................................................................. 7 

14. Power to amend by resolution ................................................................................................. 7 

Schedule A: Areas where dogs are prohibited (except in a vehicle)................................................. 8 

 Schedule B: Areas where dogs can be exercised off-leash .............................................................. 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

290



Referenced Documents 
Reference is made in this document to the following New Zealand legislation: 

» Dog Control Act 1996 

» Local Government Act 2002 

Bylaw History  
 

Date of Decision
  

Description Decision 
Reference 

14 December 
2005 

Made Control of Dogs Bylaw 2005 which replaced Part 12 of the 
Council’s Part 12 of the Council’s Model General Bylaws 
NZS9201:1999.  

DC2005/215 

26 April 2006 Amendments to Control of Dogs Bylaw 2005 pursuant to Section 
156 of the Local Government Act 2002.  

DC2006/47 

25 July 2007 
 
25 July 2007 

Made Control of Dog Bylaw 2005 as part of a review of Control of 
Dogs Bylaw 2007.    
Commencement of Control of Dog Bylaw 2007. 

DC2007/120 

19 September 
2013 
 
 
1 October 2013 

Made Control of Dogs Bylaw 2013 as part of a scheduled review 
of Control of Dogs Bylaw 2007. A key change related to the ability 
for Council to make changes by way of resolution to the 
schedules of the bylaw. 
Commencement of Control of Dogs Bylaw 2013 

DC2013/164 

XX XXX 2023 
 
XX XXX 2023 

Review of Control of Dogs Bylaw 2013 completed 
 
Made amendments to Control of Dogs Bylaw 2013.  

DC2023/XX 

 
This bylaw must be reviewed by XX MONTH 2033. If not reviewed by this date, the Bylaw will expire on 
XX MONTH 2035.  

  

291



Foreword 
This Bylaw is made under section 20 of the Dog Control Act 1996 and section 145 of the Local Government Act 

2002 (LGA). This bylaw draws from the New Zealand 9201 Standard Part 12 Dog Control Bylaw. NZ9201 series are 

model bylaws covering various matters under local authority jurisdiction.  

1. Title and Commencement 
1.1. The title of this bylaw is the South Wairarapa District Council Control of Dogs Bylaw 2013.  

1.2. This Bylaw comes into force throughout the South Wairarapa district on 1 October 2013.  

1.3. Amendments to this Bylaw by resolution DC2023/XX come into force on DD MMM 2023.  

2. Scope 
2.1. The purpose of this Bylaw is to set standards of control that must be observed by dog owners. It covers 

matters such as dogs in public places, wandering dogs, ownership of more than one dog, and nuisances 

caused by dogs.  

2.2. This bylaw is not the only major control document for dog owners. The Dog Control Act 1996 also 

addresses various issues such as registration, barking dogs, dogs attacking people or stock and other 

matters. 

3. Interpretation 
3.1. In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires: 

Disability Assist Dog means the same as that specified in the Dog Control Act 1996 and includes a dog certified by 

one of the following organisations as being a dog trained to assist (or as being a dog in training to assist) a person 

with a disability: 

» Assistance Dogs New Zealand 

» Hearing Dogs for Deaf People New Zealand 

» K9 Medical Detection New Zealand 

» K9 Search Medical Detection 

» Mobility Assistance Dogs Trust 

» New Zealand Epilepsy Assist Dogs Trust 

» Perfect Partners Assistance Dogs Trust 

» Royal New Zealand Foundation of the Blind Incorporated 

» Any organisation specified in an Order in Council made under section 78D of the Dog Control Act 1996. 

Dog Control Officer means a dog control officer appointed under section 11 of the Dog Control Act 1996.  

Council means the Governing Body of the South Wairarapa District Council or any person delegated or authorised 

to act on its behalf. 

292



Public Place means public place ad defined in section 2 of the Dog Control Act 1996: 

» a place that, at any material time, is open to or is being used by the public, whether free or on payment of a 

charge, and whether any owner or occupier of the place is lawfully entitled to exclude or effect any person 

from that place; and 

» Includes any aircraft, hovership, ship or ferry or other vessel, train, or vehicle carrying or available to carry 

passengers for reward.  

4. Dogs to be under control at all times 
4.1. The owner, or any person in charge of having control of any dog, shall keep such dog securely tied up or 

otherwise effectively confined or under his/her direct control. 

5. Shelter  
5.1. Every owner of a dog shall ensure that the dog is provided with adequate shelter and that no suffering is 

caused to the dog by the manner of the shelter. 

5.2. No dog owner shall keep a dog in any shelter that is not on a hard surface and that does not provide shelter 

from the elements.  

5.3. No dog owner shall keep a dog in any shelter that is not kept in a clean condition and free from dampness. 

5.4. No dog owner shall keep a dog beneath the floor of any building, or in the case of a building with more than 

one floor, in the under-floor areas i.e. beneath the bottom or ground floor of that building.  

6. Areas where dogs are prohibited and where dogs must be kept on a leash  
6.1. The owner of a dog shall not cause or permit to allow such dog to enter or remain in or on any part of any 

street or public place declared by resolution of the Council to be subject to the provisions of this clause 

unless such dog is being carried in a vehicle. The streets and public places as resolved from time to time 

shall be detailed in Schedule A of this bylaw.  

7. Dog exercise areas 
 

7.1. The Council may declare by resolution areas designated as dog exercise areas. The owner of a dog may 

exercise his or her dog without it being on a hand held leash in any area designated as a dog exercise area 

provided the dog is kept under continuous and effective control at all times. The dog exercise areas as 

resolved from time to time shall be detailed in Schedule B of this bylaw. 

8. Diseased dogs  
8.1. No person owning or having control or charge of any dog infected with an infectious disease shall take the 

dog or permit or suffer the dog to enter or remain in any public place or wander free and at large. 

293



9. Bitches on heat 
9.1. The owner or person in charge of a bitch in season must keep it confined so that it is unable to enter or 

remain in any public place or wander free and at large. 

9.2. Notwithstanding clause 9.1, any such dog shall be regularly exercised. 

10. Dogs causing or becoming a nuisance or injurious to health  
 

10.1. The owner of the dog, or owner or occupier of any premises where any dog or dogs are customarily kept 

shall take adequate precaution to prevent the dog or dogs, or the keeping thereof, from becoming a 

nuisance or injurious to health. 

10.2. If, in the opinion of the Council, the dog or dogs, or keeping thereof on such premises, has become or is 

likely to become a nuisance or injurious to health, the Council, or any person duly authorised on that behalf 

by the Council may, by notice in writing, require the owner or occupier of the premises within a time 

specified in such notice to do all or any of the following: 

10.2.1. Reduce the number of dogs kept on premises; 

10.2.2. Construct, alter, reconstruct or otherwise improve the kennels or buildings or fencing used to 

house or contain such dog or dogs; 

10.2.3. Require such dog or dogs to be tied up or otherwise confined during specified periods; 

10.2.4. To clean and keep clean the dog kennel and associated area; 

10.2.5. Take other such action as the Council deems necessary to minimise or remove the likelihood of 

nuisance or injury to health. 

10.3. Any person to whom notice is given under the preceding provisions of this clause who fails to comply with 

such notice within the time therein specified shall commit an offence against this bylaw. 

11. Limitation as to Number of Dogs Allowed 
11.1. No occupier of any property in an area which has predominantly urban character under the District Plan 

prepared by Councill shall allow or cause to remain or keep on such premises for any period exceeding 

fourteen days , or more than two dogs other than working dogs, over the age of three months (whether or 

not such dogs are registered) unless such occupier shall be the holder of a permit for such purpose from the 

Council.  

11.2. Such permit may be issued upon or subject to such terms, conditions, restrictions as the Council may 

consider necessary and any breach of such terms, conditions or restrictions shall be a breach of this bylaw. 

11.3. Any person wishing to keep more than two dogs on any premises as provided in the bylaw shall make 

written application to the Council in such form as may be required by the Council for a permit and shall give 

to the Council such information in respect of the application as the Council may require.  

294



11.4. The Council may decide by resolution that a fee must be paid before a permit is issued in accordance with 

section 150 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

11.5. The fee for such permit shall be payable in addition to and separate from the dog control fees payable 

under the Dog Control Act 1996. 

12. Dogs fouling in public areas 
12.1. Where any dog defecates in any public place or a private way or on land or premises other than that 

occupied by the owner of the dog, that owner must remove the faeces forthwith and dispose of them in a 

hygienic manner.  

13. Conviction and fines 
13.1. Every person commits an offence who does anything prohibited under this bylaw or who fails, refuses or 

neglects to do anything to be done, according to this bylaw, and is liable to: 

13.1.1. the penalty provisions of section 242 of the Local Government Act 2002; or 

13.1.2. any other penalty pursuant to the Dog Control Act 1996; or 

13.1.3. be served with an infringement notice, pursuant to section 66 of the Dog Control Act 1996 

14.     Power to amend by resolution 
14.1. The Council may from time to time by resolution publicly notified: 

14.1.1. Add schedules 

14.1.2. Make additions or deletions from the schedules 

14.1.3. Substitute new schedules.  

14.2. Where Council intends to make a resolution under clause 14.1, Council will comply with the consultation 

requirements of section 156 of the Local Government Act 2002. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

295



Schedule A: Areas where dogs are prohibited (except in a vehicle) 
 
i) Any public building or public place, including any swimming pools, cemeteries, library buildings or recreation 
centres, under the control or management of the Council and any other areas where dogs may pose a threat to the 
public. 
 
ii) Any area developed or marked out as a sports field (not including any spectator area) during sporting events, or 
any outdoor court, skateboard park or cycle park.  
 
iii) On any area that is developed or marked out as a playground or contains children’s play equipment.  
 
iv) The following coastal camping areas: 
 

» North Tora 

» South Tora 

» Ngawi 

» Ngawi Surf Breaks 

» Te Awaiti 

 Schedule B: Areas where dogs can be exercised off-leash 

» Featherston Dog Park: Corner Johnston Street and Harrison Street West 

» Greytown Dog Park: Corner southern end of Cotter Street and Pierce Street 

» Martinborough Dog Park: Roberts Street Road Reserve (between Weld Street and Ferry Road) 

 

296



Appendix 2 – Full set of Engagement 
Feedback 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

297



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Roger Barton

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Dog exercise areas,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules,

Nuisance and dangerous Dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

I chair a meat quality organisation known as  My primary interest in dog control is attempting to get dog owners 

to understand that the poor management and control of their dogs can have negative affects on the sheep and goat meat industry. 
Sheep measles is not a human health problem but more on of eating quality. Dog owners have no commercial imperative to understand

the issue as it generally (unless they are farming sheep and /or goats) don’t recognise the issue. I would be encouraged if council 
would keep the issue of sheep measles or more correctly Taenia Ovis on the public’s radar merely as an educational contribution. 

Dogs that are untreated for the tapeworm are a risk in areas running sheep/goats commercially. Beach, coastal and camping areas are 
often in more emote and rural areas with dogs often taken unleashed and with more lax management regarding removal of dog faeces, 

the source of infection from tapeworm eggs. The district spends a lot of ratepayers money on economic development and protecting 
the districts existing income streams is as important as developing new ones. Thanks for the opportunity to contribute from a rural 

perspective.

#1#1
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, June 28, 2023 3:52:21 PMWednesday, June 28, 2023 3:52:21 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, June 28, 2023 4:08:59 PMWednesday, June 28, 2023 4:08:59 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:16:3800:16:38
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback
001

298



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Janet

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash,

Dog exercise areas,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules,

Nuisance and dangerous Dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Respondent skipped this question

#2#2
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, June 30, 2023 10:35:05 PMFriday, June 30, 2023 10:35:05 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, June 30, 2023 10:35:34 PMFriday, June 30, 2023 10:35:34 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:00:2900:00:29
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
002

299



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that
your name and feedback will be in public documents. All
other personal details will remain private.

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Nuisance and dangerous Dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Repeat offenders need to be dealt with.  I am sick and tired of the dog in our parts wandering into our property.  You have told the 

owners and nothing has changed.

#3#3
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Monday, July 03, 2023 11:29:00 AMMonday, July 03, 2023 11:29:00 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Monday, July 03, 2023 11:30:17 AMMonday, July 03, 2023 11:30:17 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:1600:01:16
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
003

300



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Pip

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Dogs banned at the fairs..way to hot and tripping over leashes. Hazard. Tired hot dogs snapping at kids. Is a safety issue. From 
experience and having argument with one owner. An accident waiting to happen.  They need to be fined and removed.

#4#4
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Monday, July 03, 2023 11:32:25 AMMonday, July 03, 2023 11:32:25 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Monday, July 03, 2023 11:37:04 AMMonday, July 03, 2023 11:37:04 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:04:3800:04:38
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
004

301



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Kate Throp

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Other (please specify):

Dog  and wandering dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

I think the policy and bylaws are good.  I would just like to see them enforced a little more - rather keen not to have dogs rushing me 

when I am on my own property or using my lawn as a toilet.  Also acknowledging that picking up dog  in bags is fabulous.  Throwing 
said bags into gardens/under hedges or anywhere other than a rubbish bin is not great.  Perhaps we can get more bins for this purpose 

around town.

#5#5
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Monday, July 03, 2023 3:18:16 PMMonday, July 03, 2023 3:18:16 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Monday, July 03, 2023 3:22:31 PMMonday, July 03, 2023 3:22:31 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:04:1400:04:14
IP Address:IP Address:

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 005

302



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 2

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Jacqui Eyley

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules

#6#6
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Monday, July 03, 2023 6:22:18 PMMonday, July 03, 2023 6:22:18 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Monday, July 03, 2023 6:36:55 PMMonday, July 03, 2023 6:36:55 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:14:3700:14:37
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
006

303



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

2 / 2

Q3

Please provide your feedback

I would like to see greater acceptance of dogs and their owners and their role within the community. The policy and by law is an 

incredibly negative document and does not recognise the benefits of dog ownership to their owners or the greater community.

There is much research to show the mental and physical health benefits. I used to take my dog to the library where children loved to 
pat her, they learnt to talk to adults in a safe environment, experienced the pleasure of interacting with a pet and became more 

confident. Now we're creating fear in our children and destroying opportunities for building understanding and strengthening 
communities. Some libraries run read to dog programmes to encourage reading and learning, that certainly wouldn't be welcomed with 

current rules.

I bought one of those Martinborough posters recently which showed a couple and their dog having a picnic on the square. It saddened 
me how far we've come from that pleasant scene - the dog was off lead and they had a bottle of wine in their basket, both would 

contravene the current laws.

Let's make the community one we'd all want to live in. Let's tolerate all people, whether they're refugees, diverse genders or dog 
owners. 

Otherwise I'm off to Europe where you can play boules with your friends, enjoy a glass of wine and have a dog in the town square.

304



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 2

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Melissa Mead

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash,

Dog exercise areas,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules,

Nuisance and dangerous Dogs

#7#7
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, July 04, 2023 11:02:40 AMTuesday, July 04, 2023 11:02:40 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, July 04, 2023 11:08:45 AMTuesday, July 04, 2023 11:08:45 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:06:0500:06:05
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
007

305



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

2 / 2

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Dogs should continue to be leashed in CBDs and high streets, around town etc. and outside of dog parks/exercise areas.

Dogs should be allowed off lead at lakes and beaches and exercise parks IF the dogs can be recalled and owners are responsible with 

their dogs approaching other dogs who may be leashed and/or reactive.

More should be done to educate about dog ettiquette in exercise areas (such as not letting dogs randomly approach others, despite 
being in off-lead areas. Control is still important.)

You could offer incentives for dog obedience and owner education classes/online modules - such as cheaper registration if you can 

prove you've completed an obedience class or a short online module about dog ownership and etiquette. 

More should be done to stop public fowling (more bins etc.)

306



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Bryce Neems

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Other (please specify):

Companion dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Owners over 65 need to register their dog but no charge as dogs make good companions and company for the elderly. Follow 

Cartertons  lead

#8#8
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, July 04, 2023 8:35:48 PMTuesday, July 04, 2023 8:35:48 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, July 04, 2023 8:39:20 PMTuesday, July 04, 2023 8:39:20 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:03:3100:03:31
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback
008

307



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Charmaine Hard

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Nuisance and dangerous Dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Please acknowledge the truth about the ongoing danger to the public and community by menacing, nuisance and dangerous dogs.

To date the Council have taken a weak approach to the prevention of attacks on people and animals!
For the sake snd safety of all NZers please seriously consider my submission;

*Reaffirm the COMPULSORY neutering policy for menacing, nuisance and dangerous dog breeds.
*Introduce an ELIMINATION policy! Put down any menacing, nuisance, or dangerous dog ALIVE after a certain date. ENFORCE it!

*Have STRICT consequences, and owner penalties, for dogs found roaming or unleashed in public.
*Insist on fenced properties to contain dogs.

Thank you.

#9#9
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, July 05, 2023 12:19:35 PMWednesday, July 05, 2023 12:19:35 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, July 05, 2023 12:35:51 PMWednesday, July 05, 2023 12:35:51 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:16:1600:16:16
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
009

308



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Joanna Baldwin

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Schedule A, item 1

What about Dogs in Togs event at Featherston pool?

#10#10
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, July 07, 2023 2:28:37 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 2:28:37 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, July 07, 2023 2:30:32 PMFriday, July 07, 2023 2:30:32 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:5400:01:54
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
010

309



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Lynne Abbott

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash

Q3

Please provide your feedback

1. Dogs should be completely banned from the  Martinborough Fair, Toast Martinborough and any other large scale event.

2. Many dogs are walked off leash in the village and it’s surrounds. Our property borders  Rd and the majority of dogs walked
there are off leash - these are urban dogs, not farm dogs. Owners believe they have their dog/s under control but it’s patently obvious

that most of them don’t and boy do they get upset when something is said to them.
3. Many dogs are allowed to run free and play together at Considine Park while owners chat.  Not ideal for non dog loving humans to

have two or three dogs galloping up to them and running round their legs.

Overall: don’t get me wrong, although I’m a cat owner (and yes we keep them inside at night to avoid them hunting), I am an animal-
lover and like dogs a lot.  However I think owners need to be better trained and educated … could there be some sort of intervention at 

dog registration time that reminds urban dog owners of their responsibilities, and the penalties they face for non-compliance?

#11#11
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, July 08, 2023 1:35:56 PMSaturday, July 08, 2023 1:35:56 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, July 08, 2023 1:50:55 PMSaturday, July 08, 2023 1:50:55 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:14:5800:14:58
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback
011

310



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Neil & Greg Montgomerie-Crowe

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash

Q3

Please provide your feedback

We live on the outskirts of Greytown - on  We have many people using the road for exercising their dogs, which are 

usually off lead. The owners of these dogs are usually walking at some distance from them and we even have a number of people 
driving their cars whilst the dog runs etc. Unfortunately we have seen dogs barking at our animals - we have cattle, sheep, alpacas in 

the paddocks along the road. When we have approached the owners some regard it as a joke - something funny that their dog does - 
barking at other animals.  We have also found that many owners (particularly those in cars) are not picking up the dog poo.

#12#12
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Monday, July 10, 2023 2:29:41 PMMonday, July 10, 2023 2:29:41 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Monday, July 10, 2023 2:40:49 PMMonday, July 10, 2023 2:40:49 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:11:0700:11:07
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
012

311



 
 

 
 

11th July 2023 

Policy and Governance Team 
South Wairarapa District Council 
PO Box 6 
Martinborough 5741 

SUBMISSION TO CONTROL OF DOGS POLICY 

Ngawi Camping Areas – in front of Ngawi Settlement 

As a resident of Ngawi, we have been trying over the past 5 years to reverse Council’s decision to 
ban dogs from the Freedom Camping areas at Ngawi, and have been waiting for the Bylaw to finally 
come up for renewal. 

I am in support of allowing dogs back into the camping areas at Ngawi.  Dogs form an important role 
of companionship and we have witnessed many a campervan/motorhome arrive during the week 
and weekends only to read the No Dogs signs, turn around and find somewhere else to camp, hence 
dotting them all around the coastline.  By camping in the camping area, the campers at least have 
access to Toilets and Rubbish disposal. 

This rule has, over the years, discouraged good, responsible campers who had been visiting this area 
for many many years, who now unfortunately no longer camp at Ngawi.  These campers used to help 
out with maintenance and attend working bees that we undertake out here to maintain and beautify 
the camping ground areas.  

I would like to see the Bylaw changed to allow dogs on leads and owners responsible for picking up 
their own dog’s mess: 

I would like to see the following wording inserted: 

• Dogs are permitted ‘on-leash’ at the Ngawi free camping areas, Legal description Lot 101
DP29304, Coastal side of Cape Palliser Road, opposite the settlement area.   Owners are
required to pick up after their dogs at all times.

Yours faithfully, 

Kim 
Kim Hayes 

 

Engagement 
Feedback 
013

312



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Cape Palliser Residents & Ratepayers

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules

Q3

Please provide your feedback

On behalf on the CPRRA, we are proposing that dogs be allowed to accompany campers visiting the Cape Palliser camping area at 

Ngawi (Legal description Lot 101 DP 29304, coastal side of the Cape Palliser road opposite the settlement).

Many people are accompanied by their dogs while caravanning / holidaying around NZ. On the whole their dogs are well-controlled and 
well-cared for members of their "family".

We feel visitors will feel much more welcomed and law-abiding if their dogs are allowed to officially to accompany them. On the 

understanding of course that their dogs are under control and on a lead where needed at all times. Signage to state this would be 
proposed, also the necessity to clean up after their dogs.

Regards the Cape Palliser Residents and Ratepayers Assn.

#14#14
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, July 18, 2023 8:55:46 AMTuesday, July 18, 2023 8:55:46 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, July 18, 2023 9:09:32 AMTuesday, July 18, 2023 9:09:32 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:13:4500:13:45
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
014

313



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Ian Warren

Address 27 Oxford st

City/Town Martinborough

ZIP/Postal Code 5711

Email Address ian@pmw.net.nz

Phone Number 0274459739

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Nuisance and dangerous Dogs,

Other (please specify):

Barking dogs

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Continual Barking of dogs are a great annoyance to anyone working outside enjoying their garden or just relaxing. The council should 
have a vigorous action plan to have this stopped. This plan should be advertised so all have knowledge that something can be done 

when this occurs. Since covid the number of dogs in and around Martinborough has increased dramatically. Also I have a problem 
dogs on the footpath outside eating places when young infants are around in pushchairs or walking past

#13#13
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Thursday, July 13, 2023 12:36:01 PMThursday, July 13, 2023 12:36:01 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Thursday, July 13, 2023 12:44:55 PMThursday, July 13, 2023 12:44:55 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:08:5300:08:53
IP Address:IP Address:   115.189.80.113115.189.80.113

Page 1

314



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Donna

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash,

Dog exercise areas,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules

Q3

Please provide your feedback

Dogs should be allowed in all areas of the district.
As a dog owner, I feel more comfortable with dogs being leased at all times whilst in public, with exception to off-leash dog parks. It’s 

safer for other dogs. 
More dog exercise areas would be great. More access to places where people are allowed to take their dogs.

Beach, coastal and camping areas should be dog friendly and open for people to take their dogs. There are already warnings of bird 
nesting areas and responsible dog owners respect this. I would like to see more dog friendly camping spots within the south wairarapa.

#15#15
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Tuesday, July 18, 2023 11:37:00 PMTuesday, July 18, 2023 11:37:00 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Tuesday, July 18, 2023 11:42:18 PMTuesday, July 18, 2023 11:42:18 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:05:1800:05:18
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement 
Feedback 
016

315



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw Feedback

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Louise Lyster

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

What parts of the Policy or Bylaw do you want to comment
on?

Where dogs are allowed in the District,

Where dogs are allowed off-leash,

Dog exercise areas,

Beach, coastal and camping access rules

Q3

Please provide your feedback

In comparison with other Councils in the Wellington region,  South Wairarapa allocates insufficient public areas to exercise dogs (1) off 

leash and (2) under control.    Council could designate additional reserves and unmarked sports grounds for dogs to be exercised.  Eg 
Considine Park and the vacant land adjacent to Mtb Golf Course could be made available dog owners during certain times of the 

day/year.  Have a look at reserves/parks that other Councils in the region make available for dog owners and see what you can do in 
our area. Many visitors travel with dogs - I have friends from Wellington who stay at an Air BnB in Masterton once a month because 

they can exercise their dog at Henley Lake.

#16#16
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, July 22, 2023 9:54:47 AMSaturday, July 22, 2023 9:54:47 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, July 22, 2023 10:04:50 AMSaturday, July 22, 2023 10:04:50 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:10:0300:10:03
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1

Engagement
Feedback
017

316



D T S Riddiford  BA  LLB  Te Awaiti Station, 
Export & Business Consultant     

      
Ms Kaitlyn Carmichael.                 Email 

  
Dear Ms Carmichael       

Consultation Dog Control policy 
Personal Introduction 
I and my wife Diana farm Sheep, Cattle and Deer at  on the Coast east 
of Martinborough.    Wefarm steep hill country at the end of the road.    Along with our 
farming neighbours we face 35% + drop in sheep returns and 16% inflation of farm costs. 

Our Livestock Manager  manages 14 well behaved dogs which never 
stray from  and are regularly drontal dosed and vaccinated as required. 

However we have a large challenge from sheep measles from dogs from the nearby Te 
Awaiti campground.     80% of the campground ie the bed of the Oterei River remains in 
the Crown Grant name of my Great Grandfather  

Campers routinely ignore the signs forbidding dogs at the campground.    On one 
occasion I asked Mr M’Ewen the SWDC Dog Ranger to remove two large dogs in the 
expectation that the cost of his time and vehicle travel would be reimbursed to the 
ratepaying residents of the South Wairarapa District by the automatic Infringement Fee.    
Instead he made a personal decision to waive the fee (and make a Christmas Present) 

These nuisances could be simply avoided by requiring overnight campers to register 
online for a $20 camping fee per night together with all personal particulars.    Non 
registration of vehicles will expose the non compliant camper to an automatic fine of 
$200. 

The initial consultation 
Thankyou for your explanation this morning that : 
1     17 submissions had been received, but you could not explain how many came from 
Farmers 
2      This was an initial request for submissions to inform a new draft Control of Dogs 
Policy and Bylaw with a furtherconsultation to follow with another opportunity for 
submission to follow 
3      You were unable to confirm or correct my belief that dogs were solely funded from 
Rural 
4       You were unable to locate a copy of the Consultation for the recent rates increases, 
which  would have provided information on funding sources. 
5        My submission today would be duly received and considered, although submitted4 
hours late. 

Engagement 
Feedback 018

317



Little consideration of cost efficiency….The ratepayers will pay 
I was surprised that the new policy was apparently to be formed as objectives,  without 
any consideration of cost efficiency or money. 
 
The existing policy states  

3-8     The Council aims to self fund dog control operations from dog control fees, 
with the exception that from time to time the Council may approve a contribution 
from the general ratepayer base. 

 
3-8   (iii) Rural dogs It is recognised that rural dogs cause fewer dog control 
problems and therefore a differential between rural and urban fees will apply. 

These provisions should remain 
 
The new Policy must carefully follow s101 LGA 2002                                                   
S101     Financial management …Local Government Act 2002 

(1)     A local authority must manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, 
investments, and general financial dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the 
current and future interests of the community. 

(2)     A local authority must make adequate and effective provision in its long-term plan 
and in its annual plan (where applicable) to meet the expenditure needs of the local 
authority identified in that long-term plan and annual plan. 

(3)    The funding needs of the local authority must be met from those sources that the 
local authority determines to be appropriate, following consideration of,— 

(a)    in relation to each activity to be funded,— 

(i)     the community outcomes to which the activity primarily contributes; and 

(ii)     the distribution of benefits between the community as a whole, any identifiable part 
of the community, and individuals; and 

(iii)    the period in or over which those benefits are expected to occur; and 

(iv)     the extent to which the actions or inaction of particular individuals or a group 
contribute to the need to undertake the activity; and 

(v)     the costs and benefits, including consequences for transparency and accountability, 
of funding the activity distinctly from other activities; and 

(b)      the overall impact of any allocation of liability for revenue needs on the current and 
future social, economic, environmental, and cultural well-being of the community. 

 

318



Pig Dogs 

The new Policy should describe pig dogs as working dogs for remote farmers  [Refer s2 
Dog Control Act] 

 
LGOIMA  Questions  
 
38       Please send by email and hardcopy all Annual Accounts or Enterprise statements 
for Dog Control since2018 showing the greatest possible level of detail 
 
39       Please on those accounts identify by page number the deficit in each year and 
explain how it was funded eg from rural 
 
40        Please identify all policy documents governing how the Dog Control should be 
funded (as well as the existing Dog Control Policy)  and email and mail copies of those 
documents. 
 
Yours Sincerely     Dan Riddiford 

319



Appendix 3 – Full set of Formal 
Consultation Submissions 

 

 

320



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 2

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Anatoly Kazantsev

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 1: Maintain the stance of the current policy and
bylaw, which is a prohibition of dogs in coastal
camping areas (status quo).

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the draft policy or bylaw?

It would be good to know what actual feedback about allowing dogs in the camping areas is. For example some numbers, summary of 

feedback, maybe survey so that a person can make more weighted decision.

It was not easy to identify amendments in the text. The summary of the changes could contain references to the document for each 
change, e.g. (1. Introduction, 3.1, 7.1). Another possible options is to use colour coding and show combined text of both versions. Text 

on green background means added text or newer version of existing. Text on red background means removed or previous version of 
existing.

#1#1
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, August 09, 2023 10:30:45 AMWednesday, August 09, 2023 10:30:45 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, August 09, 2023 10:45:44 AMWednesday, August 09, 2023 10:45:44 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:14:5800:14:58
IP Address:IP Address:

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

001

321



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

2 / 2

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

322



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 2

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Mrs Jacobs

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the draft policy or bylaw?

I would like it to be noted that our current mayor does not follow the bylaws and walks his dog off leash around Greytown, even going 

so far as to point out to me that it was lucky his dog wasn't on a leash as if it were, our dogs would be tangled up.
I would suggest in future that we work towards no registration tags for dogs and just do compulsory microchipping as they do in other 

places like Sydney. The added tag seems unnecessary for microchipped animals. Incidentally, why do we have to pay registration fees
annually? Surely once your dog is microchipped and registered it should be a lifetime registration. It seems to be a double standard as 

cat owners do not need to try and keep their pet on their property, or microchip it, or register it ever, let alone every year. Cats come on 
to our fully fenced property all the time and the owners do not have to take any responsibility for it.

#2#2
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, August 09, 2023 11:34:44 AMWednesday, August 09, 2023 11:34:44 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, August 09, 2023 11:50:50 AMWednesday, August 09, 2023 11:50:50 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:16:0600:16:06
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

002

323



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

2 / 2

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

324



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Alison sim

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the
draft policy or bylaw?

Respondent skipped this question

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

#3#3
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, August 09, 2023 3:13:50 PMWednesday, August 09, 2023 3:13:50 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, August 09, 2023 3:14:56 PMWednesday, August 09, 2023 3:14:56 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:0600:01:06
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

003

325



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Andrew Sim

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the
draft policy or bylaw?

Respondent skipped this question

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

#4#4
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Thursday, August 10, 2023 7:22:25 PMThursday, August 10, 2023 7:22:25 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Thursday, August 10, 2023 7:24:02 PMThursday, August 10, 2023 7:24:02 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:3600:01:36
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

004

326



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 2

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Jerome

City/Town

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 2: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in coastal camping areas during specific times of the
year at all sites (Example: allowed between 1 May and
31 October annually)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the draft policy or bylaw?

Great to be able to take dogs to coastal areas when they aren’t busy.  Can we have maps so we know exactly where these areas are? 

There are inconsistencies between policy and bylaw that we noticed that causing us some confusion. 

Example 1: The policy says adding a schedule may involve engagement under the Significant & Engagement Policy but the bylaw 
says there will be consultation under a section of the local government act. Are these the same thing?  

Example 2: Policy says exercise areas in Schedule B, bylaw says Schedule C. I think it means schedule B? There is no schedule C? 
Example 3: The public places prohibited in the policy don’t follow exactly the public places in bylaw. Transfer station, pensioner flats in 

one but not other. Maybe just examples but can be confusing for us trying to follow the rules. Could they be matched to avoid possible 
interpretation issues?  We don’t want to be fined! 

Don’t understand differences in clauses 6.1 and 6.2 and why one directs to schedule A and other to B? 

Cheers J

#5#5
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Thursday, August 17, 2023 10:26:40 PMThursday, August 17, 2023 10:26:40 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Thursday, August 17, 2023 10:48:01 PMThursday, August 17, 2023 10:48:01 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:21:2100:21:21
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

005

327



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

2 / 2

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

328



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Cape Palliser Residents & Ratepayers

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the draft policy or bylaw?

Please refer to our original submission.

We support dogs being allowed in all coastal camping sites at Ngawi.

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

Yes

#6#6
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, August 18, 2023 3:37:44 PMFriday, August 18, 2023 3:37:44 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, August 18, 2023 3:56:17 PMFriday, August 18, 2023 3:56:17 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:18:3200:18:32
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

006

329



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Jessica Ford

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the
draft policy or bylaw?

Respondent skipped this question

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

#7#7
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Friday, September 01, 2023 8:39:16 PMFriday, September 01, 2023 8:39:16 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Friday, September 01, 2023 8:40:55 PMFriday, September 01, 2023 8:40:55 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:3900:01:39
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

007

330



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name Noeline Wells

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Phone Number

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the
draft policy or bylaw?

Respondent skipped this question

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

No

#8#8
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Saturday, September 02, 2023 8:12:03 AMSaturday, September 02, 2023 8:12:03 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Saturday, September 02, 2023 8:14:30 AMSaturday, September 02, 2023 8:14:30 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:02:2600:02:26
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

008

331



Control of Dogs Policy and Bylaw

1 / 1

Q1

Please enter your contact information.Please note that your name and feedback will be in public documents. All other
personal details will remain private.

Name AJ Johnson

Address

City/Town

ZIP/Postal Code

Email Address

Q2

In our current policy and bylaw, dogs are not allowed in five
coastal camping areas within the district (Ngawi, Ngawi
Surf Breaks, North Tora, South Tora and Te Awaiti). We
have heard from the community that there is an interest in
this prohibition being reviewed and we have put forward a
few options for consideration.We would like to know which
option you support. 

Option 3: Amend the policy and bylaw to allow for dogs
in specific coastal camping sites at all times of the year.
(Example: have two sites designated as being ‘dog
friendly’.)

Q3

Is there anything else you would like to tell us about the draft policy or bylaw?

Stop legislating on breed as it is utterly stupid

Q4

Would you like to speak on behalf of your submission at
the hearings?

Respondent skipped this question

#9#9
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Sunday, September 03, 2023 1:02:05 AMSunday, September 03, 2023 1:02:05 AM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Sunday, September 03, 2023 1:03:52 AMSunday, September 03, 2023 1:03:52 AM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:01:4600:01:46
IP Address:IP Address:   

Page 1: Statement of Proposal

009

332



From:
To: submissions
Subject: Dog control policy
Date: Friday, September 1, 2023 7:19:21 PM

Hi,
I would like to see the third option adopted with regards to dogs at coastal sites. Some designated areas I.e. areas at
Ngawi and Tora available to dogs. I would expect dogs to need to be under control at all times and on lead. I
understand the need to protect farm areas from sheep measles so the right sites need to be selected.

Thanks

80 Fraters Road

Sent from my iPad

010

333


	A8.1 FCB Playground name change request 27Sept23.pdf
	Petition_to_rename_Featherston_2023-09-11_01_35_34.pdf
	Sheet1


	B1 Hearings Committee Recommendation to Council Report 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	To provide an opportunity for members to consider recommendations received from the Hearings Committee.
	2. Recommendations
	3. Background
	4. Appendices
	Appendix 2 - E1 Speed Review Hearings and Deliberations Report 16Aug23 FINAL.pdf
	ADP53CA.tmp
	Hearings Committee
	16 August 2023
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	5. Discussion
	5.1 Draft Speed Management Plan Priorities
	Priority 1 – Reducing School Speed Limits
	The Government requires us to have reduced speed limits in the vicinity of all schools to a maximum of 30km/hour in urban areas and 60 km/hour in rural areas.  Where schools are located on no-exit roads or within residential neighbourhoods, we propose...
	The following schools in the district are proposed to have a 30 km/hour speed limit:
	 Kuranui College
	 Greytown School
	 St Teresa’s School
	 Featherston School
	 Martinborough School
	 South Featherston School
	The following schools are proposed to have a 60km/hour permanent speed limit:
	 Pirinoa School
	 Kahutara School
	Priority 2 – Reducing Marae Speed Limits and Introducing Signage
	Our proposed approach is to install advance and directional signage at each marae location. There are also proposed speed limit changes around marae as part of our approach to high-risk roads. In some cases, there are papakāinga located next to marae ...
	The following marae are proposed to have new signage and/or speed limits:
	 Hau Ariki Marae
	 Pāpāwai Marae
	 Kohunui Marae
	Priority 3 – Reducing Speed Limits on High Priority Roads
	We have reviewed all the crash data for local roads within the South Wairarapa district for 2012-2021. Those roads that have had three or more serious or fatal crashes in this period have been considered to be high priority roads. A complete list of h...
	5.2 Consultation Process
	5.3 Consultation Topics
	5.5 Submissions

	6. Analysis of Submissions
	6.1 Speed around schools
	174 submitters responded to the question on Councils’ approach and principles around schools. Of these submitters:
	 73.6% of submitters agreed with Councils’ proposed approach and principles around Schools.
	 26.4% of submitters did not agree with Councils’ proposed approach and principles around schools.
	6.2 Speed around marae
	168 submitters responded to the question on approach and principles around marae. Of these submitters:
	 51.8% of submitters agreed with Councils’ proposed approach and principles around marae.
	 48.2% of submitters did not agree with Council’s proposed approach and principles around marae.
	6.3 Speed on high priority roads
	163 submitters responded to the question on Councils’ approach and principles on high priority roads in the area. Of these submitters:
	 26.4% of submitters agreed with Councils’ approach and principles on high priority roads.
	 73.6% of submitters did not agree with Councils’ approach and principles on high priority roads.
	6.4 Additional Submissions
	1. Martinborough Community Board
	Martinborough Community Board indicated overall support for the draft Speed Management Plan but indicated the importance of geographical consistency across the implementation. The board outlined potential areas for consideration, including Memorial Sq...
	2. Greytown Community Board
	Greytown Community Board indicated that priority should be on road quality, traffic calming measures and driver education as opposed to reduced speed.
	3. Ministry of Education
	The Ministry of education indicated support for the proposed limit reductions around schools throughout the South Wairarapa district and encouraged engagement with schools in the area to ensure that the proposed changes will achieve the safest outcome...

	7. Summary of Considerations
	7.1 Significant risk register

	8. Conclusion
	8.1  Next Steps
	9. Appendices


	Appendix 4 - C1 Hearings Committee Dog Control Policy and Bylaw Report 20Sept23.pdf
	Appendix 1 - Control of Dogs Policy & Bylaw DRAFT.pdf
	Draft Control of Dogs Bylaw FINAL.pdf
	SOUTH WAIRARAPA DISTRICT COUNCIL
	CONTROL OF DOGS BYLAW 2013
	Contents
	Referenced Documents
	Bylaw History
	Foreword
	1. Title and Commencement
	2. Scope
	3. Interpretation
	4. Dogs to be under control at all times
	5. Shelter
	6. Areas where dogs are prohibited and where dogs must be kept on a leash
	7. Dog exercise areas
	8. Diseased dogs
	9. Bitches on heat
	10. Dogs causing or becoming a nuisance or injurious to health
	11. Limitation as to Number of Dogs Allowed
	12. Dogs fouling in public areas
	13. Conviction and fines
	14.     Power to amend by resolution
	Schedule A: Areas where dogs are prohibited (except in a vehicle)
	Schedule B: Areas where dogs can be exercised off-leash





	C1 Audit Engagement Letters 2023-2025 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Recommendations
	3. Executive Summary
	4. Appendices

	C2 Community Wellbeing Fund 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	In August 2022 Council approved entering into a funding agreement between DIA and SWDC for Three waters Reform – Better Off package (Tranche 1 Funding) of $1.88m. Since then, the proposal to fund a Community Well Being Fund was accepted and the agreem...
	We now wish Council to confirm via a council resolution the main programme components for the fund comprising:
	1. Application of the remaining $1.38m to the Community Wellbeing Fund,
	2. Creation of a representative Governance Group,
	3. Delegation to the Governance Group the authority to approve community projects up to a value of $50,000, and
	4. Ring-fencing of funds to enable administration and operation of the fund.
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	In August 2022, Council approved SWDC entering into a funding agreement with Te Tari Taiwhenua – Department of Internal Affairs for $1.88m of Three Waters Tranche 1 ‘Better Off’ Funding. The funding was to be used to create a ‘South Wairarapa Communit...
	With an agreement in place however, SWDC has yet to activate the creation of the CWBF and now needs Council approval to proceed with design and initiation of the mechanics of the fund.  Only once the governance and operational structures are in place ...
	5. Prioritisation
	5.1 Te Tiriti obligations
	5.2 Long Term Plan alignment

	6. Discussion
	6.1 Governance Structure and Delegations
	6.2 Resources

	7. Options
	7.1 Option 1 – Initiate and operationalise a Community Wellbeing Fund
	7.2 Option 2 – Vary the Funding Agreement to an unallocated project needing up to $1.38m

	8. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	8.1  Significant risk register
	8.2 Policy implications

	9. Consultation
	9.1  Communications and engagement
	9.2 Partnerships

	10. Financial Considerations
	11. Climate Change Considerations
	12. Health and Safety Considerations
	13. Appendices

	C3 Updated Three Waters Capital Delivery Plan for FY202324 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	Wellington Water provided advice to Council in the development of the capital delivery plan for FY2023/24 in the form of written advice and workshop papers and participation.  It was confirmed that Wellington Water would develop a plan within the appr...
	Also following the 8 May 2023 advice, the project making up 40 percent of the proposed spend for FY2023/24, the Soldiers’ Memorial Park – New Bore and Pump within the Memorial Swimming Pool Grounds project, failed to progress past the Infrastructure a...
	Now, due to all these changes, Wellington Water wish to reprioritise the three waters capital delivery programme for FY2023/24 and have this confirmed by Council.
	Prioritisation
	4.1 Te Tiriti obligations
	4.2 Long Term Plan alignment

	5. Discussion
	6. Options
	6.1 Option 1 – Based on Wellington Water Advice Paper (Appendix 2)
	6.2 Option 2 – Ringfence Funds to allow Memorial Park and Tauherenikau to progress and carryover underspend into FY2024/25

	7. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	7.1  Significant risk register
	7.2 Policy implications

	8. Consultation
	8.1  Communications and engagement
	8.2 Partnerships

	9. Financial Considerations
	10. Climate Change Considerations
	11. Health and Safety Considerations
	12. Appendices

	C4 Draft Carterton and South Wairarapa Interim Speed Management Plan 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to provide Council with further information on specific areas of the draft interim Speed Management Plan as requested at the hearings and deliberation meeting held on 16 August 2023.
	2. Executive Summary
	The way speed management is being done throughout New Zealand is changing. This means that decisions on speed management will be able to be made at a more localised level in the future.
	Effective speed management is more than just setting speed limits, it is also about infrastructure and road design. This draft interim plan will help us transition from the way we have set speed limits in the past, to a new, more flexible approach tha...
	Rather than looking at speed limit changes on a street-by-street basis, this interim Speed Management Plan establishes speed reviews around schools, marae and takes full account of feedback from the public consultation process, feedback in past Annual...
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	5. Prioritization
	5.1 Tangata whenua considerations
	5.2 Long Term Plan alignment

	6. Discussion
	7. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	7.1 Policy implications Land Transport Rule:

	Setting of Speed Limits 2022 The Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2022 (the Rule) replaces the Land Transport Rule: Setting of Speed Limits 2017, which required speed limits to be set through bylaws. The new Rule makes the setting of speed...
	The Rule requires Road Controlling Authorities to prepare speed management plans that establish a 10-year vision and three-year action plan to implement safe and appropriate speed limits and associated speed management activities. It empowers RCAs to ...
	8. Partnerships
	Waka Kotahi is working in partnership with local government and the wider safety sector to implement the right mix of safety solutions for each region. If we are to achieve our vision of an Aotearoa where no one is killed or seriously injured on our r...
	9. Financial Considerations
	10. Appendices

	C5 Greytown Greenspace Options 27Sept 23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	Greytown is urgently short of greenspace for organised sporting and recreation activities.  For a number of years in Greytown residents have been lobbying Council to increase capacity for greenspace Greytown.  This need was more formally identified in...
	In June 2020 Council passed resolutions to provide more greenspace in Greytown for sports and recreation, and not to proceed with land purchases.  Council also passed a resolution to enter into discussions with Greytown Trust Lands Trust (GTLT).  Sinc...
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	At the 23 June 2020 Council meeting the following resolutions were passed:
	 To agree that Council should provide more green space for sports and recreation in Greytown.
	5. Prioritisation
	5.1 Te Tiriti obligations
	5.2 Long Term Plan alignment

	6. Discussion
	7. Options
	8. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	8.1  Significant risk register
	8.2 Policy implications

	9. Consultation
	9.1  Communications and engagement
	9.2 Partnerships

	10. Financial Considerations
	11. Climate Change Considerations
	12. Health and Safety Considerations
	13. Appendices

	C6 Environmental Scan 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Discussion
	5. Appendices
	Environmental Scan DRAFT.pdf
	Environmental Scan
	2023
	Environmental Scan
	2024
	Environmental Scan
	2024
	Environmental Scan
	2024
	1. Executive Summary
	2. Introduction
	3. Forces of Change (Megatrends)
	3.1 Geopolitical Instability and the Global Economy
	3.2 Climate Change
	3.3 Persistent Inequality
	3.4 Polarised Perspectives
	3.5 An Aging and Changing Population
	3.6 Technology and Artificial Intelligence

	4. Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Legal and Environmental Trends
	4.1 Te Ao Māori
	4.2 Political Trends
	4.3 Economic Trends
	Figure 1: National Economic Outcomes
	Figure 2: Sustained Growth
	Figure 3:   Spending in the Wairarapa
	Figure 4:   Local Economic Structure
	Figure 5:   Challenges for Primary Sector in Wairarapa
	4.4 Social Trends
	Figure 6: Projected Population Change in the South Wairarapa District
	4.5 Technological Trends
	4.6 Legal (regulatory) and Strategic Trends
	4.7 Environmental

	5. Weaving it All Together: Connecting our Strategic Outcomes with the Purpose of Local Government
	5.1 The Four Wellbeings
	5.2 Council Strategies, Plans, and Future Priorities
	5.3 What Could the Future Look Like?



	C7 Adoption of Gambling SOP 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	Territorial Authorities must adopt a Class 4 Gambling Venue Policy under Section 101 of the Gambling Act 2003.  Class 4 Gambling is gambling that utilises or involves a gaming machine (often referred to as “pokies”). Class 4 Gambling represents high-r...
	Section 96(1) of the Racing Industry Act 2020 states that local authorities must adopt a policy on TAB Venues. A TAB Venue is a premise owned or leased by the New Zealand Racing Board and where the main business carried out at the premises is providin...
	The Masterton, Carterton and South Wairarapa District Councils (the Councils) share a Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues Policy (the Policy).  Residents and visitors to Wairarapa frequently travel between the different districts. Hav...
	5. Discussion
	5.1 Purpose of the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues Policy
	5.2 Key Provisions of the Wairarapa Class 4 Gambling and Standalone TAB Venues Policy
	5.3 Review Methodology
	5.4 Work to Date

	6. Analysis and Advice
	6.1 Key Findings of the Social Impact Assessment
	6.2 How the Policy Compares with Neighbouring Districts
	6.3 Analysis using the Departments of Internal Affairs (DIA) and Ministry of Health Guidance (MoH)
	6.4 Overall Assessment of the Effectiveness of the Policy
	6.5 Proposed Policy
	6.6 Options Considered

	7. Recommended Option
	7.1 Non-policy Interventions to Mitigate Gambling Harm

	8. Consideration by Other Councils
	Masterton District Council and Carterton District Council considered this report at their meetings on 27 September 2023. Carterton District Council resolved to adopt all recommendations, as outlined above. Masterton District Council resolved (changes ...
	9. Summary of Considerations
	9.1 Strategic, Policy and Legislative Implications
	9.2 Significance, Engagement and Consultation
	9.3 Financial Considerations
	9.4 Implications for Māori
	Minimising harm to our community caused by gambling is a key objective of the Policy, including our Māori communities.
	9.5 Environmental/Climate Change Impact and Considerations

	10. Conclusion
	Masterton District Council and Carterton District Council considered this report at their meetings on 27 September 2023. Subject to adoption by the Wairarapa District Councils, consultation will be undertaken in October/November 2023. Hearings and del...
	11. Appendices

	C8 Adoption of the Proactive Release Policy 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	5. Development
	5.1 Why is a policy needed?
	5.1.1. Ombudsman opinion and advice
	5.1.2. Key themes

	5.2 Benefits
	According to the Ombudsman, proactive release of information can:
	5.3 Risks
	5.4 Development process
	5.5 Webpage Development

	6. Options
	The table below outlines the options considered for engagement alongside our Significance and Engagement Policy. Option 1 is recommended. This would mean that Council adopts the Policy and it is implemented immediately.
	A summary of the options for consideration is included in the table below.
	7. Summary of Considerations
	7.1 Strategic, Policy and Legislative Implications

	The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA 2002) states that one of the purposes of local government is to promote the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of communities, in the present and for the future. Section 11 of LGA 2002 provides t...
	7.2 Significant risk register
	7.3 Significance, Engagement and Consultation
	In developing this Policy, we have engaged with Council Officers, taken into account the feedback from the most recent Residents Perception Survey results and the steady increase in the complexity/frequency of LGOIMA requests within short timeframes o...

	7.4 Financial Considerations
	7.5 Implications for Māori

	8. Conclusion
	Following adoption, the Policy will be published on Council’s website and the community will be informed on a range of platforms.  Staff will be provided with information and training where required.
	9. Appendices
	Proactive Release Policy Draft V4.pdf
	PROACTIVE RELEASE POLICY
	1. Relevant Legislation/Ture whaitake
	2. Purpose/Te Pūtake
	3. Scope/Tirohanga whānui
	4. Policy Statement/Kaupapa here tauākī
	4.1. Proactive Release of Information Not Subject to a Request
	4.2. Proactive release of LGOIMA responses
	4.3. Principles for the Release of LGOIMA Responses
	4.4. Decision to proactively release information
	4.5. Consultation with stakeholders
	4.6. Notification of requestors
	4.7. Charges

	5. Publishing
	6. Reporting
	7. Related Documents
	8. Definitions



	C9 Approval of Submissions Guidlines Report 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	5. Discussion
	6. Summary of Considerations
	7.1    Strategic, Policy and Legislative Implications

	The Local Government Act 2002 (LGA 2002) states that one of the purposes of local government is to promote the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of communities, in the present and for the future. Section 11 of LGA 2002 provides t...
	7.2    Significant risk register
	7.3     Significance, Engagement and Consultation
	7.4     Financial Considerations

	7. Conclusion
	8. Appendices
	Appendix 1 - Guidelines for SWDC submissions v1.pdf
	Indicative sign-off process FOR councillor led submissions


	C10 Freedom Camping Bylaw 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Recommendations
	3. Executive Summary
	4. Background
	4.1 Determinations
	4.2 Freedom camping legislation
	4.3 Freedom Camping in South Wairarapa
	4.4 Engagement

	5. Discussion
	5.1 Freedom Camping Bylaws
	5.2 Site assessment against the criteria in the Act
	5.3 Proposed Bylaw
	5.4 Proposed amendment of Clifford Square Reserve Management Plan

	6. Options
	7. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	7.1  Significant risk register
	7.2 Legal and policy considerations

	8. Consultation
	8.1 Significance and engagement

	9. Financial Considerations
	10. Attachments
	Attachment 1 - Freedom Camping Bylaw SOP and bylaw - proposed for consultation - September 2023.pdf
	Attachment 1 to the “Adoption of the Freedom Camping Bylaw Statement of Proposal for Community Consultation” Council report, 27 September 2023 Statement of Proposal and Proposed Freedom Camping Bylaw 2024
	1. What is a Freedom Camping Bylaw?
	2. Options considered
	3. What is Council proposing?
	4. How you can have your say
	Contents
	Bylaw History
	Foreword
	1. Title and Commencement
	2. Purpose
	3. Application
	4. Explanatory notes
	5. Interpretation
	6. Areas where Freedom Camping is Prohibited
	7. Areas where Freedom Camping is Restricted
	8. Temporary closure of an area to Freedom Camping
	9. Prior Consent from Council
	10. Offences
	11. Relationship of Bylaw with Settlement Legislation
	12. Schedules
	13. Appendices
	SCHEDULE 1: Prohibited Areas for Freedom Camping
	SCHEDULE 2: Restricted Areas for Freedom Camping

	Attachment 2 - Freedom Camping Bylaw Maps (Appendix 1 of Bylaw).pdf
	Maps cover page
	1 - Martinborough Square Reserve
	2 - Clifford Square Reserve
	3 - Otauira Reserve
	4 - Hastwell Street Carpark
	5 - Fitzherbert Street, Featherston
	6 - Main Street, Greytown
	7 - Cape Palliser Coast
	8 - Tora-Te Awaiti Coast (and White Rock)
	9 - Featherston Township
	10 - Greytown Township
	11 - Martinborough Township
	12 - Fell Museum Carpark
	13 - Te Awaiti Reserve
	14 - North Tora Reserve
	15 - South Tora Reserve
	16 - White Rock Reserve
	17 - Ngawi Reserve
	18 - Ngawi Surf Breaks
	19a - Lake Domain Reserve

	Attachment 3 - Summary of Site Assessments for SWDC Freedom Camping Bylaw.pdf
	Attachment 3 to the “Adoption of the Freedom Camping Bylaw Statement of Proposal for Community Consultation” Council report, 27 September 2023 Summary of site assessments for informing Proposed Freedom Camping Bylaw
	Introduction
	FREEDOM CAMPING AREA ASSESSMENT MATRIX
	Applying the assessment matrix
	Summary tables



	D1 CEO Report 27Sept23.pdf
	Statement from the Interim Chief Executive
	Legislative Updates
	Current central government consultations
	Regional strategic updates
	Partnerships
	Strategy/Policy updates
	Upcoming engagement and consultation
	Significant projects
	PROJECT STATUS:
	Governance
	Representation Review
	Spatial Plan and Featherston Masterplan - No change
	PROJECT STATUS:

	People and Capability
	Financial Update
	Crisis and Emergency Management
	Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act Requests

	D2 Representation Review Legislative Changes 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	5. Prioritisation
	5.1 Te Tiriti obligations
	5.2 Long Term Plan alignment

	6. Discussion
	7. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	7.1  Significant risk register
	7.2 Policy implications

	8. Consultation
	8.1  Communications and engagement
	8.2 Partnerships

	9. Financial Considerations
	10. Climate Change Considerations
	11. Health and Safety Considerations

	D3 WEDS Annual Report 22-23 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Recommendation
	3. Appendices

	D4 DCActionsReport 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	3. Appendices

	E1 Mayors Report 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Recommendations
	3. Appoint Mayor Martin Connelly as a member, and Councillor Rebecca Gray as an alternative member, to the Wairarapa Moana Statutory Board.
	4. Appoint Mayor Martin Connelly to the Waiōhine River Plan Advisory Committee.
	5. Māori Standing Committee Appointment
	5.1 Discussion

	6. Appointee to the Wairarapa Moana Statutory Board
	7. Appointee to the Waiōhine River Plan Advisory Committee
	8. Lifetime dog tags
	9. Appendices

	F1 Destination Wairarapa Appointment Report 27Sept23.pdf
	Meeting – Date and Venue
	Specific item(s) for Council consideration

	C2 Community Wellbeing Fund 27Sept23.pdf
	1. Purpose
	2. Executive Summary
	In August 2022 Council approved entering into a funding agreement between DIA and SWDC for Three waters Reform – Better Off package (Tranche 1 Funding) of $1.88m. Since then, the proposal to fund a Community Well Being Fund was accepted and the agreem...
	We now wish Council to confirm via a council resolution the main programme components for the fund comprising:
	1. Application of the remaining $1.38m to the Community Wellbeing Fund,
	2. Creation of a representative Governance Group,
	3. Delegation to the Governance Group the authority to approve community projects up to a value of $50,000, and
	4. Ring-fencing of funds to enable administration and operation of the fund.
	3. Recommendations
	4. Background
	In August 2022, Council approved SWDC entering into a funding agreement with Te Tari Taiwhenua – Department of Internal Affairs for $1.88m of Three Waters Tranche 1 ‘Better Off’ Funding. The funding was to be used to create a ‘South Wairarapa Communit...
	With an agreement in place however, SWDC has yet to activate the creation of the CWBF and now needs Council approval to proceed with design and initiation of the mechanics of the fund.  Only once the governance and operational structures are in place ...
	5. Prioritisation
	5.1 Te Tiriti obligations
	5.2 Long Term Plan alignment

	6. Discussion
	6.1 Governance Structure and Delegations
	6.2 Resources

	7. Options
	7.1 Option 1 – Initiate and operationalise a Community Wellbeing Fund
	7.2 Option 2 – Vary the Funding Agreement to an unallocated project needing up to $1.38m

	8. Strategic Drivers and Legislative Requirements
	8.1  Significant risk register
	8.2 Policy implications

	9. Consultation
	9.1  Communications and engagement
	9.2 Partnerships

	10. Financial Considerations
	11. Climate Change Considerations
	12. Health and Safety Considerations
	13. Appendices
	C1 Three Waters Reform Better Off Funding.pdf
	GCB Minutes 25May22 - Extraordinary.pdf
	1. extraordinary business
	2. Apologies
	3. Conflicts of intereSt
	4. acknowledgments and tributes
	5. Public Participation
	6. Actions from Public Participation
	7. Community Board Minutes
	8. Chairperson Report

	GCB Minutes 22June22.pdf
	1. extraordinary business
	2. Apologies
	3. Conflicts of interest
	4. acknowledgments and tributes
	5.          Public Participation
	6.          Actions from Public Participation
	7.          Community Board Minutes
	7.1       Greytown Community Board Minutes – 11 May 2022

	8.           Chairperson Report
	10.        Information reports from Chief executive and staff
	10.1      Officers’ Report
	10.2     Income and Expenditure Report
	10.3    Action Items Report

	11. Notices of motion
	12. Member reports (Information)

	MCB Minutes 30June22.pdf
	1. Extraordinary business
	2. Apologies
	3. Conflicts of Interest
	4. acknowledgments and tributes
	5. Public Participation
	6. Actions from Public Participation
	7. Martinborough Community Board Minutes
	7.1 Martinborough Community Board Minutes – 19 May 2022

	8. Decision Reports from Chief executive and staff reports
	8.1    Road Naming Report

	9. Information reports from chief executive and staff
	9.1 Climate Change Report
	9.2 Income and Expenditure Report
	9.3 Action Items Report
	9.4 Officer’s Report

	10.  Notices of Motion
	11. Chairperson Report
	11.1 Chairperson Report

	12. member reports
	13. public excluded business

	PRMinutes 13Jul22.pdf
	A1. Apologies
	A2. Conflicts of Interest
	A3. Public Participation
	A4. Actions from Public Participation
	A5. Extraordinary Business
	A6. Minutes for Confirmation

	B2 Committee Recommendations - A&S 10Aug22.pdf
	1. Background
	2. Appendices

	B3 AS FCB Recommendations 13Jul22.pdf
	1. Background
	2. Appendices

	ADPD88A.tmp
	1. Background
	2. Discussion
	2.1 Options
	2.2 Consultation
	2.3 Legal Implications
	2.4 Financial Considerations
	2.5 Risks

	3. Conclusion

	ADP8AC5.tmp
	1. Executive Summary

	ADP18D.tmp
	1. Background
	2. Policy

	ADP7289.tmp
	1. Executive Summary
	2. Appendices

	ADPAE66.tmp
	1. Executive Summary
	2. Appendices

	ADP75EF.tmp
	1. General Topics
	2. Meetings
	3. Appendices

	WWC_29072022_AGN_3058_AT Full.pdf
	Contents
	Agenda
	Unconfirmed Minutes of Wellington Water Committee | Komiti Ngā Wai Hangarua 27/05/2022
	Company and Governance Update
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Increasing demand for drinking water - Wellington metro
	Appendix 2 - Network Performance Metrics
	Appendix 3 - Waste Water Treatment Plants June 2022 Dashboard Reporting
	Martin Jenkins Inquiry into Fluoridation
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Inquiry into Cessation of Fluoridation by Wellington Water
	Appendix 2 - Flouride Inquiry Implementation Schedule
	Wellington Water Limited - Final Statement of Intent 2022-25
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1- Wellington Water Limited - Statement of Intent - 2022-25
	Appendix 2 - How letter of expectations has been addressed
	Appendix 3 - Statement of Intent Feedback Tracking Table
	Fluoridation and Regional Wastewater Plant Review Update
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Fluoride Inquiry Implementation Schedule
	Appendix 2 - Wastewater Treatment Plant - Review Implementation Dashboard (May/June 2022)
	Stimulus Funding Programme Close-out Report
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Three Waters Stimulus Project Close-out Report
	Value for Money Six Monthly Report
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Value for Money Report - July 2022
	Proposed Change to the Meeting Schedule for 2022
	Recommendation

	Wellington Water Committee Forward Programme 2022
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Wellington Water Committee Forward Programme 2022

	WWC_29072022_AGN_3058_AT.pdf
	Contents
	Agenda
	Unconfirmed Minutes of Wellington Water Committee | Komiti Ngā Wai Hangarua 27/05/2022
	Company and Governance Update
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Increasing demand for drinking water - Wellington metro
	Appendix 2 - Network Performance Metrics
	Appendix 3 - Waste Water Treatment Plants June 2022 Dashboard Reporting
	Martin Jenkins Inquiry into Fluoridation
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Inquiry into Cessation of Fluoridation by Wellington Water
	Appendix 2 - Flouride Inquiry Implementation Schedule
	Wellington Water Limited - Final Statement of Intent 2022-25
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1- Wellington Water Limited - Statement of Intent - 2022-25
	Appendix 2 - How letter of expectations has been addressed
	Appendix 3 - Statement of Intent Feedback Tracking Table
	Fluoridation and Regional Wastewater Plant Review Update
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Fluoride Inquiry Implementation Schedule
	Appendix 2 - Wastewater Treatment Plant - Review Implementation Dashboard (May/June 2022)
	Stimulus Funding Programme Close-out Report
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Three Waters Stimulus Project Close-out Report
	Value for Money Six Monthly Report
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Value for Money Report - July 2022
	Proposed Change to the Meeting Schedule for 2022
	Recommendation

	Wellington Water Committee Forward Programme 2022
	Recommendation
	Attachments Included

	Appendix 1 - Wellington Water Committee Forward Programme 2022

	Blank Page





